
  
 

 
 

  

REGULAR MEETING OF THE 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
Thursday, February 10,  2022 

at 
8:00 A.M. 

 
At 

Kern Health Systems 
2900 Buck Owens Boulevard 

Bakersfield, CA  93308 
 
 

The public is invited. 
 

For more information - please call (661) 664-5000. 
 

 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

1 / 300





 

 

AGENDA 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 

KERN HEALTH SYSTEMS 
2900 Buck Owens Boulevard 
Bakersfield, California 93308 

 
Regular Meeting 

Thursday, February 10, 2022 
 
 

8:00 A.M. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BOARD TO RECONVENE 
 
Directors: McGlew, Stewart, Deats, Bowers, Flores, Garcia, Hoffmann, Jones, 
Martinez, Melendez, Nilon, Patel, Patrick, Rhoades, Thygerson, Watson 
ROLL CALL: 

 
 

ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION 
 
 

CLOSED SESSION 
 

1) Request for Closed Session regarding peer review of a provider (Welfare and 
Institutions Code Section 14087.38(o)) – 

 
 

8:15 A.M. 
 
 
 

All agenda item supporting documentation is available for public review on the Kern Health Systems 
website:  https://www.kernfamilyhealthcare.com/about-us/governing-board/ 
Following the posting of the agenda, any supporting documentation that relates to an agenda item 
for an open session of any regular meeting that is distributed after the agenda is posted and prior to 
the meeting will also be available on the KHS website.  

PLEASE SILENT CELL PHONES AND OTHER ELECTRONIC DEVICES DURING THE 
MEETING 

 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

3 / 300



Agenda – Board of Directors  Page 2 
Kern Health Systems  2/10/2022 
Regular Meeting  

 

 

 
BOARD TO RECONVENE 

 
REPORT ON ACTIONS TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION  
 
CONSENT AGENDA/OPPORTUNITY FOR PUBLIC COMMENT: ALL ITEMS 
LISTED WITH A "CA" ARE CONSIDERED TO BE ROUTINE AND NON-
CONTROVERSIAL BY KERN HEALTH SYSTEMS STAFF. THE "CA" 
REPRESENTS THE CONSENT AGENDA. CONSENT ITEMS WILL BE 
CONSIDERED FIRST AND MAY BE APPROVED BY ONE MOTION IF NO 
MEMBER OF THE BOARD OR AUDIENCE WISHES TO COMMENT OR ASK 
QUESTIONS. IF COMMENT OR DISCUSSION IS DESIRED BY ANYONE, THE 
ITEM WILL BE REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT AGENDA AND WILL BE 
CONSIDERED IN LISTED SEQUENCE WITH AN OPPORTUNITY FOR ANY 
MEMBER OF THE PUBLIC TO ADDRESS THE BOARD CONCERNING THE 
ITEM BEFORE ACTION IS TAKEN. 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION SHOWN IN CAPS 

 
PUBLIC PRESENTATIONS 

 
2) This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons to address the Board on any 

matter not on this agenda but under the jurisdiction of the Board. Board members 
may respond briefly to statements made or questions posed. They may ask a 
question for clarification, make a referral to staff for factual information or request 
staff to report back to the Board at a later meeting. Also, the Board may take 
action to direct the staff to place a matter of business on a future agenda. 
SPEAKERS ARE LIMITED TO TWO MINUTES. PLEASE STATE AND SPELL 
YOUR NAME BEFORE MAKING YOUR PRESENTATION. THE MEETING 
FACILATATOR WILL INDICATE WHEN THERE IS 15 SECONDS REMAINING 
TO YOUR PRESENTATION TIME! 

 
BOARD MEMBER ANNOUNCEMENTS OR REPORTS 

 
3) On their own initiative, Board members may make an announcement or a report 

on their own activities. They may ask a question for clarification, make a referral 
to staff or take action to have staff place a matter of business on a future agenda 
(Government Code section 54954.2(a)(2)) 
 

CA-4) Minutes for Kern Health Systems Board of Directors regular meeting on December 
16, 2021 (Fiscal Impact: None) –  
APPROVE 
 

CA-5) Minutes for Kern Health Systems Board of Directors special meeting on January 
19, 2022 (Fiscal Impact: None) –  
APPROVE 
 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

4 / 300



Agenda – Board of Directors  Page 3 
Kern Health Systems  2/10/2022 
Regular Meeting  

 

 

6) Report on the Chief Executive Officer Search Committee Update (Fiscal Impact: 
None) –  
RECEIVE AND FILE 
 

7) Report on Kern Health Systems 2021 Member Services Survey (Fiscal Impact: 
None) –  

 RECEIVE AND FILE 
 

8) Report on Kern Health Systems 2022 Employee Satisfaction & Engagement 
Survey (Fiscal Impact: None) –  

 RECEIVE AND FILE 
 

9) Report on Kern Health Systems 2021 Provider Satisfaction Survey (Fiscal 
Impact: None) –  
RECEIVE AND FILE 
 

CA-10) Report on Kern Health Systems Proposed 2022 Corporate and Department 
Goals and Projects and, the 2021 Corporate and Department Goals and 
Objectives Performance Results (Fiscal Impact: None) –  
RECEIVE AND FILE 
 

11) Report on Kern Health Systems 2022 School Based Wellness Programs and 
2021 Results (Fiscal Impact: None) –  
RECEIVE AND FILE 
 

CA-12) Report on Kern Health Systems Investment Portfolio for the Fourth Quarter 
Ending December 31, 2021 (Fiscal Impact: None) –  
RECEIVE AND FILE 
 

CA-13) Report on 2021 Annual Review of the Kern Health Systems Investment Policy 
(Fiscal Impact: None) –  
RECEIVE AND FILE 
 

CA-14) Report on 2021 Annual Travel Report (Fiscal Impact: None) –  
RECEIVE AND FILE 
 

CA-15) Report on 2021 Annual Report of Disposed Assets (Fiscal Impact: None) –  
RECEIVE AND FILE 
 

CA-16) Proposed Amendment to MCG agreement, for the purchase of (2) additional MCG 
Clinical Care Guidelines, from February 17, 2022 through August 16, 2025 (Fiscal 
Impact: $141,000 estimated annually; Budgeted) –  
APPROVE; AUTHORIZE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER TO SIGN 
 
 
 
 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

5 / 300



Agenda – Board of Directors  Page 4 
Kern Health Systems  2/10/2022 
Regular Meeting  

 

 

CA-17) Proposed Agreement with Ceridian HCM, for Payroll and Human Resources 
Management Services, from March 18, 2022 through March 17, 2025, in an 
amount not to exceed $36.00 PEPM (Per Employee Per Month) (Fiscal Impact: 
$216,000 estimated annually; Budgeted) –  
APPROVE; AUTHORIZE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER TO SIGN 
 

18) Report on Kern Health Systems financial statements for November 2021 (Fiscal 
Impact: None) –    

 RECEIVE AND FILE 
 
CA-19) Report on Accounts Payable Vendor Report, Administrative Contracts between 

$30,000 and $100,000 for November 2021 IT Technology Consulting Resources 
for the period ended November 30, 2022 (Fiscal Impact: None) –  

 RECEIVE AND FILE 
 

CA-20)  Proposed Kern Health Systems provider contracts (rates confidential per Welfare 
and Institutions Code Section 14087.38(m)) – 

   APPROVE; AUTHORIZE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER TO SIGN 
    

21) Report on Kern Health Systems Operation Performance and Review of the Kern 
Health Systems Grievance Report (Fiscal Impact: None) –  

 RECEIVE AND FILE 
 

22) Kern Health Systems Chief Medical Officer report (Fiscal Impact: None) –  
 RECEIVE AND FILE 

 
23) Kern Health Systems Chief Executive Officer report (Fiscal Impact: None) –  

 RECEIVE AND FILE 
 

CA-24)  Miscellaneous Documents –  
RECEIVE AND FILE    

 
A) Minutes for Kern Health Systems Finance Committee meeting on December 

10, 2021   
 
 
ADJOURN TO APRIL 14, 2022 AT 8:00 A.M. 
 

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT 
(Government Code Section 54953.2) 

 
The meeting facilities at Kern Health Systems are accessible to persons with disabilities. 
Disabled individuals who need special assistance to attend or participate in a meeting of the 
Board of Directors may request assistance at the Kern Health Systems office, 2900 Buck 
Owens Boulevard, Bakersfield, California 93308 or by calling (661) 664-5010. Every effort 
will be made to reasonably accommodate individuals with disabilities by making meeting 
material available in alternative formats. Requests for assistance should be made five (5) 

working days in advance of a meeting whenever possible. 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

6 / 300



 

SUMMARY 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 

KERN HEALTH SYSTEMS 
2900 Buck Owens Boulevard 
Bakersfield, California 93308 

 
Regular Meeting 

Thursday, December 16, 2021 
 
 

8:00 A.M. 
 

BOARD RECONVENED 
 

Directors: McGlew, Judd, Stewart, Deats, Bowers, Flores, Garcia, Hoffmann, Jones, Martinez, 
Melendez, Nilon, Patel, Patrick, Rhoades, Watson 
ROLL CALL: 12 Present; 4 Absent – Stewart, Deats, Hoffmann, Jones  
 
NOTE: The vote is displayed in bold below each item.  For example, Rhoades-Deats denotes 
Director Rhoades made the motion and Director Deats seconded the motion. 

 
CONSENT AGENDA/OPPORTUNITY FOR PUBLIC COMMENT:  ALL ITEMS LISTED WITH A 
"CA" WERE CONSIDERED TO BE ROUTINE AND APPROVED BY ONE MOTION.   

 
BOARD ACTION SHOWN IN CAPS 
 

 

1) Board Resolution to Allow Virtual Board Meeting Participation Pursuant to 
Government Code Section 54953 (Fiscal Impact: None) - 
APPROVED 

Nilon-Martinez: 11 Ayes; 1 Abstention; 4 Absent – Stewart, Deats, 
Hoffmann, Jones 

 
 

ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION 
Rhoades 
 

CLOSED SESSION 
 

2) Request for Closed Session regarding peer review of a provider (Welfare and 
Institutions Code Section 14087.38(o)) – SEE RESULTS BEOW 

 
 

8:15 A.M. 
 
BOARD RECONVENED 
 
 
 
 
 
 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

7 / 300



SUMMARY – Board of Directors  Page 2 
Kern Health Systems  12/16/2021 
Regular Meeting  

 

 
REPORT ON ACTIONS TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION  
 
 

Item No. 2 concerning a Request for Closed Session regarding peer review PROVIDERS 
RECOMMENDED FOR INITIAL CREDENTIALING NOVEMBER 2021 of a provider 
(Welfare and Institutions Code Section 14087.38(o)) – HEARD; BY A UNANIMOUS 
VOTE OF THOSE DIRECTORS PRESENT, THE BOARD APPROVED ALL 
PROVIDERS RECOMMENDED FOR INITIAL CREDENTIALING; DIRECTOR 
THYGERSON ABSTAINED FROM VOTING ON TSENG, ZAMUDIO, DOUGLAS 
Item No. 2 concerning a Request for Closed Session regarding peer review PROVIDERS 
RECOMMENDED FOR INITIAL CREDENTIALING DECEMBER 2021 of a provider 
(Welfare and Institutions Code Section 14087.38(o)) – HEARD; BY A UNANIMOUS 
VOTE OF THOSE DIRECTORS PRESENT, THE BOARD APPROVED ALL 
PROVIDERS RECOMMENDED FOR INITIAL CREDENTIALING; DIRECTOR GARCIA 
ABSTAINED FROM VOTING ON TRAN; DIRECTOR THYGERSON ABSTAINED FROM 
VOTING ON HOLLOWAY 
Item No. 2 concerning a Request for Closed Session regarding peer review PROVIDERS 
RECOMMENDED FOR RECREDENTIALING NOVEMBER 2021 of a provider (Welfare 
and Institutions Code Section 14087.38(o)) – HEARD; BY A UNANIMOUS VOTE OF 
THOSE DIRECTORS PRESENT, THE BOARD APPROVED ALL PROVIDERS 
RECOMMENDED FOR RECREDENTIALING; DIRECTOR BOWERS ABSTAINED 
FROM VOTING ON SINGH, CURRY, UGOH; DIRECTOR THYGERSON ABSTAINED 
FROM VOTING ON BOWEN, HODGE, WISNOFF, CAPOTE, GRANESE, KAY, 
MENDOZA, PIEPER. POLINENI, YADIN; DIRECTOR PATEL ABSTAINED FROM 
VOTING ON BANSAL 
Item No. 2 concerning a Request for Closed Session regarding peer review PROVIDERS 
RECOMMENDED FOR RECREDENTIALING DECEMBER 2021 of a provider (Welfare 
and Institutions Code Section 14087.38(o)) – HEARD; BY A UNANIMOUS VOTE OF 
THOSE DIRECTORS PRESENT, THE BOARD APPROVED ALL PROVIDERS 
RECOMMENDED FOR RECREDENTIALING; DIRECTOR BOWERS ABSTAINED 
FROM VOTING ON SHAH; DIRECTOR GARCIA ABSTAINED FROM VOTING ON 
CHANDY; DIRECTOR THYGERSON ABSTAINED FROM VOTING ON BERJIS; 
CHANDRAMAHANTI 
 

 
PUBLIC PRESENTATIONS 

 
 

3) This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons to address the Board on any matter 
not on this agenda but under the jurisdiction of the Board. Board members may respond 
briefly to statements made or questions posed. They may ask a question for clarification, 
make a referral to staff for factual information or request staff to report back to the Board 
at a later meeting. Also, the Board may take action to direct the staff to place a matter of 
business on a future agenda. SPEAKERS ARE LIMITED TO TWO MINUTES. PLEASE 
STATE AND SPELL YOUR NAME BEFORE MAKING YOUR PRESENTATION. THE 
MEETING FACILATATOR WILL INDICATE WHEN THERE IS 15 SECONDS 
REMAINING TO YOUR PRESENTATION TIME! 
NO ONE HEARD 

 
 
 
 
 
 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

8 / 300



SUMMARY – Board of Directors  Page 3 
Kern Health Systems  12/16/2021 
Regular Meeting  

 

 
BOARD MEMBER ANNOUNCEMENTS OR REPORTS 

 
4) On their own initiative, Board members may make an announcement or a report on 

their own activities. They may ask a question for clarification, make a referral to staff 
or take action to have staff place a matter of business on a future agenda 
(Government Code section 54954.2(a)(2)) 
 
DIRECTOR PATRICK ASKED IF THE PUBLIC IS ALLOWED TO ATTEND THE 
BOARD MEEETINGS AND IT WAS STATED THAT THE PUBLIC IS WELCOME TO 
ATTEND IN PERSON 
 

CA-5) Minutes for Kern Health Systems Board of Directors regular meeting on October 14,  
2021 (Fiscal Impact: None) – APPROVED 
Patel-Patrick: 12 Ayes; 4 – Absent Stewart, Deats, Hoffmann, Jones 
 

6) Report on the Chief Executive Officer Search Committee progress (Fiscal Impact: 
None) – RECEIVED AND FILED 
Melendez-Martinez: 12 Ayes; 4 – Absent Stewart, Deats, Hoffmann, Jones 
 

CA-7) Report on Kern Health Systems investment portfolio for the third quarter ending 
September 30, 2021 (Fiscal Impact: None) – RECEIVED AND FILED 
Patel-Patrick: 12 Ayes; 4 – Absent Stewart, Deats, Hoffmann, Jones 
 

CA-8) Proposed policy with IOA RE for reinsurance to mitigate costs incurred by Kern Health 
Systems for members with high dollar inpatient admissions from January 1, 2022 
through December 31, 2022 in an amount not to exceed $0.18 per member per month 
(Fiscal Impact: $670,140 estimated; Budgeted) – APPROVED; AUTHORIZED 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER TO SIGN 
Patel-Patrick: 12 Ayes; 4 – Absent Stewart, Deats, Hoffmann, Jones 

 
9) Report on Kern Health Systems 2022 CalAIM Initiatives Implementation (Fiscal 

Impact: None) – RECEIVED AND FILED 
Patel-Melendez: 12 Ayes; 4 – Absent Stewart, Deats, Hoffmann, Jones 

 
DIRECTOR FLORES LEFT THE MEETING AT 9:30 A.M. DURING THE 
DISCUSSION OF ITEM 10 AND DID NOT RETURN 

 
10) Proposed Kern Health Systems 2022 Operating and Capital Budgets (Fiscal 

Impact: None) – APPROVED 
Rhoades-Patrick: 11 Ayes; 5 – Absent - Stewart, Deats, Flores, Hoffmann, 
Jones 
 

11) Proposed Budget Request for 2022 Project Consulting Professional Services, from 
January 1, 2022 through December 31, 2022 (Fiscal Impact: $10,369,190; 
Budgeted) – APPROVED 
Rhoades-Melendez: 11 Ayes; 5 – Absent - Stewart, Deats, Flores, Hoffmann, 
Jones 
 
 
 
 
 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

9 / 300



SUMMARY – Board of Directors  Page 4 
Kern Health Systems  12/16/2021 
Regular Meeting  

 

 
12) Report on Kern Health Systems financial statements for September 2021 and 

October 2021 (Fiscal Impact: None) – RECEIVED AND FILED 
Nilon-Patel: 11 Ayes; 5 – Absent - Stewart, Deats, Flores, Hoffmann, Jones 

 
CA-13) Report on Accounts Payable Vendor Report, Administrative Contracts between 

$30,000 and $100,000 for September 2021 and October 2021 and IT Technology 
Consulting Resources for the period ended October 31, 2021 (Fiscal Impact: None) 
– RECEIVED AND FILED 
Patel-Patrick: 12 Ayes; 4 – Absent Stewart, Deats, Hoffmann, Jones 

 
CA-14) Proposed Agreement with Dell, Inc, for Microsoft Licensing, maintenance and 

technical support, from January 1, 2022 through December 31, 2024, in an amount 
not to exceed $1,358,808 (Fiscal Impact: $452,936 annually; Budgeted) –  
APPROVED; AUTHORIZED CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER TO SIGN 
Patel-Patrick: 12 Ayes; 4 – Absent Stewart, Deats, Hoffmann, Jones 

 
CA-15) Proposed Agreement with Entysis360, for the purchase of the Nutanix Storage 

Solution with one year support and maintenance, from January 1, 2022 through 
December 31, 2022 (Fiscal Impact: $733,444 annually; Budgeted) – 
APPROVED; AUTHORIZED CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER TO SIGN 
Patel-Patrick: 12 Ayes; 4 – Absent Stewart, Deats, Hoffmann, Jones 

 
CA-16) Proposed Agreement with LinkedIn, Co., for the online training platform for KHS’ 

employees, from January 1, 2022 through December 31, 2024, in an amount not to 
exceed $178,950 (Fiscal Impact: $59,650 annually; Budgeted) – APPROVED; 
AUTHORIZED CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER TO SIGN 
Patel-Patrick: 12 Ayes; 4 – Absent Stewart, Deats, Hoffmann, Jones 

 
17) Proposed Agreement with A-C Electric, for the design and installation of a Solar Panel 

system for the KHS’ facility, from January 1, 2022 through October 30, 2022, (Fiscal 
Impact: $2,371,559; Budgeted) - JUSTIN BROWN, JEFF PETRINI, A-C ELECTRIC, 
HEARD; APPROVED; AUTHORIZED CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER TO SIGN 
Patel-Garcia: 11 Ayes; 5 – Absent  - Stewart, Deats, Flores, Hoffmann, Jones 
 

18) Report on Kern Health Systems Vaccination Incentive Program (Fiscal Impact: None) –  
RECEIVE AND FILE 

Martinez-Garcia: 11 Ayes; 5 – Absent - Stewart, Deats, Flores, Hoffmann, Jones 
 

CA-19) Report on 2021 State Legislation and Budget Overview  (Fiscal Impact: None) – 
   RECEIVED AND FILED 

Patel-Patrick: 12 Ayes; 4 – Absent Stewart, Deats, Hoffmann, Jones 
 

CA-20)  Proposed Kern Health Systems provider contracts (rates confidential per Welfare and 
Institutions Code Section 14087.38(m)) – 

   APPROVED; AUTHORIZED CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER TO SIGN 
Patel-Patrick: 12 Ayes; 4 – Absent Stewart, Deats, Hoffmann, Jones 

 
 
 
 
 
 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

10 / 300



SUMMARY – Board of Directors  Page 5 
Kern Health Systems  12/16/2021 
Regular Meeting  

 

21)     Kern Health Systems Chief Medical Officer report (Fiscal Impact: None) –  
RECEIVED AND FILED 
Melendez-Patel: 12 Ayes; 4 – Absent - Stewart, Deats, Flores, Hoffmann, Jones 

 
22)     Kern Health Systems Chief Executive Officer report (Fiscal Impact: None) –  
 RECEIVE AND FILE 

Rhoades-Patel: 12 Ayes; 4 – Absent - Stewart, Deats, Flores, Hoffmann, Jones 
 

CA-23) Proposed appointment of Pat Person, PharmD to the Kern Health Systems Pharmacy 
& Therapeutic / Drug Utilization Review Committee (Fiscal Impact: None) – 
APPOINTMENT MADE 
Patel-Patrick: 12 Ayes; 4 – Absent Stewart, Deats, Hoffmann, Jones 

 
CA-24) Proposed modifications to Kern Health Systems Formulary (Fiscal Impact: None) –  
  APPROVED  

Patel-Patrick: 12 Ayes; 4 – Absent Stewart, Deats, Hoffmann, Jones 
 

 CA-25) Miscellaneous Documents – RECEIVED AND FILED    
Patel-Patrick: 12 Ayes; 4 – Absent Stewart, Deats, Hoffmann, Jones 

 
A) Minutes for Kern Health Systems Finance Committee meeting on October 8, 

2021   
 

 
ADJOURN TO THURSDAY, FEBRUARY 10, 2022 AT 8:00 A.M. 
Garcia 
 
 
/s/ Cindy Stewart, Secretary  
 Kern Health Systems Board of Directors 
 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

11 / 300





 

 
SUMMARY 

 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
KERN HEALTH SYSTEMS 

2900 Buck Owens Boulevard 
Bakersfield, California 93308 

 
 

Special Meeting 
Wednesday, January 19, 2022 

 
9:45 A.M. 

 
 
 
 

BOARD RECONVENED 
 
 
Directors: McGlew, Stewart, Deats, Bowers, Flores, Garcia, Hoffmann, Jones, 
Martinez, Melendez, Nilon, Patel, Patrick, Rhoades, Thygerson, Watson 
ROLL CALL: 12 Present; 4 Absent – Martinez, Nilon, Patel, Watson  

 
 

1) Board Resolution to Allow Virtual Board Meeting Participation Pursuant to 
Government Code Section 54953 (Fiscal Impact: None) - APPROVED 
Rhoades-Deats: 12 Ayes; 4 Absent – Martinez, Nilon, Patel, Watson 

 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION SHOWN IN CAPS 

 
 

PUBLIC PRESENTATIONS 
 

2) This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons to address the Board on any matter 
not on this agenda but under the jurisdiction of the Board. Board members may 
respond briefly to statements made or questions posed. They may ask a question for 
clarification, make a referral to staff for factual information or request staff to report 
back to the Board at a later meeting. Also, the Board may take action to direct the staff 
to place a matter of business on a future agenda. SPEAKERS ARE LIMITED TO TWO 
MINUTES. PLEASE STATE AND SPELL YOUR NAME BEFORE MAKING YOUR 
PRESENTATION. THE MEETING FACILATATOR WILL INDICATE WHEN THERE 
IS 15 SECONDS REMAINING TO YOUR PRESENTATION TIME! 
NO ONE HEARD 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

13 / 300



Summary – Board of Directors  Page 2 
Kern Health Systems  1/19/22 
Special Meeting  

 

 
BOARD MEMBER ANNOUNCEMENTS OR REPORTS 

 
 
3) On their own initiative, Board members may make an announcement or a report on 

their own activities. They may ask a question for clarification, make a referral to staff 
or take action to have staff place a matter of business on a future agenda (Government 
Code section 54954.2(a)(2)) 
NO ONE HEARD 
 

4) Proposed Appointment of Michael Bowers to the Chief Executive Officer Search 
Committee (Fiscal Impact: None) –  
APPROVED APPOINTMENT 
Garcia–Hoffmann: 12 Ayes; 4 Absent – Martinez, Nilon, Patel, Watson 

 
 
 
ADJOURN TO FEBRUARY 10, 2022 AT 8:00 A.M. 
Deats 
 
/s/ Cindy Stewart, Secretary  
 Kern Health Systems Board of Directors 
 

 
 

 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

14 / 300



 

 

 

 

 

 

To:   KHS Board of Directors 

 

From: Timothy McGlew, Chairman 

 

Date:  February 10, 2022 

 

Re:  CEO Search Committee Progress Report 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Background 

At a special meeting of the Board on January 19th, the Board approved the selection of Michael 

Bowers to replace Russell Judd on the CEO Search Committee following Director Judd’s leaving  

the KHS Board.   

Later that same day, the CEO Search Committee met to conduct a desk review of the slate of 

candidates presented by Mark Andrew of Witt Kieffer. Nine candidates were profiled by Mr. 

Andrew focusing on their professional background, formal training and education, work 

experience, industry knowledge, level of interest and skills necessary to perform the CEO duties 

as outlined in the Kern Health Systems Chief Executive Officer Position Summary shared with the 

candidates prior to meeting with Mr. Andrew.    

Following a lengthy discussion, the  CEO Search Committee selected a smaller number of 

candidates for interviews which is scheduled to take place on site over a two-day period in 

February.   

Final candidates will be presented to the full Board for selection of the CEO by the Board at a 

future date.   

 

Requested Action 

Receive and File.   

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

15 / 300





 

 

 

 

TO:  KHS Board of Directors 

 

FROM: Alan Avery, COO 

 

DATE: February 10, 2022 

 

RE:  2021 Member Satisfaction Survey 

 

 

Background 

 

Kern Health Systems (KHS), in partnership with participating providers, is committed to meeting 

the expectations of our members as they interact with the health plan and when receiving health 

care services through our provider network.  Annually, KHS conducts a Member Satisfaction 

Survey to measure and evaluate how well we are meeting members’ expectations. 

 

For the past six years, KHS has engaged SPH Analytics to conduct our Member Satisfaction 

Survey. SPH Analytics is a CMS and NCQA approved Medicaid, Medicare and Commercial 

Health Plan survey vendor with a large footprint in California and throughout the United States. 

SPH Analytics utilizes scores from various benchmarks to provide comparative and trending data 

for the results from member responses to the 59 questions provided on the survey.  They 

provided two sets of benchmarks for us to consider-(1) National NCQA Accredited Adult 

Medicaid Plans and (2) Regional Health & Human Services Region 9 consisting of California, 

Hawaii, Arizona and Nevada.  Given we are not NCQA accredited at this time, we thought it 

would be more appropriate to use the results of Region 9 which is heavily weighted by California 

Health Plans.  The 2021 Member Satisfaction Survey results show that overall, 78.6% of our 

members are satisfied with KHS compared to the regional benchmark of 77.4%.  As we look to 

the future, we will endeavor to continue to encourage the use of the Member Portal and the self-

service tools available there, by listening to the voice of our members through direct feedback 

from members and the results of the annual Member Satisfaction Survey.  The survey does not 

account for the continued COVID-19 pandemic’s impact on patient satisfaction.  Access to 

primary and specialty care may have been impacted by some provider office reduced hours or 

members reluctance to seek care.  In addition, delayed elective procedures may have influenced 

the rating for Specialists. 

 

Requested Action 

Receive and File. 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

17 / 300



2021 Member Satisfaction Survey 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

18 / 300



Overview

• The Kern Family Health Care (KFHC) Member Satisfaction Survey (MSS) is conducted annually 
by SPH Analytics (SPH), a CMS and NCQA certified HEDIS® Survey vendor, to measure 
member satisfaction with KFHC, their providers and provider access.

• This is the third year KHS utilized the CAHPS® 5.0H Medicaid Adult Member Satisfaction 
Simulation Survey which will assist our efforts to achieve objectives needed for NCQA 
accreditation required for all Medi-Cal Managed Care health plans by 2026. 

• The 2021 KFHC MSS results were measured in comparison to multiple benchmarks including the 
2021 SPH Regional book of business benchmark. 

• Performance considerations given to Pandemic’s impact on patient care access conditions

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

19 / 300



• Member criteria included eligible members 18 years and older who have had a 
medical service claim within the last six months.

• A sampling of 11,649 KFHC eligible member households was selected.

• There were a total of 850 completed responses.

• 374 completed responses by mail.

• 476 completed responses by phone.

• The Member Satisfaction Survey was conducted from July to November 2021.

Methodology

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

20 / 300



Respondent Demographics

18-34, 

33.0%

35-44, 

17.2%

45-54, 

18.3%

55 or older, 

31.4%

AGE

Hispanic/

Latino, 

60.5%

Not 

Hispanic/

Latino, 

39.5%

ETHNICITY

Male, 

32.3%

Female, 

67.7%

GENDER

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

21 / 300



Term Descriptions

Summary Rates 

represent the most 

favorable response 

percentages (“Yes”, 

“Usually”, 

“Always”, rates 8-10 

and 9-10 on a rating 

scale of 0 to 10)

2021 SPH Analytics MAS 

Book of Business (BoB) 

Region

The regions align with the 

U.S. Department of Health 

and Human Services regions. 

SPH compares sample data 

from the Medicaid plans 

within the region that 

contracted with SPH to 

administer the CAHPS 

survey and submitted data to 

NCQA.  KHS survey results 

were compared with Region 

9 San Francisco.

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

22 / 300



Regional Performance

Area of Rating

KHS 

Summary 

Rate

2021 SPH BoB 

Region

Rating of Health Plan 78.6% 77.4%

Rating of Health Care 74.3% 73.6%

Rating of Personal 

Doctor 81.6% 81.1%

Rating of Specialist 79.7% 83.2%

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

23 / 300



Regional Performance

KHS exceeds the regional rate for Getting Care Quickly and continues to work to 

improve in areas of Getting Needed Care and Coordination of Care. 

Area of Rating

KHS 

Summary 

Rate

2021 SPH BoB 

Region

Getting Needed Care 77.9% 79.8%

Getting Care Quickly 77.1% 76.3%

Coordination of Care 73.4% 79.9%

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

24 / 300



Getting Needed Care Trend

KHS has trended up showing improvement in the Getting Needed Care rating areas. 

73.6%

77.8%

69.5%

79.9%

83.3%

76.6%
77.9%

79.9%

75.9%

79.8%
82.0%

77.6%

60.0%

65.0%

70.0%

75.0%

80.0%

85.0%

Getting needed care Getting care, tests, or

treatment

Getting specialist appointment

KHS 2020 SPH Regional BoB 2020 KHS 2021 SPH Regional BoB 2021

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

25 / 300



Getting Care Quickly Trend

77.6%

79.5%

75.7%
77.0%

80.9%

73.0%

77.1%

80.5%

73.7%

76.3%

78.5%

74.2%

68.0%

70.0%

72.0%

74.0%

76.0%

78.0%

80.0%

82.0%

Getting Care Quickly Getting Urgent Care Getting Routine Care

KHS 2020 SPH Regional BoB 2020 KHS 2021 SPH Regional BoB 2021

KHS continues to exceed the regional trend for Getting Care Quickly and Getting Urgent 

Care. 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

26 / 300



Performance Improvement Strategies

SPH provides recommended improvement strategies compiled from their experience 
working with other health plans. KHS will consider these strategies to improve our 
scores.

1. Support members and collaborate with providers to enhance access to care through 
innovative and proactive approaches.

2. Provide resources to support and drive improvement in physician-patient communication 
and patient-centered interviewing. 

3. Encourage providers to gather and analyze patient feedback on their recent office visit.

4. Encourage patients to bring a list of all medications to all appointments. 

5. Support patients in navigating health care and remove obstacles.

6. Seek opportunities to improve processes and procedures.

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

27 / 300



Next Steps

1. Continue to discover opportunities for expansion of provider 

network.

2. Discover opportunities for alternative care through technology.

3. Educate and engage members to encourage member action for 

health status improvement.

4. Continue working with SPH to provide benchmark data specific to 

California health plans and to prepare for NCQA accreditation.

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

28 / 300



For more information:

Alan Avery

Chief Operating Officer

(661) 664-5000

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

29 / 300





 

 

 

To:   KHS Board of Directors 

 

From: Anita Martin, Chief Human Resources Officer 

 

Date:  February 10, 2022 

 

Re:  Annual Employee Survey 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Background 

In accordance with our Employee Retention Plan, annually, Kern Health Systems conducts an 

employee survey to: 

 

➢ Identify factors which influence employee retention  

➢ Evaluate internal opportunities for enhancing employees work experience 

➢ Determine year to year unfavorable trends to address root causes in order to change their 

trajectory  

 

We have just completed our seventh survey.  This year’s survey will be used to assess employee’s 

satisfaction and work engagement with KHS.  A summary of the results by means of the enclosed 

PPT will be presented.  

 

 

Requested Action 

Receive and File. 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

31 / 300



KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

32 / 300



Employee Satisfaction & 

Engagement Survey 2021

Anita Martin

Chief Human Resources Officer

February 10, 2022

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

33 / 300



Conducting the Survey

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

2021 has been called the year of “The Great Resignation” which actually began in mid-2021. Americans quit jobs at a record 
pace during the second half of 2021, and more plan to resign this year. Due to the pandemic, people are reexamining their 
priorities and are in pursuit of higher wages, more autonomy and greater flexibility. According to a poll of American workers
by Resumebuilder.com in December of 2021, 23% of employees will seek new jobs in 2022, while 9% had already secured a 
new position during the second half of 2021.  

During this time of change and uncertainty, it is more important than ever to let employees know their voice is being heard 
and that their opinions matter. Companies must understand what matters to your people and take action to ensure they 
remain engaged and connected to their work. Having purpose in their work is the #1 factor that keeps employees engaged 
and productive. It is also the primary reason employees will give discretionary effort and push companies to meet and even 
exceed its goals and objectives.

KHS is committed to maintaining an engaged workforce and providing our employees a voice in their workplace. We will take 
action when warranted, in the form of Department Action Plans and report the results of the annual survey to the Board of 
Directors and all employees. 

Source: Smith, Morgan. CNBC Make it. ‘The Great Resignation’ expert shares the biggest work trends of 2022 (cnbc.com) “Professor who predicted ‘The Great Resignation’ 
shares the 3 trends that will dominate work in 2022.” January 14, 2022. Accessed January 28, 2022.

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

34 / 300



The Survey

1 2 3 4 5

SCORING:

➢ 16 areas represented the survey with 2 - 8 questions in each area;

➢ Divided into 2 areas: Employee Satisfaction & Employee Engagement

➢ Responses scored on a scale of 1 to 5. The scale is as follows:

PARTICIPATION:  
➢ 88.7% (345 employees responded out of 425 active

employees (does not include 36 employees on Leave of Absence)

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

35 / 300



Last Year’s Action Items

➢ Report Employee Satisfaction and Engagement Survey results to Directors and staff and develop an action 
plan for scores below 80% satisfaction rating. In 2020 there were no company-wide measures below 80%, so 
action items were limited to individual departments. 

➢ Other initiatives taken to maintain our exceptional 2020 results were:
• Roll-out new “A Better Leader” Training by Dr. Wade McNair, Psy.D.
• Offer Development Plans in the Dayforce Performance Module companywide
• Create Career Paths in Job Families for all Departments (progressive promotion matrices)
• All departments to conduct team building activities

RESULTS:
➢ All initiatives were complete in spite of the continued pandemic events of 2021, resulting in maintaining an 

80% satisfaction rating in all but two areas. 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

36 / 300



Employee Satisfaction
and Employee Engagement

Why measure both? What’s the difference?

While the terms “employee engagement” and “employee 
satisfaction” may sound sort of like the same thing, they are 
actually quite different.

• Employee satisfaction is the state of a worker enjoying their 

job — but not necessarily being engaged with it. Imagine the 

employee who gets to show up to work early and leave late 

without contributing much or breaking a sweat.

• Employee engagement is something that occurs when 

workers are committed to helping their companies achieve all 

of their goals. Engaged employees are motivated to show up 

to work every day and do everything within their power to 

help their companies succeed.

https://www.decision-wise.com/employee-engagement-survey-download/

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

37 / 300



The Survey Responses
2015 - 2021

82.4

87.8
86.4 86.4

90.6

95.7

89.2

70

75

80

85

90

95

100

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Q.1 Overall Satisfaction

82.0 

85.8 85.4 83.8 85.6 

90.4 

85.6 

70

75

80

85

90

95

100

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Q.2 Overall Enthusiasm to come to 
work everyday

83.3 
86.2 85.9 

83.5 

79.8 

84.5 

78.3 

70

75

80

85

90

95

100

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Q.3 Executive Team
(confidence, planning, doesn't play favorites, keeps 

their word)

78.2
80.0

83.0

78.6 77.9

85.3

82.2

70

75

80

85

90

95

100

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Q.4 My Departments Leadership
(confidence, planning, direction, doesn't play 

favorites, leads by example)

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

38 / 300



The Survey Responses
2015 - 2021

80.3
83.2 83.8

80.9

84.4

90.0

86.4

70

75

80

85

90

95

100

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Q.5 My Corporate Culture
(confidence, planning, direction, doesn't play 

favorites, leads by example)

88.4 
90.3 90.0 

88.1 
90.1 

94.5 
92.0 

70

75

80

85

90

95

100

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Q.6 Pride
(proud to work at KHS, proud to wok in my 

department)

78.6
80.8 81.1

78.3

73.2

81.4

76.9

70

75

80

85

90

95

100

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Q.7 Corporate Communication
(KHS communications frequent enough, trust the 
Executives Teams communications, Department 

communciations, Executive Team listens)

78.2 79.2
82.0

77.9
77.0

84.9
82.9

70

75

80

85

90

95

100

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Q.8 Department Communications
(my departments' leadership communicates 

clearly, keeps me up to date, trust 
communicatinms, leadership listens)

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

39 / 300



The Survey Responses
2015 - 2021

77.8

80.6
81.8

79.6

84.7

87.9
85.4

70

75

80

85

90

95

100

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Q.9 Career Development
(opportunities to learn and grow, OJT offered, 
communicated about my progress, encourages 

development)

88.7
90.1 89.9

88.9

92.7
95.7

93.4

70

75

80

85

90

95

100

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Q.10 Your Role at KHS
(understand my role, how my role contributes, 

willingness to go above and beyond)

77.6
80.4 80.4 79.1

79.0

87.1

83.6

70

75

80

85

90

95

100

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Q.11 Recognition and Rewards
(I am valued, KHS recognizes work well done, praised for my 

work)

78.1
79.6

82.6
79.0 79.2

85.3 84.2

70

75

80

85

90

95

100

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Q.12 Teamwork and Collaboration
(department leadership encourages, feel part of a team, 

departments work well together, employees in my 
department work well together)

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

40 / 300



The Survey Responses
2015 - 2021

83.8
85.4

87.3

83.8 84.2

89.4 88.8

70

75

80

85

90

95

100

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Q.13 Immediate Supervisor
(fair, comfort level, handles issues satisfactorily, 

coaches, gives encouragement)

85.6
88.3 87.8 87.0

92.3
94.3 93.9

70

75

80

85

90

95

100

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Q.14 Diversity
(all employees are treated fairly, comfort level with all 
employees of diverse backgrounds, leadership ensures 

diversity)

78.9

86.2
85.1 83.7

92.0 92.5

88.5

70

75

80

85

90

95

100

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Q.15 Pay/Benefits
(paid fairly for the work I do/benfits package)

89.2
91.6 92.2 91.0

92.0
94.2

90.3

70

75

80

85

90

95

100

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Q.16 I would recommend KHS to a 
friend or relative?

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

41 / 300



Employee Engagement 2021
Gallup Q12

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

42 / 300



Employee Engagement 2017 - 2021
Gallup Q12

Favorable = Engaged  |  Neutral = Disengaged  |  Unfavorable = Actively Disengaged
➢ Engaged – Employees are highly involved in and enthusiastic about their work and workplace. These employees personalize the company’s goals and objectives 

and always work above and beyond their job requirements for the betterment of the organization. 
➢ Disengaged – Employees are just putting in their time, but no passion or energy in their work. These employees consider their job as a paycheck, nothing more.
➢ Actively Disengaged – Employees are unhappy, resentful, and spread negativity within the organization. These employees are looking for a job while on the job.

KHS Engagement Trend

“After wild fluctuations in 2020, and hitting a peak level early this year, employee engagement has settled down in the U.S. Currently, 36% of U.S. employees are 
engaged in their work and workplace -- which matches Gallup's composite percentage of engaged employees in 2020. Globally, 20% of employees are engaged at 
work. The percentage of actively disengaged employees is up slightly in the U.S., from 14% in 2020 to 15% through June 2021. Actively disengaged employees 
report miserable work experiences and are generally poorly managed.”  

Harter, Jim. GALLUP. “US Employee Engagement Holds Steady in First Half of 2021”. U.S. Employee Engagement Holds Steady in First Half of 2021 (gallup.com). July 29, 2021. Accessed January 27, 2022

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

43 / 300



Summary of the 2021
Employee Satisfaction and Engagement Survey

At 83% in overall Engagement – KHS has good employee engagement
Strengths
• KHS remains strong in Diversity and Inclusion
• Employees have a complete understanding of their role and how it contributes to the   

mission of KHS and benefits our community
• Employees feel a strong sense of Pride in working at KHS
• Surveying our employees annually has given them an opportunity to have a voice in the 

company
• Employees feel a strong connection with their Immediate Supervisor
Opportunities
• Communications throughout the organization

• Top down – CEO Town Halls and developing new innovative ways to communicate to the company as a whole
• Directors to partner and collaborate with Execs for Inter-department communication opportunities 
• Recognition – Feedback to employees on performance, praise for job well done (during one-on-ones)

• Leadership - Lead by example
• Document and formalize processes that were implemented during remote work that 

brought new efficiencies and performance effectiveness

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

44 / 300



Next Steps

➢ Report 2021 Employee Satisfaction and Engagement Survey department results to 

Directors and task them with an Action Plan for areas with a score below 80%

➢ Present Action Plans in March to the Executive Officers Team

➢ Report results of the 2020/21 Department Surveys and Department Action Plan to 

each department and improvements based on their Action Plans completed

➢ All Departments to continue quarterly team building activities

➢ Develop new “All Employee” communication streams

➢ Quarterly CEO Video Message – Medi-Cal/KHS Update

➢ Monthly Video Newsletter (Department Spotlight/Employee 

Testimonials/Employee of the Month/KHS Outreach Events). 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

45 / 300



Thank you!

Anita Martin

Chief Human Resources Officer

anita.martin@khs-net.com

(661) 664-5020

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

46 / 300



 

 

To:  KHS Board of Directors 

From: Emily Duran, Chief Network Administration Officer 

Date: February 10, 2022 

Re: 2020 Provider Satisfaction Survey 

 

 

Background: 

Kern Health Systems (KHS) performed its annual Provider Satisfaction Survey to evaluate the 

level of satisfaction and engagement with our network of providers.  KHS engaged a third-party 

vendor who provides baseline survey data and national industry benchmark comparison to other 

Medi-Cal plans.   

One key rating to highlight is Kern Health Systems’ overall satisfaction rating of 84.7%.  The 

Medicaid Line of Business satisfaction rate for like plans surveyed was an overall 68.6% 

satisfaction.  KHS scored much higher than our local competitors.  

Included is a presentation that summarizes the 2020 Provider Satisfaction survey results and 

outlines efforts to continue to rate favorably by our provider network. 

 

Requested Action: 

Receive and File. 

 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

47 / 300



Provider Satisfaction Survey Results 
Calendar Year 2020 

Board of Directors

February 10, 2022

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

48 / 300



Background and Timeline 

• KHS conducts an annual provider satisfaction survey 

• The 2021 survey measured the CY 2020 KHS performance with 
network providers 

• SPH Analytics (independent survey company) conducted the survey 
on behalf of KHS 

• KHS Performance is benchmarked to HMO industry performance for 
similar measures 

• Survey was conducted over three (3) waves during Q2 2021

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

49 / 300



Survey Panel 

Surveys were sent to all 
provider types: 

• Primary Care Providers 

• Specialists 

• Behavioral Health 

• Hospitals & Urgent care 
Facilities 

• Pharmacies 

• Ancillary Provider Types 

• 239 Total Surveys received 

• 2019: 269 surveys received 

• Provider offices incentivized for survey 
completion 

• Confidence Level 

• Survey sample at 97% confidence level. 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

50 / 300



Report Highlights 

Composites/

Attributes

KHS 2017 

Summary Rate

KHS 2018

Summary Rate

KHS 2019

Summary Rate

KHS 2020 

Summary Rate

Overall Satisfaction 77.0% 86.5% 88.3% 84.7%

Compared to Other Plans 54.4% 59.8% 64.3% 55.7%

Compensation 46.8% 51.3% 58.1% 52.0%

UM & Quality 45.8% 54.0% 54.1% 50.7%

Network/COC 43.2% 50.7% 52.7% 47.7%

Pharmacy 24.6% 32.2% 37.9% 30.2%

Health Plan Call Center 56.2% 60.0% 55.4% 61.1%

Provider Relations 55.6% 64.5% 70.5% 61.7%

Recommend to Other MDs 90.5% 93.0% 96.1% 94.8%

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

51 / 300



Report Highlights 
Composites/

Attributes

KHS 2020 

Summary Rate

2020 National Medicaid

Summary Scores

Percentile Ranking 
(At or Above 75th)

Overall Satisfaction 84.7% 68.2% Favorable 96th

Other Local Plans 55.7% 34.6% Favorable 96th

Compensation 52.0% 30.9% Favorable 99th

UM & Quality 50.7% 32.0% Favorable 96th

Network/COC 47.7% 28.2% Favorable 99th

Pharmacy 30.2% 23.5% Favorable 81st

Health Plan Call Center 61.1% 35.9% Favorable 99th

Provider Relations 61.7% 35.1% Favorable 99th

Recommend to Other MDs 94.8% 85.0% Favorable 94th

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

52 / 300



Health Plan Comparison

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

53 / 300



What Can KHS Do To Improve? 

No Issue/Positive 
Feedback

68%

Pharmacy
11%

Utilization 
Management

9%

Provider Network 
Management

5%

Financial Issue
3%

Claims
2%

Member Services
1%

Language Services
1% Transportation

1%

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

54 / 300



Next Steps

• Reviewed survey results/provider feedback with Department leadership.

• Return to in-person provider visits in 2022  

• Explore use of Provider Focus Groups/Forums:

• Kern County’s healthcare landscape

• Provider education for new programs/initiatives

• Continue work with third party vendor (SPH Analytics) to gauge provider 

satisfaction.  CY2021 survey will kick-off Q2 2022.

• Review effect of Medi-Cal RX transition on survey questions and future survey 

results.

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

55 / 300



Questions

For additional information, please contact:

Emily Duran

Chief Network Administration Officer

(661) 664-5000

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

56 / 300



 

To:  KHS Board of Directors 

From: Douglas Hayward, CEO 

Date: February 10, 2022 

Re: 2021 and 2022 Corporate Goals, Department Goals, and Projects 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Background 

The enclosed information reports on the outcome of 2021 Corporate Goals and 2021 KHS 

Department Goals.  In addition, it provides an overview of 2022 Corporate Goals and the process 

undertaken to create the 2022 Department Goals.  It concludes with the list of 2022 KHS Projects 

attributed to achieving the following:   

• Obligations set forth by DHCS/DMHC 

• Strategic Initiatives outlined in the Corporate Goals  

• Improvements to processes, systems, or outcomes  

 

2021 Corporate Goals 

The final status of the 2021 Corporate Goals is included under Attachment B. Completion of the 2021 

Corporate Goals went generally as expected, with the following exceptions: 

• KHS’ Strategic Planning timeline was originally pushed out due to the delay in CalAIM initiatives. 

Subsequently, with a new incoming CEO in 2022 the timeline was again adjusted to allow for 

participation of the new CEO. KHS’ Strategic Planning process is included in the new 2022 

Corporate Goals with updated timelines.  

• A portion of the timeline related to the Interoperability Rule was delayed by CMS. 

• Pharmacy Carve-Out to Medi-Cal Rx was delayed by DHCS numerous times, but ultimately 

implemented on 1/1/22. 

The deliverables for each goal are color coded with green representing completions in Q1,Q2 or Q3 and 

blue showing completions it Q4.  Other than Q4, all other deliverables and their completion status were 

shared with the Board at previous 2021 Board meetings.   

 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

57 / 300



2021 Department Goals 

Each year, Department Goals are established consistent with Corporate priorities and / or to measure 

performance.  In addition, they are used to evaluate leadership responsible for their achievement.  

As noted in the presentation (Attachment A), items in green were completed on time and the desired 

outcome was achieved. Items in yellow were partially or mostly completed and are still in progress with 

the desired outcome to be achieved in 2022.  Items in red were not completed or the desired outcome was 

not achieved.  

As of the end of 2021 staff  completed 108 (92%) of  all departmental goals and objectives.  The remaining 

8 (7%) remain in-progress. Only 2% were not completed.  A listing of the in-progress and incomplete goals 

is also included in the Attachment A slide presentation.  

 

2022 Corporate Goals 

In June of the prior year, the Board approves the Corporate Goals for the following year.  It is done at this 

time to aid Management with developing the upcoming year’s Department Goals and Corporate Projects in 

addition to setting the stage for the new annual budget adopted by the Board each December.   

The 2022 Corporate Goals approved by the Board at it’s June Board Meeting is shown under Attachment 

C.   

In lieu of a formal Strategic Plan, in 2022 KHS will utilize the approved corporate Goals as the topline 

direction for the company. KHS’ Strategic Planning timeline was originally pushed out due to the delay in 

CalAIM initiatives. Subsequently, with a new incoming CEO in 2022 the timeline was again adjusted to 

allow for participation of the new CEO. KHS’ Strategic Planning process is included in the new 2022 

Corporate Goals with updated timelines. The process is scheduled begin sometime in Q3 2022 with 

completion by the end of 2022. 

 

2022 Department Goals 

In Q3/Q4 of each year, Management develops annual Department Goals as well as Projects for the 

upcoming year.  This process aligns the department goals and corporate projects with annual Corporate 

Goals to ensure all Departments work toward common strategic and Corporate objectives. Additionally, it 

aids in setting the annual budget and providing metrics on which to measure department performance.  

Attachment A provides an overview of the 2022 Department  Goals and Corporate Project development  

process.  

 

Requested Action 

Receive and File.  

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

58 / 300



Attachment A

2021 and 2022 Corporate Goals, 
Department Goals, and Projects

February 10, 2022

LaVonne Banks, Director of Project Management

Jeremy McGuire, Senior Director of Government 
Relations & Strategic Development 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

59 / 300



Agenda

• Report on the outcome of 2021 Corporate goals 

• Report on the outcome of 2021 Department goals. 

• Steps to develop 2022 Departmental Goals and Objectives

• Steps to develop the 2022 Corporate Project Portfolio

• Identify 2022 Corporate Projects addressing:

• Regulatory Requirements 

• Strategic Initiatives 

• Organizational Improvement

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

60 / 300



2021 Corporate Goals

• Completion of the 2021 Corporate Goals went generally as expected, 
except for the following:

1. KHS’ Strategic Planning timeline was pushed out to 2022 to 
accommodate the one-year delay in CalAIM and give the new 
CEO the opportunity to participate in its development. 

2. One portion of the timeline related to the Interoperability Rule 
was delayed by CMS.

3. Pharmacy Carve-Out to Medi-Cal Rx was delayed by DHCS 
numerous times, but ultimately implemented on 1/1/22. 

• The final status of the 2021 Corporate Goals is included under 
Attachment B. 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

61 / 300



2021 Department Goals

• With 2021 coming to an end, management has prepared a 
summary status report for the departmental goals and 
objectives.

• The summary status report shows each major goal and its 
completion status: green being done, yellow delayed and 
held over to 2022 and red, not completed or didn’t achieve 
the desired outcome.

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

62 / 300



Green = Completed on 
time and desired 
outcome achieved

Yellow = In progress and 
desired outcome 
achievable

Red = Not completed or 
desired outcome not 
achieved 

• Overall completion rate of 92%.  Potentially becomes 99% completion rate 
when “in-progress” goals are completed.  

2021 Department Goals and 
Objectives Summary

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

63 / 300



Incomplete Dept. Goals
• Finance – There was an attempt to improve the Provider Refund process with automation, but unintended impacts to other 

departments postponed this work until employees fully return to the office. 
• Disease Management – It was desired to expand the current Diabetes Prevention Program to a physical provider site. Due to 

COVID, this has been delayed to later in 2022. 
• Disease Management – A goal to implement and expand a Clinical Engagement Group program was put on hold due to the 

program’s provider becoming ill. 
• Health Education – An effort to develop a Health Education dashboard was delayed to 2022 due to competing project 

priorities.
• Health Homes – The HHP team intended to launch an additional Clinica Sierra Vista site in 2021. This was delayed, and the 

new site is scheduled to launch in Q2 2022. 
• Quality Improvement – Implementation of a new Site Review tool and process was delayed by DHCS due to the ongoing 

COVID pandemic. The KHS team is ready to move forward when DHCS resumes implementation. 
• Quality Improvement – The goal related to timely completion of Site Reviews was impacted by ongoing resource challenges 

within the provider network due to COVID. The team is currently conducting virtual site reviews and DHCS has allowed longer 
timelines to resolve the current backlog.

• Human Resources – The HR team worked to improve the feedback measurement process, including both virtual tools 
(Glassdoor) and in-person appointment feedback. The virtual measurements have been implemented. The in-person portion 
of this process improvement has been delayed until employees return to the office. 

• Human Resources – An attempt to consolidate Health Homes Program provider training was put on hold indefinitely due to 
limitations within the Learning Management System. HHP training is still occurring via previous methods. 

• Provider Network Management – PNM administered the Behavioral Health Integration grant program throughout 2021. All 
deliverables are complete, except for ongoing quarterly reporting and monitoring of the program which are in progress. 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

64 / 300



2022 Corporate Goals

• Corporate Goals are consistent with KHS’ mission:

• Dedicated to improving the health status of our members through an 
integrated, managed health care delivery system.

• Corporate goals are driven by:

1. State or Federal regulatory or policy requirements

2. Corporatewide initiatives

3. Improve service to constituents(members, providers, community or 
employees)

4. Improvements in the way we conduct business 

• The 2022 Corp. Goals is under Attachment C. Corp. Goals

Goals and
Objectives

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

65 / 300



2022 Goals and Objectives Development

• 2022 Departmental Goals and Objectives were created to align each department 
with the Corporate Goals and to monitor operations

• Each department was asked to produce goals and objectives that align with the 
strategic plan (2022 corporate goals), outline tasks needed to complete the goal, and 
define the measurable outcome signifying completion of the goal

• Reviewed and approved by their respective Executive
• See example below:

Corp. Goals

Goals and
Objectives

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

66 / 300



2022 Goals and Objectives Tracking

• Throughout the year, department heads document and report their progress to 
their executive leader 

• SharePoint site houses each department’s goals and allows for tracking and reporting  

• A dashboard view is provided to executives so they can easily see the status of each 
department’s goals and objectives  

• Annual progress report on the previous year’s goals is provided to the Board in Q1 of 
the following year

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

67 / 300



2022 Project Portfolio Planning Process
1. Align portfolio planning timeline with annual budget timeline
2. Request project proposals from each department for desired projects

• Identify business need; Alignment with goals and/or strategy; Benefits; Impacted departments; Costs
• Conduct initial Discovery sessions as needed to help scope out business needs

3. Conduct Business Intelligence assessment
• Benefits feasibility review
• Create Project Process Diagrams
• Assess ROI (for non-regulatory initiatives)

4. Score project proposals
• Assign points/ranking based on priority
• Regulatory, Strategic Goal, Medical Management, Risk, Process Improvement

• Process Improvements assessed for ROI impacts

5. Create resource plan and duration estimates
• Estimate and reconcile resource requirements and timeline for each project

6. Internal Committee review and selection
• Portfolio Governance Committee - Review proposals and select finalists
• Executive Committee – Portfolio optimization and finalize

7. Reconcile with Capital and Operating Budgets
8. Create and disseminate draft Project Calendar 
9. Conduct detailed Discovery sessions to refine scope and 

prepare for project execution

Goals and
Objectives

Corp. Goals

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

68 / 300



2022 Projects

➢ Regulatory – Required to meet obligations set forth by DHCS/DMHC

• DHCS Reporting Changes (carryover from 2021)
• Pharmacy Benefit Manager System Resumed (carryover from 2021)
• Interoperability and Patient Access (carryover from 2021)
• OHC Requirements for APL 20-010.
• CalAIM Population Health Management – Model of Care
• Community Supports Services Expansion and Incentives
• Enhanced Care Management Expansion and Incentives
• Long Term Care Benefit

➢ Strategic Plan Initiatives – Specific initiatives outlined in the Strategic Plan

• Population Health Management JIVA Module Implementation
• Population Health Management – Align Existing KHS Programs
• Community-Based Organization Referral Systems
• NCQA Consultant and Readiness Review
• LTSS and D-SNP RFP
• Claims Workflow Conversion to QNXT Workflow

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

69 / 300



2022 Projects

➢ Other Projects – Projects that align with goals, address risks, and/or improve processes

• QNXT/NetworX/Optum/CES Upgrade 2022
• CACTUS Credentialing System UPGRADE TO 5.0
• Create Data Reference Software (MDS) Development Standards 
• Faxing Software Upgrade 
• Establish Purge/Archive Standards
• Database Software Upgrades
• DHCS Audit Remediation
• Medical Loss Ratio (MLR) Optimization
• Comprehensive Pharmacy Program
• Tobacco Cessation Initiative
• Document Repository Update 
• Medical Management Platform Upgrade (JIVA)
• Analytics Software Migration
• Retire Legacy (BizTalk) System

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

70 / 300



Oversite of Key Initiatives in 2022
➢ Strategic Plan

• In mid-2022 KHS will re-engage Pacific Health Consulting Group to 
begin the development of the next Strategic Plan

➢ Corporate Goals
• Quarterly Progress Reports provided to the Board of Directors 
• Monthly internal Executive review

➢ Department Goals and Objectives 
• Monitored internally throughout the year
• Status of 2022 Goals will be presented to the Board of Directors in Q1 2023 

➢ Projects 
• To be initiated according to the 2022 portfolio calendar
• Regular portfolio review meetings occur internally   

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

71 / 300



 
 

1 
 

Attachment B 

 

Corporate Performance Goals for 2021 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Background 

No one could have predicted a pandemic nor its impact on our way of life and work.  To minimize 

its toll on the public’s health, the Governor issued a Statewide order for all residents to ‘stay at 

home’ resulting in an economic downturn from layoffs, furloughs and business interruptions.   

Deficit estimates are projected to be between $30-50 billion which means that there could be 

significant cuts to services and programs across the State. To put that in perspective, during the 

recession in 2008, the deficit was approximately $20 billion. It will take all of us to be sure we’re 

staying focused on our core mission of serving those most vulnerable during the potentially 

tumultuous days ahead. 

 

The Governor recently shared his revised Fiscal Year 2020-21 proposed budget showing what a 

significant negative impact COVID-19 has and will continue to have on the State’s economy. The 

final budget agreement is expected to include revenue reductions to the Medi-Cal program.  The 

significance will vary depending on the health plan.  However, it is expected to include both a retro 

rate reduction of 1.5% and future (2021) reduction of an additional 3%.   This will have a material 

impact to KHS revenue in 2021 and will weigh on staffing, projects, contracting and equipment 

decisions for the 2021 budget.   

The following must be kept in mind when developing your department goals and budgets: 

1.  Staffing:  Our employees are what makes us who we are at KHS. As we navigate through 

the difficult days ahead, as much as possible, our existing employees will not be directly  

impacted by the new realities of the State budget. We fully intend to keep all current 

employees without layoffs or furloughs.  However, new 2021 budget positions will require 

the department to demonstrate a clear return on investment (ROI).  There are times when it 

will be the best decision to invest in more staff if a particular project will result in large cost 

savings. It’s important that we be the best steward of our existing resources. 

 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

72 / 300



 
 

2 
 

 

 

 

2. New Projects, Programs or Activities: As a leader of your department, you're truly the 

experts in your field. You will need to guide the organization on programs that are nice-

to-haves but not essential. Department heads are expected to discuss with their Executive 

leader their recommendations for programs, projects or activities that could potentially be 

placed on-hold for 2021. As with staffing, new projects, programs and activities not 

mandated by government regulation or policy will need to show a return on investment 

through savings or efficiency.   

3. Provider Payment:  Year over year, the State pays Medi-Cal health plans based on 

historical cost information they receive from us. The goal is to assure the reimbursement 

rates health plans receive will cover the anticipated health services cost adjusted for trends 

in utilization or unanticipated medical cost expenses health plans incur from time to time. 

When benefits are added, or omitted rates will be adjusted accordingly as well.  For the 

health plan’s benefit, this practice should yield “actuarily sound” rates and enough 

reimbursement to cover medical cost for the insured Medi-Cal population for year in 

which the rate applies.  On the rare occasion (such as the one occurring now) the State 

will make arbitrary decisions that negatively impacts reimbursement.  The retro rate 

reduction of 1.5% and anticipated 2021 rate reduction of another 3% are two examples 

of this and will likely result in the amount of money we pay providers in 2021 to be more 

than what we get reimbursed from the State during that same period.  Cash reserves 

become incredibly important because it allows us to continue to pay Hospitals and 

Providers even when we’re underpaid or delays occur in receiving reimbursement from the 

State. 

 

As we navigate these uncertain times, it is likely COVID -19 will remain paramount in the minds 

of the State, Providers, Members and our community.  The 2021 Corporate goals will consider 

both the pandemic and its impact to our way of doing business and obligation to our members.  In 

addition, the goals will recognize the specific requirements the State and Federal government will 

impose on health plans in 2021 such as Interoperability and Long-Term Care at Home.  Finally, it 

will be necessary to carry over from 2020 certain programs partially or never launched due to the 

pandemic.  These programs have been rescheduled for continued development and implementation 

in 2021.  

 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

73 / 300



 
 

3 
 

 

 

Goal 1– Behavioral Health Integration Program 

 

The Department of Health Care Services (DHCS) offered grant funding to incentivize Medi-Cal 

Managed Care Health Plans (MCPs) to promote behavioral health integration (BHI) at the primary 

care level. The Program objectives were: 

 

• To improve physical and behavioral health outcomes, care delivery efficiency, and 

patient experience by establishing or expanding fully integrated and coordinated 

care delivery for the whole patient. 

• To increase network integration for providers at all levels of integration, focused 

on new target populations or health disparities, and improve provider’s level of 

integration or impact. 

• To create and integrated model that can be replicated by MCPs throughout their 

network. 

 

DHCS identified six options MCPs could follow for achieving the desired outcome: 

 

• Basic Behavioral Health Integration  

• Maternal Access to Mental Health and Substance Use Disorder Screening and 

Treatment  

• Medication Management for Beneficiaries with Co-occurring Chronic Medical and 

Behavioral Diagnoses  

• Diabetes Screening and Treatment for People with Serious Mental Illness  

• Improving Follow-Up after Hospitalization for Mental Illness  

• Improving Follow-Up after Emergency Department Visit for Behavioral Health 

Diagnosis 

 

Kern Health Systems was awarded five grants for three providers totaling $11,000,000 from 

DHCS to implement behavioral health integration programs over a two-year period.  The awards 

were based on proposals received from participating network providers interested in developing 

integrated physical and behavioral health focused initiatives.  Grants were given to: Good 

Samaritan Hospital (2), Adventist Health (2) and Premier Valley Medical Group.    

 

 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

74 / 300



 
 

4 
 

 

Deliverables 

 

• Determine BHI readiness for each grantee by 1st Quarter, 2021 – Readiness review for 

each grantee was completed per their individual program design. Regular contact between 

organizations occurred beginning late 2020 to ensure successful implementation.  

 

• Create BHI grant agreement for each grantee by 1st Quarter, 2021 – Grant agreements 

and MOUs were developed and approved by DHCS as required. This included specific 

program readiness and project milestones for achievement tied to the grant funding.    

 

• Contract with each grantee by 1st Quarter, 2021 - Grant agreements have been executed 

for Good Sam Hospital (2 programs), Premier Valley Medical Group, and Adventist 

Health Tehachapi Valley (2 programs).   

 

• Execute start date of each BHI program initiatives by 1st Quarter, 2021 – All programs 

are currently operational as of April 2021. Below is a summary of the programs:  

Premier - Medication Management for Beneficiaries with Co-occurring Chronic Medical 

and Behavioral Diagnoses. Program started 1/1/2021. 

Good Sam Hospital - Improving Follow-up after Hospitalization for Mental Illness. 

Program started 1/1/2021. 

Good Sam Hospital - Basic Behavioral Health Integration – Wasco Rural Health Center. 

Program started 4/1/2021. 

Adventist Health Tehachapi Valley - Diabetes Screening and Treatment for People with 

Serious Mental Illness. Program started 4/1/2021. 

Adventist Health Tehachapi Valley - Improving Follow-up after Emergency Department 

Visit for Behavioral Health Diagnosis. Program started 4/1/2021. 

• Continue to monitor grantees performance against predetermined objectives throughout 

the 2-year grant cycle starting following initiation of each grantee’s program by 2nd 

Quarter, 2021. Grantee performance monitoring underway, Q2 results as follows: 

 

Premier - Medication Management for Beneficiaries with Co-occurring Chronic Medical 

and Behavioral Diagnoses. Data for Q2: Universal Urgent Care Patient Screening for 

568 patients, 223 patients served, 98 patients enrolled in treatment for depression, 121 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

75 / 300



 
 

5 
 

patients enrolled in treatment for anxiety, 77 patients enrolled in treatment for SUD, 59 

patients active with psychiatrist.  

 

Good Sam Hospital - Improving Follow-up after Hospitalization for Mental Illness. Data 

for Q2: 190 patients screened, 100 patients received medication delivery aid, exceeding 

goals for connecting patients with outreach specialists.   

 

Good Sam Hospital - Basic Behavioral Health Integration – Wasco Rural Health Center. 

Data for Q2: 31 patients accepted treatment, 18 patients positive for depression, 17 

patients positive for anxiety, 1 active with psychiatrist. 

 

Adventist Health Tehachapi Valley - Diabetes Screening and Treatment for People with 

Serious Mental Illness. Onboarded new navigator staff and began conducting case 

conferences, conducted community outreach. 47 patients contacted within 7 days for 

follow-up. 

 

Adventist Health Tehachapi Valley - Improving Follow-up after Emergency Department 

Visit for Behavioral Health Diagnosis. Data for Q2: 63 patients contacted within 15 days 

of discharge to develop treatment plans.  

 

• PNM continues to monitor the provider’s performance towards their milestones outlined 

for the BHI projects. PNM has submitted to DHCS the Plan’s PY1-Quarter 2 Milestone 

report for the provider’s BHI projects. 

Goal 2 Expansion of KHS’s Alternative Payment Model (Phase V) 

In 2020, KHS expanded its alternative reimbursement program with the implementation of the 

Chronic Obstructive Pulmonary Disease (COPD) APM Program. COVID-19 impeded the COPD 

Program’s progress preventing KHS from achieving the Program’s expected outcomes which will 

be measured when clinical practice returns to more normal schedules.  The APM Program will 

continue in 2021 with new applications yet to be determined.  

Deliverables:  

• Identify and develop provider specific proposals for another appropriate specialty care 

practice or special needs program by 1st Quarter, 2021 – Provider Network Management 

has worked with the Health Services and Business Intelligence team to identify potential 

proposals for 2021. Opportunities identified include Transition of Care Programs with 

Premier Valley Medical Group and Golden State Hospitalists, COPD program with 

Nephrology Medical Group of Bakersfield, and an Oncology APM program.  

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

76 / 300



 
 

6 
 

 

• For selected providers, initiate provider contract revisions to change or enhance 

compensation arrangements by 2nd Quarter, 2021 - KHS staff have finalized a new TOC 

program agreement with Golden State Hospitalist Group, (Dr. Sharma). This new TOC 

started in mid-August. The Transition of Care Program with Premier Valley Medical 

Group and the COPD program with Nephrology Medical Group of Bakersfield have also 

already initiated.  

 

• Determine impact to KHS internal operations by beginning of 3rd Quarter, 2021 KHS 

staff continue to work on all programs which are part of our Population Health 

Management Program. Provider Network Management is working with providers to set up 

standardized data exchanges and setting up the dashboard to monitor outcomes. 

 

• Design data tracking and reporting of specialty care to determine achievement of the 

desired outcome and / or ROI by the 3rd Quarter, 2021 - KHS staff continue to monitor 

the COPD and TOC programs. Provider Network Management is working with the MIS 

departments to create automated reports and dashboards to track the outcomes of the 

programs. Current enrollment in these programs is as follows: COPD – 355 members, 

Premier TOC –13 members. 

 

• Following implementation, begin monitoring to determine if targeted outcomes are 

achieved by 4th Quarter, 2021 Provider Network Management (PNM) is continuously 

monitoring the APM program and other special projects. We are seeing success in 

reduction in readmissions with the two new TOC Programs (Premier Valley Medical 

Group and Golden Hospitalist of Bakersfield). The population health management 

dashboard has been implemented to include COPD & TOC programs. Current enrollment 

in these programs is meeting expectations.  

 

A new Program Description and Scope of Work has been created for all Special Programs. 

PNM is working to revise our Special Program Agreements boilerplates so all contracts 

will be standardized and have all the Population Health Management requirements 

outlined. 

 

 

 

 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

77 / 300



 
 

7 
 

Goal 3 – Expansion of Kern Health System’s Health Home Program (Cont.) 

Kern Health Systems recognizes several thousand members will benefit from receiving their 

medical services through a patient centered medical home. To date, Kern Health Systems has 

established six health homes programs located at various provider sites throughout Kern County.  

Despite launching six provider site-based health home programs countywide, there remains 

significant unmet need in Kern County for these programs.  In 2020, it was expected this gap 

would be significantly reduced with the addition of 2 new external sites and the launch of a new 

model called the Distributed Health Home Program whereby eligible PCP physicians with a 

significant number of HHP qualified members assigned to their practice may become part of a 

“decentralized network”. The network will be supported with six broad service areas in the effort 

to achieve the HHP goal to address these medically complex cases:  

• Comprehensive Care Management 

• Care Coordination 

• Health Promotion 

• Comprehensive Transitional Care 

• Individual and Family Support Serves 

• Referral to Community and Social Supports 

 

While member’s PCP will provide the clinical treatment, KHS will serve as manager and 

coordinator for these broader services in the DHHP.  This HHP “without walls” enables members 

to continue to receive care from their PCP along with these enhanced services.  The DHHP will 

follow the same DHCS guidelines and reporting requirements of our other HHPs.   

COVID -19 delayed implementation of some of our 2020 HHP sites with the Governor’s stay at 

home order.  Although some progress was made in 2020 pre-pandemic, not enough work could be 

done to consider it successful.   

Besides the DHHP rollout delay, KHS expected Clinica Sierra Vista (CSV) to begin their long 

awaited HHP program in 2020. Due to CSV’s leadership change, their HHP launch was delayed 

and will need to be reintroduced in 2021.   

Deliverable:  

• Select remaining interested PCPs with a significant number of HHP qualified members 

by 1st Quarter. 2021. – Staff conducted analytics and identified two additional providers 

who would qualify for the distributive model: Westside Taft Clinic and Dr. William Bichai.   

 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

78 / 300



 
 

8 
 

• Modify new PCP participants contract to include role, function and responsibilities as a 

PCP under the DHHP concept by 2nd Quarter, 2021. Contract amendments have been 

fully executed for West Side Taft Clinic and Dr. William Bichai to reflect the 

responsibilities of the DHHP program.  The KHS configuration requirements have been 

completed to ensure the payments are compensated as agreed. 

 

• Modify new PCP participants practice setting to meet DHHP requirements beginning 

2nd Quarter, 2021. The KHS Distributive Model Care team worked with the identified PCPs 

to ensure readiness for the DHHP requirements.  

 

• Conduct new PCP participants and staff training program under the DHHP beginning 

3rd Quarter, 2021. Training for staff and PCP participants has been completed and will 

be continued as need depending on hiring of new staff. 

 

• Launch expanded DHHP with new participants beginning by end of 3rd Quarter, 2021. 

Both of the DHHP PCP sites launched their programs early. Westside Taft Clinic began 

in January 2021 and is currently serving 47 members. Dr. Bichai’s office began in April 

2021 and is currently serving 66 members.   

 

• Launch CSV’s HHP site by 2nd Quarter, 2021. – CSV’s Greenfield location began seeing 

Health Homes Program members in early March. They’re currently serving 155 members.   

Goal 4 – Kern Health Systems 2021 to 2023 Three Year Strategic Plan  

In 2017 Pacific Health Consulting Group assisted Kern Health Systems in developing a 3-year 

Strategic Plan.  Over the past 3 years, Kern Health Systems has implemented the strategies and 

tasks around five major goals: 

• Delivery System and Payment Reform 

• Primary Care and Specialty Care Access  

• Premier Health Plan of Choice for MCAL in Kern County 

• Health Plan Sustainability and Diversification  

• Technology Optimization to Improve Constituency Service 

 

With outside assistance, Kern Health Systems will again undertake a new Strategic Planning 

session in early 2021.  The Strategic Plan serves as a management tool to ensure KHS remains 

committed to its mission, working toward achieving desired goals, addressing new challenges and 

identifying new opportunities.  

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

79 / 300



 
 

9 
 

The overarching themes of this session should revolve around the changing healthcare 

environment (particularly CalAIM) and its impact to Kern Health Systems. The Board of Directors 

along with Executive staff will need to evaluate: 

• Mission and Vision Statement 

• External Environment and Competitive Market Conditions 

• Internal review (strengths, weakness)  

• Opportunities and Choices (including challenges to success) 

From this evaluation, the Board will develop Goals and Strategies to position KHS for future 

success.  

Deliverable:  

• Board to adopt a new three-year strategic plan for the period 2021 -2023 by the end of 

1st Quarter, 2021 – As previously reported to the Board, the re-initiation of CalAIM in 

January and the ongoing CEO recruitment necessitated a reconsideration of the Strategic 

Planning timeline. In lieu of an updated Strategic Plan, in 2021 KHS utilized these 

Corporate Goals as the topline direction for the organization. During the June board 

meeting the discussion of the 2022 Corporate Goals included an updated requested 

timeline for Strategic Planning into 2022. 

 

 

 

Goal – 5 Interoperability and Patient Access  

CMS and the State of California have regulated the Interoperability and Patient Access Rule 

(CMS-9115-F) to “deliver on the Administration’s promise to put patients first, giving them access 

to their health information when they need it most and in a way they can best use it.” The goal is 

to break down information silos for patients leading to better care and improved outcomes. This 

secure data link between 3rd parties, payors, providers, and patients and is intended to improve care 

coordination and reduce cost through data exchange and technological innovations.    

Deliverables: 

• Establish new technology systems and processes to facilitate data exchanges with 

members and providers by the end 1st Quarter 2021. - The new technology system has 

been purchased, installed, and configured, and the team continues to test the system to 

present the data in a meaningful manner for the Q2 goal. 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

80 / 300



 
 

10 
 

• Create Provider and Member Portal applications to present data in a meaningful 

manner to providers and members by the end of 2nd Quarter 2021 The portal 

application is at 95% completion and will be finalized in late August.  The 

Interoperability data will be accessible for members to present to any clinical 

engagement for continuity of care. 

• Research and identify 3rd party applications to use data in a manner that will benefit 

a Medi-Cal population by end of 2nd Quarter 2021. There are a limited number of 

third-party applications that are being developed in the market, and KHS did a 

significant amount of research on various tools.  KHS did find one vendor that is in the 

process of registering their application with KHS for member Interoperability data 

utilization.  

• Engage and inform members and providers on new methods of data access and tools 

by end of 3rd Quarter 2021 The plan is engaging 3rd party providers to create access 

points for members; developed a website for members to directly access data; and is 

upgrading the member mobile application to promote more member interactions.   

• Establish audit and reconciliation processes to manage data exchange effectiveness 

with reporting and analytics by end of 4th Quarter 2021. The plan has established a 

utilization report to monitor data exchanges, and as of 12/31/2021 there have been 

zero requests for data. 

• Create Payer to Payer data exchanges to collect external data sources to consolidate 

and deliver other payor data by end of 1st Quarter 2022. This milestone/deadline has 

been delayed by CMS as the final rule is not complete.   

 

 

Goal 6 – Prescription Drug Benefit Carved Out from Managed Care Plans 

Beginning 2021, with few exceptions, the Medi-Cal prescription drug benefit will be administered 

by the State in partnership with Magellan Medicaid Administration.  For managed care health 

plans, this will mean a diminished role in the administration and distribution of the pharmacy 

benefit. However, under certain circumstances and in specific situations, managed care plans 

(MCP) will continue to administer the Medi-Cal pharmacy benefit. Transitioning to this new 

arrangement began in 2020 and will continue to a smaller extent in 2021. The transition to the new 

arrangement with realignments in place is expected to be finished by the end of 1st quarter, 

2021.  Though the claims processing/payment and authorization for outpatient drugs will fall to 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

81 / 300



 
 

11 
 

the State, the MCPs are expected to continue their case management, DUR, MTM, and other 

related activities. Quality measures that involve administrative pharmacy data will also be 

activities the plans will be required to meet. 

Deliverables: DHCS announced the Medi-Cal Rx transition would resume with an effective date 

of 1/1/22, after multiple delays. DHCS re-engaged with Health Plans and other stakeholders to 

work toward this transition date. The deliverables due dates below have been updated accordingly. 

This item is also included in the 2022 Corporate Goals.   

• Create Data Exchange and integration to current system application beginning in 3rd 

Quarter, 2020.  Efforts were started in 2020 and ongoing testing has been conducted 

throughout the postponement.  Some reports, data, etc. are not able to be fully integrated 

until after the transition. Some minor modifications are being made now through the 

transition as needed.                

• Incorporate Operational readiness for Member Services, Provider Network 

Management, Health Services, Claims Adjudication, and Business Intelligence by 4th 

Quarter, 2020. Training, Bulletins, and materials were undertaken in 4th Quarter 2020 

and have continued throughout 2021 as DHCS/Magellan shared them. Webinars, 

bulletins, and direct outreach efforts to the provider network were intensified in the last 

Quarter of 2021. Materials from DHCS/Magellan continue to be shared with our network 

providers. Post transition, KHS has been directing questions and concerns to DHCS as 

they arise. KHS has also been providing clarification to the network as appropriate to 

assist our members receiving the medically necessary services required. 

• Transition Pharmacy Operations for outpatient pharmacy processing only beginning 1st 

Quarter, 2021. This will now occur beginning 1/1/22. This handoff was successfully 

accomplished. 

• Complete 180-day transition for TAR drugs or grandfathering medications by 2nd 

Quarter, 2021. This will now occur through Q2 2022. This is still ongoing.  KHS is able to 

perform the required activities as they arise.  Some issues on DHCS’ side are not allowing 

this process to completely operate as intended. 

•  Continue to perform run out activities for outpatient pharmacy through 1st Quarter, 

2021. This will now occur through Q2 2022. As per the APL guidance, KHS will and is 

performing these functions through Q2 2022.  

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

82 / 300



 
 

12 
 

• Complete Member and Provider transition for outpatient pharmacy from KHS to 

Magellan by beginning of 1st Quarter, 2021. This will now occur beginning 1/1/22. This 

transitioned as designed. 

• Transition department to providing ongoing support to members and providers for 

pharmacy prescription benefits remaining the responsibility of KHS (ongoing). This is 

ongoing.  Transition is taking longer to fully implement as some of the issues from the 

DHCS end of the transition are slowing the efforts. 

 

Goal 7 - Back to Care for Members 

COVID 19 put a sudden halt to members receiving routine non-emergent care in a variety of areas 

including: 

- Child immunizations, screenings and well visits 

- Adult screenings and annual physicals 

- High risk patients with chronic medical conditions on medication  

- Special needs patients such as Health Home Programs, Chronic Pulmonary Clinic, 

Prediabetic Prevention Programs, etc.  

- Patients who’ve delayed or deferred elective procedures or elective surgeries  

Travel restrictions and government orders to suspend elective care for a time resulted in pent up 

demand for medical care. With these restrictions lifted, KHS will need to examine members falling 

into these categories to prioritize who may need assistance to restart or continue their care. A plan 

will be developed to assist members and providers on when and how members should reengage in 

their care. Technology will be used to contact members to remind them to resume their care or 

where appropriate, augment their care by offering telehealth consults for those who remain at 

home.    

With the elimination of Prop 56 supplemental payments and expected performance shortfall in the 

2020 P4P incentive program, a new incentive program will be part of the “Back to Care Program” 

to encourage patients to return to their doctor.    

Deliverables 

• Identify membership qualifying for participation from one or more of these groups 

beginning of 1st   Quarter, 2021 – The Back to Care program includes a number of 

initiatives which may apply to some or all of KHS’ enrollees and some or all of KHS’ 

provider network. As appropriate, the various initiatives included creation of reports and 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

83 / 300



 
 

13 
 

data to target the desired population. Additionally, KHS staff who have contact with 

members are reviewing a member’s gaps in care when conducting telephone 

conversations.  

 

• Prioritize members for intervention beginning 1st Quarter, 2021 – The Back to Care 

Program included a comprehensive approach to reach both the member and provider 

community. This included different interventions both broad and targeted. The targeted 

campaigns prioritized the areas of child immunizations, adult screenings, and high 

risk/special needs members.  

 

•  Develop the Back to Care Communication Program to encourage providers and 

members to reengage in their health care by 1st Quarter, 2021 – There was a 

comprehensive communication and media campaign completed as part of this effort. 

Primary Care and Specialty Providers were notified about the opportunity to participate 

in provider incentive payments. Also, the “We’re Here For You” member marketing 

campaign ran from February to May and included television, billboards, radio, print, and 

digital advertisements.   

 

• Under appropriate circumstances create a provider incentive program to aid in 

achieving desired outcomes by 2nd Quarter, 2021 - KHS created two “back to care” 

provider incentive programs. These payments were made for services rendered between 

9/1/20 and 12/31/20. All reporting was due to KHS by 2/28/21. Payments were issued 

beginning in May 2021. The Specialist program paid out $3.67 million and the PCP 

program paid out $1.5 million.   

 

• Under appropriate circumstances create a patient incentive program to aid in 

achieving desired outcomes by 2nd Quarter, 2021 - KHS launched its first member 

rewards and engagement program in the 4th Quarter of 2020 and concluded in March 

2021. The program leveraged Interactive Voice Recognition calls (IVR, aka Robocalls), 

text messaging, mailed letters/materials and live phone calls to encourage members to 

follow through with specific preventive health or condition management services. This 

outreach included information about gift cards that could be earned for receiving certain 

services. The gift cards ranged from $10-$30 and were paid for wellness visits (baby, 

child, youth), prenatal/postpartum visits, and new member initial health assessments. The 

first campaign included a payout total of $561,438.79. 

 

The second campaign kicked off on June 16th and robocalls were completed for non-

compliant members at that time. This campaign added additional member incentives for:  

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

84 / 300



 
 

14 
 

• Babies who complete 6 well baby visits between 0-15 months are eligible to 

receive a $10 gift card per visit. In addition, babies between 15-30 months who 

complete 2 well baby visits are eligible to receive a $10 gift card per visit. Total 

potential incentive is $80. 

• Members who are between 3 and 21 years of age and complete a yearly wellness 

exam are eligible to receive a $15 gift card. 

 

• Determine ways to use technology to improve member and /or provider communication 

and with KHS staff by 2nd Quarter, 2021 - Gaps in Care dashboard has been implemented 

on the member and provider portal as well as for KHS staff to have visibility into the 

various gaps in members preventative health. This provides one source of truth for a 

member’s care gaps and triggers discussions and recommendations for completion. In 

addition, a member can reference their gaps in care rewards, pregnancy information page, 

and submit a prenatal visit reward form.  

 

Health Services, Member services, and MIS are reviewing a potential pilot with Rite 

Aid/Health Dialog to implement kiosks that facilitate the collection of social determinants 

of health (SDoH) information and health risk/initial health assessment. This would also 

include an aligned member incentive for completion.  

 

Mobile mammography clinic was facilitated by KHS Quality Improvement staff to schedule 

32 members to have mammograms performed at the Taft Westside Clinic who otherwise 

would need to travel to Bakersfield for care. 

 

• Incorporate Telehealth Services (where appropriate) to expand access to care by 2nd 

Quarter, 2021 - KHS implemented telehealth services according to the DHCS guidance on 

telehealth flexibility for services rendered to KHS members for most eligible benefits 

including behavioral health, home health, physical therapy, and autism therapy. KHS is 

allowing both synchronous, interactive audio and telecommunications systems and 

asynchronous store and forward telecommunications systems, thereby allowing both 

virtual and telephonic communication. In addition, internal auditing reports have been 

created to validate the utilization patterns of providers, types of services rendered, and will 

potentially remain after PHE.  

 

Provider Network Management and the Clinical team are working on a contract with 

ConferMED for EConsult capability and Valley Children’s Hospital for potential services 

for pediatric populations.   

 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

85 / 300



 
 

15 
 

KHS recently awarded grant funding to a provider to purchase a mobile telehealth clinic 

Vehicle (MTCV). It is an ADA compliant van conversion, with all the necessary equipment 

for a patient telehealth consultation. The MTCV will be equipped similarly to a 

consultation room along with a monitor, camera, microphone, speakers, and broadband 

capability. This vehicle will drive to various Kern County communities including outlying 

areas such as Delano, McFarland, Lamont, Arvin, and Lost Hills to provide services. They 

will also partner with Boys and Girls Clubs in Kern County to provide mental health 

services to their adolescent population. The MTCV represents an additional resource to 

those who would not otherwise have easy access to medical care for necessary treatments 

and chronic disease management. The provider will set up a weekly schedule of the areas 

the MTCV will be set up, so KHS may share that information to our members. 

 

• Develop tracking instrument and report to measure the Program’s effectiveness in timely 

reengagement of patients by 4th Quarter, 2021. – Gaps In Care status (due or complete), 

Gaps In Care associated member rewards and new pregnancy information page including 

the ability to upload the prenatal visit reward form have been added to the member portal. 

Similarly, the Gaps in Care status is also located on the provider portal. Additionally, the 

Gaps In Care dashboard is available internally to all member facing staff who 

communicate directly with members to educate, coordinate appointments, to close any 

preventative care gaps. 

 

The Member Engagement Rewards Program (MERP) is demonstrating successful 

completion of preventative service gap closures and the business Intelligence team is 

nearing finalization of the MERP dashboard (ETA Q1 2022) due to delays related to 

CalAIM technical focus in Q4 2021. Until completed, QI department has established 

manual processes for trending reports analysis and outcome measures to evaluate 

effectiveness of initiatives which is reported during the MCAS Committee meetings.   

 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

86 / 300



 
 

1 
 

 

Attachment C 

 

Corporate Performance Goals for 2022 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Background 

The Corporate Performance Goals for 2022 are heavily influenced by the California Advancing 

and Innovating Medi-Cal  or CalAIM,  CalAIM is a series of initiatives proposed by the 

Department of Health Care Services (DHCS) to advance broad-based delivery system, program, 

and payment reform across the Medi-Cal program. Furthermore, CalAIM will address social 

determinants of health, streamline the statewide Medi-Cal delivery system, improve quality, and 

drive innovation.   

Specifically, CalAIM has three primary goals: 

• Identify and manage member risk and need through whole person care approaches and 

addressing Social Determinants of Health 

• Move Medi-Cal to a more consistent and seamless system by reducing complexity and 

increasing flexibility; and 

• Improve quality outcomes, reduce health disparities, and drive delivery system 

transformation and innovation through value-based initiatives, modernization of systems, 

and payment reform. 

 

Originally scheduled to begin in January 2021, the proposal was delayed due to the impact of 

COVID-19.  CalAIM was re-announced in January 2021 with DHCS’ release of updated policy 

materials and with the inclusion of CalAIM funding in the draft 2022 State budget.      

Major CalAIM initiatives scheduled for implementation in 2022 include: 

• Enhanced Care Management (ECM) 

• In Lieu of Services (ILOS) 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

87 / 300



 
 

2 
 

At its conclusion, CalAIM will transform Medi-Cal Managed Care health plans to provide a 

broader range of benefits through an integrated delivery system comprised of traditional medical  

 

services, behavior health services (including specialty mental health) substance use disorder 

services (detox and therapeutic) and dental care.  

 

In general, Safety Net Providers (Kern Medical, Omni Family Health and Clinica Sierra Vista) 

will play an important role in accomplishing our goals and will be encouraged, where appropriate, 

to participate in its achievement or considered in its outcome.    Where a goal is specific to one 

Safety Net Provider, the provider is identified as to whom the goal applies.  For example, the 2022 

CalAIM initiative goal identifies Kern Medical specifically and its role with Whole Person Care.   

KHS keeps this in mind when establishing annual Corporate Goals always considering their impact 

on the Safety Net Providers.  With Safety Net Providers representing an integral network 

component, no goal will be achieved without their consideration nor accomplished without their 

involvement.   

Successful implementation of  initial phases of ECM and ILOS is the 1st Goal of our 2022 list of 

Corporate Goals. Among other things, this includes realigning KHS’s Health Home Program and 

Kern Medical’s Whole Person Care Program under ECM.  In addition to ECM and ILOS 

implementation, the 2022 Corporate Goals include the following seven goals: 

1. A new Three-Year Strategic Plan will be adopted in early 2022 focused mostly around 

CalAIM initiatives scheduled for launch between January 1, 2023 and December 31, 2025.  

CalAIM will continue to preoccupy KHSs time and resources for the foreseeable future 

with its many initiatives scheduled for implementation as far out as 2026.   

 

2. KHS will expand its Major Organ Transplant responsibilities with the addition of Heart, 

Lung, Liver and Pancreas. Historically, other than for kidneys, members needing organ 

transplants would disenroll with KHS and reenroll in the State’s Medi-Cal Fee For Service 

Coverage Plan.  To avoid fragmenting members care and shifting between two Medi-Cal 

enrollment programs, beginning 1/1/2022, members may remain in their current health plan 

where patients will be followed from pre-transplant to recovery.  

 

3. The Chief Executive Officer will be retiring in 2022.  Recruitment of his replacement will 

commence in 2021.  It is anticipated it will take several months to locate and hire a suitable 

candidate including allowing for time to transition from current employment to the KHS 

leadership role.  

 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

88 / 300



 
 

3 
 

4. Pharmacy Benefits Management (PBM) currently administered through health plans 

will be carved out and centrally administered through a statewide  PBM.  Originally  

 

5. scheduled to launch in 2021, it appears it will be delayed a year and likely to be 

implemented in early 2022. 

 

6. Medi-Cal Eligibility Expansion will occur over 2022, adding six new Managed Care Medi-

Cal eligibility population categories to Managed Care Plans like KHS.   

 

7. An Incentive Program to promote health plan and provider participation in ECM and 

ILOS will be created.  The Governor’s budget allocated $300 million for plan incentives 

from January to June 2022, $600 million from July 2022 to June 2023, and $600 million 

from July 2023 to June 2024.  

 

8. Telehealth Services has shown to be an effective method for maintaining the physician / 

patient relationship during the pandemic.  DHCS modified its benefits to include telehealth 

as an alternative to office visits during the stay at home order.   DHCS will make telehealth 

(audio services) a permanent benefit effective 2022.   

 

 

 

Goal 1 – CalAIM 2022 Initiatives (Implementation and Monitoring)   

 

Effective 1/1/2022 health plans are expected to launch two major CalAIM initiatives: 

 

• Enhanced Care Management is comprehensive approach to address the clinical and non-

clinical needs of high-need, high-cost members through coordination of services and 

comprehensive care management. Kern Health Systems Health Home Program and Kern 

Medical’s Whole Person Care Program will be incorporated under Enhanced Care 

Management.  Over the years, more Medi-Cal members will qualify for Enhanced Care 

Management through expansion among existing qualified enrollees or adding of new member 

eligibility categories. Kern Medical is expected to continue delivering services under its Whole 

Person Care Program following its inclusion under Enhanced Care Management.  

  

• In Lieu of Services are services provided as a substitute for, or used to avoid, other more costly 

covered services, such as a hospital or skilled nursing facility admission or a discharge delay.  

Such service may or may not be medically related but by their proper use should reduce 

medical cost. 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

89 / 300



 
 

4 
 

Since development will occur in second half of 2021, in 2022, KHS will turn its focus to post 

operations to ensure: 

 

• all program elements are in place and functioning accordingly  

• program refinement occurs to improve chances for a successful outcome  

• performance tracking and monitoring is in place to measure success and report outcomes 

for each initiative.  

 

Deliverables: 

 

• By 1st Quarter, 2022, establish methodology for monitoring program performance 

including identifying staff responsibilities for tracking and reporting on each program’s 

performance against predetermine targets and DHCS performance measures.  

 

• By 2nd Quarter, 2022, establish a data collection and reporting framework to  track and 

monitor each initiative’s performance to determine if its meeting its intended purpose: 

  

o Data will be developed for all critical components of each initiative.  

o Analytics will track each critical component’s performance  

o Reports will be generated timely to measure outcomes     

 

• By 2nd Quarter, 2022, design and format reports and schedules in accordance with 

DHCS reporting requirements and submission timelines. 

 

 

Goal 2  – Kern Health Systems 2023 to 2025 Three Year Strategic Plan  

January 2022 will begin implementation of the initial phase of CalAIM.  Over the next few years, 

several key priorities of the State, using Medi-Cal as its tool, will change how health care will 

impact California’s most vulnerable population. Programs aimed at homelessness, behavioral 

health care access, children with complex medical conditions, justice involved populations and the 

growing aging population will be created to improve their health status and quality of life.   

Critical to this change is its impact on network providers.  An effort will be made to see to it Safety 

Net Providers maintain their key role in the delivery of  patient care to their currently assigned 

members.   Additionally, KHS will look to work collaboratively with Safety Net Providers on new 

care models or programs arising from CalAIM occurring between 2023 and 2025.   

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

90 / 300



 
 

5 
 

 

Under Medi-Cal, the State will create several initiatives to achieve this objective though enhanced 

services and benefits including: 

• Development of a statewide population health management strategy and require health 

plans to submit local population health management plans. 

• Implement a new statewide enhanced care management benefit. 

• Implement in lieu of services (e.g., housing navigation/supporting services, recuperative 

care, respite, sobering center, etc.). 

• Implement incentive payments to drive plans and providers to invest in the necessary 

infrastructure, build appropriate enhanced care management and in lieu of services capacity 

statewide.  

• Pursue participation in the Serious Mental Illness (SMI) /Serious Emotional Disturbance 

(SED) demonstration opportunity.  

• Require screening and enrollment for Medi-Cal prior to release from county jail. 

• Pilot full integration of physical health, behavioral health, and oral health under one 

contracted entity in a county or region. 

• Develop a long-term plan for improving health outcomes and delivery of health care for 

foster care children and youth 

The new three-year strategic plan will be developed to guide management with planning, 

development and implementation of initiatives schedule for launch between 2023 to 2025.  These 

initiatives include: 

2023 

 

• Enhanced Care Management (Phase 2 eligibility)   

• ILOS Services (Phase 2 services)  

• Population Heath Management (patient centered health strategy) 

• Long Term Care added to Medi-Cal Health Plans  

• Advanced enrollment of soon-to-be-released (STBR) incarcerated in Medi-Cal 

• Dual Eligible (Medicare and Medi-Cal eligible) Planning 

 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

91 / 300



 
 

6 
 

 

 

2024 

 

• DSNP application submission with CMS to enroll Medicare eligible members with dual 

coverage. (25,000 Kern County eligible beneficiaries with Dual Eligibility) 

• Begin NCQA preparation process (18 months before certification) 

2025 

• D-SNP Medicare health plan initial enrollment begins 01/01/2025 

• Continue full integration implementation readiness and planning activities for the 

remaining outstanding CalAIM initiatives  

 

Besides the number of new initiatives health plans are expected to launch, CalAIM will change 

how health plans are paid and incorporate new risk and incentive programs.   

Prominent among these changes is the State’s intent to shift from County based health plan 

reimbursement rates to regional based reimbursement rates. The proposal to move to regional rates 

has two main benefits. The first benefit is a decrease in the number of distinct actuarial rating cells 

that are required to be submitted to CMS for review and approval. The reduction in rating cells 

will simplify the presentation of rates to CMS and allow DHCS to pursue/implement financing 

advancements and innovations utilizing a more flexible rate model. The second benefit of regional 

rates is cost averaging across all plans. This will continue to incentivize plan cost efficiencies, as 

plan rates will be inclusive of the costs within the multi-county region. This shift will produce a 

larger base for the averaging beyond the experience of plans operating within a single county. This 

change is fundamental to the ability of DHCS to implement and sustain the other changes proposed 

in CalAIM 

Although CalAIM will dominate KHS’s attention over the next three years and appear prominent 

in the three-year strategic plan, other significant goals the Board would like to see accomplished 

may be added to the list of CalAIM initiatives for inclusion in the three -year strategic plan.  

The strategic planning process begins with engaging an outside consultant to outline the steps 

Board and Management will take leading to a one-day session moderated by the consultant. 

For continuity sake and CalAIM knowledge, Pacific Health Consulting Group (who assisted with 

developing the previous three strategic plans) will serve as our moderator.   

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

92 / 300



 
 

7 
 

The overarching themes of this one-day session should revolve around the changing healthcare 

environment (particularly CalAIM) and its impact to Kern Health Systems.  From this evaluation, 

the Board will develop Goals and Strategies to position KHS for future success.  

 

Deliverables:  

• Q3 2022, KHS Board to receive overview of the process to be undertaken culminating 

with a new three-year Strategic Plan 

 

• Q3 2022, Board members will receive background information and questionnaire in 

preparation for upcoming Board of Directors strategic planning retreat. 

 

• Q3 2022, Board to participate in a one-day strategic planning retreat to be held onsite at 

Kern Health Systems 

 

• Q4 2022, from information and feedback obtained during the retreat, a draft version of 

the 2023 -2025 Three Year Strategic Plan will be sent to Board members for comment.   

 

• Q4 2022, Board to adopt the 2023 -2025 Three Year Strategic Plan  

 

Goal 3 -  Major Organ Transplants  

DHCS proposes to standardize managed care plan benefits, so that all Medi-Cal managed care 

plans provide the same benefit package by 2023. Some of the most significant changes are to 

carve-in institutional long-term care and major organ transplants into managed care statewide. 

Beginning in 2022, all major organ transplants, currently not within the scope of many Medi-Cal 

managed care plans, will be carved into all plans statewide for all Medi-Cal members enrolled 

with a health plan. 

Historically, KHS was only responsible for administering transplant benefits for patients who 

needed a Kidney transplant. Since 2018, on average, 20 KHS members would undergo Kidney 

transplants annually.  Besides being financially responsible for Kidney transplant, KHS will 

become responsible for heart, liver, lung and pancreas transplants as well. 

In preparation for this occurrence, KHS will need to establish a transplant care coordination team 

to follow these patients after qualifying for an organ transplant. Patients will be assigned to the 

organ transplant program where they will be followed through their pre-transplant care, transplant 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

93 / 300



 
 

8 
 

surgery and post discharge therapy and rehabilitation.  Preliminary estimates are KHS could have 

upward of 100 patients at any given time participating in the transplant program.  

 

Deliverables 

• Identify qualified major organ transplant centers with whom KHS will contract for 

transplant services by 3rd Quarter, 2021. 

 

• Determine compensation arrangements and payment methodology with selected 

transplant centers 3rd Quarter, 2021. 

 

• Negotiate an agreement for provision of transplant services with selected transplant 

centers by 4th Quarter, 2021. 

 

• Determine internal staffing requirements for the KHS Transplant Program based on 

the #, type and time involved with coordinating and overseeing services provided to 

qualified patients participating in the KHS Transplant Program by 3rd Quarter, 2021. 

•  Determine the impact to KHS, its policy, procedures, protocols, tracking and reporting 

by 4th Quarter, 2021 

 

• Launch Major Organ Transplant Program by 1st Quarter, 2022.  

 

• Post implementation, audit each activity to ensure installation and performance meets 

KHS and government agencies expectations (ongoing over 2022) 

 

 

 

Goal 4 - Selection of New Chief Executive Officer 

 

The transition of key employees, particularly the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) is one of the most 

formidable challenges an organization will face. In the CEO’s case, the shift engenders a variety 

of adjustments including changes in style and sometimes substance. Each CEO makes his/her mark 

bringing about major directional, policy and priority revisions.  As a rule, the longer and more 

successful the CEO, the more difficult the shift.  This can be somewhat mitigated with a well 

thought out and effectively executed Succession Plan.   Serving one of every three citizens, Kern 

Health Systems has experienced unprecedented growth over our current CEO’s service tenure of 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

94 / 300



 
 

9 
 

10 years to become Kern County’s largest health plan.  With success comes responsibility to assure 

there is a plan for leadership continuity.  To achieve this Kern Health Systems will create a  

Search Committee charged with the responsibility to identify qualified candidates to replace the 

current retiring CEO.  The following tasks and timeline were stipulated in the current CEO’s  

 

 

employment agreement and adopted by the Board of Directors to aid in locating a suitable 

replacement in a timely manner.   

 

 

1. 12 months before the CEO’s retirement date, the Board shall receive notification of the 

CEO’s retirement date from the CEO.   

 

2.  Upon receiving notice, the Board shall appoint 5 Board members to serve as a Search 

Committee who will be responsible for searching for and recommending the finalist(s) 

for the CEO position to the Board. 

   

3. Within 45 days following its appointment, the Search Committee shall engage a 

professional executive search firm to assist with recruitment.  The Director of 

Employee Relations shall serve as KHS staff to the Committee to assist with locating 

and providing background information to qualified search firms experienced with 

recruiting qualified candidates for the CEO position.  An appropriate competitive 

process shall take place to select the search firm to find qualified candidates for the 

position. 

 

4. Within 90 days following engagement, the search firm will present its slate of qualified, 

screened candidates to the Committee for interview consideration.   

 

5. Within 30 days, all selected candidates must be interviewed by the Search Committee.  

 

6. Within 30 days of the conclusion of interviews and evaluation of the candidates, the 

finalist shall be presented to the Board for recommendation for hire and the candidate 

will receive an employment offer.   

 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

95 / 300



 
 

10 
 

7. If the finalist declines the offer of employment or is otherwise unavailable, the 

candidate ranked next in order by the search firm shall be recommended for hire. 

 

8. Within 30 days,  KHS will receive a signed employment agreement  leaving up to 4.5 

months for the newly hired CEO to give sufficient notice (if currently employed) to 

his/her current employer.  

 

The CEO agrees, for purposes of continuity, to serve as consultant to KHS for a period no less 

than 90 days following retirement. 

 

 

Deliverable 

• Locate a suitable replace for the CEO, Kern Health Systems.  

 

 

Goal 5 – Medi-Cal Eligibility Expansion for 2022 

In 2022, Medi-Cal will shift several new and currently covered population categories to health 

plans like KHS including: 

• Undocumented Adults over 50 (pending approval of legislation) 

   

• Enrollees from Medi-Cal Fee-For-Service eligible population: 

o Accelerated Enrollment (AE)   

o Pregnancy Related (Title XIX)  

o American Indian  

o Beneficiaries in Rural Zip Codes  

o Beneficiaries with Other Healthcare Coverage  

It’s not known how many eligible members are represented in the over 50 undocumented 

population in Kern County.  Consequently, KHS is unsure how many new eligible members will 

enroll with Kern Family Health Care from this group.  There are approximately 60,000 potential 

members among the five groups moving from Medi-Cal Fee-For-Service to a Medi-Cal Managed 

Care Health Plan (MCMCHP).   

 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

96 / 300



 
 

11 
 

 

 

For Kern County, beneficiaries will choose between Kern Health Systems (Kern Family Health 

Care) and HealthNet. Typically, when newly eligible members are given a choice 80 -85% select 

Kern Family Health Care (KFHC).  Each newly eligible enrollee will receive an enrollment packet 

90 days in advance of their effective date of coverage (January 1st, 2022).  Eligible members failing 

to select a health plan, will be automatically assigned by the State to either HealthNet or KFHC.  

Those coming to KFHC, are randomly assigned to Kern Medical, Omni Family Health and Clinica 

Sierra Vista (Safety Net Providers).   

It is estimated approximately 20% will fail to select and will automatically be enrolled with one 

of the two available heath plans.  When this happens, members may change the States default 

selection anytime. For those who change, it’s been KHS’s experience we gain four members for 

each member lost to HealthNet.   

 

Deliverables: 

• Provide information and support to community-based organizations enrolling newly 

eligible members into full scope Medi-Cal by 1st Quarter, 2022. 

 

• Initiate enrollment of newly eligible Medi-Cal members starting in 2nd Quarter, 2022.   

*Dates may change based on final APL adoption and allowable timeframe for implementation 

 

Goal 6 – Prescription Drug Benefit Carved Out from Managed Care Plans 

The transition to a State operated pharmacy administrator was scheduled to take effect at the 

beginning of 2021.  However, the State delayed implementation.  It is believed the delay will be 

lifted shortly and a new transition date established.  The new date will likely occur sometime 1st 

quarter, 2022. Despite the year delay, KHS fully expects the State to move forward with their 

original plan.   

Therefore, beginning 2022, with few exceptions, the Medi-Cal prescription drug benefit will be 

administered by the State in partnership with Magellan Medicaid Administration.  For managed 

care health plans like KHS, this will mean a diminished role in the administration and distribution 

of the pharmacy benefit. However, under certain circumstances and in specific situations, managed  

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

97 / 300



 
 

12 
 

 

care plans (MCP) will continue to administer the Medi-Cal pharmacy benefit. Transitioning to this 

new arrangement will again start sometime during the last quarter of this year and continue to a 

smaller extent in 2022. The transition to the new arrangement with realignments in place is 

expected to be finished by the end of 1st quarter, 2022.   

Though the claims processing/payment and authorization for outpatient drugs will fall to the State, 

the KHS is expected to continue case management, Drug Utilization Review, Medication Therapy 

Management, and other related activities. Quality measures that involve administrative pharmacy 

data will also be activities the plans will be required to meet. 

Assuming the State moves to transfer pharmacy administration responsibilities to Magellan   1st 

quarter, KHS will need to undertake the following changes in preparation for this change and the 

modified responsibilities remaining with KHS. 

 

Deliverables: 

• Continue to exchange data and reinstitute integration procedures to current system 

application (ongoing)                 

• Incorporate Operational readiness for Member Services, Provider Network 

Management, Health Services, Claims Adjudication, and Business Intelligence 

beginning 1st Quarter, 2022 

• Transition Pharmacy Operations for outpatient pharmacy processing only beginning 1st 

Quarter, 2022 

• Complete transition for TAR drugs or grandfathering medications by 2nd Quarter, 2022 

•  Continue to perform run out activities for outpatient pharmacy through 1st Quarter, 

2022. 

• Complete Member and Provider transition for outpatient pharmacy from KHS to 

Magellan by beginning of 1st Quarter, 2022 

• Transition department to providing ongoing support to members and providers for 

pharmacy prescription benefits remaining the responsibility of KHS (ongoing)  

 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

98 / 300



 
 

13 
 

 

 

Goal 7 -  CalAIM Incentive Payment Program 

CalAIM’s Enhanced Care Management (ECM) and In Lieu Of Services (ILOS) programs will 

launch in January 2022, requiring significant new investments in care management capabilities, 

ILOS infrastructure, information technology (IT), data exchange, and workforce capacity for  both 

health plans and providers.  Incentives will be available over the next three years to help pay for 

these investments.  DHCS has designed the proposed incentive payment approach with the goal of 

issuing initial payments to health plans beginning in January 2022 for the achievement of defined 

milestones such as: 

• Build appropriate and sustainable ECM and ILOS capacity 

• Drive health plan investment in necessary delivery system infrastructure 

• Incentivize health plans to progressively engage in development of ILOS 

• Bridge current silos across physical and behavioral health delivery 

• Reduce health disparities and promote health equity 

• Achieve improvements in quality performance 

DHCS will use the following 8 guidelines for designing their incentive payment program: 

 

1. Develop a clear incentive payment allocation methodology where all plans have an 

opportunity to participate equitably 

 

2. Set ambitious, yet achievable measure targets 

 

3. Ensure efficient and effective use of all performance incentive dollars 

 

4. Drive significant investments in core priority areas up front  

 

5. Minimize administrative complexity 

 

6. Address variation in existing infrastructure and capacity between Whole Person Care  and  

Health Home Programs 

 

7. Ensure use of incentive dollars does not overlap with other DHCS incentive programs or 

with services funded through the rates 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

99 / 300



 
 

14 
 

 

8. Measure and report on the impact of incentive funds 

 

 

Incentive payments will be distributed over three payment cycles each year of the incentive program 

following determining the maximum potential annual incentive dollar amount for each health plan like 

KHS.   

 

Beginning in 2021, KHS will create its incentive program focused on the following priority areas: 

 

• Create / enhance delivery system infrastructure for health plan’s, ECM and ILOS provider 

health information technology and data exchange required for ECM and ILOS 

 

• Build ECM capacity with incentives to fund ECM workforce, training, technical assistance, 

workflow development, operational requirements, and oversight  

 

• Build ILOS capacity with incentives to fund ILOS workforce, training, technical assistance, 

workflow development, operational requirements, and oversight  

 

Each priority will have measurable outcomes to show progress toward achieving expectations.  Awards 

will be based on achievement and payment will follow when evidence is provided showing outcomes 

were met.     

 

 

 

Deliverables 

 

 

• Following DHCS’s priorities, complete a “Gap / Need Assessment” to determine what is 

necessary to meet structural and capacity requirements to fulfill ECM and ILOS objectives 

under CalAIM by 4th Quarter, 2021 

 

• Submit to DHCS,  the “Gap-Filling Plan” outlining implementation approach to address 

gaps and needs by 4th Quarter, 2021. 

 

• Implement the “Gap-Filling Plan” outlining implementation approach to address gaps and 

needs by 1st Quarter, 2022 

 

• Create performance monitoring capability to measure the “Gap-Filling Plan success by  as 

defined as demonstrated performance against measure targets linked to achievement of 

“Gap-Filling Plan” milestones by 1st Quarter, 2022 

 

• Create an earned incentive payment mechanism around DHCS reporting requirements to 

demonstrate when incentives are earned by 2nd Quarter, 2022  

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

100 / 300



 
 

15 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Goal 8 -  Instituting Telehealth as New (Permanent) Medi-Cal Benefit   

 

 

The Governor’s Budget proposes to make permanent and expand certain telehealth flexibilities 

currently in place due to COVID-19. Telehealth has shown to be an effective method for 

maintaining the physician / patient relationship during the pandemic.  DHCS modified its benefits 

to include telehealth as an alternative to office visits during the stay at home order.   DHCS will 

make telehealth (audio services) a permanent benefit effective 2022.   

 

Specifically, DHCS proposes:  

 

• Establishing a distinct rate for audio-only telehealth services  

• Authorizing audio-only telehealth reimbursement for FQHCs to allow telehealth services 

to be provided in the patient’s home.  

o Currently payment is restricted to clinical onsite services only 

o  FQHCs would have their own rate for telephonic care 

• Providing for remote patient monitoring as an option for established patients (subject to a 

separate fee schedule and not including FQHCs) 

• Establishing specific utilization management protocols for all telehealth services  

• allowing use of telehealth to meet network adequacy standards in health plans (revise the 

alternate access standards (AAS) submission process accordingly) 

 

With a large portion of Kern County designated as a medically underserved geographical area, 

KHS is challenged with meeting access standards based on the size of our enrolled population and 

provider availability.  Allowing including Telehealth services to our provider count will favorably 

impact service access and improve our scores.  

 

Deliverables 

• Determine the impact to the participating provider network by 4th Quarter, 2021. 

 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

101 / 300



 
 

16 
 

• Determine the impact to KHS, its policy, procedures, protocols, tracking and reporting 

by 4th Quarter, 2021 

 

 

 

• Inform participating providers telehealth will become a permanent benefit effective 2022 

under Medi-Cal  by 4th Quarter, 2021 

 

• Convey logistical information about the benefit and procedures providers will need to 

follow when using telehealth services and receiving payment for telehealth services by 

1st Quarter, 2022 

 

• Inform members that telehealth will be added to their Medi-Cal benefits explaining what 

it is, why it is beneficial and how this service will be provided and used for the member’s 

benefit by 1st Quarter, 2022 

• Post implementation, audit each activity to ensure installation and performance meets 

KHS and government agencies expectations (ongoing over 2022) 

 

 

*Dates may change based on final APL adoption and allowable timeframe for implementation 

 

 

 

 

 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

102 / 300



 

To:  KHS Board of Directors 

From: Isabel Silva, MPH 

Date: February 10, 2022 

Re: 2022 School Wellness Grant Program 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Background  

The KHS Wellness Committee established a School Wellness Grant Program in 2017 to address obesity 

and chronic disease in the community through school wellness programs.  Each year the Wellness Grant 

Program was expanded introducing a broad range of school-based initiatives around good nutritional habits 

and physical activity contributing to the improved health and wellbeing of children.  Added shortly after its 

inception was a college level internship program to aid in the assistance and accomplishment of each 

schools’ goals under the Grant.  Interns are selected from Bakersfield College and CSUB serving one year.  

Besides receiving a stipend from KHS, students may use their experience for credit toward their degree.   

KHS awarded $211,000 in grant funds to seven public school sites to implement wellness programs during 

the 2019-20 academic year.  Due to the pandemic, KHS approved an extension through the 2020-21 

academic year to allow the awarded schools to complete their remaining program activities.  The awarded 

schools were Curran Middle School, Kelly F. Blanton Education Center, Rafer Johnson Community Day 

School, and Williams Elementary School in Bakersfield, Terrace Elementary School in Delano, Woodrow 

E. Wallace Elementary School in Lake Isabella, and Standard School District in Oildale.  Each school 

pursued different evaluation metrics to determine success around social emotional learning, nutrition, 

physical activity and outdoor safety.  Results demonstrated reduction in student discipline referrals, 

improvement in peer relationships and academic performance, and increased levels of physical activity and 

knowledge on nutrition, outdoor safety and gardening.   The KHS Wellness Committee approved 

continuation of the grant program to additional schools starting with the 2022-23 academic year, extending 

the length of the grant program to 2 years to allow awarded schools more time to operationalize their 

program, continuing the School Wellness Internship Program and increasing the total funding for 2 years 

to $350,000.  Funding for the 2022 Grant Program was approved as part of the overall KHS 2022 budget.   

Enclosed is a presentation summarizing the Grant Program results from the school-based initiatives for the 

academic years 2019 -2020 and 2020-2021.  Presented also, is the 2022 proposed Grant Program extension.    

Requested Action 

Receive and File.  

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

103 / 300



School Wellness Grant Program 

Isabel Silva, MPH, CHES
Director of Health Education, Cultural & Linguistic Services

February 10, 2022

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

104 / 300



Background
• Initiation of a School Wellness Grant Program to expand efforts to engage 
students and stakeholders in activities that promote physical activity, 
healthy eating and social and emotional learning during the 2019‐21 
Academic Year.

• 7 Public Schools Awarded ($210,000 Grant Funds):
• Curran Middle School (BCSD)
• Rafer Johnson Community Day School (BCSD)
• Williams Elementary School (BCSD)
• Blanton Education Center
• Standard School District
• Terrace Elementary School (Delano)
• Wallace Elementary School (Lake Isabella)

• 7 School Health Promoter Interns Hired ($38,000)
• Students attend CSUB or Bakersfield Community College

2

Rafer Johnson School garden

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

105 / 300



Results – Bakersfield City School District
Williams Elementary (TK‐5) Curran Middle (6‐8) Rafer Johnson Community 

Day School (K‐8)
1. All staff receive SEL training on 

Toolbox and Classroom Circles 
curriculum. Average observed 
implementation was 85% which 
exceeded goal of 80% compliance.

2. Suspension rate decreased from 3.5% 
to <1%.  Office Discipline Referral 
rate  from 12.8% to 6.8%

3. Incidents related to:
• Intentional assault against staff 

and class disruption=  82%.
• Uncooperative behavior =     

 90%.
• Threatening physical injury= 

 89%
• Physical aggression=  64%

1. 13%  in academic performance 
for the BOLD students 8% higher 
than the 5% originally projected.       

2. Home visits had a 75% completion 
rate. 

3. There was 18%  vs the 20% 
increase in teacher confidence in 
SEL due to the distance learning. 

4. Overall 75-90% BOLD student 
participation 

1. Water filling station installed to 
encourage drinking water instead 
of soda and other sugary beverages 
among students and staff.

2. School garden installed and used 
for nutrition lessons and hands on 
activities.  Each classroom 
assigned a garden bed to grow and 
harvest vegetables, fruits and 
herbs.

3. School-wide average mile run time 
 by 13% (2 minute reduction).

4. Unable to assess sugary beverage 
consumption and nutritional habits 
post intervention due to lack of 
student and teacher participation 
during distance learning. 

3

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

106 / 300



Results – Kern County Superintendent of Schools 
& Standard School District

Blanton Education Center (K‐12) Standard School District (TK‐8)

1. 70% of student population participated in the school 
wellness program. Participation in the running club 
by 271% before the COVID‐19 shutdown.

2. 44 students earned a certificate of completion for the 
Enright Sun Safety online course.

3. 93% of Bridges students including 100% of Cooking Club 
participants earned ServSafe certifications.

4. Farm‐to‐Table knowledge  by 43%. 75% of the 
students improved their knowledge of soil, light and 
water requirements when growing food. 73% of 
students in the Lifespan Development class improved 
their knowledge scores by 30% or greater.

5. Shade structure installed for play cooking, nutrition 
instruction, and sun safety. Students prepared 
vegetable planters and flowers for toddlers to watch 
the plants grow, water the garden, and taste the 
vegetables.

6. 64%  in student behavioral issues requiring officer 
intervention at Bridges and Blanton.

1. All middle school teachers were trained on SEL curriculum: 
Second Step. Lessons were implemented in at least 85% of 
classrooms, according to initial survey. 

2. All teachers at one elementary and 25% of teachers at 2 other 
elementaries (pilots) were trained on SEL curriculum: MindUP.  
Although implementation of MindUP in elementary schools 
was low, initial surveys demonstrate 100% of trained teachers 
implemented some type of SEL activities.

3. Teachers were trained on other evidence-based, behavior 
analytic SEL curriculum: Accept Identify Move (AIM). 

4. Implementation of SEL activities averaged at 85% at 
elementaries and 55% in middle schools from 2019-2021. 

5. MTSS leadership team participated in Training of Trainers 
on Acceptance and Commitment Therapy and Behavior 
Analytic SEL curriculum.

4

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

107 / 300



Results – Delano Union School District &
Kernville Unified School District

Terrace Elementary (K‐6) Wallace Elementary (TK‐5)

1. Over 500 students and staff received reusable water 
bottles and 4 water filling stations installed on campus.  
All students gained knowledge in hydration and 
nutrition. 

2. All students participated with the 100-mile club during 
in-person learning. Virtual field day and physical 
activity challenges posted to school’s Flipgrid. 

3. 16 garden boxes built on campus by students and staff 
(1 per classroom).  At-home gardening supplies and 
lesson plans distributed to students and parents during 
distance learning.                                     

4. Interactive SEL Google Classroom site and weekly 
newsletters developed for students and parents. Second 
Step curriculum purchased to address SEL among 
teachers and students. 

1. Students  their walking distances by 20%. Over 1/3 (38%) 
of the students walked more than 60 miles by March 2020. 

2. All students  their water intake by 50%.  

3. Over 100 families participated in the family bonding/cooking 
nights. 

4. Outdoor safety education was expanded from water safety to 
include sun safety and hand washing. 

5. Unable to determine if there was a reduction in BMI among 
any students due stay-at-home order and distance learning. 

5

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

108 / 300



Interns
• 4 completed internship program

• Positive feedback from schools

• Facilitated group sessions with students and parents

• Final presentation on internship experience completed

• 100% positive feedback from interns

• Benefit of Internship Experience:
• New acceptance into CSU Channel Islands for BPH
• New acceptance into CSU Los Angeles for MPH
• New employment at a Public Health Dept and KCSOS
• Career in school counseling

6

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

109 / 300



Success Highlights
• Student health and wellness

• Knowledge improvement on healthy meal preparation, 
Farm‐to‐Table, preparing and serving food safely

• Walking/Running clubs, Fun Run community events 
• High student participation in courses for hygiene, water and 

sun safety
• Family nights, student field trips and home visits 
• Installation of new drinking water stations and distribution 

of reusable water bottles
• School gardens

7

• Social and Emotional Learning
• Staff and teacher training
• Improvement in student behaviors and peer 

relationships
• Reduction in student discipline referrals
• Student and family wellness messages via Google 

classrooms, school website and newsletters

Blanton Ed Center Running Club

Blanton Ed Center Cooking Club

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

110 / 300



Program Challenges
• COVID‐19 & Technology

• Parents and staff
• Lack of parent involvement, staff commitment and 

communication
• Competing priorities of program leads and parents
• Staffing changes – new principals and program leads
• Intern access restrictions to school systems, students 

and teachers due to district policies

8

• Implementation & Data Collection
• Lack of SMART goals and objectives
• Slow progress on completion of work plan activities 
• Inability to collect post intervention data

• Budget
• Schools unable to access funds 
• Restricted purchases due to district policies

Williams Elementary Bathroom Murals (girls)

Williams Elementary Bathroom Murals (boys)

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

111 / 300



2022 Grant Program 
Changes:
• Initiate a 2‐year grant program to allow more time to 

implement activities, collect data and evaluate success 
of program

• Work with awarded schools to revise work plans to 
include SMART objectives to better measure success 
and challenges

• Conduct a group onboarding in‐service for all awarded 
schools on grant program expectations, report 
submission deadlines and reporting formats

• Work with the schools to develop a communication 
plan to staff, teachers, students and parents

• Allow schools to budget for extra help staff to assist 
with implementation, tracking and monitoring of work 
plan activities

• Meet with the school district’s purchasing and finance 
departments on approved budget to prevent delays in 
ordering and receipt of budgeted items.

9
Wallace Elementary Walking Incentive

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

112 / 300



2022 Internship 
Program Changes

• Initiate a 2‐year internship

• Role redefined to focus 
experiences on:
• Tracking and 

monitoring school 
progress

• Research, data 
collection and analysis

• Identifying barriers 
and problem solving

• Meeting coordination 
and group discussions

• Public speaking and 
presentations

• Development of 
community education 
and engagement 
messaging

10

Curran Middle School BOLD Program

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

113 / 300



2022 Timeline

11

Jan‐Feb
Revise Grant 
Program 

Components

March
Launch 2022 SW 
Grant Program 
& Send Press 

Release

April 
Applications 

Due

May
Present Applicants 
to KHS Wellness 
Committee & 

Award 
Recommendations

June
Announce 
Awardees & 
Start Grant 
Agreements

July‐Aug
Kick‐off Program & 

Open SW 
Internship Program

Sept‐Dec
Start Monthly 
Meetings & 
Progress 
Reports

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

114 / 300



Grant Program Budget 
Approved by KHS Wellness Committee

12

Item Cost

School Wellness Grant Programs $300,000

Internship $50,000

TOTAL: $350,000

• New Changes:
• 2‐year grant program. Up to $50,000 per awarded school
• 2‐year Internship for college‐level students

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

115 / 300



Questions?
Isabel Silva, MPH, CHES

Director of Health Education, Cultural and Linguistic Services
isabel.silva@khs‐net.com

661‐664‐5117

13

KHS Grant Funded School Wellness Programs

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

116 / 300



  

 

 

To:  KHS Board of Directors 

From:  Robert Landis, CFO 

Date: February 10, 2022 

Re:  Quarterly Review of Kern Health Systems Investment Portfolio 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

Background 

 

The Kern Health Systems (“KHS”) Investment Policy stipulates the following order of investment 

objectives: 

 

• Preservation of principal 

• Liquidity 

• Yield 

 

The investment portfolios are designed to attain a market-average rate of return through economic 

cycles given an acceptable level of risk.  KHS currently maintains the following investment 

portfolios:  

 

Short-Term Portfolio (Under 1 year)  

 

Funds held in this time frame are typically utilized to pay providers, meet operating expenses and 

fund capital projects. Additionally, extra liquidity is maintained in the event the State is late with 

its monthly capitation payment. 

 

Long-Term Portfolio (1-5 years)  

 

Funds held in this time frame are typically for reserves and to take advantage of obtaining higher 

yields. 

              

 Requested Action 

 

Receive and File. 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

117 / 300



KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

118 / 300



KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

119 / 300



KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

120 / 300



KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

121 / 300



KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

122 / 300



KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

123 / 300



KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

124 / 300



KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

125 / 300



KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

126 / 300



KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

127 / 300



KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

128 / 300



KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

129 / 300



KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

130 / 300



KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

131 / 300



KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

132 / 300



KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

133 / 300



KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

134 / 300



KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

135 / 300



KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

136 / 300



KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

137 / 300



KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

138 / 300



KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

139 / 300



KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

140 / 300



KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

141 / 300



KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

142 / 300



KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

143 / 300





  

 

To:  KHS Board of Directors 

From:  Robert Landis, CFO 

Date:  February 10, 2022 

Re: 2021 Annual Review of Kern Health Systems Investment Policy 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

Background 

 

The KHS Investment Portfolio follows the Board approved Investment Policy (Attachment 1). 

As part of their annual review, Senior Management is not recommending any revisions to the 

Investment Policy at this time. The Investment Policy stipulates the following order of investment 

objectives: 

 

KHS utilizes three different investment organizations to invest the cash that is not needed for the 

immediate needs of the agency (Attachment 2).  All investments follow the Board approved 

investment policy that stipulates the following order of investment objectives: 

 

• Preservation of principal 

• Liquidity 

• Yield 

 

UBS is a national brokerage firm with a Bakersfield office that administers the KHS Board approved 

investment policy in a segregated account.   Investments are in high quality bonds and FDIC insured 

certificates of deposit with an average effective maturity of slightly less than 2 years. For the 2021-

year UBS investments earned the highest returns. 

 

The Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) is a public agency that allows smaller public agencies 

to pool their money and get the economies of scale that larger agencies with large portfolios receive. 

The California State Treasurer operates LAIF.  Because it serves many agencies with short term 

liquidity needs, investments have an average maturity of approximately 11 months. 

 

Wells Fargo is KHS’ local bank.  This is beneficial since surplus cash can be easily moved to and 

from the checking accounts. KHS invests directly with the Wells Fargo Securities Fixed Income 

division in high quality bonds, commercial paper and Money Market Funds. 

 

 Requested Action 

 

Receive and File.  

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

145 / 300



Attachment 1

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

146 / 300



KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

147 / 300



KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

148 / 300



KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

149 / 300



KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

150 / 300



KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

151 / 300



KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

152 / 300



KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

153 / 300



KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

154 / 300



KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

155 / 300



KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

156 / 300



KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

157 / 300



KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

158 / 300



KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

159 / 300



KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

160 / 300



 

To:   KHS Board of Directors 

 

From:  Robert Landis, CFO 

 

Date:  February 10, 2022 

 

Re:  2021 Annual Report for Travel 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

Background 

Kern Health Systems Employee Travel and Expense Reimbursement Policy requires an annual 

report (attached) to be submitted to the KHS Board of Directors. 

Discussion 

 KHS encourages employees to attend conferences and seminars to: 

1.  Obtain updated information on key issues that they are concerned about. 

2. Interact with other health plans that may be experiencing similar issues and problems and 

to solve those issues together. 

 

3. Have issues addressed on a specific topic by recognized experts who are up to date with 

the latest developments in the field. 

4. Evaluate the latest technologies that can potentially help make KHS more efficient. 

5. Learn about facts and statistics that will help employees better understand the changing 

dynamics in the healthcare industry. 

Examples of KHS travel include attending meetings with State regulators such as DHCS & 

DMHC, attending trade association conferences, participating on vendor advisory boards and 

professional education and training seminars.  

During 2021 $6,576 was spent on regulatory or trade association travel, $667 was spent on 

professional development and training travel, $7,478 was spent on conference attendance travel. 

The total travel expenses incurred for 2021 was $14,721 which was approximately $17,200 less 

than the prior year. This decrease is a result of continued Covid-19 travel restrictions during 

2021. 

Requested Action 

Receive and File.  

 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

161 / 300



E
M

P
L

O
Y

E
E

  T
IT

L
E

C
O

N
F

E
R

E
N

C
E

 T
IT

L
E

R
E

G
U

L
A

T
O

R
Y

 O
R

 
T

R
A

D
E

 A
SS

O
C

IA
T

O
N

 (
R

),
  

 P
R

O
F

E
SS

IO
N

A
L

 
D

E
V

E
L

O
P

M
E

N
T

 (
P

),
 

C
O

N
F

E
R

E
N

C
E

S 
(C

),
 

O
T

H
E

R
 (

O
) 

In
 C

ou
nt

y 
(I

n)
, O

ut
 o

f 
C

ou
nt

y 
(O

ut
),

 o
r 

O
ut

 
of

 S
ta

te
 (

O
S)

L
O

C
A

T
IO

N
ST

A
R

T
 D

A
T

E
E

N
D

 D
A

T
E

T
R

A
V

E
L

 &
 

L
O

D
G

IN
G

M
E

A
L

S

T
O

T
A

L
 

A
M

O
U

N
T

 
SP

E
N

T

1
C

hi
ef

 E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
O

ff
ic

er
Lo

ca
l H

ea
lth

 P
la

ns
 o

f C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 B

oa
rd

 M
ee

tin
g 

an
d 

St
ra

te
gi

c 
R

et
re

at
R

O
ut

N
ap

a
7/

19
/2

02
1

7/
21

/2
02

1
1,

80
1.

56
   

   
   

   
19

8.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
   

   
   

   
   

1,
99

9.
56

 

2
Se

ni
or

 D
ire

ct
or

 o
f G

ov
er

nm
en

t R
el

at
io

ns
 &

 
St

ra
te

gi
c 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t
Lo

ca
l H

ea
lth

 P
la

ns
 o

f C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 B

oa
rd

 M
ee

tin
g 

an
d 

St
ra

te
gi

c 
R

et
re

at
R

O
ut

N
ap

a
7/

19
/2

02
1

7/
20

/2
02

1
98

6.
30

   
   

   
   

   
82

.5
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

   
   

   
   

   
1,

06
8.

80
 

3
C

hi
ef

 O
pe

ra
tin

g 
O

ff
ic

er
C

al
ifo

rn
ia

 A
ss

oc
 o

f H
ea

lth
 P

la
ns

 A
nn

ua
l C

on
fe

re
nc

e
C

O
ut

Sa
n 

D
ie

go
10

/1
1/

20
21

10
/1

3/
20

21
2,

12
7.

01
   

   
   

   
17

7.
50

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
   

   
   

   
   

2,
30

4.
51

 

4
C

hi
ef

 E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
O

ff
ic

er
C

al
ifo

rn
ia

 A
ss

oc
 o

f H
ea

lth
 P

la
ns

 A
nn

ua
l C

on
fe

re
nc

e
C

O
ut

Sa
n 

D
ie

go
10

/1
1/

20
21

10
/1

3/
20

21
1,

30
8.

85
   

   
   

   
15

8.
75

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
   

   
   

   
   

1,
46

7.
60

 

5
Se

ni
or

 D
ire

ct
or

 o
f G

ov
er

nm
en

t R
el

at
io

ns
 &

 
St

ra
te

gi
c 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t
C

al
ifo

rn
ia

 A
ss

oc
 o

f H
ea

lth
 P

la
ns

 A
nn

ua
l C

on
fe

re
nc

e
C

O
ut

Sa
n 

D
ie

go
10

/ 1
1/

20
21

10
/ 1

3/
20

21
1,

39
0.

93
   

   
   

   
15

9.
75

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
   

   
   

   
   

1,
55

0.
68

 

6
C

hi
ef

 In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

O
ff

ic
e

C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 A

ss
oc

 o
f H

ea
lth

 P
la

ns
 A

nn
ua

l C
on

fe
re

nc
e

C
O

ut
Sa

n 
D

ie
go

10
/1

1/
20

21
10

/1
3/

20
21

1,
04

4.
93

   
   

   
   

21
3.

59
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

   
   

   
   

   
1,

25
8.

52
 

7
C

hi
ef

 E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
O

ff
ic

er
A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 
fo

r C
om

m
un

ity
 A

ff
ili

at
ed

 P
la

ns
: C

EO
 

Su
m

m
it 

&
  F

al
l C

ou
nc

il 
M

ee
tin

g
R

O
S

W
as

hi
ng

to
n 

D
C

10
/2

6/
20

21
10

/2
9/

20
21

1,
36

0.
07

   
   

   
   

20
7.

09
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

   
   

   
   

   
1,

56
7.

16
 

8
Se

ni
or

 D
ire

ct
or

 o
f G

ov
er

nm
en

t R
el

at
io

ns
 &

 
St

ra
te

gi
c 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t
A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 
fo

r C
om

m
un

ity
 A

ff
ili

at
ed

 P
la

ns
: C

EO
 

Su
m

m
it 

&
  F

al
l C

ou
nc

il 
M

ee
tin

g
R

O
S

W
as

hi
ng

to
n 

D
C

10
/2

6/
20

21
10

/2
9/

20
21

1,
76

8.
99

   
   

   
   

17
1.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

   
   

   
   

   
1,

93
9.

99
 

11
,7

88
.6

4
   

   
  

1,
36

8.
18

   
   

   
   

  
13

,1
56

.8
2

   
   

   
 

9
D

ep
ut

y 
D

ire
ct

or
 o

f P
ro

vi
de

r N
et

w
or

k
Th

e 
R

ise
 W

om
en

 in
 H

ea
lth

 C
ar

e 
Le

ad
er

sh
ip

 S
um

m
it

C
O

ut
Sa

n 
D

ie
go

12
/1

2/
20

21
12

/1
6/

20
21

59
4.

65
   

   
   

   
   

30
2.

40
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

89
7.

05
 

59
4.

65
   

   
   

   
 

30
2.

40
   

   
   

   
   

  
89

7.
05

   
   

   
   

   

10
Q

I R
N

 II
M

as
te

r T
ra

in
er

 C
er

tif
ic

at
io

n 
fo

r D
H

C
S

P
O

ut
Sa

cr
am

en
to

8/
11

/2
02

1
8/

12
/2

02
1

55
2.

01
   

   
   

   
   

11
5.

50
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

66
7.

51
 

55
2.

01
   

   
   

   
 

11
5.

50
   

   
   

   
   

  
66

7.
51

   
   

   
   

   

 T
ra

ve
l &

 L
od

gi
ng

   
 M

ea
ls 

  
Su

b-
T

ot
al

s
12

,9
35

.3
0

   
   

   
   

  
1,

78
6.

08
   

   
   

 
G

ra
nd

 T
ot

al
14

,7
21

.3
8

   
   

   
   

   
  

R
eg

ul
at

or
y 

or
 T

ra
de

 
A

ss
oc

ia
tio

ns
 P

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t  
 C

on
fe

re
nc

es
 

 O
th

er
 

 T
ot

al
  

Su
b-

T
ot

al
s b

y 
T

ra
ve

l T
yp

e
6,

57
5.

51
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

66
7.

51
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

7,
47

8.
36

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
14

,7
21

.3
8

   
   

   
   

   
  

20
21

 B
ud

ge
t

12
8,

58
5.

00
   

   
   

   
32

,4
70

.0
0

   
   

  
G

ra
nd

 T
ot

al
16

1,
05

5.
00

   
   

   
   

   

H
ea

lth
 S

er
vi

ce
s -

 Q
M

/Q
I T

ot
al

E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
T

ot
al

 P
ro

vi
de

r 
N

et
w

or
k 

M
an

ag
em

en
t T

ot
al

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

162 / 300



 

To:   KHS Board of Directors 

 

From:   Robert Landis, CFO 

 

Date:  February 10, 2022 

 

Re:        2021 Annual Report for Disposed Assets  

______________________________________________________________________________ 

Background 

Kern Health Systems Asset and Surplus Property or Equipment Disposition Policy (Attachment 2) 

requires an annual report (Attachment 1) to be submitted to the KHS Finance Committee. 

Discussion 

KHS Department Managers are to identify property or equipment that is no longer being used in 

operations, indicate an item as non-repairable, obsolete, or surplus and are to submit a request for 

disposal of the item. It is the responsibility of the Corporate Services Department to dispose of 

equipment in a manner that maximizes returns while ensuring open and effective competition.  

The principal methods for disposing of equipment no longer in use (in priority order) are: 

1. Determine if the equipment can be used by another department at KHS. 

2. Sale by competitive bid or direct negotiation. 

 

3. Trade-in towards the purchase of a new, like item. 

 

4. Donate surplus equipment within Kern County according to the following priority: 

a) Offer equipment to contracted providers to promote electronic business to business 

interactions 

b) Offer to non-profit organizations and government agencies 

 

5.  Sell or donate to KHS employees.  

 

6. Items with a value of less than $50 which cannot be sold or donated will be recycled using an E-

Waste vendor. 

During 2021, a loss of $0 was recorded on the disposition of equipment. 

Requested Actions 

Receive and File. 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

163 / 300



A
tt

a
c

h
m

e
n

t 
1

 

2
0

2
1

 A
s

s
e

t 
D

is
p

o
s

it
io

n
s

 

D
a
te

 i
n

 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 

C
a
te

g
o

ry
 

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 B
o

o
k
 V

a
lu

e
 a

t 

D
a
te

 o
f 

D
is

p
o

s
a
l 

D
is

p
o

s
it

io
n

 

D
a
te

 

R
e

a
s
o

n
 f

o
r 

D
is

p
o

s
a
l 

D
is

p
o

s
it

io
n

 N
o

te
s

5
/1

/2
0

0
8

 E
q

u
ip

m
e

n
t

R
e

fr
ig

e
ra

to
r

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
5

/3
1

/2
0

2
1

O
b

s
o

le
te

D
is

p
o

s
e

d
-R

e
c
y
c
le

d

1
0

/1
6

/2
0

0
8

 E
q

u
ip

m
e

n
t

R
e

fr
ig

e
ra

to
r

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
5

/3
1

/2
0

2
1

O
b

s
o

le
te

D
is

p
o

s
e

d
-R

e
c
y
c
le

d

2
/1

8
/2

0
0

9
 E

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t
R

e
fr

ig
e

ra
to

r
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

5
/3

1
/2

0
2

1
O

b
s
o

le
te

D
is

p
o

s
e

d
-R

e
c
y
c
le

d

2
/1

2
/2

0
1

5
 E

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t
 D

o
c
u

m
e

n
t 

S
c
a

n
n

e
r

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
5

/3
1

/2
0

2
1

O
b

s
o

le
te

D
o

n
a

te
d

 t
o

 D
r.

 S
a

lm
a

s
s
i 

 
2

/1
9

/2
0

1
5

 E
q

u
ip

m
e

n
t

D
o

c
u

m
e

n
t 

S
c
a

n
n

e
r

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
5

/3
1

/2
0

2
1

O
b

s
o

le
te

D
o

n
a

te
d

 t
o

 D
r.

 S
a

lm
a

s
s
i 

4
/1

3
/2

0
1

6
 E

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t
IP

A
D

 
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

5
/3

1
/2

0
2

1
O

b
s
o

le
te

D
o

n
a

te
d

 t
o

 K
e

rn
 V

a
lle

y
 H

o
s
p

it
a

l

-
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

 

  
  

 T
O

T
A

L
 L

O
S

S
 R

E
C

O
G

N
IZ

E
D

 O
N

 D
IS

P
O

S
IT

IO
N

 O
F

 O
F

F
IC

E
 F

U
R

N
IT

U
R

E
 &

 E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T

 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

164 / 300



KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

165 / 300



KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

166 / 300



KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

167 / 300



KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

168 / 300



KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

169 / 300



KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

170 / 300



 
 

 

To:  KHS Board of Directors 

 

From: Deborah Murr, RN, BS-HCM, Chief Health Services Officer 

 

Date:  February 10, 2022 

 

Re:  Purchase of (2) Additional MCG Clinical Care Guidelines 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Background 

 

Access to evidence-based decision criteria is essential to remain compliant under our contractual 

requirements with DHCS and DMHC. Additionally, as KHS prepares for NCQA accreditation, 

decision pathways and member self-support and education tools will also be required to provide 

transitional care coordination and chronic condition management. Population Health Management, 

as defined under CalAIM, must provide an array of complex clinical, behavioral, and social needs 

support to the KHS membership utilizing standardized protocols. 

 

Discussion 

 

KHS has maintained a contract with MCG since 2008 for managing all aspects of medical and 

behavioral health conditions. This contract includes dynamic and interactive version to provide 

evidence-based decision making and care coordination for our most vulnerable membership, 

thereby allowing the clinical staff to provide comprehensive, patient centered, and high-quality 

care across the continuum of care. The two modules will support member education and self-

management of disease, measure and optimize utilization by benchmarking, and provide care 

setting support for the PHM staff for alignment with NCQA accreditation standards.  

 

Financial Impact 

 

Not to exceed $141,000 annually for the remainder of the contract.  

 

Requested Action 

 

Approve; Authorize Chief Executive Officer to Sign. 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

171 / 300



MCG Clinical Guidelines Module Expansion

Deborah Murr, RN, BS-HCM

Chief Health Services Officer

February 10, 2022

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

172 / 300



Agenda

❑Chronological Overview

❑Current Licensed Modules

❑Proposed Purchase of (2)New Modules

❑Pricing

❑Board Request

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

173 / 300



Chronological Overview

❑DHCS contract requirement

❑Evidence-based criteria for complex medical and behavioral health 
conditions 

❑Partner since 2008
▪ Membership growth 

• 100,000 in 2008
• 185,000 in 2016
• 310,000 in 2021

▪ Non automated workflow-static version

❑Evolution of material and method of accessing criteria
▪ Integrated in JIVA Medical Management System
▪ Sole source 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

174 / 300



Current Licensed Modules

❑Ambulatory Care
❑Inpatient & Surgical Care 
❑General Recovery Care
❑Behavioral Health Care
❑Recovery Facility Care 
❑Home Care 
❑Interrater Reliability Module-competency tool
❑Learning Management System-on demand training
❑Care Web QI (CWQI) Guideline Modification Module-customization 
❑Care Web QI (CWQI) Integrated API-JIVA automation
❑Cite Auto Auth-Point of service authorization  

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

175 / 300



Proposed Purchase of (2)New Guideline Modules

❑Chronic Care Guidelines
▪ Disease management algorithms

▪ Align with Quality Measures

❑Transition of Care Guidelines
▪ Patient self-care modules 

▪ Post discharge to home/other setting

**Both support NCQA accreditation for Population Health Management

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

176 / 300



Board Request

Authorize the CEO to sign an amendment for the purchase of (2) new
MCG modules, Transitions of Care and Chronic Care Guidelines, under
the current MCG contract not to exceed budgeted amount of $141,000
estimated annually (as adjusted for future membership and costs
increases) under the Population Health Management Medical Budget.

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

177 / 300



Questions

Deborah Murr, RN, BS-HCM

Chief Health Services Officer

661-664-5141

deborah.murr@khs-net.com

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

178 / 300



KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

179 / 300



KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

180 / 300



KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

181 / 300





 
 

 

To: KHS Board of Directors 

 

From: Anita Martin, Chief Human Resources Officer 

 

Date: February 10, 2022 

 

Re: Ceridian Agreement 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

                       

Background 

  

In April 2015, Kern Health Systems (“KHS”) issued a Request for Proposal (“RFP”) to provide 

Human Resource and Payroll Services. In August of 2015, KHS selected Ceridian as the vendor 

for these services and began the implementation process with a final go-live date of April 1, 2016.  

 

Discussion 

 

Ceridian is the descendant of the original Control Data Corporation (CDC) founded in 1957, and 

is a global leader in payroll, HR software and technology. Advances in technology with Ceridian’s 

innovative Dayforce platform, provides the ability to deliver a “real-time” HR application that is 

based on a single employee record. The “real-time” cloud-based technology eliminates latency 

issues, and their single point of employee entry reduces errors that are normally faced as a result 

of multiple platform entries, and data being synchronized through an interface. 

 

KHS has enjoyed consistent service delivery from Ceridian with very few service disruptions over 

the nearly six-year relationship. We have experienced outstanding customer service and incident 

response times and have benefited from their constant innovation in HR services to employees.  

  

KHS is seeking to sign a three-year agreement with Ceridian for the continuation of their services 

to provide Benefits Management, Compensation, Employee Engagement, HR Admin, Learning 

and Development (LMS), Payroll, Performance Reviews, Talent/Recruiting, Workforce 

Management (Timesheets and Schedules) and Succession Planning. 

 

Financial Impact 

 

Ceridian cost for these services are $36.00 (PEPM) Per Employee Per Month rate. Estimated cost 

$216,000 annually. 

 

Requested Action 

 

Approve; Authorize Chief Executive Office to Sign. 

 

 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

183 / 300



KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

184 / 300



Payroll and HCM Services

Anita Martin
Chief Human Resources Officer

February 10, 2022

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

185 / 300



Agenda

• Background

• Scope of Services

• Results and Recommendation

• Questions

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

186 / 300



Background

KHS has been utilizing Ceridian since April 2016 to provide Payroll and HCM services.

Ceridian is the descendant of the original Control Data Corporation (CDC) founded in 1957, and is a

global leader in payroll, HR software and technology. Advances in technology with Ceridian’s innovative

Dayforce platform, provides the ability to deliver a “real-time” HR application that is based on a single

employee record.

The “real-time” cloud-based technology eliminates latency issues, and their single point of employee

entry reduces errors that are normally faced as a result of multiple platform entries, and data being

synchronized through an interface.

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

187 / 300



Scope of Services

• Our Entire HCM Platform Consists of the Following: 

➢ Benefits

➢ Compensation

➢ Payroll

➢ HR Admin

➢ Learning and Development (LMS) 

➢ Talent/Recruiting

➢ Performance Reviews

➢ HR Administration

➢ Workforce Management (Timesheets and Schedules)

➢ Succession Planning*
( An employee assessment tool that divides and plots employees across 9 key data points in coordination with 
the performance module and evaluates employees’ potential growth and talent used for succession planning.)

*indicates new module

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

188 / 300



Results and Recommendation

• In the nearly six years that KHS has contracted with Ceridian as our 
HCM vendor, we have had:

– Consistent delivery of services and very few service disruptions

– Outstanding customer service and incident response times

– Constant innovation and addition of new modules to simplify and automate 
HR Services to employees

– No price increases

• Request the Board of Directors authorize the CEO to approve a three-
year contract with Ceridian, in the amount not to exceed $216,000 
annually ($36 Per Employee Per Month) for Payroll and HRIS Services.

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

189 / 300



Questions 

Please contact:

Anita Martin

Chief Human Resources Officer

661-664-5000

Anita.Martin@khs-net.com

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

190 / 300



KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

191 / 300



KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

192 / 300



 

To:  KHS Board of Directors                                  

From:  Robert Landis, CFO                                                            

Date: February 10, 2022 

Re: November 30, 2021 Financial Results 

_______________________________________________________________________________ 

The November results reflect a $845,979 Net Increase in Net Position which is a $2,172,638 

favorable variance to the budget.  Listed below are the major variances for the month: 

 

1) Total Revenues reflect a $13.2 million favorable variance primarily due to: 

 

A) $8.0 million favorable variance primarily due to higher-than-expected budgeted 

membership. 

 

B) $2.3 million favorable variance in revenues earned from DHCS under the KHS Covid-19 

Vaccination Incentive Program by meeting key performance measurements designed to 

improve the vaccination rate with our Members. Under this Program, KHS has offered 

incentives to Providers to perform significantly expanded outreach to KHS Members that are 

based on achieving specified outcomes. Additionally, there are Member Incentives (not to 

exceed $50 per member) for our Members that get vaccinated. This amount is offset against 

amounts included in 2C below. 

 

C) $2.6 million favorable variance in Premium-Hospital Directed Payments primarily due to 

receiving updated rates for calendar year 2021 from DHCS and higher than expected 

membership offset against amounts included in 2D below. 

 

2) Total Medical Costs reflect a $10.7 million unfavorable variance primarily due to: 

 

A) $2.0 million unfavorable variance in Physician Services primarily due to higher-than-

expected utilization of Primary Care and Urgent Care Services over the last several months. 

 

B) $5.8 million unfavorable variance in Inpatient primarily due to higher-than-expected 

utilization. 

 

C) $2.3 million unfavorable variance in Other Medical due to Vaccine Incentive Program 

expenses earned by our Providers along with Incentives earned by our Members offset 

against amounts included in 1B above. 

 

D) $2.6 million unfavorable variance in Hospital Directed Payments primarily due to receiving 

updated rates for calendar year 2021 from DHCS and higher than expected Membership 

offset against amounts included in 1C above. 

 

 

 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

193 / 300



 

E) $1.4 million favorable IBNR, Incentive, Paid Claims Adjustment primarily from lower-

than-expected P4P payouts relating to the prior year. 

 

The November Medical Loss Ratio is 91.5% which is favorable to the 93.3% budgeted amount. The 

November Administrative Expense Ratio is 6.1% which is favorable to the 6.7% budgeted amount. 

 

The results for the 11 months ended November 30, 2021 reflect a Net Increase in Net Position of 

$14,990,250. This is a $22,571,135 favorable variance to budget and includes approximately 

$4.6million of favorable adjustments from the prior year. The year-to-date Medical Loss Ratio is 

92.7 % which is favorable to the 93.2% budgeted amount. The year-to-date Administrative Expense 

Ratio is 5.6% which is favorable to the 6.7% budgeted amount.  

 

 

 

 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

194 / 300



Kern Health Systems 
Financial Packet 
November 2021 

KHS – Medi-Cal Line of Business 

Comparative Statement of Net Position   Page 1 

Statement of Revenue, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position  Page 2 

Statement of Revenue, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position - PMPM  Page 3 

Statement of Revenue, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position by Month  Page 4-5 

Statement of Revenue, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position by Month - PMPM  Page 6-7 

Schedule of Revenues  Page 8 

Schedule of Medical Costs  Page 9 

Schedule of Medical Costs - PMPM   Page 10 

Schedule of Medical Costs by Month   Page 11-12 

Schedule of Medical Costs by Month – PMPM Page 13-14 

Schedule of Administrative Expenses by Department Page 15 

Schedule of Administrative Expenses by Department by Month Page 16-17 

KHS Group Health Plan – Healthy Families Line of Business 

Comparative Statement of Net Position   Page 18 

Statement of Revenue, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position  Page 19 

KHS Administrative Analysis and Other Reporting  

Monthly Member Count  Page 20 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

195 / 300



KERN  HEALTH  SYSTEMS
MEDI-CAL

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
AS OF NOVEMBER 30, 2021

ASSETS NOVEMBER 2021 OCTOBER 2021 INC(DEC)
CURRENT ASSETS:

Cash and Cash Equivalents 156,432,908$             112,022,947$             44,409,961$       
Short-Term Investments 139,573,231 146,132,207 (6,558,976)          

Premiums Receivable - Net 117,505,175               109,116,929               8,388,246            
Premiums Receivable - Hospital Direct Payments 301,594,558               284,832,595               16,761,963          

Interest Receivable 184,046 90,191 93,855                 
Provider Advance Payment 5,126,469 5,166,656 (40,187)               

Other Receivables 923,710 772,288 151,422               
Prepaid Expenses & Other Current Assets 2,996,406 2,683,400 313,006               

Total Current Assets 724,336,503$             660,817,213$             63,519,290$       

CAPITAL ASSETS - NET OF ACCUM DEPRE:
Land 4,090,706 4,090,706 -                           

Furniture and Equipment - Net 1,777,138 1,668,151 108,987               
Computer Hardware and Software - Net 14,208,129 12,346,824 1,861,305            

Building and Building Improvements - Net 34,515,645 34,591,339 (75,694)               
Capital Projects in Progress 12,784,572 15,133,452 (2,348,880)          

Total Capital Assets 67,376,190$               67,830,472$               (454,282)$           

LONG TERM ASSETS:
Restricted Investments 300,000                      300,000                      -                      

Officer Life Insurance Receivables 1,593,961                   1,593,961                   -                      
Total Long Term Assets 1,893,961$                 1,893,961$                 -$                    

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 3,018,341$                 3,018,341$                 -$                    

TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 796,624,995$             733,559,987$             63,065,008$       

LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION 
CURRENT LIABILITIES:

Accrued Salaries and Employee Benefits 3,565,173$                 4,379,517$                 (814,344)             
Accrued Other Operating Expenses 1,797,562 1,542,264 255,298               

Accrued Taxes and Licenses 19,638,235                 9,744,181                   9,894,054            
Claims Payable (Reported) 24,429,531 22,032,450 2,397,081            
IBNR - Inpatient Claims 44,582,541 43,141,224 1,441,317            
IBNR - Physician Claims 17,350,901 15,903,083 1,447,818            

IBNR - Accrued Other Medical 24,208,119 21,386,468 2,821,651            
Risk Pool and Withholds Payable 5,023,866 6,423,866 (1,400,000)          

Statutory Allowance for Claims Processing Expense 2,157,367 2,157,367 -                           
 Other Liabilities 104,313,884 74,899,693 29,414,191          

Accrued Hospital Directed Payments 301,594,558 284,832,595 16,761,963          
Total Current Liabilities 548,661,737$             486,442,708$             62,219,029$       

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES:
Net Pension Liability 5,800,140 5,800,140 -                           

TOTAL NONCURRENT LIABILITIES 5,800,140$                 5,800,140$                 -$                    

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 86,684$                      86,684$                      -$                    

NET POSITION: 
Net Position -  Beg. of Year 227,086,184 227,086,184 -                           

Increase (Decrease) in Net Position - Current Year 14,990,250 14,144,271 845,979               
Total Net Position 242,076,434$             241,230,455$             845,979$             

 TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES AND NET POSITION 796,624,995$             733,559,987$             63,065,008$       

KHS1/24/2022
Management Use Only Page 1 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

196 / 300



KERN  HEALTH  SYSTEMS
MEDI-CAL - ALL COA

CURRENT MONTH MEMBERS

STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENSES, AND 
CHANGES IN NET POSITION YEAR-TO-DATE MEMBER MONTHS

ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE FOR THE MONTH ENDED NOVEMBER 30, 2021 ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE

193,430 185,400 8,030 Family Members 2,072,537 2,017,400 55,137
78,693 70,565 8,128 Expansion Members 829,086 776,215 52,871
15,840 15,230 610  SPD Members 176,424 167,530 8,894

9,026 7,000 2,026 Other Members 92,194 77,000 15,194
12,547 10,500                 2,047                Kaiser Members 129,946 115,500          14,446               

309,536 288,695 20,841 T o t a l  M e m b e r s - MCAL 3,300,187 3,153,645 146,542

R E V E N U E S
37,111,335 32,280,191 4,831,144 Title  XIX - Medicaid - Family and Other 385,142,863 352,815,550 32,327,313
31,001,586 26,523,701 4,477,885 Title  XIX - Medicaid - Expansion Members 320,433,671 291,760,710 28,672,961
16,254,790 15,294,634 960,156 Title  XIX - Medicaid - SPD Members 174,539,419 168,240,971 6,298,448
10,229,533    9,894,054            335,479 Premium - MCO Tax 109,321,239         102,898,163 6,423,076
16,753,272    14,106,810          2,646,462 Premium - Hospital Directed Payments 177,719,929         154,496,560 23,223,369

157,659 168,241 (10,582) Investment Earnings And Other Income 622,290 1,831,410 (1,209,120)
-                     80,677                 (80,677) Reinsurance Recoveries -                            881,062 (881,062)

8,691             -                           8,691                Rate Adjustments - Hospital Directed Payments 49,176,877           -                      49,176,877
66,815           -                           66,815              Rate/Income Adjustments 3,179,171             -                      3,179,171          

111,583,681 98,348,307 13,235,374 TOTAL  REVENUES 1,220,135,459 1,072,924,425 147,211,034

E X P E N S E S
Medical Costs:

17,258,969 15,231,590 (2,027,379)    Physician Services 176,103,413 166,663,398 (9,440,015)
4,829,415 4,739,638 (89,777)    Other Professional Services 52,033,181 51,992,648 (40,533)
4,818,883 5,601,587 782,704 Emergency Room 50,361,154 61,236,357 10,875,203

21,256,426 15,465,135 (5,791,291)    I n p a t  i e n t 222,380,583 169,445,732 (52,934,851)
86,151           80,677 (5,474)    Reinsurance Expense 914,112 881,062 (33,050)

7,793,785 7,015,531 (778,254) Outpatient Hospital 85,487,992 76,879,550 (8,608,442)
12,549,269 10,205,441 (2,343,828)    Other  Medical 119,916,340 111,664,755 (8,251,585)
10,196,195 10,525,976 329,781 Pharmacy 108,072,882 115,420,101 7,347,219

-                     528,571               528,571               Pay for Performance Quality Incentive 4,317,262 5,772,476       1,455,214          
16,753,272    14,106,810          (2,646,462)       Hospital Directed Payments 177,719,929 154,496,560   (23,223,369)      

8,691             -                           (8,691)              Hospital Directed Payment Adjustment 48,165,023           -                      (48,165,023)      
24,857           -                           (24,857)            Non-Claims Expense Adjustment 987,671                -                      (987,671)           

(1,378,922)     -                           1,378,922            IBNR, Incentive, Paid Claims Adjustment (1,237,376)            -                      1,237,376          
94,196,991 83,500,955 (10,696,036) Total Medical Costs 1,045,222,166 914,452,637 (130,769,529)

17,386,690 14,847,351          2,539,339 GROSS MARGIN 174,913,293 158,471,788   16,441,505

Administrative:
2,775,542      2,856,030 80,488    Compensation 30,210,602 31,491,333 1,280,731
1,095,098 1,071,006 (24,092) Purchased Services 10,392,490 11,781,066 1,388,576

188,536 133,106 (55,430) Supplies 974,278 1,464,169 489,891
716,552 500,520 (216,032) Depreciation 4,969,027 5,505,724 536,697
276,718 385,959 109,241    Other Administrative Expenses 2,917,698 4,245,551 1,327,853

77,569           -                           (77,569)            Administrative Expense Adjustment (187,239)               -                      187,239             
5,130,015 4,946,622 (183,393) Total  Administrative Expenses 49,276,856 54,487,844 5,210,988

99,327,006 88,447,578 (10,879,428) TOTAL  EXPENSES 1,094,499,022 968,940,481 (125,558,541)

12,256,675    9,900,729            2,355,946 OPERATING  INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE TAX 125,636,437         103,983,944   21,652,493

9,894,054      9,894,054            -                   MCO TAX 102,925,961         102,898,163 (27,798)

2,362,621      6,675                   2,355,946 OPERATING  INCOME (LOSS) NET OF TAX 22,710,476           1,085,781       21,624,695

NONOPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSE)
-                     -                           -                       Gain on Sale of Assets -                            -                      -                        

(1,346,906)     (1,166,667)           (180,239)          Provider Recruitment and Retention Grants (6,770,178)            (6,833,333)      63,155               
(169,736)        (166,667)              (3,069)              Health Home (950,048)               (1,833,333)      883,285             

(1,516,642)     (1,333,334)           (183,308)          TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSE) (7,720,226)            (8,666,666)      946,440             
 

845,979         (1,326,659)           2,172,638         NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET POSITION 14,990,250           (7,580,885)      22,571,135

91.5% 93.3% 1.8% MEDICAL LOSS RATIO 92.7% 93.2% 0.5%

6.1% 6.7% 0.6% ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSE RATIO 5.6% 6.7% 1.1%

KHS1/24/2022
Management Use Only Page 2 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

197 / 300



KERN  HEALTH  SYSTEMS
MEDI-CAL

CURRENT MONTH

STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENSES, AND 
CHANGES IN NET POSITION - PMPM YEAR-TO-DATE

ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE FOR THE MONTH ENDED NOVEMBER 30, 2021 ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE

E N R O L L M E N T
193,430 185,400 8,030 Family Members 2,072,537 2,017,400 55,137

78,693 70,565 8,128 Expansion Members 829,086 776,215 52,871
15,840 15,230 610  SPD Members 176,424 167,530 8,894

9,026 7,000 2,026 Other Members 92,194 77,000 15,194
12,547 10,500          2,047            Kaiser Members 129,946 115,500        14,446          

309,536 288,695 20,841 T o t a l  M e m b e r s - MCAL 3,300,187 3,153,645 146,542

R E V E N U E S
183.31 167.78 15.53 Title  XIX - Medicaid - Family and Other 177.92 168.46 9.46
393.96 375.88 18.08 Title  XIX - Medicaid - Expansion Members 386.49 375.88 10.61

1,026.19 1,004.24 21.94 Title  XIX - Medicaid - SPD Members 989.32 1,004.24 (14.93)
34.44 35.57 (1.12) Premium - MCO Tax 34.48 33.87 0.61
56.41 50.71 5.70 Premium - Hospital Directed Payments 56.06 50.85 5.21

0.53 0.60 (0.07) Investment Earnings And Other Income 0.20 0.60 (0.41)
0.00 0.29 (0.29) Reinsurance Recoveries 0.00 0.29 (0.29)
0.03 0.00 0.03 Rate Adjustments - Hospital Directed Payments 15.51 0.00 15.51
0.22 0.00 0.22 Rate/Income Adjustments 1.00 0.00 1.00

375.72 353.52 22.19 TOTAL  REVENUES 384.87 353.15 31.72

E X P E N S E S
Medical Costs:

58.11 54.75 (3.36)    Physician Services 55.55 54.86 (0.69)
16.26 17.04 0.78    Other Professional Services 16.41 17.11 0.70
16.23 20.14 3.91 Emergency Room 15.89 20.16 4.27
71.57 55.59 (15.98)    I n p a t  i e n t 70.15 55.77 (14.37)

0.29 0.29 (0.00)    Reinsurance Expense 0.29 0.29 0.00
26.24 25.22 (1.02) Outpatient Hospital 26.97 25.30 (1.66)
42.25 36.68 (5.57)    Other  Medical 37.83 36.75 (1.07)
34.33 37.84 3.50 Pharmacy 34.09 37.99 3.90

0.00 1.90 1.90    Pay for Performance Quality Incentive 1.36 1.90 0.54
56.41 50.71 (5.70) Hospital Directed Payments 56.06 50.85 (5.21)

0.03 0.00 (0.03) Hospital Directed Payment Adjustment 15.19 0.00 (15.19)
0.08 0.00 (0.08) Non-Claims Expense Adjustment 0.31 0.00 (0.31)

(4.64) 0.00 4.64    IBNR, Incentive, Paid Claims Adjustment (0.39) 0.00 0.39
317.17 300.15 (17.02) Total Medical Costs 329.70 300.99 (28.71)

58.54 53.37 5.17 GROSS MARGIN 55.17 52.16 3.01

Administrative:
9.35 10.27 0.92    Compensation 9.53 10.37 0.84
3.69 3.85 0.16 Purchased Services 3.28 3.88 0.60
0.63 0.48 (0.16) Supplies 0.31 0.48 0.17
2.41 1.80 (0.61) Depreciation 1.57 1.81 0.24
0.93 1.39 0.46    Other Administrative Expenses 0.92 1.40 0.48
0.26 0.00 (0.26) Administrative Expense Adjustment (0.06) 0.00 0.06

17.27 17.78 0.51 Total  Administrative Expenses 15.54 17.93 2.39

334.45 317.93 (16.51) TOTAL  EXPENSES 345.24 318.93 (26.32)

41.27 35.59 5.68 OPERATING  INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE TAX 39.63 34.23 5.40

33.31 35.57 2.25 MCO TAX 32.47 33.87 1.40

7.96 0.02 7.93 OPERATING  INCOME (LOSS) NET OF TAX 7.16 0.36 6.81

NONOPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSE)
0.00 0.00 0.00 Gain on Sale of Assets 0.00 0.00 0.00

(4.54) (4.19) (0.34) Reserve Fund Projects/Community Grants (2.14) (2.25) 0.11
(0.57) (0.60) 0.03 Health Home (0.30) (0.60) 0.30

(5.11) (4.79) (0.31) TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSE) (2.44) (2.85) 0.42

2.85 (4.77) 7.62 NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET POSITION 4.73 (2.50) 7.22

91.5% 93.3% 1.8% MEDICAL LOSS RATIO 92.7% 93.2% 0.5%

6.1% 6.7% 0.6% ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSE RATIO 5.6% 6.7% 1.1%

KHS1/24/2022
Management Use Only Page 3

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

198 / 300



KERN  HEALTH  SYSTEMS
MEDI-CAL

STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENSES, AND 
CHANGES IN NET POSITION BY MONTH - 

ROLLING 13 MONTHS
THROUGH NOVEMBER 30, 2021

E N R O L L M E N T
M e m b e r s - MCAL 275,080 277,452 278,517 276,880 282,972 284,587 287,199

R E V E N U E S
Title  XIX - Medicaid - Family and Other 30,920,096 32,216,002 33,254,490 33,365,704 33,587,650 33,739,041 34,872,666

Title  XIX - Medicaid - Expansion Members 25,504,052 27,197,954 27,548,311 27,720,576 28,063,951 28,547,171 28,728,667
Title  XIX - Medicaid - SPD Members 16,007,482 15,504,966 15,326,978 15,368,431 15,407,903 15,527,562 16,024,510

Premium - MCO Tax 8,420,487 8,830,398 9,577,432 9,657,982 9,752,737 9,805,142 9,876,747
Premium - Hospital Directed Payments 9,313,088 9,738,038 15,121,903 15,230,282 12,949,303 14,734,613 14,811,749
Investment Earnings And Other Income 166,556 147,197 4,303 116,471 (249,580) 205,894 195,233

Rate Adjustments - Hospital Directed Payments 10,627 (2,692) 39,990 21,877 78,150,342 3,134 79,899
Rate/Income Adjustments 127,031 226,726 799,886 594,678 1,527,455 266,498 595,656

TOTAL  REVENUES 90,469,419     93,858,589     101,673,293   102,076,001    179,189,761   102,829,055   105,185,127   

E X P E N S E S
Medical Costs:

   Physician Services 13,867,872 12,660,363 14,907,160 14,731,540 15,058,794 15,642,095 15,744,708
   Other Professional Services 4,389,484 4,935,401 4,421,552 4,883,941 5,048,627 5,107,193 4,658,383

Emergency Room 4,638,713 3,194,257 4,676,327 4,420,437 4,353,449 4,480,205 5,023,372
   I n p a t  i e n t 17,212,070 19,183,080 19,853,180 19,321,533 17,577,565 18,419,878 20,578,157

   Reinsurance Expense 84,521 77,390 81,215            80,770 80,461 80,129 84,297
Outpatient Hospital 6,209,999 6,565,195 7,108,674 6,610,422 7,160,111 8,681,740 8,842,725

   Other  Medical 10,958,385 13,070,247 10,641,113 10,412,229 11,840,899 9,883,445 10,960,637
Pharmacy 8,717,167 9,651,881 9,100,359 9,049,621 10,299,227 9,412,697 9,349,484

   Pay for Performance Quality Incentive 544,962 -                      529,182 529,183 526,070 540,715 540,715
Hospital Directed Payments 9,313,088 9,738,038 15,121,903 15,230,282 12,949,303 14,734,613 14,811,759

Hospital Directed Payment Adjustment 6,596 (1,263) 39,990 21,878 77,356,953 3,134 597
Non-Claims Expense Adjustment (209,309) 1,598 287,063 233,372 212,564 71,855 58,763

   IBNR, Incentive, Paid Claims Adjustment 205,986 316,193 4,787 858,658 1,700,070 (85,946)           449,838          
Total Medical Costs 75,939,534     79,392,380     86,772,505     86,383,866      164,164,093   86,971,753     91,103,435     

GROSS MARGIN 14,529,885     14,466,209     14,900,788     15,692,135      15,025,668     15,857,302     14,081,692     
Administrative:
   Compensation 2,456,357 2,766,869 2,772,584 2,908,104 2,457,160 2,691,957 2,748,394

Purchased Services 745,537 1,172,530 818,908 824,152 941,200 986,086 996,889
Supplies 106,489 39,305 57,592 57,416 4,446 131,712 57,943

Depreciation 419,850 421,301 422,833 422,834 426,541 426,541 422,382
   Other Administrative Expenses 242,696 351,189 277,245 267,201 102,962 248,235 230,567

Administrative Expense Adjustment -                      1,407,045       18,296            (271,318) 57,294 (5,010)             (215)                
Total  Administrative Expenses 3,970,929       6,158,239       4,367,458       4,208,389        3,989,603       4,479,521       4,455,960       

TOTAL  EXPENSES 79,910,463     85,550,619     91,139,963     90,592,255      168,153,696   91,451,274     95,559,395     

OPERATING  INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE TAX 10,558,956 8,307,970 10,533,330 11,483,746 11,036,065 11,377,781 9,625,732

MCO TAX 8,904,649       8,904,649       8,902,943       8,904,649        8,933,228       8,905,080       8,905,142       

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) NET OF TAX 1,654,307 (596,679) 1,630,387 2,579,097 2,102,837 2,472,701 720,590

TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSE) (931,682)         1,433,032       (137,472)         (151,159)          (88,366)           (167,372)         (245,779)         

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET POSITION 722,625 836,353 1,492,915 2,427,938 2,014,471 2,305,329 474,811

MEDICAL LOSS RATIO 91.6% 92.5% 93.1% 92.2% 94.3% 92.3% 94.9%

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSE RATIO 5.5% 8.2% 5.7% 5.5% 5.1% 5.7% 5.5%

NOVEMBER       
2020

DECEMBER       
2020

JANUARY 
2021

FEBRUARY 
2021

MARCH    
2021

APRIL      
2021

MAY        
2021

KHS1/24/2022
Management Use Only

 

Page 4

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

199 / 300



KERN  HEALTH  SYSTEMS
MEDI-CAL

STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENSES, AND 
CHANGES IN NET POSITION BY MONTH - 

ROLLING 13 MONTHS
THROUGH NOVEMBER 30, 2021

E N R O L L M E N T
M e m b e r s - MCAL 289,309 290,980 292,271 294,672 295,865 296,989 3,722,773

R E V E N U E S
Title  XIX - Medicaid - Family and Other 35,878,342 35,761,670 34,569,656 35,961,464 37,040,845 37,111,335 448,278,961

Title  XIX - Medicaid - Expansion Members 29,533,533 29,676,566 29,540,608 29,932,046 30,140,656 31,001,586 373,135,677
Title  XIX - Medicaid - SPD Members 15,971,978 16,260,445 16,115,519 16,075,172 16,206,131 16,254,790 206,051,867

Premium - MCO Tax 9,961,634 10,025,153 10,069,582 10,136,079 10,229,218 10,229,533 126,572,124
Premium - Hospital Directed Payments 22,138,233 16,337,340 16,361,944 16,554,814 16,726,476 16,753,272 196,771,055
Investment Earnings And Other Income (408,458) (39,267) 567,469 (59,079) 131,645 157,659 936,043

Rate Adjustments - Hospital Directed Payments 4,445 (29,149,066) 7,365 5,709 4,491 8,691 49,184,812
Rate/Income Adjustments (93,658) (294,637) (458,866) 122,473 52,871 66,815 3,532,928

TOTAL  REVENUES 112,986,049   78,578,204     106,773,277   108,728,678   110,532,333   111,583,681   1,404,463,467

E X P E N S E S
Medical Costs:

   Physician Services 16,190,717 15,305,367 15,819,470 17,895,535 17,549,058 17,258,969 202,631,648
   Other Professional Services 4,460,451 4,604,443 4,825,412 4,347,759 4,846,005 4,829,415 61,358,066

Emergency Room 5,040,670 4,833,831 4,472,304 3,735,609 4,506,067 4,818,883 58,194,124
   I n p a t  i e n t 20,739,625 20,542,490 20,581,248 20,303,427 23,207,054 21,256,426 258,775,733

   Reinsurance Expense 82,530 84,045 84,997 84,384 85,133 86,151 1,076,023
Outpatient Hospital 8,800,023 7,937,455 7,942,981 7,529,697 7,080,379 7,793,785 98,263,186

   Other  Medical 12,430,651 9,927,247 9,914,269 10,572,454 10,784,127 12,549,269 143,944,972
Pharmacy 10,442,688 9,774,211 10,298,442 9,913,574 10,236,384 10,196,195 126,441,930

   Pay for Performance Quality Incentive 545,673 552,862 552,862 -                      -                      -                      4,862,224
Hospital Directed Payments 22,138,233 16,337,330 16,361,944 16,554,814 16,726,476 16,753,272 196,771,055

Hospital Directed Payment Adjustment 3,943 (29,149,382) 7,365 (132,637) 4,491 8,691 48,170,356
Non-Claims Expense Adjustment 46,953 (11,833) 34,433 20,737 8,907 24,857 779,960

   IBNR, Incentive, Paid Claims Adjustment (2,226,487)      406,066          (55,915)           14,595            (924,120) (1,378,922) (715,197)
Total Medical Costs 98,695,670     61,144,132     90,839,812     90,839,948     94,109,961     94,196,991     1,200,554,080

GROSS MARGIN 14,290,379     17,434,072     15,933,465     17,888,730     16,422,372     17,386,690     203,909,387
Administrative:
   Compensation 2,731,289 2,805,915 2,781,896 2,791,543 2,746,218 2,775,542 35,433,828       

Purchased Services 985,876 939,689 845,393 968,021 991,178 1,095,098 12,310,557       
Supplies 85,576 156,626 193,504 (17,330) 58,257 188,536 1,120,072         

Depreciation 425,837 425,522 427,805 427,804 424,376 716,552 5,810,178         
   Other Administrative Expenses 233,637 274,638 214,396 443,524 348,575 276,718 3,511,583         

Administrative Expense Adjustment (63,654)           (1,674)             (2,367)             3,540              300 77,569 1,219,806         
Total  Administrative Expenses 4,398,561       4,600,716       4,460,627       4,617,102       4,568,904       5,130,015       59,406,024       

TOTAL  EXPENSES 103,094,231   65,744,848     95,300,439     95,457,050     98,678,865     99,327,006     1,259,960,104

OPERATING  INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE TAX 9,891,818 12,833,356 11,472,838 13,271,628 11,853,468 12,256,675 144,503,363

MCO TAX 8,904,648       9,894,054       9,894,055       9,894,054       9,894,054       9,894,054       120,735,259

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) NET OF TAX 987,170 2,939,302 1,578,783 3,377,574 1,959,414 2,362,621 23,768,104

TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSE) (164,148)         (833,809)         (949,330)         (2,438,918)      (1,027,231)      (1,516,642)      (7,218,876)        

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET POSITION 823,022 2,105,493 629,453 938,656 932,183 845,979 16,549,228

MEDICAL LOSS RATIO 94.6% 90.9% 92.7% 90.7% 92.6% 91.5% 92.6%

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSE RATIO 5.4% 5.7% 5.6% 5.6% 5.5% 6.1% 5.8%

NOVEMBER         
2021

13 MONTH 
TOTAL

JUNE        
2021

JULY        
2021

AUGUST        
2021

SEPTEMBER        
2021

OCTOBER         
2021

KHS1/24/2022
Management Use Only Page 5

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

200 / 300



KERN  HEALTH  SYSTEMS
MEDI-CAL

STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENSES, AND 
CHANGES IN NET POSITION BY MONTH - PMPM   

ROLLING 13 MONTHS
THROUGH NOVEMBER 30, 2021

E N R O L L M E N T
M e m b e r s - MCAL 275,080 277,452 278,517 276,880 282,972 284,587 287,199

R E V E N U E S
Title  XIX - Medicaid - Family and Other 164.62 168.64 174.01 177.17 172.94 173.28 177.71

Title  XIX - Medicaid - Expansion Members 371.41 384.47 385.83 397.58 382.20 385.72 381.99
Title  XIX - Medicaid - SPD Members 1,012.68 989.03 957.28 816.21 1,005.21 978.42 1,017.24

Premium - MCO Tax 30.61 31.83 34.39 34.88 34.47 34.45 34.39
Premium - Hospital Directed Payments 33.86 35.10 54.29 55.01 45.76 51.78 51.57
Investment Earnings And Other Income 0.61 0.53 0.02 0.42 (0.88) 0.72 0.68

Reinsurance Recoveries 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Rate Adjustments - Hospital Directed Payments 0.04 (0.01) 0.14 0.08 276.18 0.01 0.28

Rate/Income Adjustments 0.46 0.82 2.87 2.15 5.40 0.94 2.07

TOTAL  REVENUES 328.88            338.29            365.05            368.67            633.24            361.33            366.24            

E X P E N S E S
Medical Costs:

   Physician Services 50.41 45.63 53.52 53.21 53.22 54.96 54.82
   Other Professional Services 15.96 17.79 15.88 17.64 17.84 17.95 16.22

Emergency Room 16.86 11.51 16.79 15.97 15.38 15.74 17.49
   I n p a t  i e n t 62.57 69.14 71.28 69.78 62.12 64.72 71.65

   Reinsurance Expense 0.31 0.28 0.29 0.29 0.28 0.28 0.29
Outpatient Hospital 22.58 23.66 25.52 23.87 25.30 30.51 30.79

   Other  Medical 39.84 47.11 38.21 37.61 41.84 34.73 38.16
Pharmacy 31.69 34.79 32.67 32.68 36.40 33.07 32.55

   Pay for Performance Quality Incentive 1.98 0.00 1.90 1.91 1.86 1.90 1.88
Hospital Directed Payments 33.86 35.10 54.29 55.01 45.76 51.78 51.57

Hospital Directed Payment Adjustment 0.02 (0.00) 0.14 0.08 273.37 0.01 0.00
Non-Claims Expense Adjustment (0.76) 0.01 1.03 0.84 0.75 0.25 0.20

   IBNR, Incentive, Paid Claims Adjustment 0.75 1.14 0.02 3.10 6.01 (0.30) 1.57
Total Medical Costs 276.06 286.15 311.55 311.99 580.14 305.61 317.21

GROSS MARGIN 52.82              52.14              53.50              56.67              53.10              55.72              49.03              
Administrative:
   Compensation 8.93 9.97 9.95 10.50 8.68 9.46 9.57

Purchased Services 2.71 4.23 2.94 2.98 3.33 3.46 3.47
Supplies 0.39 0.14 0.21 0.21 0.02 0.46 0.20

Depreciation 1.53 1.52 1.52 1.53 1.51 1.50 1.47
   Other Administrative Expenses 0.88 1.27 1.00 0.97 0.36 0.87 0.80

Administrative Expense Adjustment 0.00 5.07 0.07 (0.98) 0.20 (0.02) (0.00)
Total  Administrative Expenses 14.44 22.20 15.68 15.20 14.10 15.74 15.52

TOTAL  EXPENSES 290.50            308.34            327.23            327.19            594.24            321.35            332.73            

OPERATING  INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE TAX 38.39              29.94              37.82              41.48              39.00              39.98              33.52              

MCO TAX 32.37 32.09 31.97 32.16 31.57 31.29 31.01

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) NET OF TAX 6.01                (2.15)               5.85                9.31                7.43                8.69                2.51                

TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSE) (3.39) 5.16 (0.49) (0.55) (0.31) (0.59) (0.86)

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET POSITION 2.63                3.01                5.36                8.77                7.12                8.10                1.65                

MEDICAL LOSS RATIO 91.6% 92.5% 93.1% 92.2% 94.3% 92.3% 94.9%

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSE RATIO 5.5% 8.2% 5.7% 5.5% 5.1% 5.7% 5.5%

NOVEMBER          
2020

DECEMBER          
2020

JANUARY 
2021

FEBRUARY 
2021

MARCH         
2021

APRIL          
2021

MAY             
2021

KHS1/24/2022
Management Use Only Page 6

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

201 / 300



KERN  HEALTH  SYSTEMS
MEDI-CAL

STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENSES, AND 
CHANGES IN NET POSITION BY MONTH - PMPM   

ROLLING 13 MONTHS
THROUGH NOVEMBER 30, 2021

E N R O L L M E N T
M e m b e r s - MCAL 289,309 290,980 292,271 294,672 295,865 296,989 3,722,773

R E V E N U E S
Title  XIX - Medicaid - Family and Other 181.55 180.10 173.76 179.43 183.53 183.31 176.12

Title  XIX - Medicaid - Expansion Members 388.41 387.35 380.84 383.93 383.57 393.96 384.80
Title  XIX - Medicaid - SPD Members 1,020.90 1,029.14 1,023.27 1,017.48 1,018.29 1,026.19 991.62

Premium - MCO Tax 34.43 34.45 34.45 34.40 34.57 34.44 34.00
Premium - Hospital Directed Payments 76.52 56.15 55.98 56.18 56.53 56.41 52.86
Investment Earnings And Other Income (1.41) (0.13) 1.94 (0.20) 0.44 0.53 0.25

Reinsurance Recoveries 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Rate Adjustments - Hospital Directed Payments 0.02 (100.18) 0.03 0.02 0.02 0.03 13.21

Rate/Income Adjustments (0.32) (1.01) (1.57) 0.42 0.18 0.22 0.95

TOTAL  REVENUES 390.54            270.05            365.32            368.98            373.59            375.72            377.26            

E X P E N S E S
Medical Costs:

   Physician Services 55.96 52.60 54.13 60.73 59.31 58.11 54.43
   Other Professional Services 15.42 15.82 16.51 14.75 16.38 16.26 16.48

Emergency Room 17.42 16.61 15.30 12.68 15.23 16.23 15.63
   I n p a t  i e n t 71.69 70.60 70.42 68.90 78.44 71.57 69.51

   Reinsurance Expense 0.29 0.29 0.29 0.29 0.29 0.29 0.29
Outpatient Hospital 30.42 27.28 27.18 25.55 23.93 26.24 26.40

   Other  Medical 42.97 34.12 33.92 35.88 36.45 42.25 38.67
Pharmacy 36.10 33.59 35.24 33.64 34.60 34.33 33.96

   Pay for Performance Quality Incentive 1.89 1.90 1.89 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.31
Hospital Directed Payments 76.52 56.15 55.98 56.18 56.53 56.41 52.86

Hospital Directed Payment Adjustment 0.01 (100.18) 0.03 (0.45) 0.02 0.03 12.94
Non-Claims Expense Adjustment 0.16 (0.04) 0.12 0.07 0.03 0.08 0.21

   IBNR, Incentive, Paid Claims Adjustment (7.70) 1.40 (0.19) 0.05 (3.12) (4.64) (0.19)
Total Medical Costs 341.14 210.13 310.81 308.27 318.08 317.17 322.49

GROSS MARGIN 49.39              59.92              54.52              60.71              55.51              58.54              54.77              
Administrative:
   Compensation 9.44 9.64 9.52 9.47 9.28 9.35 9.52

Purchased Services 3.41 3.23 2.89 3.29 3.35 3.69 3.31
Supplies 0.30 0.54 0.66 (0.06) 0.20 0.63 0.30

Depreciation 1.47 1.46 1.46 1.45 1.43 2.41 1.56
   Other Administrative Expenses 0.81 0.94 0.73 1.51 1.18 0.93 0.94

Administrative Expense Adjustment (0.22) (0.01) (0.01) 0.01 0.00 0.26 0.33
Total  Administrative Expenses 15.20 15.81 15.26 15.67 15.44 17.27 15.96

TOTAL  EXPENSES 356.35            225.94            326.07            323.94            333.53            334.45            338.45            

OPERATING  INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE TAX 34.19              44.10              39.25              45.04              40.06              41.27              38.82              

MCO TAX 30.78 34.00 33.85 33.58 33.44 33.31 32.43              

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) NET OF TAX 3.41                10.10              5.40                11.46              6.62                7.96                6.38                

TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSE) (0.57) (2.87) (3.25) (8.28) (3.47) (5.11) (1.94)               

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET POSITION 2.84                7.24                2.15                3.19                3.15                2.85                4.45                

MEDICAL LOSS RATIO 94.6% 90.9% 92.7% 90.7% 92.6% 91.5% 92.6%

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSE RATIO 5.4% 5.7% 5.6% 5.6% 5.5% 6.1% 5.8%

NOVEMBER           
2021

13 MONTH 
TOTAL

JUNE             
2021

JULY           
2021

AUGUST           
2021

SEPTEMBER           
2021

OCTOBER           
2021

KHS1/24/2022
Management Use Only Page 7

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

202 / 300



KERN  HEALTH  SYSTEMS
MEDI-CAL

CURRENT  MONTH SCHEDULE OF REVENUES - ALL COA YEAR-TO-DATE
ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE FOR THE MONTH ENDED NOVEMBER 30, 2021 ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE

R E V E N U E S

Title XIX - Medicaid - Family & Other

28,182,544 24,914,087 3,268,457 Premium - Medi-Cal 299,178,401 272,538,512 26,639,889
2,277,551 2,520,887 (243,336) Premium - Maternity Kick 26,601,561 27,729,757 (1,128,196)

26,385                  79,948                  (53,563) Premium - Hep C Kick 398,207 871,765 (473,558)
606,456                494,175                112,281 Premium - BHT Kick 6,886,066             5,388,565 1,497,501
226,217                178,742                47,475 Premium - Health Home Kick 1,896,893             1,949,027 (52,134)

3,756,615             3,511,100             245,515                Premium - Provider Enhancement 40,112,778           38,353,093 1,759,685
189,592                170,253                19,339                  Premium - Ground Emergency Medical Transportation 2,016,056             1,862,477 153,579
152,174                277,863                (125,689)               Premium - Behavorial Health Integration Program 4,393,659             3,029,866 1,363,793

1,579,313             -                            1,579,313             Premium -  Vaccine Incentive 2,456,181             -                            2,456,181
114,488                91,926                  22,562 Other 1,203,061 1,010,066 192,995

37,111,335 32,238,981 4,872,354 Total Title XIX - Medicaid - Family & Other 385,142,863 352,733,128 32,409,735

Title XIX - Medicaid - Expansion Members

27,289,404 24,002,303           3,287,101 Premium - Medi-Cal 289,025,199 264,025,333 24,999,866
615,407 214,253                401,154 Premium - Maternity Kick 4,130,335 2,356,783 1,773,552
200,939                202,017                (1,078) Premium - Hep C Kick 2,035,591 2,222,186 (186,595)
390,695                356,121                34,574 Premium - Health Home Kick 3,272,937             3,917,331 (644,394)

1,604,409             1,455,050             149,359                Premium - Provider Enhancement 16,973,955 16,005,550           968,405
192,603                165,235                27,368                  Premium - Ground Emergency Medical Transportation 2,037,975 1,817,585             220,390

61,064                  102,122                (41,058)                 Premium - Behavorial Health Integration Program 1,658,091             1,123,342             534,749                
614,689                -                            614,689                Premium -  Vaccine Incentive 956,083                -                            956,083                

32,376                  26,600                  5,776 Other 343,505                292,600 50,905

31,001,586 26,523,701 4,477,885 Total Title XIX - Medicaid - Expansion Members 320,433,671 291,760,710 28,672,961

Title XIX - Medicaid - SPD Members

14,589,057 13,474,791 1,114,266 Premium - Medi-Cal 157,437,861 148,222,697 9,215,164
78,628                  100,288                (21,660)                 Premium - Hep C Kick 611,551 1,103,165 (491,614)               

528,487                763,566 (235,079) Premium - BHT Kick 6,558,432 8,399,224 (1,840,792)
311,430                351,842 (40,412) Premium - Health Home Kick 2,771,596             3,870,262 (1,098,666)
474,120                454,632 19,488                  Premium - Provider Enhancement 5,116,466 5,000,952 115,514
137,274                127,475                9,799                    Premium - Ground Emergency Medical Transportation 1,481,394 1,402,225 79,169

11,810                  22,041                  (10,231)                 Premium - Behavorial Health Integration Program 368,991                242,451 126,540
123,984                -                            123,984                Premium -  Vaccine Incentive 193,128 -                            193,128                

16,254,790 15,294,634 960,156 Total Title XIX - Medicaid - SPD Members 174,539,419 168,240,975 6,298,444

KHS1/24/2022
Management Use Only Page 8

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

203 / 300



KERN  HEALTH  SYSTEMS
MEDI-CAL

CURRENT  MONTH SCHEDULE OF MEDICAL COSTS - ALL COA YEAR-TO-DATE

ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE FOR THE MONTH ENDED NOVEMBER 30, 2021 ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE

PHYSICIAN SERVICES
3,850,517 3,086,864 (763,653) Primary Care Physician Services 38,103,138 33,726,827 (4,376,311)

11,112,843 10,623,987 (488,856) Referral Specialty Services 120,572,995 116,332,454 (4,240,541)
2,286,609             1,511,739 (774,870) Urgent Care & After Hours Advise 17,327,080 16,503,916 (823,164)

9,000                    9,000 -                           Hospital Admitting Team 100,200 100,200 -                           

17,258,969 15,231,590 (2,027,379) TOTAL PHYSICIAN SERVICES 176,103,413 166,663,398 (9,440,015)

OTHER PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
297,073                297,220 147 Vision Service Capitation 3,280,248 3,245,958 (34,290)

1,673,006             1,740,737             67,731                  Medical Departments - UM Allocation * 18,156,288 19,148,105 991,817
1,177,462             1,258,770 81,308 Behavior Health Treatment 13,362,483 13,789,847 427,364

203,166                190,255 (12,911) Mental Health Services 1,490,394 2,084,482 594,088
1,478,708             1,252,656 (226,052) Other Professional Services 15,743,768          13,724,256 (2,019,512)

4,829,415 4,739,638 (89,777) TOTAL OTHER PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 52,033,181 51,992,648 (40,533)

4,818,883 5,601,587 782,704 EMERGENCY ROOM 50,361,154 61,236,357 10,875,203

21,256,426 15,465,135 (5,791,291) INPATIENT HOSPITAL 222,380,583 169,445,732 (52,934,851)

86,151                  80,677 (5,474) REINSURANCE EXPENSE PREMIUM 914,112               881,062 (33,050)

7,793,785 7,015,531 (778,254) OUTPATIENT HOSPITAL SERVICES 85,487,992 76,879,550 (8,608,442)

OTHER MEDICAL  
1,282,994 1,559,164 276,170 Ambulance and NEMT 14,456,895 17,055,413 2,598,518

780,824 427,330 (353,494) Home Health Services & CBAS 7,769,453 4,682,816 (3,086,637)
337,336 491,325 153,989 Utilization and Quality Review Expenses 4,522,233 5,404,575 882,342

1,171,936 1,303,271 131,335 Long Term/SNF/Hospice 15,104,920 14,305,626 (799,294)
435,425                396,351 (39,074) Health Home Capitation & Incentive 3,094,957            4,342,487 1,247,530

5,555,024             5,162,432             (392,592)              Provider Enhancement Expense - Prop. 56 59,209,486          56,394,734 (2,814,752)
442,696                462,963                20,267                  Provider Enhancement Expense - GEMT 5,093,769            5,082,287 (11,482)

-                           -                           -                           Provider COVID-19 Expenes 2,125,900            -                           (2,125,900)
2,317,986             -                           (2,317,986)           Vaccine Incentive Program Expense 2,317,986            -                           (2,317,986)

225,048                402,605                177,557                Behaviorial Health Integration Program 6,220,741            4,396,816 (1,823,925)

12,549,269 10,205,441 (2,343,828) TOTAL OTHER MEDICAL 119,916,340 111,664,755 (8,251,585)

PHARMACY SERVICES 

9,186,350 9,404,400             218,050 RX - Drugs & OTC 97,130,813 103,118,400 5,987,587

290,397 382,419                92,022 RX - HEP-C 2,966,452 4,197,448 1,230,996

874,776                772,585 (102,191) Rx - DME 9,227,208 8,470,804 (756,404)

(155,328)              (33,428) 121,900 RX - Pharmacy Rebates (1,251,591)           (366,551) 885,040

10,196,195 10,525,976 329,781 TOTAL PHARMACY SERVICES 108,072,882        115,420,101         7,347,219

-                           528,571                528,571                PAY FOR PERFORMANCE QUALITY INCENTIVE 4,317,262            5,772,476             1,455,214

16,753,272           14,106,810           (2,646,462)           HOSPITAL DIRECTED PAYMENTS 177,719,929        154,496,560         (23,223,369)

8,691                    -                           (8,691)                  HOSPITAL DIRECTED PAYMENT ADJUSTMENT 48,165,023          -                           (48,165,023)         

24,857                  -                           (24,857)                NON-CLAIMS EXPENSE ADJUSTMENT 987,671               -                           (987,671)

(1,378,922)           -                           1,378,922             IBNR, INCENTIVE, AND PAID CLAIMS ADJUSTMENT (1,237,376)           -                           1,237,376             

94,196,991 83,500,955 (10,696,036)         Total Medical Costs 1,045,222,166 914,452,637 (130,769,529)

* Medical costs per DMHC regulations KHS1/24/2022
Management Use Only Page 9

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

204 / 300



KERN  HEALTH  SYSTEMS
MEDI-CAL

CURRENT  MONTH SCHEDULE OF MEDICAL COSTS - ALL COA - PMPM YEAR-TO-DATE
ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE FOR THE MONTH ENDED NOVEMBER 30, 2021 ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE

PHYSICIAN SERVICES
12.97 11.10 (1.87) Primary Care Physician Services 12.02 11.10 (0.92)
37.42 38.19 0.77 Referral Specialty Services 38.03 38.29 0.26

7.70 5.43 (2.27) Urgent Care & After Hours Advise 5.47 5.43 (0.03)
0.03 0.03 0.00 Hospital Admitting Team 0.03 0.03 0.00

58.11 54.75 (3.36) TOTAL PHYSICIAN SERVICES 55.55 54.86 (0.69)
OTHER PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

1.00 1.07 0.07 Vision Service Capitation 1.03 1.07 0.03
5.63 6.26 0.62 Medical Departments - UM Allocation * 5.73 6.30 0.58
3.96 4.52 0.56 Behavior Health Treatment 4.21 4.54 0.32
0.68 0.68 (0.00) Mental Health Services 0.47 0.69 0.22
4.98 4.50 (0.48) Other Professional Services 4.97 4.52 (0.45)
16.26 17.04 0.78 TOTAL OTHER PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 16.41 17.11 0.70

16.23 20.14 3.91 EMERGENCY ROOM 15.89 20.16 4.27
71.57 55.59 (15.98) INPATIENT HOSPITAL 70.15 55.77 (14.37)

0.29 0.29 (0.00) REINSURANCE EXPENSE PREMIUM 0.29 0.29 0.00
26.24 25.22 (1.02) OUTPATIENT HOSPITAL SERVICES 26.97 25.30 (1.66)

OTHER MEDICAL  
4.32 5.60 1.28 Ambulance and NEMT 4.56 5.61 1.05
2.63 1.54 (1.09) Home Health Services & CBAS 2.45 1.54 (0.91)
1.14 1.77 0.63 Utilization and Quality Review Expenses 1.43 1.78 0.35
3.95 4.68 0.74 Long Term/SNF/Hospice 4.76 4.71 (0.06)
1.47 1.42 (0.04) Health Home Capitation & Incentive 0.98 1.43 0.45

18.70 18.56 (0.15) Provider Enhancement Expense - Prop. 56 18.68 18.56 (0.11)
1.49 1.66 0.17 Provider Enhancement Expense - GEMT 1.61 1.67 0.07
0.00 0.00 0.00 Provider COVID-19 Expenes 0.67 0.00 (0.67)
7.80 0.00 (7.80) Vaccine Incentive Program Expense 0.73 0.00 (0.73)
0.76 1.45 0.69 Behaviorial Health Integration Program 1.96 1.45 (0.52)

42.25 36.68 (5.57) TOTAL OTHER MEDICAL 37.83 36.75 (1.07)
PHARMACY SERVICES 

30.93 33.81 2.87 RX - Drugs & OTC 30.64 33.94 3.30
0.98 1.37 0.40 RX - HEP-C 0.94 1.38 0.45
2.95 2.78 (0.17) Rx - DME 2.91 2.79 (0.12)

(0.52) (0.12) 0.40 RX - Pharmacy Rebates (0.39) (0.12) 0.27
34.33 37.84 3.50 TOTAL PHARMACY SERVICES 34.09 37.99 3.90

-                        1.90                      1.90 PAY FOR PERFORMANCE QUALITY INCENTIVE 1.36                      1.90                      0.54
56.41                    50.71 (5.70) HOSPITAL DIRECTED PAYMENTS 56.06                    50.85 (5.21)

0.03 0.00 (0.03) HOSPITAL DIRECTED PAYMENT ADJUSTMENT 15.19 0.00 (15.19)
0.08                      0.00 (0.08)                      NON-CLAIMS EXPENSE ADJUSTMENT 0.31                      0.00 (0.31)                     

(4.64)                     0.00 4.64                       IBNR, INCENTIVE, AND PAID CLAIMS ADJUSTMENT (0.39)                     0.00 0.39                      
317.17 300.15 (17.02)                    Total Medical Costs 329.70 300.99 (28.71)

* Medical costs per DMHC regulations KHS1/24/2022
Management Use Only Page 10

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

205 / 300



KERN  HEALTH  SYSTEMS
MEDI-CAL

SCHEDULE OF MEDICAL COSTS BY MONTH 
THROUGH NOVEMBER 30, 2021

PHYSICIAN SERVICES
Primary Care Physician Services 2,962,264 2,963,060 3,567,494 3,563,867 3,699,457 3,720,742

Referral Specialty Services 10,512,215 10,171,851 9,997,168 11,114,617 11,103,264 11,178,950
Urgent Care & After Hours Advise 1,423,381 1,588,229 1,484,832 954,611 932,687 1,282,025

Hospital Admitting Team 9,300 8,400 9,300 9,000 9,300 9,000

TOTAL PHYSICIAN SERVICES 14,907,160 14,731,540 15,058,794 15,642,095 15,744,708 16,190,717

OTHER PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
Vision Service Capitation 294,054 292,442 292,443 289,005 305,213 298,817

Medical Departments - UM Allocation * 1,593,546 1,548,498 1,654,203 1,591,328 1,632,091 1,626,889
Behavior Health Treatment 867,517 947,944 1,407,309 1,506,149 1,204,226 1,186,572

Mental Health Services 292,517 181,749 96,618 153,559 43,140 72,194
Other Professional Services 1,373,918 1,913,308 1,598,054 1,567,152 1,473,713 1,275,979

TOTAL OTHER PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 4,421,552 4,883,941 5,048,627 5,107,193 4,658,383 4,460,451

EMERGENCY ROOM 4,676,327 4,420,437 4,353,449 4,480,205 5,023,372 5,040,670

INPATIENT HOSPITAL 19,853,180 19,321,533 17,577,565 18,419,878 20,578,157 20,739,625

REINSURANCE EXPENSE PREMIUM 81,215 80,770 80,461 80,129 84,297 82,530

OUTPATIENT HOSPITAL SERVICES 7,108,674 6,610,422 7,160,111 8,681,740 8,842,725 8,800,023

OTHER MEDICAL  
Ambulance and NEMT 1,400,971 1,208,039 1,444,178 1,338,929 1,314,492 1,189,224

Home Health Services & CBAS 490,933 582,371 853,147 657,817 707,296 964,318
Utilization and Quality Review Expenses 228,696 372,499 688,633 430,683 359,626 509,705

Long Term/SNF/Hospice 1,616,577 1,132,832 1,933,711 1,041,624 1,114,812 1,301,188
Health Home Capitation & Incentive 211,140 294,005 334,675 299,855 228,752 341,280

Provider Enhancement Expense - Prop. 56 5,190,164 5,226,990 5,265,692 5,318,961 5,342,952 5,386,833
Provider Enhancement Expense - GEMT 456,380 456,381 265,311 423,904 494,669 527,330

Provider COVID-19 Expenes 674,580 767,440 683,880 -                      -                      -                      
Vaccine Incentive Program Expense -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

Behaviorial Health Integration Program 371,672              371,672 371,672 371,672 1,398,038 2,210,773

TOTAL OTHER MEDICAL 10,641,113 10,412,229 11,840,899 9,883,445 10,960,637 12,430,651

PHARMACY SERVICES 

RX - Drugs & OTC 8,174,252 8,080,594 9,316,542 8,462,224 8,518,642 9,049,899

RX - HEP-C 245,144 264,815 249,449 260,020 290,418 365,687

Rx - DME 815,963 839,212 868,236 825,453 690,067 1,035,049

RX - Pharmacy Rebates (135,000) (135,000) (135,000) (135,000) (149,643) (7,947)

TOTAL PHARMACY SERVICES 9,100,359 9,049,621 10,299,227 9,412,697 9,349,484 10,442,688

PAY FOR PERFORMANCE QUALITY INCENTIVE 529,182              529,183              526,070              540,715              540,715              545,673              

HOSPITAL DIRECTED PAYMENTS 15,121,903 15,230,282 12,949,303 14,734,613 14,811,759 22,138,233

HOSPITAL DIRECTED PAYMENT ADJUSTMENT 39,990                21,878                77,356,953         3,134                  597                     3,943                  

NON-CLAIMS EXPENSE ADJUSTMENT 287,063 233,372 212,564 71,855 58,763 46,953

IBNR, INCENTIVE, AND PAID CLAIMS ADJUSTMENT 4,787 858,658 1,700,070 (85,946) 449,838 (2,226,487)

Total Medical Costs 86,772,505 86,383,866 164,164,093 86,971,753 91,103,435 98,695,670

JUNE              
2021

JANUARY    
2021

FEBRUARY    
2021

MARCH        
2021

APRIL           
2021

MAY              
2021

KHS1/24/2022
Management Use Only

Page 11

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

206 / 300



KERN  HEALTH  SYSTEMS
MEDI-CAL

SCHEDULE OF MEDICAL COSTS BY MONTH 
THROUGH NOVEMBER 30, 2021

PHYSICIAN SERVICES
Primary Care Physician Services 3,239,377 3,824,662 3,847,107 2,864,591 3,850,517 38,103,138

Referral Specialty Services 10,801,894 10,559,258 11,970,037 12,050,898 11,112,843 120,572,995
Urgent Care & After Hours Advise 1,254,796 1,426,250 2,069,391 2,624,269 2,286,609 17,327,080

Hospital Admitting Team 9,300 9,300 9,000 9,300 9,000 100,200

TOTAL PHYSICIAN SERVICES 15,305,367 15,819,470 17,895,535 17,549,058 17,258,969 176,103,413

OTHER PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
Vision Service Capitation 304,301 307,745 305,529 293,626 297,073 3,280,248           

Medical Departments - UM Allocation * 1,665,834 1,672,683 1,872,595 1,625,615 1,673,006 18,156,288         
Behavior Health Treatment 1,269,876 1,426,863 1,080,856 1,287,709 1,177,462 13,362,483         

Mental Health Services 95,878 114,350 92,882 144,341 203,166 1,490,394           
Other Professional Services 1,268,554 1,303,771 995,897 1,494,714 1,478,708 15,743,768         

TOTAL OTHER PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 4,604,443 4,825,412 4,347,759 4,846,005 4,829,415 52,033,181

EMERGENCY ROOM 4,833,831 4,472,304 3,735,609 4,506,067 4,818,883 50,361,154

INPATIENT HOSPITAL 20,542,490 20,581,248 20,303,427 23,207,054 21,256,426 222,380,583

REINSURANCE EXPENSE PREMIUM 84,045 84,997 84,384 85,133 86,151 914,112

OUTPATIENT HOSPITAL SERVICES 7,937,455 7,942,981 7,529,697 7,080,379 7,793,785 85,487,992

OTHER MEDICAL  
Ambulance and NEMT 1,328,439 1,323,146 1,451,342 1,175,141 1,282,994 14,456,895

Home Health Services & CBAS 749,534 599,655 595,101 788,457 780,824 7,769,453
Utilization and Quality Review Expenses 373,641 230,711 404,807 585,896 337,336 4,522,233

Long Term/SNF/Hospice 1,204,596 1,258,956 1,619,759 1,708,929 1,171,936 15,104,920
Health Home Capitation & Incentive 162,780 267,430 263,420 256,195 435,425 3,094,957

Provider Enhancement Expense - Prop. 56 5,433,266 5,440,313 5,498,898 5,550,393 5,555,024 59,209,486
Provider Enhancement Expense - GEMT 449,942 569,010 514,078 494,068 442,696 5,093,769

Provider COVID-19 Expenes -                      -                      -                      -                      -                    2,125,900
Vaccine Incentive Program Expense -                      -                      -                      -                      2,317,986          2,317,986

Behaviorial Health Integration Program 225,049 225,048 225,049 225,048 225,048 6,220,741

TOTAL OTHER MEDICAL 9,927,247 9,914,269 10,572,454 10,784,127 12,549,269 119,916,340

PHARMACY SERVICES 

RX - Drugs & OTC 8,878,267 9,311,107 8,903,588 9,249,348 9,186,350 97,130,813

RX - HEP-C 239,266 251,754 258,446 251,056 290,397 2,966,452

Rx - DME 791,678 870,581 761,862 854,331 874,776 9,227,208

RX - Pharmacy Rebates (135,000) (135,000) (10,322) (118,351) (155,328) (1,251,591)

TOTAL PHARMACY SERVICES 9,774,211 10,298,442 9,913,574 10,236,384 10,196,195 108,072,882

PAY FOR PERFORMANCE QUALITY INCENTIVE 552,862               552,862               -                      -                      -                    4,317,262           

HOSPITAL DIRECTED PAYMENTS 16,337,330          16,361,944          16,554,814          16,726,476          16,753,272        177,719,929       

HOSPITAL DIRECTED PAYMENT ADJUSTMENT (29,149,382)        7,365                   (132,637)             4,491                   8,691                 48,165,023         

NON-CLAIMS EXPENSE ADJUSTMENT (11,833)               34,433                 20,737                 8,907                   24,857               987,671              

IBNR, INCENTIVE, AND PAID CLAIMS ADJUSTMENT 406,066               (55,915)               14,595                 (924,120)             (1,378,922)        (1,237,376)          

Total Medical Costs 61,144,132 90,839,812 90,839,948 94,109,961 94,196,991 1,045,222,166

YEAR TO 
DATE             
2021

JULY              
2021

AUGUST              
2021

SEPTEMBER              
2021

OCTOBER              
2021

NOVEMBER              
2021

KHS1/24/2022
Management Use Only Page 12

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

207 / 300



KERN  HEALTH  SYSTEMS
MEDI-CAL

SCHEDULE OF MEDICAL COSTS BY MONTH - PMPM
THROUGH NOVEMBER 30, 2021

PHYSICIAN SERVICES
Primary Care Physician Services 10.64 10.70 12.61 12.52 12.88 12.86

Referral Specialty Services 37.74 36.74 35.33 39.06 38.66 38.64
Urgent Care & After Hours Advise 5.11 5.74 5.25 3.35 3.25 4.43

Hospital Admitting Team 0.03 0.03 0.03 0.03 0.03 0.03

TOTAL PHYSICIAN SERVICES 53.52 53.21 53.22 54.96 54.82 55.96

OTHER PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
Vision Service Capitation 1.06 1.06 1.03                1.02 1.06 1.03

Medical Departments - UM Allocation * 5.72 5.59 5.85 5.59 5.68 5.62
Behavior Health Treatment 3.11 3.42 4.97                5.29 4.19 4.10

Mental Health Services 1.05 0.66 0.34                0.54 0.15 0.25
Other Professional Services 4.93 6.91 5.65                5.51 5.13 4.41

TOTAL OTHER PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 15.88 17.64 17.84 17.95 16.22 15.42

EMERGENCY ROOM 16.79 15.97 15.38 15.74 17.49 17.42

INPATIENT HOSPITAL 71.28 69.78 62.12 64.72 71.65 71.69

REINSURANCE EXPENSE PREMIUM 0.29 0.29 0.28 0.28 0.29 0.29

OUTPATIENT HOSPITAL SERVICES 25.52 23.87 25.30 30.51 30.79 30.42

OTHER MEDICAL  
Ambulance and NEMT 5.03 4.36 5.10 4.70 4.58 4.11

Home Health Services & CBAS 1.76 2.10 3.01 2.31 2.46 3.33
Utilization and Quality Review Expenses 0.82 1.35 2.43 1.51 1.25 1.76

Long Term/SNF/Hospice 5.80 4.09 6.83 3.66 3.88 4.50
Health Home Capitation & Incentive 0.76 1.06 1.18 1.05 0.80 1.18

Provider Enhancement Expense - Prop. 56 18.63 18.88 18.61 18.69 18.60 18.62
Provider Enhancement Expense -  GEMT 1.64 1.65 0.94 1.49 1.72 1.82

Provider COVID-19 Expenes 2.42 2.77 2.42 0.00 0.00 0.00
Vaccine Incentive Program Expense 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Behaviorial Health Integration Program 1.33 1.34 1.31 1.31 4.87 7.64

TOTAL OTHER MEDICAL 38.21 37.61 41.84 34.73 38.16 42.97

PHARMACY SERVICES 

RX - Drugs & OTC 29.35 29.18 32.92 29.74 29.66 31.28

RX - HEP-C 0.88 0.96 0.88 0.91 1.01 1.26

Rx - DME 2.93 3.03 3.07 2.90 2.40 3.58

RX - Pharmacy Rebates (0.48) (0.49) (0.48) (0.47) (0.52) (0.03)

TOTAL PHARMACY SERVICES 32.67 32.68 36.40 33.07 32.55 36.10

PAY FOR PERFORMANCE QUALITY INCENTIVE 1.90 1.91 1.86 1.90 1.88 1.89

HOSPITAL DIRECTED PAYMENTS 54.29 55.01 45.76 51.78 51.57 76.52

HOSPITAL DIRECTED PAYMENT ADJUSTMENT 0.14 0.08 273.37 0.01 0.00 0.01

NON-CLAIMS EXPENSE ADJUSTMENT 1.03 0.84 0.75 0.25 0.20 0.16

IBNR, INCENTIVE, AND PAID CLAIMS ADJUSTMENT 0.02 3.10 6.01 (0.30) 1.57 (7.70)

Total Medical Costs 311.55 311.99 580.14 305.61 317.21 341.14

JANUARY    
2021

FEBRUARY    
2021

MARCH        
2021

APRIL           
2021

MAY              
2021

JUNE              
2021

KHS1/24/2022
Management Use Only

Page 13

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

208 / 300



KERN  HEALTH  SYSTEMS
MEDI-CAL

SCHEDULE OF MEDICAL COSTS BY MONTH - PMPM
THROUGH NOVEMBER 30, 2021

PHYSICIAN SERVICES
Primary Care Physician Services 11.13 13.09 13.06 9.68 12.97 12.02

Referral Specialty Services 37.12 36.13 40.62 40.73 37.42 38.03
Urgent Care & After Hours Advise 4.31 4.88 7.02 8.87 7.70 5.47

Hospital Admitting Team 0.03 0.03 0.03 0.03 0.03 0.03

TOTAL PHYSICIAN SERVICES 52.60 54.13 60.73 59.31 58.11 55.55

OTHER PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
Vision Service Capitation 1.05 1.05 1.04 0.99                1.00                1.03

Medical Departments - UM Allocation * 5.72 5.72 6.35 5.49 5.63 5.73
Behavior Health Treatment 4.36 4.88 3.67 4.35                3.96                4.21

Mental Health Services 0.33 0.39 0.32 0.49                0.68                0.47
Other Professional Services 4.36 4.46 3.38 5.05                4.98                4.97

TOTAL OTHER PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 15.82 16.51 14.75 16.38 16.26 16.41

EMERGENCY ROOM 16.61 15.30 12.68 15.23 16.23 15.89

INPATIENT HOSPITAL 70.60 70.42 68.90 78.44 71.57 70.15

REINSURANCE EXPENSE PREMIUM 0.29 0.29 0.29 0.29 0.29 0.29

OUTPATIENT HOSPITAL SERVICES 27.28 27.18 25.55 23.93 26.24 26.97

OTHER MEDICAL  
Ambulance and NEMT 4.57 4.53 4.93 3.97 4.32 4.56

Home Health Services & CBAS 2.58 2.05 2.02 2.66 2.63 2.45
Utilization and Quality Review Expenses 1.28 0.79 1.37 1.98 1.14 1.43

Long Term/SNF/Hospice 4.14 4.31 5.50 5.78 3.95 4.76
Health Home Capitation & Incentive 0.56 0.92 0.89 0.87 1.47 0.98

Provider Enhancement Expense - Prop. 56 18.67 18.61 18.66 18.76 18.70 18.68
Provider Enhancement Expense -  GEMT 1.55 1.95 1.74 1.67 1.49 1.61

Provider COVID-19 Expenes 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.67
Vaccine Incentive Program Expense 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 7.80 0.73

Behaviorial Health Integration Program 0.77 0.77 0.76 0.76 0.76 1.96

TOTAL OTHER MEDICAL 34.12 33.92 35.88 36.45 42.25 37.83

PHARMACY SERVICES 

RX - Drugs & OTC 30.51 31.86 30.22 31.26 30.93 30.64

RX - HEP-C 0.82 0.86 0.88 0.85 0.98 0.94

Rx - DME 2.72 2.98 2.59 2.89 2.95 2.91

RX - Pharmacy Rebates (0.46) (0.46) (0.04) (0.40) (0.52) (0.39)

TOTAL PHARMACY SERVICES 33.59 35.24 33.64 34.60 34.33 34.09

PAY FOR PERFORMANCE QUALITY INCENTIVE 1.90 1.89 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.36

HOSPITAL DIRECTED PAYMENTS 56.15 55.98 56.18 56.53 56.41 56.06

HOSPITAL DIRECTED PAYMENT ADJUSTMENT (100.18) 0.03 (0.45) 0.02 0.03 15.19

NON-CLAIMS EXPENSE ADJUSTMENT (0.04) 0.12 0.07 0.03 0.08 0.31

IBNR, INCENTIVE, AND PAID CLAIMS ADJUSTMENT 1.40 (0.19) 0.05 (3.12) (4.64) (0.39)

Total Medical Costs 210.13 310.81 308.27 318.08 317.17 329.70

YEAR TO 
DATE             
2021

JULY              
2021

AUGUST              
2021

SEPTEMBER              
2021

OCTOBER              
2021

NOVEMBER              
2021

KHS1/24/2022
Management Use Only Page 14

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

209 / 300



KERN  HEALTH  SYSTEMS

MEDI-CAL

CURRENT  MONTH SCHEDULE OF ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES BY DEPT YEAR-TO-DATE
ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE FOR THE MONTH ENDED NOVEMBER 30, 2021 ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE

393,580 377,031 (16,549) 110 - Executive 4,314,037 4,222,343 (91,694)

190,753 212,651 21,898 210 - Accounting 2,151,926 2,339,162 187,236

385,122          362,443 (22,679) 220 - Management Information Systems 3,957,656 3,986,875 29,219

11,546            64,468 52,922 221 - Business Intelligence 143,635        709,148 565,513

217,197          281,931 64,734 222 - Enterprise Development 2,668,914 3,101,240 432,326

573,033 448,524 (124,509) 225 - Infrastructure 4,440,981 4,933,760 492,779

546,377 576,323 29,946 230 - Claims 5,999,959 6,339,554 339,595

53,063 149,779 96,716 240 - Project Management 1,279,045 1,647,573 368,528

111,298 101,775 (9,523) 310 - Health Services - Utilization Management 1,185,586 1,119,524 (66,062)

23,180 27,902 4,722 311 - Health Services - Quality Improvement 281,697        306,924 25,227

-                      55 55                   312 - Health Services - Education 59                 605 546

158,204 142,146 (16,058) 313- Pharmacy 1,651,822 1,563,604 (88,218)

95                   6,642               6,547              314 - Health Homes 4,355            73,058               68,703

-                      22,357 22,357 315 - Case Management 209,565        245,924 36,359

38,981            -                       (38,981) 316 - Population Health Management 38,981          -                         (38,981)

-                      29,325 29,325            616 - Disease Management 260,833        322,578             61,745          

313,414 323,502 10,088 320 - Provider Network Management 3,101,539 3,558,527 456,988

721,826 656,475 (65,351) 330 - Member Services 6,609,625 7,221,228 611,603

928,414 702,275 (226,139) 340 - Corporate Services 6,710,601 7,725,023 1,014,422

42,560 66,363 23,803 360 - Audit & Investigative Services 614,043 729,992 115,949

51,562            69,250 17,688 410 - Advertising Media 615,302 761,750 146,448

87,412 73,950 (13,462) 420 - Sales/Marketing/Public Relations 648,994 813,446 164,452

204,829 251,455 46,626 510 - Human Resourses 2,574,940 2,766,006 191,066

77,569            -                       (77,569)            Administrative Expense Adjustment (187,239)       -                         187,239

5,130,015       4,946,622        (183,393) Total Administrative Expenses 49,276,856 54,487,844 5,210,988

KHS1/24/2022
Management Use Only Page 15

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

210 / 300



KERN  HEALTH  SYSTEMS

MEDI-CAL

SCHEDULE OF ADMIN EXPENSES BY DEPT BY MONTH 
FOR THE MONTH ENDED NOVEMBER 30, 2021

110 - Executive 353,943 483,744 293,288 272,219 482,689 358,282

210 - Accounting 203,619 198,129 146,511 287,032 86,601 198,636

220 - Management Information Systems (MIS) 340,212 345,719 394,230 384,019 349,136 376,280

221 - Business Intelligence -                   -                   -                   12,308         46,180 24,115

222 - Enterprise Development 250,306 269,236 185,800 249,199 261,073 252,105

225 - Infrastructure 365,340 337,172 345,070 407,880 459,371 352,463

230 - Claims 550,124 558,095 460,086 554,302 542,410 526,593

240 - Project Management 99,808 119,159 128,304 121,381 127,251 189,626

310 - Health Services - Utilization Management 103,641 120,732 82,239 113,686 116,283 100,257

311 - Health Services - Quality Improvement 18,870 16,833 21,040 18,597 20,088 27,421

312 - Health Services - Education -                   -                   -                   59                -                   -                   

313- Pharmacy 141,859 137,379 151,340 147,394 145,687 151,338

314 - Health Homes -                   -                   4,225           -                   -                   -                   

315 - Case Management 23,536 22,769         24,444         22,612         23,420         22,757         

316 - Population Health Management -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   

616 - Disease Management 32,453 29,912 37,220 29,802 29,065 28,513

320 - Provider Network Management 304,995 273,211 231,758 274,082 295,300 262,297

330 - Member Services 567,625 586,939 545,846 622,842 566,155 559,817

340 - Corporate Services 561,450 559,640 535,874 586,682 567,567 540,444

360 - Audit & Investigative Services 68,976 83,366 38,089 60,406 61,212 61,445

410 - Advertising Media 27,368 39,637 81,326 55,258 21,513 152,571

420 - Sales/Marketing/Public Relations 53,401 69,703 46,252 65,999 51,803 57,056

510 - Human Resourses 281,636 228,332 179,367 198,772 203,371 220,199

Total Department Expenses 4,349,162     4,479,707     3,932,309     4,484,531     4,456,175     4,462,215     

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSE ADJUSTMENT 18,296         (271,318)      57,294         (5,010)          (215)             (63,654)        

Total Administrative Expenses 4,367,458 4,208,389 3,989,603 4,479,521 4,455,960 4,398,561

JANUARY    
2021

FEBRUARY    
2021

MARCH        
2021

APRIL           
2021

MAY              
2021

JUNE              
2021

KHS1/24/2022
Management Use Only Page 16

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

211 / 300



KERN  HEALTH  SYSTEMS

MEDI-CAL

SCHEDULE OF ADMIN EXPENSES BY DEPT BY MONTH 
FOR THE MONTH ENDED NOVEMBER 30, 2021

110 - Executive 361,179 347,546 484,965 482,602 393,580 4,314,037

210 - Accounting 202,043 228,799 196,234 213,569 190,753 2,151,926

220 - Management Information Systems (MIS) 325,601 386,243 328,212 342,882 385,122 3,957,656

221 - Business Intelligence 14,545 11,545 11,602 11,794 11,546 143,635        

222 - Enterprise Development 253,485 225,132 261,069 244,312 217,197 2,668,914

225 - Infrastructure 459,826 393,273 374,951 372,602 573,033 4,440,981

230 - Claims 539,331 558,400 653,741 510,500 546,377 5,999,959

240 - Project Management 160,413 89,609 93,857 96,574 53,063 1,279,045

310 - Health Services - Utilization Management 91,643 121,643 111,276 112,888 111,298 1,185,586

311 - Health Services - Quality Improvement 25,067 5,726 19,122 85,753 23,180 281,697

312 - Health Services - Education -                   -                   -                      -                      -                      59                 

313- Pharmacy 150,515 155,464 155,452 157,190 158,204 1,651,822

314 - Health Homes -                   -                   35                    -                      95                    4,355            

315 - Case Management 25,548          22,605 31,573 (9,699) -                      209,565

316 - Population Health Management -                   -                   -                      -                      38,981 38,981

616 - Disease Management 30,175 30,230 27,472 (14,009) -                      260,833

320 - Provider Network Management 286,715 280,971 294,114 284,682 313,414 3,101,539

330 - Member Services 624,470 570,700 614,787 628,618 721,826 6,609,625

340 - Corporate Services 620,533 709,892 514,089 586,016 928,414 6,710,601

360 - Audit & Investigative Services 68,450 28,549 39,743 61,247 42,560 614,043

410 - Advertising Media 88,385 11,477 97,203 (10,998) 51,562 615,302

420 - Sales/Marketing/Public Relations 37,987 55,545 56,141 67,695 87,412 648,994

510 - Human Resourses 236,479 229,645 247,924 344,386 204,829 2,574,940

Total Department Expenses 4,602,390     4,462,994     4,613,562        4,568,604        5,052,446        49,464,095   

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSE ADJUSTMENT (1,674)          (2,367)          3,540               300                  77,569             (187,239)      

Total Administrative Expenses 4,600,716 4,460,627 4,617,102 4,568,904 5,130,015 49,276,856

YEAR TO 
DATE             
2021

JULY              
2021

AUGUST              
2021

SEPTEMBER              
2021

OCTOBER              
2021

NOVEMBER              
2021

KHS1/24/2022
Management Use Only Page 17

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

212 / 300



KERN HEALTH SYSTEMS
GROUP HEALTH PLAN - HFAM
BALANCE SHEET STATEMENT

AS OF NOVEMBER 30, 2021
ASSETS NOVEMBER 2021 OCTOBER 2021 INC(DEC)

CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,138,351$                  1,138,351$                  -                          

Interest Receivable 560                              280                               280                      
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 1,138,911$                  1,138,631$                  280$                    

LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION 
CURRENT LIABILITIES:

Other Liabilities -                                   -                                   -                          
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES -$                            -$                             -$                    

NET POSITION:
Net Position- Beg. of Year 1,138,066 1,138,066 -                          

Increase (Decrease) in Net Position - Current Year 845                              565                               280                      
Total Net Position 1,138,911$                  1,138,631$                  280$                    

          TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION 1,138,911$                  1,138,631$                  280$                    

KHS1/24/2022
Management Use Only Page 18

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

213 / 300



KERN HEALTH SYSTEMS
GROUP HEALTH PLAN - HFAM

CURRENT MONTH
STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENSES, AND 

CHANGES IN NET POSITION YEAR-TO-DATE
ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE FOR THE MONTH ENDED NOVEMBER 30, 2021 ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE

E N R O L L M E N T

-                   -                 -                     M e m b e r s -                   -                 -                     

R E V E N U E S

-                   -                 -                     Premium -                   -                 -                     
280              -                 280                I n t e r e s t 3,408 -                 3,408

-                   -                 -                     Other Investment Income (2,563)          -                 (2,563)            

280              -                 280                TOTAL  REVENUES 845 -                 845

E X P E N S E S

Medical Costs
-                   -                 -                     IBNR and Paid Claims Adjustment -                   -                 -                     
-                   -                 -                     Total Medical Costs -                   -                 -                     

280              -                 280                GROSS MARGIN 845 -                 845

Administrative
-                   -                 -                        Management Fee Expense and Other Admin Exp -                   -                 -                     
-                   -                 -                     Total  Administrative Expenses -                   -                 -                     

-                   -                 -                     TOTAL  EXPENSES -                   -                 -                     

280              -                 280                OPERATING  INCOME (LOSS) 845 -                 845

-                   -                 -                     TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSES) -                   -                 -                     

280              -                 280                NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET POSITION 845 -                 845

0% 0% 0% MEDICAL LOSS RATIO 0% 0% 0%

0% 0% 0% ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSE RATIO 0% 0% 0%

KHS1/24/2022
Management Use Only Page 19

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

214 / 300



KERN HEALTH SYSTEMS 

MONTHLY MEMBERS COUNT

KERN HEALTH SYSTEMS

2021 MEMBER

MEDI-CAL        MONTHS JAN'21 FEB'21 MAR'21 APR'21 MAY'21 JUN'21 JUL'21 AUG'21 SEP'21 OCT'21 NOV'21

ADULT AND FAMILY  
ADULT 602,191 51,548 53,449 52,941 53,378 54,092 54,867 55,250 55,691 56,542 56,931 57,502
CHILD  1,470,346 131,669 126,764 133,240 133,228 133,944 134,540 134,904 134,848 135,535 135,746 135,928
SUB-TOTAL ADULT & FAMILY 2,072,537 183,217 180,213 186,181 186,606 188,036 189,407 190,154 190,539 192,077 192,677 193,430

OTHER MEMBERS

PARTIAL DUALS - FAMILY 6,908 403 523 529 576 563 576 594 673 809 831 831
PARTIAL DUALS - CHILD -1 0 -1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
PARTIAL DUALS - BCCTP 34 2 2 2 2 2 4 4 4 4 4 4
BCCTP - TABACCO SETTLEMENT 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

FULL DUALS (SPD)
SPD FULL DUALS 85,253 7,484 7,591 7,505 7,523 7,635 7,640 7,814 7,739 8,069 8,062 8,191

SUBTOTAL OTHER MEMBERS 92,194 7,889 8,115 8,036 8,101 8,200 8,220 8,412 8,416 8,882 8,897 9,026

TOTAL FAMILY & OTHER 2,164,731 191,106 188,328 194,217 194,707 196,236 197,627 198,566 198,955 200,959 201,574 202,456

SPD
SPD (AGED AND DISABLED) 176,424 16,011 18,829 15,328 15,870 15,756 15,645 15,800 15,749 15,775 15,821 15,840

MEDI-CAL EXPANSION
ACA Expansion Adult-Citizen 818,929 70,649 69,251 72,532 73,089 74,161 74,905 75,451 76,525 77,016 77,595 77,755
ACA Expansion Duals 10,157 751 472 895 921 1,046 1,132 1,163 1,042 922 875 938
SUB-TOTAL MED-CAL EXPANSION 829,086 71,400 69,723 73,427 74,010 75,207 76,037 76,614 77,567 77,938 78,470 78,693

TOTAL KAISER 129,946 11,047 11,196 11,349 11,505 11,692 11,852 11,983 12,108 12,250 12,417 12,547

TOTAL MEDI-CAL MEMBERS 3,300,187 289,564 288,076 294,321 296,092 298,891 301,161 302,963 304,379 306,922 308,282 309,536

Page 20

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

215 / 300





N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

A
P

 V
e

n
d

o
r 

R
e

p
o

rt
 

 

A
m

o
u

n
ts

 o
v
e

r 
$

1
0

,0
0

0
.0

0

V
e
n

d
o

r 
 

N
o

.
  
  
  
  
V

e
n

d
o

r 
N

a
m

e
C

u
rr

e
n

t 
M

o
n

th
Y

e
a
r-

to
-D

a
te

  
  
  
  
  
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

  
D

e
p

a
rt

m
e
n

t

T
1

0
4

5
K

A
IS

E
R

 F
O

U
N

D
A

T
IO

N
 H

E
A

L
T

H
 -

 H
M

O
 

4
4

0
,6

8
5

.4
5

4
,7

7
6

,4
3

0
.2

8
N

O
V

.,
 2

0
2

1
 E

M
P

L
O

Y
E

E
 H

M
O

 H
E

A
L

T
H

 B
E

N
E

F
IT

S
 P

R
E

M
IU

M
V

A
R

IO
U

S

T
4

6
9

9
Z

E
O

M
E

G
A

 *
**

*
3

9
5

,5
0

8
.9

8
4

9
4

,2
3

7
.4

5
A

U
G

.,
 S

E
P

T
.,
 O

C
T

. 
&

 N
O

V
. 
2

0
2

1
 P

R
O

F
E

S
S

IO
N

A
L

 

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 &

 A
N

N
U

A
L

 L
IC

E
N

S
E

 A
N

D
 M

&
S

 F
E

E
S

V
A

R
IO

U
S

T
1

8
4

5
D

E
P

A
R

T
M

E
N

T
 O

F
 M

A
N

A
G

E
D

 H
E

A
L

T
H

 C
A

R
E

 *
**

*
2

8
4

,9
5

5
.0

6
5

9
5

,8
2

9
.9

1
2

N
D

 &
 F

IN
A

L
 P

A
Y

M
E

N
T

 2
0

2
1

 M
C

A
L

 A
N

N
U

A
L

 

A
S

S
E

S
S

M
E

N
T

 F
E

E
S

  

A
D

M
IN

IS
T

R
A

T
IO

N

T
4

3
5

0
C

O
M

P
U

T
E

R
 E

N
T

E
R

P
R

IS
E

 I
N

C
.

2
5

9
,7

6
8

.7
2

2
,5

2
5

,7
2

1
.6

5
O

C
T

.,
 N

O
V

. 
2

0
2

1
  
P

R
O

F
E

S
S

IO
N

A
L

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 /
 

C
O

N
S

U
L

T
IN

G
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

 

V
A

R
IO

U
S

T
4

6
9

5
E

D
IF

E
C

S
, 
IN

C
 *

**
*

2
0

6
,7

3
8

.0
7

2
1

4
,3

4
3

.0
7

A
N

N
U

A
L

 T
S

M
 M

A
IN

T
E

N
A

N
C

E
 R

E
N

E
W

A
L

M
IS

 I
N

F
R

A
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

T
4

2
3

7
F

L
U

ID
E

D
G

E
 C

O
N

S
U

L
T

IN
G

, 
IN

C
.

1
7

4
,9

8
4

.4
0

1
,2

2
2

,2
0

3
.9

0
O

C
T

. 
2

0
2

1
 C

O
N

S
U

L
T

IN
G

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
/U

P
D

A
T

E
 T

O
 

S
T

A
N

D
A

R
D

 B
U

S
IN

E
S

S
 R

E
P

O
R

T
IN

G
-C

A
L

A
IM

 E
X

P
A

N
S

IO
N

V
A

R
IO

U
S

T
5

3
7

7
T

E
L

E
H

E
A

L
T

H
D

O
C

S
 M

E
D

IC
A

L
 G

R
O

U
P

 *
**

*
1

4
0

,9
5

2
.5

7
1

4
0

,9
5

2
.5

7
O

C
T

. 
2

0
2

1
-2

0
2

2
 P

R
O

V
ID

E
R

 G
R

A
N

T
 P

R
O

G
R

A
M

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 G
R

A
N

T
S

 

T
5

4
1

3
P

H
IL

IP
P

 R
A

M
O

N
 M

E
L

E
N

D
E

Z
 M

D
 *

**
*

1
2

6
,1

3
7

.5
7

1
2

6
,1

3
7

.5
7

2
0

2
1

-2
0

2
2

 P
R

O
V

ID
E

R
 G

R
A

N
T

 P
R

O
G

R
A

M
C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
 G

R
A

N
T

S
 

T
2

7
2

6
D

S
T

 P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

 S
O

L
U

T
IO

N
S

, 
IN

C
.

1
2

4
,6

1
4

.1
2

1
,2

8
2

,9
6

0
.5

6
O

C
T

. 
2

0
2

1
 P

H
A

R
M

A
C

Y
 C

L
A

IM
S

P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

T
4

0
5

9
K

E
R

N
 V

A
L

L
E

Y
 H

E
A

L
T

H
C

A
R

E
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
 *

**
*

8
0

,7
4

3
.3

5
8

0
,7

4
3

.3
5

O
C

T
. 
2

0
2

1
-2

0
2

2
 P

R
O

V
ID

E
R

 G
R

A
N

T
 P

R
O

G
R

A
M

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 G
R

A
N

T
S

 

T
2

4
8

8
T

H
E

 L
IN

C
O

L
N

 N
A

T
IO

N
A

L
 L

IF
E

 I
N

S
U

R
A

N
C

E
 

6
9

,2
4

6
.5

7
7

6
0

,2
1

5
.5

3
N

O
V

. 
2

0
2

1
 V

O
L

U
N

T
A

R
Y

 L
IF

E
, 
A

D
&

D
, 
D

E
N

T
A

L
 I
N

S
U

R
A

N
C

E
V

A
R

IO
U

S

T
1

1
8

0
L

A
N

G
U

A
G

E
 L

IN
E

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 I
N

C
. 

6
2

,0
1

5
.7

3
5

6
0

,5
2

1
.1

9
O

C
T

. 
2

0
2

1
 I
N

T
E

R
P

R
E

T
A

T
IO

N
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

 
U

T
IL

IZ
A

T
IO

N
 M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T
 -

 H
E

T
5

3
9

8
G

O
L

D
E

N
 E

M
P

IR
E

 G
L

E
A

N
E

R
S

 *
**

*
5

5
,0

0
0

.0
0

5
5

,0
0

0
.0

0
S

E
P

T
. 
2

0
2

1
-2

0
2

2
  
P

R
O

V
ID

E
R

 G
R

A
N

T
 P

R
O

G
R

A
M

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 G
R

A
N

T
S

 

1
 o

f 
4

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

217 / 300



N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

A
P

 V
e

n
d

o
r 

R
e

p
o

rt
 

 

A
m

o
u

n
ts

 o
v
e

r 
$

1
0

,0
0

0
.0

0

V
e
n

d
o

r 
 

N
o

.
  
  
  
  
V

e
n

d
o

r 
N

a
m

e
C

u
rr

e
n

t 
M

o
n

th
Y

e
a
r-

to
-D

a
te

  
  
  
  
  
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

  
D

e
p

a
rt

m
e
n

t

T
5

3
7

6
K

C
H

C
C

 *
**

*
5

3
,4

1
8

.0
0

7
8

,4
1

8
.0

0
S

E
P

T
. 
- 

D
E

C
. 
2

0
2

1
 C

O
V

ID
-1

9
 V

A
C

C
IN

E
 C

A
M

P
A

IG
N

H
E

A
L

T
H

 E
D

U
C

A
T

IO
N

T
4

1
6

5
S

H
I 
IN

T
E

R
N

A
T

IO
N

A
L

 C
O

. 
 

4
7

,1
0

7
.2

2
2

0
8

,5
8

4
.4

6
2

0
2

1
-2

0
2

2
 V

M
W

A
R

E
 S

U
P

P
O

R
T

 R
E

N
E

W
A

L
M

IS
 I
N

F
R

A
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

T
4

5
8

2
H

E
A

L
T

H
X

, 
IN

C
.

4
1

,5
7

6
.0

0
4

6
5

,3
3

6
.0

0
N

O
V

. 
2

0
2

1
 M

A
IN

T
E

N
A

N
C

E
 A

N
D

 S
U

P
P

O
R

T
 F

E
E

S
 -

 

P
R

O
V

ID
E

R
 A

N
D

 M
E

M
B

E
R

 P
O

R
T

A
L

M
IS

 I
N

F
R

A
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

T
4

7
2

2
C

O
G

N
IZ

A
N

T
 T

R
IZ

E
T

T
O

 S
O

F
T

W
A

R
E

 G
R

O
U

P
, 
IN

C
.

4
0

,2
9

8
.5

4
4

6
5

,8
8

3
.2

4
O

C
T

. 
2

0
2

1
 P

R
O

F
E

S
S

IO
N

A
L

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 

V
A

R
IO

U
S

T
5

0
0

5
C

R
A

Y
O

N
 S

O
F

T
W

A
R

E
 E

X
P

E
R

T
S

 L
L

C
 

3
9

,0
2

6
.8

3
8

3
5

,4
2

2
.4

1
S

E
P

T
. 
2

0
2

1
 E

S
D

 A
Z

U
R

E
 O

V
E

R
A

G
E

M
IS

 I
N

F
R

A
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

T
5

4
1

2
D

IA
G

E
N

IX
 C

O
R

P
O

R
A

T
IO

N
 *

**
*

3
4

,3
5

8
.4

0
3

4
,3

5
8

.4
0

2
0

2
1

-2
0

2
4

 N
U

A
N

C
E

 S
O

F
T

W
A

R
E

 S
U

P
P

O
R

T
 &

 

M
A

IN
T

E
N

A
N

C
E

M
IS

 I
N

F
R

A
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

T
4

4
9

6
V

O
X

 N
E

T
W

O
R

K
 S

O
L

U
T

IO
N

S
, 
IN

C
 *

**
*

3
3

,2
6

2
.6

0
4

7
,9

6
5

.9
9

Y
R

 3
 T

E
L

S
T

R
A

T
 L

IC
E

N
S

E
 R

E
N

E
W

A
L

M
IS

 I
N

F
R

A
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

T
2

4
5

8
H

E
A

L
T

H
C

A
R

E
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L

, 
IN

C
 *

**
*

3
3

,0
0

0
.0

0
3

6
3

,0
0

0
.0

0
S

E
P

T
. 
&

 O
C

T
. 
2

0
2

1
 P

R
O

F
E

S
S

IO
N

A
L

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
A

D
M

IN
IS

T
R

A
T

IO
N

T
5

3
2

1
T

Y
K

 T
E

C
H

N
O

L
O

G
IE

S
 L

T
D

 *
**

*
3

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

3
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
2

0
2

1
-2

0
2

2
 T

Y
K

 S
O

L
U

T
IO

N
 L

IC
E

N
S

E
M

IS
 I
N

F
R

A
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

T
4

1
9

3
S

T
R

IA
 L

L
C

  
2

6
,2

2
6

.4
2

2
8

6
,3

2
4

.9
5

O
C

T
. 
2

0
2

1
 O

C
R

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 A

N
D

 P
R

O
F

E
S

S
IO

N
A

L
 

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
  

V
A

R
IO

U
S

T
4

7
3

3
U

N
IT

E
D

 S
T

A
F

F
IN

G
 A

S
S

O
C

IA
T

E
S

2
4

,5
8

3
.8

4
2

3
2

,5
3

2
.7

8
O

C
T

. 
2

0
2

1
 T

E
M

P
O

R
A

R
Y

 H
E

L
P

  
- 

(7
) 

M
S

; 
(1

) 
H

H
P

; 
(1

) 
H

E
; 

(1
) 

U
M

V
A

R
IO

U
S

T
4

5
3

8
C

H
A

N
G

E
 H

E
A

L
T

H
C

A
R

E
 S

O
L

U
T

IO
N

S
, 
L

L
C

2
4

,5
1

0
.8

0
2

6
1

,2
8

2
.7

9
O

C
T

. 
2

0
2

1
 E

D
I 
C

L
A

IM
 P

R
O

C
E

S
S

IN
G

  
(E

M
D

E
O

N
)

C
L

A
IM

S

T
5

1
4

5
C

C
S

 E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
IN

G
 F

R
E

S
N

O
 I
N

C
2

4
,4

1
2

.0
0

1
8

4
,9

7
3

.2
6

O
C

T
. 
&

  
N

O
V

. 
2

0
2

1
 J

A
N

IT
O

R
IA

L
 &

 A
D

D
IT

IO
N

A
L

 D
A

Y
 

P
O

R
T

E
R

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

T
1

1
2

8
H

A
L

L
 L

E
T

T
E

R
 S

H
O

P
 *

**
*

2
3

,1
0

3
.5

0
1

2
1

,5
1

1
.3

0
M

E
M

B
E

R
 C

O
V

ID
 -

1
9

 F
L

Y
E

R
 &

 M
A

IL
 P

R
E

P
 &

 N
E

W
 M

E
M

B
E

R
 

P
A

C
K

E
T

S

V
A

R
IO

U
S

T
4

5
3

7
B

U
R

K
E

, 
W

IL
L

IA
M

S
 &

 S
O

R
E

N
S

E
N

, 
L

L
P

 *
**

*
2

2
,8

3
2

.0
0

2
2

,8
3

2
.0

0
A

U
G

. 
&

 S
E

P
T

. 
2

0
2

1
 L

E
G

A
L

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
A

D
M

IN
IS

T
R

A
T

IO
N

T
5

0
7

6
 

M
E

R
ID

IA
N

 H
E

A
L

T
H

 S
Y

S
T

E
M

S
, 
P

.C
. 

2
2

,7
5

0
.0

0
1

9
6

,6
9

0
.0

0
O

C
T

. 
2

0
2

1
 P

R
O

F
E

S
S

IO
N

A
L

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
U

T
IL

IZ
A

T
IO

N
 M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T
-U

M

2
 o

f 
4

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

218 / 300



N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

A
P

 V
e

n
d

o
r 

R
e

p
o

rt
 

 

A
m

o
u

n
ts

 o
v
e

r 
$

1
0

,0
0

0
.0

0

V
e
n

d
o

r 
 

N
o

.
  
  
  
  
V

e
n

d
o

r 
N

a
m

e
C

u
rr

e
n

t 
M

o
n

th
Y

e
a
r-

to
-D

a
te

  
  
  
  
  
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

  
D

e
p

a
rt

m
e
n

t

T
3

0
1

1
O

F
F

IC
E

 A
L

L
Y

, 
IN

C
2

1
,3

0
6

.2
5

2
1

0
,0

6
9

.0
0

O
C

T
. 
2

0
2

1
  
E

D
I 
C

L
A

IM
 P

R
O

C
E

S
S

IN
G

 
C

L
A

IM
S

T
4

6
5

7
D

A
P

O
N

D
E

 S
IM

P
S

O
N

 R
O

W
E

 P
C

 
2

0
,5

1
6

.0
0

1
5

2
,0

0
5

.0
0

S
E

P
T

. 
2

0
2

1
 L

E
G

A
L

 F
E

E
S

V
A

R
IO

U
S

T
5

2
1

5
R

IC
H

A
R

D
 G

A
R

C
IA

 *
**

*
2

0
,4

7
5

.0
0

3
2

,5
5

0
.0

0
A

U
G

.,
 S

E
P

T
. 
&

 O
C

T
. 
2

0
2

1
 P

R
O

F
E

S
S

IO
N

A
L

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
U

T
IL

IZ
A

T
IO

N
 M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T
-U

M

T
2

5
8

4
U

N
IT

E
D

 S
T

A
T

E
S

 P
O

S
T

A
L

 S
V

C
. 
- 

H
A

S
L

E
R

 *
**

*
2

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

2
0

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

R
E

P
L

E
N

IS
H

 P
O

S
T

A
G

E
 (

P
E

R
M

IT
) 

F
U

N
D

S
C

O
R

P
O

R
A

T
E

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S

T
4

4
6

0
P

A
Y

S
P

A
N

, 
IN

C
 

1
7

,2
0

9
.2

3
1

9
1

,6
2

1
.2

1
O

C
T

. 
2

0
2

1
 E

L
E

C
T

R
O

N
IC

 C
L

A
IM

S
/P

A
Y

M
E

N
T

S
F

IN
A

N
C

E

T
4

2
6

1
K

A
IS

E
R

 F
O

U
N

D
A

T
IO

N
 H

E
A

L
T

H
 P

L
A

N
-T

X
 P

P
O

1
7

,0
9

2
.6

0
1

2
7

,0
6

3
.0

4
N

O
V

. 
2

0
2

1
 E

M
P

L
O

Y
E

E
 P

P
O

 H
E

A
L

T
H

 B
E

N
E

F
IT

S
 P

R
E

M
IU

M
V

A
R

IO
U

S

T
4

6
5

2
B

A
K

E
R

S
F

IE
L

D
 S

Y
M

P
H

O
N

Y
 O

R
C

H
E

S
T

R
A

 *
**

*
1

6
,6

6
6

.6
6

4
1

,6
6

6
.6

7
O

C
T

. 
&

 N
O

V
. 
2

0
2

1
 S

P
O

N
S

O
R

S
H

IP
A

D
M

IN
IS

T
R

A
T

IO
N

T
5

0
2

2
S

V
A

M
 I
N

T
E

R
N

A
T

IO
N

A
L

 I
N

C
1

6
,5

3
0

.0
0

2
9

1
,6

8
6

.0
0

O
C

T
. 
2

0
2

1
 P

R
O

F
E

S
S

IO
N

A
L

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
/U

P
D

A
T

E
 T

O
 

S
T

A
N

D
A

R
D

 B
U

S
IN

E
S

S
 R

E
P

O
R

T
IN

G

IT
 B

U
S

IN
E

S
S

 I
N

T
E

L
L

IG
E

N
C

E

T
5

3
2

2
M

A
N

IN
D

E
R

 K
H

A
L

S
A

1
6

, 5
1

0
.0

0
1

0
7

, 1
0

0
.5

0
O

C
T

. 
2

0
2

1
 P

R
O

F
E

S
S

IO
N

A
L

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
U

T
IL

IZ
A

T
IO

N
 M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T
-U

M

T
2

1
6

7
P

G
&

E
  

1
6

,4
3

9
.7

4
2

4
9

,3
5

5
.4

1
N

O
V

. 
2

0
2

1
 U

S
A

G
E

 /
 U

T
IL

IT
IE

S
C

O
R

P
O

R
A

T
E

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S

T
5

3
8

9
A

D
A

K
C

 *
**

*
1

6
,1

5
9

.9
8

2
0

,2
9

6
.0

3
2

0
2

1
-2

0
2

2
 P

R
O

V
ID

E
R

 G
R

A
N

T
 P

R
O

G
R

A
M

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 G
R

A
N

T
S

 

T
1

4
0

8
D

E
L

L
 M

A
R

K
E

T
IN

G
 L

.P
. 
 

1
4

,3
4

4
.1

5
1

7
4

,3
3

9
.7

2
S

U
P

P
O

R
T

 &
 M

A
IN

T
E

N
A

N
C

E
 F

O
R

 1
1

 P
O

W
E

R
E

D
G

E
 M

6
3

0
 

B
L

A
D

E
 S

E
R

V
E

R
S

M
IS

 I
N

F
R

A
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

 

T
4

4
8

3
IN

F
U

S
IO

N
 A

N
D

 C
L

IN
IC

A
L

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
, 
IN

C
 *

**
*

1
3

,0
6

5
.0

5
2

0
6

,3
0

0
.7

7
A

U
G

. 
2

0
2

1
 H

E
A

L
T

H
 H

O
M

E
S

 G
R

A
N

T
C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
 G

R
A

N
T

T
4

5
0

1
A

L
L

IE
D

 U
N

IV
E

R
S

A
L

 S
E

C
U

R
IT

Y
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

 
1

2
,7

0
5

.8
0

1
5

6
,4

4
7

.8
7

O
C

T
. 
&

 N
O

V
. 
2

0
2

1
 O

N
S

IT
E

 S
E

C
U

R
IT

Y
C

O
R

P
O

R
A

T
E

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S

T
1

0
0

5
C

O
L

O
N

IA
L

 L
IF

E
 &

 A
C

C
ID

E
N

T
  

1
1

,7
6

7
.0

4
1

3
1

,8
0

7
.3

3
O

C
T

. 
2

0
2

1
 L

IF
E

 I
N

S
U

R
A

N
C

E
 P

R
E

M
IU

M
V

A
R

IO
U

S

3
 o

f 
4

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

219 / 300



N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

A
P

 V
e

n
d

o
r 

R
e

p
o

rt
 

 

A
m

o
u

n
ts

 o
v
e

r 
$

1
0

,0
0

0
.0

0

V
e
n

d
o

r 
 

N
o

.
  
  
  
  
V

e
n

d
o

r 
N

a
m

e
C

u
rr

e
n

t 
M

o
n

th
Y

e
a
r-

to
-D

a
te

  
  
  
  
  
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

  
D

e
p

a
rt

m
e
n

t

T
4

9
5

9
B

E
R

K
S

H
IR

E
 H

A
T

H
A

W
A

Y
 H

O
M

E
S

T
A

T
E

 C
O

M
P

A
N

IE
S

 *
**

*
1

1
,1

5
3

.0
0

1
1

,3
8

4
.0

0
2

0
2

0
 -

 2
0

2
1

 W
O

R
K

E
R

S
 C

O
M

P
 F

IN
A

L
 A

U
D

IT
V

A
R

IO
U

S

T
4

1
8

2
T

H
E

 L
A

M
A

R
 C

O
M

P
A

N
IE

S
**

**
1

0
,6

1
5

.0
0

6
3

,1
9

0
.0

0
O

C
T

. 
&

 N
O

V
. 
2

0
2

1
 B

IL
L

B
O

A
R

D
S

M
A

R
K

E
T

IN
G

T
4

4
7

6
K

E
R

N
 P

A
R

T
N

E
R

S
H

IP
 F

O
R

 C
H

IL
D

R
E

N
 A

N
D

 F
A

M
IL

IE
S

 *
**

*
1

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

1
2

,0
0

0
.0

0
H

O
L

ID
A

Y
 C

O
T

T
A

G
E

 S
P

O
N

S
O

R
S

H
IP

M
A

R
K

E
T

IN
G

T
5

3
1

8
C

A
N

O
N

IC
A

L
 G

R
O

U
P

 L
IM

IT
E

D
 *

**
*

1
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
1

7
,5

0
0

.0
0

2
0

2
0

 -
 2

0
2

1
 U

A
 I
N

F
R

A
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

 L
IC

E
N

S
E

M
IS

 I
N

F
R

A
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

 

3
,2

3
4

,3
7

2
.2

4

T
O

T
A

L
 V

E
N

D
O

R
S

 O
V

E
R

 $
1

0
,0

0
0

3
, 2

3
4

,3
7

2
.2

4

T
O

T
A

L
 V

E
N

D
O

R
S

 U
N

D
E

R
 $

1
0

,0
0

0
  

2
4

3
,6

8
4

.4
5

T
O

T
A

L
 V

E
N

D
O

R
 E

X
P

E
N

S
E

S
- 

N
O

V
E

M
B

E
R

3
,4

7
8

,0
5

6
.6

9
$

  
  
  
  
  
 

N
o

te
:

**
**

N
e

w
 v

e
n

d
o

rs
 o

v
e

r 
$

1
0

,0
0

0
 f

o
r 

th
e

 m
o

n
th

 o
f 

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r

4
 o

f 
4

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

220 / 300



  
  
 Y

e
a

r 
to

  
D

a
te

 A
P

 V
e

n
d

o
r 

R
e

p
o

rt
 

  
  
 A

m
o

u
n

ts
 o

v
e

r 
$

1
0

,0
0

0
.0

0

V
e
n

d
o

r 
 

N
o

.
V

e
n

d
o

r 
N

a
m

e
Y

e
a

r-
to

 D
a

te
  

  
  

  
  

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
  

D
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

t

T
1
0
4
5

K
A

IS
E

R
 F

O
U

N
D

A
T

IO
N

 H
E

A
L
T

H
 -

 H
M

O
4
,7

7
6
,4

3
0
.2

8
E

M
P

L
O

Y
E

E
 H

M
O

 H
E

A
L
T

H
 B

E
N

E
F

IT
S

 P
R

E
M

IU
M

V
A

R
IO

U
S

T
1
0
0
1

K
E

R
N

 M
E

D
IC

A
L
 C

E
N

T
E

R
3
, 7

3
0
,6

7
3
.4

9
2
0
1
9
/2

0
2
0
 P

R
O

V
ID

E
R

 Q
U

A
L
IT

Y
 C

A
R

E
 G

R
A

N
T

 &
  

2
0
2
1
/2

0
2
2
 

P
R

O
V

ID
E

R
 G

R
A

N
T

 P
R

O
G

R
A

M
C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
 G

R
A

N
T

S
 

T
4
3
5
0

C
O

M
P

U
T

E
R

 E
N

T
E

R
P

R
IS

E
 I
N

C
.

2
,5

2
5
,7

2
1
.6

5
P

R
O

F
E

S
S

IO
N

A
L
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

 /
 C

O
N

S
U

L
T

IN
G

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 

C
A

P
IT

A
L
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

T
4
9
8
2

N
G

C
 U

S
, 

L
L
C

1
,6

7
6
,2

7
0
.8

7
P

R
E

F
U

N
D

 H
E

A
L
T

H
 E

D
U

C
A

T
IO

N
 M

E
M

B
E

R
 I
N

C
E

N
T

IV
E

S
H

E
A

L
T

H
 E

D
U

C
A

T
IO

N

T
2
7
0
4

M
C

G
 H

E
A

L
T

H
 L

L
C

1
,6

4
8
,9

0
9
.8

8
H

E
A

L
T

H
 C

A
R

E
 M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T
 &

 S
O

F
T

W
A

R
E

 L
IC

E
N

S
E

  
8
/5

/2
0
2
1
 -

0
8
/0

4
/2

0
2
2

U
T

IL
IZ

A
T

IO
N

 M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

T
2
7
2
6

D
S

T
 P

H
A

R
M

A
C

Y
 S

O
L
U

T
IO

N
S

, 
IN

C
.

1
,2

8
2
,9

6
0
.5

6
P

H
A

R
M

A
C

Y
 C

L
A

IM
S

P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

T
4
2
3
7

F
L
U

ID
E

D
G

E
 C

O
N

S
U

L
T

IN
G

, 
IN

C
.

1
,2

2
2
,2

0
3
.9

0
C

O
N

S
U

L
T

IN
G

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
/U

P
D

A
T

E
 T

O
 S

T
A

N
D

A
R

D
 B

U
S

IN
E

S
S

 

R
E

P
O

R
T

IN
G

V
A

R
IO

U
S

T
2
6
8
6

A
L
L
IA

N
T

 I
N

S
U

R
A

N
C

E
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

 I
N

C
.

1
,2

1
0
,7

6
6
.9

0
A

N
N

U
A

L
 I
N

S
U

R
A

N
C

E
 &

 A
C

IP
 C

R
IM

E
 P

R
E

M
IU

M
S

A
D

M
IN

IS
T

R
A

T
IO

N

T
3
1
3
0

O
P

T
U

M
IN

S
IG

H
T

, 
IN

C
.

1
,0

4
3
,1

7
6
.0

0
A

N
N

U
A

L
 L

IC
E

N
S

E
D

 S
O

F
T

W
A

R
E

 E
A

S
Y

G
R

O
U

P
 &

 I
N

C
R

E
M

E
N

T
A

L
 

L
IC

E
N

S
E

M
IS

 I
N

F
R

A
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

T
4
3
9
1

O
M

N
I 
F

A
M

IL
Y

 H
E

A
L
T

H
8
6
0
,8

4
8
.6

0
H

E
A

L
T

H
 H

O
M

E
S

 A
N

D
 P

R
O

V
ID

E
R

 Q
U

A
L
IT

Y
 C

A
R

E
 G

R
A

N
T

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 G
R

A
N

T
S

 

T
5
0
0
5

C
R

A
Y

O
N

 S
O

F
T

W
A

R
E

 E
X

P
E

R
T

S
 L

L
C

8
3
5
,4

2
2
.4

1
AN

N
U

AL
 S

O
FT

W
AR

E 
LI

C
EN

SE
 A

N
D

 E
SD

 A
ZU

R
E 

O
VE

R
AG

E

M

IS
 I
N

F
R

A
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

T
2
4
8
8

T
H

E
 L

IN
C

O
L
N

 N
A

T
IO

N
A

L
 L

IF
E

 I
N

S
U

R
A

N
C

E
7
6
0
,2

1
5
.5

3
VO

LU
N

TA
R

Y 
LI

FE
, A

D
&D

, D
EN

TA
L 

IN
SU

R
AN

C
E 

PR
EM

IU
M



V

A
R

IO
U

S

T
1
8
4
5

D
E

P
A

R
T

M
E

N
T

 O
F

 M
A

N
A

G
E

D
 H

E
A

L
T

H
 C

A
R

E
5
9
5
,8

2
9
.9

1
2
0
2
1
-2

0
2
2
 M

C
A

L
 A

N
N

U
A

L
 A

S
S

E
S

S
M

E
N

T
A

D
M

IN
IS

T
R

A
T

IO
N

T
1
1
8
0

L
A

N
G

U
A

G
E

 L
IN

E
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

 I
N

C
.

5
6
0
,5

2
1
.1

9
I N

T
E

R
P

R
E

T
A

T
IO

N
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

M
E

M
B

E
R

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S

1
 o

f 
 1

2

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

221 / 300



  
  
 Y

e
a

r 
to

  
D

a
te

 A
P

 V
e

n
d

o
r 

R
e

p
o

rt
 

  
  
 A

m
o

u
n

ts
 o

v
e

r 
$

1
0

,0
0

0
.0

0

V
e
n

d
o

r 
 

N
o

.
V

e
n

d
o

r 
N

a
m

e
Y

e
a

r-
to

 D
a

te
  

  
  

  
  

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
  

D
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

t

T
4
6
9
9

Z
e
O

M
E

G
A

, 
IN

C
.

4
9
4
,2

3
7
.4

5
P

R
O

F
E

S
S

IO
N

A
L
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

 A
N

D
 T

R
A

V
E

L
 E

X
P

. 
U

T
IL

IZ
A

T
IO

N
 M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T
  

T
4
7
2
2

C
O

G
N

IZ
A

N
T

 T
R

IZ
E

T
T

O
 S

O
F

T
W

A
R

E
 G

R
O

U
P

, 
IN

C
.

4
6
5
,8

8
3
.2

4
P

R
O

F
E

S
S

IO
N

A
L
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

 
V

A
R

IO
U

S

T
4
5
8
2

H
E

A
L
T

H
X

, 
IN

C
.

4
6
5
, 3

3
6
.0

0
M

A
IN

T
E

N
A

N
C

E
 A

N
D

 S
U

P
P

O
R

T
 F

E
E

S
 -

 P
R

O
V

ID
E

R
 A

N
D

 M
E

M
B

E
R

 

P
O

R
T

A
L

M
IS

 I
N

F
R

A
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

T
2
4
5
8

H
E

A
L
T

H
C

A
R

E
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L
, 

IN
C

.
3
6
3
,0

0
0
.0

0
P

R
O

F
E

S
S

IO
N

A
L
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

A
D

M
IN

IS
T

R
A

T
IO

N

T
5
1
0
9

R
A

N
D

 E
M

P
L
O

Y
M

E
N

T
 S

O
L
U

T
IO

N
S

3
4
2
,8

1
0
.3

8
T

E
M

P
O

R
A

R
Y

 H
E

L
P

 &
 A

C
A

 I
N

S
U

R
A

N
C

E
V

A
R

IO
U

S

T
5
1
1
1

E
N

T
IS

Y
S

 3
6
0

3
0
6
, 5

8
4
.9

4
A

N
N

U
A

L
 D

IS
A

S
T

E
R

 R
E

C
O

V
E

R
Y

 C
O

N
T

IN
U

IT
Y

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

C
A

P
IT

A
L
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

/M
IS

 

IN
F

R
A

S
T

R
U

C
T

U
R

E

T
5
0
2
2

S
V

A
M

 I
N

T
E

R
N

A
T

IO
N

A
L
 I
N

C
2
9
1
,6

8
6
.0

0
P

R
O

F
E

S
S

IO
N

A
L
  

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
/U

P
D

A
T

E
 T

O
 S

T
A

N
D

A
R

D
 B

U
S

IN
E

S
S

 

R
E

P
O

R
T

IN
G

IT
 B

U
S

IN
E

S
S

 I
N

T
E

L
L
IG

E
N

C
E

T
4
1
9
3

S
T

R
IA

 L
L
C

2
8
6
,3

2
4
.9

5
O

C
R

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 A

N
D

 P
R

O
F

E
S

S
IO

N
A

L
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

  
C

L
A

IM
S

T
4
5
3
8

C
H

A
N

G
E

 H
E

A
L
T

H
C

A
R

E
 S

O
L
U

T
IO

N
S

, 
L
L
C

2
6
1
,2

8
2
.7

9
E

D
I 
C

L
A

IM
 P

R
O

C
E

S
S

IN
G

  
(E

M
D

E
O

N
)

C
L
A

IM
S

T
2
1
6
7

P
G

&
E

2
4
9
,3

5
5
.4

1
U

S
A

G
E

/U
T

IL
IT

IE
S

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

T
4
4
8
3

IN
F

U
S

IO
N

 A
N

D
 C

L
IN

IC
A

L
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

, 
IN

C
.

2
0
6
,3

0
0
.7

7
H

E
A

L
T

H
 H

O
M

E
S

 G
R

A
N

T
C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
 G

R
A

N
T

T
5
3
1
7

P
R

E
S

ID
IO

 N
E

T
W

O
R

K
E

D
 S

O
L
U

T
IO

N
S

 G
R

O
U

P
 L

L
C

.
2
4
1
, 9

1
0
.7

8
N

U
T

A
N

IX
 H

A
R

D
W

A
R

E
 &

 S
O

F
T

W
A

R
E

 -
 S

E
C

U
R

IT
Y

 P
R

O
G

R
A

M
 

A
S

S
E

S
S

M
E

N
T

M
IS

 I
N

F
R

A
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

T
4
7
3
3

U
N

IT
E

D
 S

T
A

F
F

IN
G

 A
S

S
O

C
IA

T
E

S
2
3
2
,5

3
2
.7

8
T

E
M

P
O

R
A

R
Y

 H
E

L
P

 &
 A

C
A

 I
N

S
U

R
A

N
C

E
 

V
A

R
IO

U
S

T
5
2
2
9

D
IG

N
IT

Y
 H

E
A

L
T

H
 M

E
D

IC
A

L
 G

R
O

U
P

 -
 B

A
K

E
R

S
F

IE
L
D

2
1
7
,4

4
2
.8

1
H

E
A

L
T

H
 H

O
M

E
 G

R
A

N
T

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 G
R

A
N

T
S

 

T
4
6
9
5

E
D

IF
E

C
S

, 
IN

C
 *

**
*

2
1
4
,3

4
3
.0

7
A

N
N

U
A

L
 T

S
M

 M
A

IN
T

E
N

A
N

C
E

M
IS

 I
N

F
R

A
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

2
 o

f 
 1

2

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

222 / 300



  
  
 Y

e
a

r 
to

  
D

a
te

 A
P

 V
e

n
d

o
r 

R
e

p
o

rt
 

  
  
 A

m
o

u
n

ts
 o

v
e

r 
$

1
0

,0
0

0
.0

0

V
e
n

d
o

r 
 

N
o

.
V

e
n

d
o

r 
N

a
m

e
Y

e
a

r-
to

 D
a

te
  

  
  

  
  

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
  

D
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

t

T
3
0
1
1

O
F

F
IC

E
 A

L
L
Y

, 
IN

C
.

2
1
0
,0

6
9
.0

0
E

D
I 
C

L
A

IM
 P

R
O

C
E

S
S

IN
G

C
L
A

IM
S

T
4
1
6
5

S
H

I 
IN

T
E

R
N

A
T

IO
N

A
L
  

 C
O

.
2
0
8
,5

8
4
.4

6
S

O
F

T
W

A
R

E
 L

IC
E

N
S

E
S

M
IS

 I
N

F
R

A
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

T
1
8
6
1

C
E

R
ID

IA
N

 H
C

M
, 

IN
C

.
2
0
0
,9

4
8
.2

6
M

O
N

T
H

L
Y

 S
U

B
S

C
R

IP
T

IO
N

 F
E

E
S

/ 
P

R
O

F
E

S
S

IO
N

A
L
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

/ 

D
A

Y
F

O
R

C
E

 H
U

M
A

N
 C

A
P

IT
A

L
 M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T
 

H
U

M
A

N
 R

E
S

O
U

R
C

E
S

T
2
5
8
4

U
N

IT
E

D
 S

T
A

T
E

S
 P

O
S

T
A

L
 S

V
C

.-
H

A
S

L
E

R
2
0
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
P

O
S

T
A

G
E

 (
M

E
T

E
R

) 
F

U
N

D
C

O
R

P
O

R
A

T
E

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S

T
5
0
7
6

M
E

R
ID

IA
N

 H
E

A
L
T

H
 S

Y
S

T
E

M
S

, 
P

.C
.

1
9
6
,6

9
0
.0

0
P

R
O

F
E

S
S

IO
N

A
L
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

U
T

IL
IZ

A
T

IO
N

 M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

T
4
4
6
0

P
A

Y
S

P
A

N
, 

IN
C

1
9
1
,6

2
1
.2

1
E

L
E

C
T

R
O

N
IC

 C
L
A

IM
S

/P
A

Y
M

E
N

T
S

F
IN

A
N

C
E

T
5
3
3
7

C
A

Z
A

D
O

R
 C

O
N

S
U

L
T

IN
G

 G
R

O
U

P
 I
N

C
1
8
6
,1

7
0
.6

8
T

E
M

P
O

R
A

R
Y

 H
E

L
P

V
A

R
IO

U
S

T
5
1
4
5

C
C

S
 E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

IN
G

 F
R

E
S

N
O

 I
N

C
.,

1
8
4
,9

7
3
.2

6
J
A

N
IT

O
R

IA
L
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

T
1
4
0
8

D
E

L
L
 M

A
R

K
E

T
IN

G
 L

.P
.

1
7
4
,3

3
9
.7

2
H

A
R

D
W

A
R

E
 &

 C
O

M
P

U
T

E
R

 E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T

M
IS

 I
N

F
R

A
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

T
4
9
6
7

A
D

M
IN

IS
T

R
A

T
IV

E
 S

O
L
U

T
IO

N
S

, 
IN

C
.

1
5
9
,0

2
8
.0

3
F

S
A

 E
M

P
L
O

Y
E

E
 P

R
E

M
IU

M
 &

 S
E

C
T

IO
N

 1
2
5
 A

D
M

IN
IS

T
R

A
T

IO
N

V
A

R
IO

U
S

T
4
5
0
1

A
L
L
IE

D
 U

N
IV

E
R

S
A

L
 S

E
C

U
R

IT
Y

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
1
5
6
,4

4
7
.8

7
O

N
S

IT
E

 S
E

C
U

R
IT

Y
C

O
R

P
O

R
A

T
E

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S

T
4
3
3
1

C
O

T
IV

IT
I,
 I
N

C
 

1
5
2
,2

3
7
.2

4
C

A
L
IF

O
R

N
IA

 M
E

D
I-

C
A

L
 M

E
D

IC
A

ID
 M

E
A

S
U

R
E

S
 &

 A
N

N
U

A
L
 

L
IC

E
N

S
E

 F
E

E

Q
U

A
L
IT

Y
 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T

3
 o

f 
 1

2

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

223 / 300



  
  
 Y

e
a

r 
to

  
D

a
te

 A
P

 V
e

n
d

o
r 

R
e

p
o

rt
 

  
  
 A

m
o

u
n

ts
 o

v
e

r 
$

1
0

,0
0

0
.0

0

V
e
n

d
o

r 
 

N
o

.
V

e
n

d
o

r 
N

a
m

e
Y

e
a

r-
to

 D
a

te
  

  
  

  
  

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
  

D
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

t

T
4
6
5
7

D
A

P
O

N
D

E
 S

IM
P

S
O

N
 R

O
W

E
 P

C
1
5
2
,0

0
5
.0

0
L
E

G
A

L
 F

E
E

S
V

A
R

IO
U

S

T
1
0
7
1

C
L
IN

IC
A

 S
IE

R
R

A
 V

IS
T

A
 

1
4
3
,4

7
3
.3

0
 2

0
2
1
/2

0
2
2
 P

R
O

V
ID

E
R

 G
R

A
N

T
 P

R
O

G
R

A
M

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 G
R

A
N

T
S

 

T
3
4
4
8

S
Y

N
E

R
G

Y
 H

E
A

L
T

H
C

A
R

E
, 

IN
C

.
1
4
1
,5

0
0
.0

0
A

S
T

H
M

A
 P

R
O

G
R

A
M

 G
R

A
N

T
C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
 G

R
A

N
T

S

T
5
3
7
7

T
E

L
E

H
E

A
L
T

H
D

O
C

S
 M

E
D

IC
A

L
 G

R
O

U
P

 *
**

*
1
4
0
,9

5
2
.5

7
 2

0
2
1
/2

0
2
2
 P

R
O

V
ID

E
R

 G
R

A
N

T
 P

R
O

G
R

A
M

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 G
R

A
N

T
S

 

T
1
0
0
5

C
O

L
O

N
IA

L
 L

IF
E

 &
 A

C
C

ID
E

N
T

 A
T

T
N

  
P

R
E

M
IU

M
 

P
R

O
C

E
S

S
IN

G
1
3
1
,8

0
7
.3

3
E

M
P

L
O

Y
E

E
 P

R
E

M
IU

M
 -

 A
C

C
ID

E
N

T
 &

 C
R

IT
IC

A
L
 I
L
L
N

E
S

S
 

V
A

R
IO

U
S

T
5
3
4
4

S
IG

N
A

T
U

R
E

 S
T

A
F

F
 R

E
S

O
U

R
C

E
S

 L
L
C

1
2
9
,4

4
4
.0

0
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

 M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

 C
O

N
S

U
L
T

IN
G

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

T
4
2
6
1

K
A

I S
E

R
 F

O
U

N
D

A
T

IO
N

 H
E

A
L
T

H
 P

L
A

N
 -

T
X

 P
P

O
1
2
7
, 0

6
3
.0

4
T

X
-P

P
O

 E
M

P
L
O

Y
E

E
 H

E
A

L
T

H
 B

E
N

E
F

IT
S

V
A

R
IO

U
S

T
5
4
1
3

P
H

IL
IP

P
 R

A
M

O
N

 M
E

L
E

N
D

E
Z

 M
D

 *
**

*
1
2
6
, 1

3
7
.5

7
 2

0
2
1
/2

0
2
2
 P

R
O

V
ID

E
R

 G
R

A
N

T
 P

R
O

G
R

A
M

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 G
R

A
N

T
S

 

T
5
3
1
9

C
IT

IU
S

T
E

C
H

 I
N

C
.

1
2
5
,0

0
0
.0

0
C

IT
IU

S
 T

E
C

H
'S

 F
A

S
T

 A
N

D
 I
M

P
L
E

M
E

N
T

A
T

IO
N

 F
E

E
S

M
IS

 I
N

F
R

A
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

T
1
1
2
8

H
A

L
L
 L

E
T

T
E

R
 S

H
O

P
, 

IN
C

.
1
2
1
,5

1
1
.3

0
N

E
W

 M
E

M
B

E
R

 L
E

T
T

E
R

/E
N

V
E

L
O

P
E

S
, 

M
E

M
B

E
R

 H
A

N
D

B
O

O
K

S
, 

C
L
IN

IC
A

L
 C

A
R

E
 M

A
N

U
A

L
 F

O
R

 H
H

, 
N

E
W

 M
E

M
B

E
R

 P
A

C
K

E
T

S
 &

 

P
O

S
T

E
R

S

V
A

R
IO

U
S

T
5
1
8
5

H
O

U
S

IN
G

 A
U

T
H

O
R

IT
Y

 C
O

U
N

T
Y

 O
F

 K
E

R
N

1
1
7
,2

0
0
.0

0
2
0
2
1
 H

O
U

S
IN

G
 A

U
T

H
O

R
IT

Y
 G

R
A

N
T

 
U

T
IL

IZ
A

T
IO

N
 M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T
 -

 U
M

  

W
E

L
L
N

E
S

S

T
1
2
7
2

C
O

F
F

E
Y

 C
O

M
M

U
N

IC
A

T
IO

N
S

 I
N

C
.

1
1
3
,7

4
7
.4

8
M

E
M

B
E

R
 N

E
W

S
L
E

T
T

E
R

/ 
W

E
B

S
IT

E
 I
M

P
L
E

M
E

N
T

A
T

IO
N

 
H

E
A

L
T

H
 E

D
U

C
A

T
IO

N
/ 

M
IS

 

IN
F

R
A

S
T

R
U

C
T

U
R

E

T
2
8
5
0

Q
U

E
S

T
 S

O
F

T
W

A
R

E
 I
N

C
.

1
0
9
,5

9
8
.0

0
S

Q
L
 L

IC
E

N
S

E
 /

 S
P

O
T

L
IG

H
T

 S
O

F
T

W
A

R
E

M
IS

 I
N

F
R

A
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

T
5
3
2
2

M
A

N
IN

D
E

R
 K

H
A

L
S

A
1
0
7
,1

0
0
.5

0
2
0
2
1
 P

R
O

F
E

S
S

IO
N

A
L
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

U
T

IL
IZ

A
T

IO
N

 M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

T
1
9
6
0

L
O

C
A

L
 H

E
A

L
T

H
 P

L
A

N
S

 O
F

 C
A

L
IF

O
R

N
IA

1
0
1
,2

5
7
.5

9
2
0
2
1
 A

N
N

U
A

L
 D

U
E

 A
S

S
E

S
S

M
E

N
T

 &
 T

R
A

IN
IN

G
 R

E
G

IS
T

R
A

T
IO

N
V

A
R

IO
U

S

4
 o

f 
 1

2

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

224 / 300



  
  
 Y

e
a

r 
to

  
D

a
te

 A
P

 V
e

n
d

o
r 

R
e

p
o

rt
 

  
  
 A

m
o

u
n

ts
 o

v
e

r 
$

1
0

,0
0

0
.0

0

V
e
n

d
o

r 
 

N
o

.
V

e
n

d
o

r 
N

a
m

e
Y

e
a

r-
to

 D
a

te
  

  
  

  
  

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
  

D
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

t

T
4
3
9
6

K
A

IS
E

R
 F

O
U

N
D

A
T

IO
N

 H
E

A
L
T

H
-D

H
M

O
1
0
0
,7

1
6
.6

3
E

M
P

L
O

Y
E

E
 H

E
A

L
T

H
 B

E
N

E
F

IT
S

V
A

R
IO

U
S

T
4
3
5
3

T
W

E
 S

O
L
U

T
IO

N
S

, 
IN

C
.

9
6
,5

1
8
.0

1
A

N
N

U
A

L
 T

E
C

H
N

IC
A

L
 S

U
P

P
O

R
T

 A
N

D
 M

A
IN

T
E

N
A

N
C

E
 F

O
R

 

N
IM

B
L
E

 S
T

O
R

A
G

E
 S

O
L
U

T
IO

N
S

M
IS

 I
N

F
R

A
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

T
3
4
4
6

W
IT

T
/K

IE
F

F
E

R
 I
N

C
 

9
5
,0

9
1
.1

9
R

E
C

R
U

IT
M

E
N

T
 F

E
E

S
H

U
M

A
N

 R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

T
3
4
4
9

C
D

W
  

G
O

V
E

R
N

M
E

N
T

9
4
,4

5
8
.1

5
A

N
N

U
A

L
 A

D
O

B
E

 T
E

A
M

 L
IC

E
N

S
IN

G
M

IS
 I
N

F
R

A
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

T
1
1
8
9

A
P

P
L
E

 O
N

E
 I
N

C
, 

E
M

P
L
O

Y
M

E
N

T
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

8
9
,3

6
1
.6

4
T

E
M

P
O

R
A

R
Y

 H
E

L
P

 
M

IS
 A

D
M

IN
IS

T
R

A
T

IO
N

T
2
4
1
3

T
R

E
K

 I
M

A
G

IN
G

 I
N

C
8
1
,3

7
1
.6

2
C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
 A

N
D

 M
A

R
K

E
T

IN
G

 E
V

E
N

T
S

, 
M

E
M

B
E

R
 &

 H
E

A
L
T

H
 E

D
 

IN
C

E
N

T
IV

E
S

, 
E

M
P

L
O

Y
E

E
 E

V
E

N
T

S
, 

N
E

W
 H

IR
E

 S
H

IR
T

S
V

A
R

IO
U

S

T
4
0
5
9

K
E

R
N

 V
A

L
L
E

Y
 H

E
A

L
T

H
C

A
R

E
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
 *

**
*

8
0
,7

4
3
.3

5
2
0
2
1
 P

R
O

V
ID

E
R

 Q
U

A
L
IT

Y
 C

A
R

E
 G

R
A

N
T

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 G
R

A
N

T
S

T
5
3
7
6

K
C

H
C

C
7
8
,4

1
8
.0

0
C

O
V

ID
 T

A
S

K
 F

O
R

C
E

 S
P

O
N

S
O

R
S

H
IP

M
A

R
K

E
T

IN
G

T
4
9
6
3

L
IN

K
E

D
IN

 C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

IO
N

7
8
,2

7
5
.0

0
A

N
N

U
A

L
 O

N
L
IN

E
 T

R
A

IN
IN

G
 F

O
R

 A
L
L
 E

M
P

L
O

Y
E

E
S

H
U

M
A

N
 R

E
S

O
U

R
C

E
S

T
4
8
1
3

A
D

V
E

N
T

IS
T

 H
E

A
L
T

H
 T

E
H

A
C

H
A

P
I 
V

A
L
L
E

Y
7
7
,9

2
5
.8

2
2
0
2
1
 P

R
O

V
ID

E
R

 Q
U

A
L
IT

Y
 C

A
R

E
 G

R
A

N
T

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 G
R

A
N

T
S

T
5
1
2
1

T
P

x
 C

O
M

M
U

N
IC

A
T

IO
N

S
7
7
,4

6
5
.7

8
L
O

C
A

L
 C

A
L
L
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

; 
L
O

N
G

 D
IS

T
A

N
C

E
 C

A
L
L
S

; 
IN

T
E

R
N

E
T

 

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
; 

8
0
0
 L

IN
E

S
M

IS
 I
N

F
R

A
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

T
1
0
2
2

U
N

U
M

 L
IF

E
 I
N

S
U

R
A

N
C

E
 C

O
.

7
5
,3

4
6
.4

0
 E

M
P

L
O

Y
E

E
 P

R
E

M
IU

M
P

A
Y

R
O

L
L
 D

E
D

U
C

T
IO

N

T
5
3
2
9

R
E

L
A

Y
 N

E
T

W
O

R
K

, 
L
L
C

7
3
,3

3
3
.3

7
T

E
X

T
 M

E
S

S
A

G
IN

G
 S

U
B

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N
 

C
A

P
IT

A
L
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

T
5
1
3
2

T
IM

E
 W

A
R

N
E

R
 C

A
B

L
E

 L
L
C

7
1
,3

7
0
.2

5
IN

T
E

R
N

E
T

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
M

IS
 I
N

F
R

A
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

T
4
2
1
7

C
O

N
T

E
X

T
 4

 H
E

A
L
T

H
C

A
R

E
, 

IN
C

6
9
,6

3
0
.0

0
A

M
A

 R
O

Y
A

L
T

Y
 F

E
E

 &
 C

P
T

 R
E

N
E

W
A

L
M

IS
 I
N

F
R

A
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

5
 o

f 
 1

2

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

225 / 300



  
  
 Y

e
a

r 
to

  
D

a
te

 A
P

 V
e

n
d

o
r 

R
e

p
o

rt
 

  
  
 A

m
o

u
n

ts
 o

v
e

r 
$

1
0

,0
0

0
.0

0

V
e
n

d
o

r 
 

N
o

.
V

e
n

d
o

r 
N

a
m

e
Y

e
a

r-
to

 D
a

te
  

  
  

  
  

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
  

D
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

t

T
4
9
6
0

Z
E

L
IS

 C
L
A

IM
S

 I
N

T
E

G
R

IT
Y

, 
L
L
C

6
7
,5

3
6
.9

6
P

O
S

T
 E

D
IT

IN
G

 S
Y

S
T

E
M

S
 F

O
R

 C
L
A

IM
S

 P
R

O
C

E
S

S
IN

G
C

L
A

IM
S

T
5
4
0
1

K
E

R
N

 M
E

D
IC

A
L
 S

U
P

P
L
Y

, 
L
L
C

 
6
5
,5

4
6
.0

2
 2

0
2
1
/2

0
2
2
 P

R
O

V
ID

E
R

 G
R

A
N

T
 P

R
O

G
R

A
M

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 G
R

A
N

T
S

 

T
4
0
5
4

A
S

S
O

C
IA

T
IO

N
 F

O
R

 C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 A
F

F
IL

IA
T

E
D

 P
L
A

N
S

6
5
,0

0
0
.0

0
2
0
2
1
 A

N
N

U
A

L
 D

U
E

S
 A

S
S

E
S

S
M

E
N

T
  

A
D

M
IN

IS
T

R
A

T
IO

N

T
5
3
4
6

T
U

R
N

K
E

Y
 E

N
E

R
G

Y
6
3
,3

7
8
.0

0
E

V
 C

H
A

R
G

IN
G

 S
T

A
T

IO
N

S
C

O
R

P
O

R
A

T
E

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S

T
4
1
8
2

T
H

E
 L

A
M

A
R

 C
O

M
P

A
N

IE
S

6
3
,1

9
0
.0

0
O

U
T

D
O

O
R

 A
D

V
E

R
T

IS
E

M
E

N
T

-B
IL

L
B

O
A

R
D

S
A

D
V

E
R

T
IS

IN
G

T
4
7
8
5

C
O

M
M

G
A

P
6
1
,6

2
4
.7

5
I N

T
E

R
P

R
E

T
A

T
IO

N
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

H
E

A
L
T

H
 E

D
U

C
A

T
IO

N

T
4
5
0
3

V
IS

IO
N

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

 P
L
A

N
6
0
,7

7
2
.7

7
E

M
P

L
O

Y
E

E
 H

E
A

L
T

H
 B

E
N

E
F

IT
S

V
A

R
IO

U
S

T
4
9
0
2

C
H

A
N

G
E

 H
E

A
L
T

H
C

A
R

E
 T

E
C

H
N

O
L
O

G
IE

S
, 

L
L
C

6
0
,0

9
8
.7

2
E

D
I 
C

L
A

IM
 P

R
O

C
E

S
S

IN
G

  
(E

M
D

E
O

N
)

C
L
A

IM
S

T
4
5
6
3

S
P

H
 A

N
A

L
Y

T
IC

S
5
9
,9

8
8
.8

0
P

R
O

V
ID

E
R

 A
N

D
 M

E
M

B
E

R
 S

A
T

IS
F

A
C

T
IO

N
 S

U
R

V
E

Y
S

V
A

R
IO

U
S

T
4
7
9
2

K
P

 L
L
C

5
6
,8

8
4
.0

5
P

R
O

V
ID

E
R

 D
IR

E
C

T
O

R
IE

S
 &

 F
O

R
M

U
L
A

R
Y

 (
S

U
P

P
O

R
T

/M
A

IN
T

.)
P

H
A

R
M

A
C

Y
/P

R
O

V
ID

E
R

 R
E

L
A

T
IO

N
S

T
4
9
4
4

C
E

N
T

R
A

L
 V

A
L
L
E

Y
 F

A
R

M
W

O
R

K
E

R
 F

O
U

N
D

A
T

IO
N

 
5
6
,5

2
8
.2

5
 2

0
2
1
/2

0
2
2
 P

R
O

V
ID

E
R

 G
R

A
N

T
 P

R
O

G
R

A
M

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 G
R

A
N

T
S

 

T
5
3
2
5

W
A

D
E

 A
 M

C
N

A
IR

5
6
,1

7
4
.0

0
L
E

A
D

A
B

IL
IT

Y
 P

R
O

G
R

A
M

 F
A

C
IL

IT
A

T
IO

N
-C

O
N

S
U

L
T

IN
G

 

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
/O

N
S

IT
E

 T
R

A
IN

IN
G

H
U

M
A

N
 R

E
S

O
U

R
C

E
S

T
5
3
9
8

G
O

L
D

E
N

 E
M

P
IR

E
 G

L
E

A
N

E
R

S
 *

**
*

5
5
, 0

0
0
.0

0
 2

0
2
1
/2

0
2
2
 P

R
O

V
ID

E
R

 G
R

A
N

T
 P

R
O

G
R

A
M

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 G
R

A
N

T
S

 

T
2
5
8
0

G
O

L
D

E
N

 E
M

P
IR

E
 T

R
A

N
S

IT
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
5
4
,7

3
5
.7

5
2
0
2
1
-2

0
2
2
 O

U
T

D
O

O
R

 A
D

V
E

R
T

IS
IN

G
 

M
A

R
K

E
T

IN
G

T
3
9
8
6

J
A

C
Q

U
E

L
Y

N
  

 S
. 

 J
A

N
S

5
4
,6

0
0
.0

0
C

O
N

S
U

L
T

IN
G

 F
O

R
 K

H
S

 P
U

B
L
IC

 I
M

A
G

E
 C

A
M

P
A

IG
N

 
A

D
M

IN
IS

T
R

A
T

IO
N

/ 
M

A
R

K
E

T
IN

G

T
1
9
5
7

F
R

IE
N

D
S

 O
F

 M
E

R
C

Y
 F

O
U

N
D

A
T

IO
N

5
4
,0

0
0
.0

0
C

O
V

ID
 V

A
C

C
IN

E
 C

A
M

P
A

IG
N

 S
P

O
N

S
O

R
S

H
IP

M
A

R
K

E
T

IN
G

T
2
9
6
1

S
O

L
U

T
IO

N
 B

E
N

C
H

, 
L
L
C

5
3
,8

1
4
.5

9
M

-F
IL

E
S

 &
 S

C
A

N
F

IN
IT

Y
 L

IC
E

N
S

E
S

 S
U

P
P

O
R

T
M

IS
 I
N

F
R

A
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

6
 o

f 
 1

2

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

226 / 300



  
  
 Y

e
a

r 
to

  
D

a
te

 A
P

 V
e

n
d

o
r 

R
e

p
o

rt
 

  
  
 A

m
o

u
n

ts
 o

v
e

r 
$

1
0

,0
0

0
.0

0

V
e
n

d
o

r 
 

N
o

.
V

e
n

d
o

r 
N

a
m

e
Y

e
a

r-
to

 D
a

te
  

  
  

  
  

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
  

D
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

t

T
4
4
1
5

D
A

N
IE

L
L
S

 P
H

IL
L
IP

S
 V

A
U

G
H

A
N

 A
N

D
 B

O
C

K
4
9
,9

5
0
.0

0
2
0
2
0
 A

U
D

IT
 F

E
E

S
F

IN
A

N
C

E

T
2
9
3
3

S
IE

R
R

A
 P

R
IN

T
E

R
S

, 
IN

C
. 

 
4
8
,7

9
3
.6

5
P

R
IN

T
IN

G
 O

F
 M

E
M

B
E

R
 E

D
U

C
A

T
IO

N
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
L
/P

R
O

V
ID

E
R

 

D
IR

E
C

T
O

R
Y

/B
U

S
IN

E
S

S
 C

A
R

D
S

 
V

A
R

IO
U

S

T
4
7
8
1

E
D

R
IN

G
T

O
N

 H
E

A
L
T

H
 C

O
N

S
U

L
T

IN
G

, 
L
L
C

4
8
,6

0
0
.0

0
C

O
N

S
U

L
T

IN
G

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 

A
D

M
IN

IS
T

R
A

T
IO

N

T
4
4
9
6

V
O

X
 N

E
T

W
O

R
K

 S
O

L
U

T
IO

N
S

, 
IN

C
 

4
7
,9

6
5
.9

9
W

O
R

K
F

O
R

C
E

 M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

 A
D

V
A

N
C

E
D

 L
IC

E
N

S
E

 A
N

N
U

A
L
 

R
E

N
E

W
A

L
M

IS
 I
N

F
R

A
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

T
2
4
4
6

A
T

&
T

 M
O

B
IL

IT
Y

4
6
,9

0
9
.5

0
C

E
L
L
U

L
A

R
 P

H
O

N
E

 /
 I
N

T
E

R
N

E
T

 U
S

A
G

E
M

IS
 I
N

F
R

A
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

T
1
1
8
3

M
IL

L
IM

A
N

 U
S

A
4
5
,6

7
2
.7

5
C

Y
2
0
1
9
/2

0
2
0
 R

D
T

 &
 I
B

N
P

 C
O

N
S

U
L
T

IN
G

 -
 A

C
T

U
A

R
IA

L
A

D
M

IN
IS

T
R

A
T

IO
N

T
4
0
3
8

P
O

L
Y

C
L
IN

IC
 M

E
D

IC
A

L
 C

E
N

T
E

R
, 

IN
C

4
3
,1

1
8
.9

7
 2

0
2
1
/2

0
2
2
 P

R
O

V
ID

E
R

 G
R

A
N

T
 P

R
O

G
R

A
M

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 G
R

A
N

T
S

 

T
5
3
9
6

N
Y

M
I 
IN

C
 

4
3
,0

0
0
.0

0
C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
 T

R
A

C
IN

G
 D

E
V

IC
E

S
C

O
R

P
O

R
A

T
E

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S

T
2
4
4
1

L
A

U
R

A
 J

. 
B

R
E

Z
IN

S
K

I
4
1
,9

0
0
.0

0
M

A
R

K
E

T
IN

G
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
L
S

M
A

R
K

E
T

IN
G

T
5
2
0
1

J
A

C
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

, 
IN

C
.

4
1
,7

9
4
.0

0
A

C
 M

A
IN

T
E

N
A

N
C

E
 &

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

T
4
6
5
2

B
A

K
E

R
S

F
IE

L
D

 S
Y

M
P

H
O

N
Y

 O
R

C
H

E
S

T
R

A
4
1
,6

6
6
.6

7
C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
 S

P
O

N
S

O
R

S
H

IP
 

A
D

M
IN

IS
T

R
A

T
IO

N

T
2
4
0
7

K
A

IS
E

R
 F

O
U

N
D

A
T

IO
N

 H
E

A
L
T

H
 -

C
O

B
R

A
4
1
,5

5
1
.8

4
C

O
B

R
A

 E
M

P
L
O

Y
E

E
 H

E
A

L
T

H
 B

E
N

E
F

IT
S

V
A

R
IO

U
S

T
2
9
6
9

A
M

E
R

IC
A

N
 B

U
S

IN
E

S
S

 M
A

C
H

IN
E

S
 I
N

C
4
0
,5

8
4
.2

0
H

A
R

D
W

A
R

E
 A

N
D

 M
A

IN
T

E
N

A
N

C
E

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

T
5
0
1
5

S
E

N
T

IN
E

L
 E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

IN
G

4
0
, 3

8
0
.0

0
J
U

N
IP

E
R

 A
N

N
U

A
L
 S

U
P

P
O

R
T

 R
E

N
E

W
A

L
M

IS
 I
N

F
R

A
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

T
2
9
1
8

S
T

IN
S

O
N

'S
3
8
,8

0
4
.2

8
2
0
2
1
 O

F
F

IC
E

 S
U

P
P

L
IE

S
V

A
R

IO
U

S

T
5
3
4
0

G
A

R
T

N
E

R
 I
N

C
3
8
,5

0
0
.0

0
A

N
N

U
A

L
 L

E
A

D
E

R
S

 I
N

D
IV

ID
U

A
L
 A

C
C

E
S

S
 A

D
V

IS
O

R
 -

 

P
R

O
F

E
S

S
IO

N
A

L
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

M
IS

 A
D

M
IN

IS
T

R
A

T
IO

N

T
4
6
0
7

A
G

IL
IT

Y
 R

E
C

O
V

E
R

Y
 S

O
L
U

T
IO

N
S

 I
N

C
.

3
7
,9

9
0
.0

0
P

R
O

F
E

S
S

IO
N

A
L
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

A
D

M
IN

IS
T

R
A

T
IO

N

7
 o

f 
 1

2

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

227 / 300



  
  
 Y

e
a

r 
to

  
D

a
te

 A
P

 V
e

n
d

o
r 

R
e

p
o

rt
 

  
  
 A

m
o

u
n

ts
 o

v
e

r 
$

1
0

,0
0

0
.0

0

V
e
n

d
o

r 
 

N
o

.
V

e
n

d
o

r 
N

a
m

e
Y

e
a

r-
to

 D
a

te
  

  
  

  
  

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
  

D
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

t

T
5
1
0
7

C
IT

R
IX

 S
Y

S
T

E
M

S
, 

IN
C

.
3
7
,3

5
0
.0

0
A

N
N

U
A

L
 L

IC
E

N
S

E
 A

N
D

 S
U

P
P

O
R

T
 F

E
E

S
 

M
IS

 I
N

F
R

A
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

T
4
7
0
8

H
E

A
L
T

H
 M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T
 A

S
S

O
C

IA
T

E
S

, 
IN

C
.

3
7
,2

4
2
.2

5
C

O
N

S
U

L
T

IN
G

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
A

D
M

IN
IS

T
R

A
T

IO
N

T
5
2
9
2

A
L
L
'S

 W
E

L
L
 H

E
A

L
T

H
 C

A
R

E
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

3
7
,1

7
9
.0

0
T

E
M

P
O

R
A

R
Y

 H
E

L
P

 
V

A
R

IO
U

S

T
1
4
0
4

C
A

L
IF

O
R

N
IA

 A
S

S
O

C
IA

T
IO

N
 O

F
 H

E
A

L
T

H
 P

L
A

N
S

3
6
,1

9
9
.0

0
2
0
2
1
 A

N
N

U
A

L
 D

U
E

S
  

A
S

S
E

S
S

M
E

N
T

A
D

M
IN

IS
T

R
A

T
IO

N

T
2
1
3
5

B
A

K
E

R
S

F
IE

L
D

 C
IT

Y
 S

C
H

O
O

L
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
3
5
,9

5
5
.0

0
2
0
1
9
/2

0
2
0
 S

C
H

O
O

L
 W

E
L
L
N

E
S

S
 P

R
O

G
R

A
M

 G
R

A
N

T
 -

 F
IN

A
L
 

P
A

Y
M

E
N

T

U
T

IL
IZ

A
T

IO
N

 M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

 -
 H

E
 

W
E

L
L
N

E
S

S

T
5
4
1
2

D
IA

G
E

N
IX

 C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

IO
N

 *
**

*
3
4
,3

5
8
.4

0
2
0
2
1
-2

0
2
4
 N

U
A

N
C

E
 S

O
F

T
W

A
R

E
 S

U
P

P
O

R
T

 &
 M

A
IN

T
E

N
A

N
C

E
M

IS
 I
N

F
R

A
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

T
2
9
4
1

K
E

R
N

 P
R

IN
T

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 I
N

C
.

3
4
,2

5
7
.7

5
O

T
H

E
R

 P
R

IN
T

IN
G

 C
O

S
T

S
, 

E
N

V
E

L
O

P
E

S
, 

L
E

T
T

E
R

H
E

A
D

V
A

R
IO

U
S

T
1
6
5
5

K
E

R
N

,K
K

X
X

,K
IS

V
,K

G
E

O
,K

G
F

M
,K

E
B

T
,K

Z
O

Z
,K

K
J
G

,K
V

E
C

,K

S
T

T
,K

R
Q

K
,K

P
A

T
,

3
4
,0

0
0
.0

0
D

IG
IT

A
L
 A

D
S

M
A

R
K

E
T

IN
G

 

T
5
1
1
9

P
A

C
IF

IC
 W

E
S

T
 S

O
U

N
D

 P
R

O
F

E
S

S
IO

N
A

L
 A

U
D

IO
 &

 D
E

S
IG

N
 

IN
C

.
3
3
,6

5
4
.8

5
H

A
R

D
W

A
R

E
 B

O
A

R
D

 R
O

O
M

 R
E

M
O

T
E

 V
ID

E
O

 C
O

N
F

E
R

E
N

C
IN

G
M

IS
 I
N

F
R

A
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

T
4
7
3
1

L
O

G
M

E
IN

 U
S

A
, 

IN
C

.
3
3
,5

3
5
.6

0
IN

T
E

R
N

E
T

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
M

IS
 I
N

F
R

A
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

T
5
3
0
0

C
E

N
T

R
A

L
 V

A
L
L
E

Y
 O

C
C

U
P

A
T

IO
N

 M
E

D
IC

A
L
 G

R
O

U
P

, 
IN

C
3
3
,4

4
0
.0

0
C

O
V

ID
-1

9
 T

E
S

T
IN

G
H

U
M

A
N

 R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

T
5
2
1
5

R
IC

H
A

R
D

 G
A

R
C

IA
  

3
2
,5

5
0
.0

0
P

R
O

F
E

S
S

IO
N

A
L
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

U
T

IL
IZ

A
T

IO
N

 M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

T
5
3
2
1

T
Y

K
 T

E
C

H
N

O
L
O

G
IE

S
 L

T
D

 *
**

*
3
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
2
0
2
1
-2

0
2
2
 T

Y
K

 L
IC

E
N

S
E

M
IS

 I
N

F
R

A
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

T
1
1
5
2

M
IC

H
A

E
L
 K

. 
B

R
O

W
N

 L
A

N
D

S
C

A
P

E
 &

 M
A

IN
T

E
N

A
N

C
E

 C
O

.,
 

IN
C

.
2
9
,6

0
3
.4

7
2
0
2
1
 B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 M

A
IN

T
E

N
A

N
C

E
C

O
R

P
O

R
A

T
E

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

T
2
5
0
9

U
S

P
S

 
2
8
,7

9
8
.1

4
R

E
P

L
E

N
IS

H
 P

O
S

T
A

G
E

 (
P

E
R

M
IT

) 
F

U
N

D
S

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

T
5
3
8
7

N
A

V
IA

 B
E

N
E

F
IT

S
 S

O
L
U

T
IO

N
S

, 
IN

C
 

2
8
,4

4
6
.2

7
F

S
A

 E
M

P
L
O

Y
E

E
 P

R
E

M
IU

M
 &

 S
E

C
T

IO
N

 1
2
5
 A

D
M

IN
IS

T
R

A
T

IO
N

V
A

R
IO

U
S

8
 o

f 
 1

2

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

228 / 300



  
  
 Y

e
a

r 
to

  
D

a
te

 A
P

 V
e

n
d

o
r 

R
e

p
o

rt
 

  
  
 A

m
o

u
n

ts
 o

v
e

r 
$

1
0

,0
0

0
.0

0

V
e
n

d
o

r 
 

N
o

.
V

e
n

d
o

r 
N

a
m

e
Y

e
a

r-
to

 D
a

te
  

  
  

  
  

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
  

D
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

t

T
4
5
7
5

S
C

H
N

E
ID

E
R

 E
L
E

C
T

R
IC

 I
T

 C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

IO
N

2
6
,7

9
1
.5

0
A

P
C

 C
O

O
L
IN

G
 U

N
IT

S
 -

 A
N

N
U

A
L
 M

A
IN

T
E

N
A

C
E

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

T
4
2
1
6

N
E

X
S

T
A

R
 B

R
O

A
D

C
A

S
T

IN
G

 I
N

C
2
6
,6

1
0
.0

0
A

D
V

E
R

T
IS

E
M

E
N

T
 -

 M
E

D
IA

M
A

R
K

E
T

IN
G

T
5
2
6
9

K
E

R
N

 C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 F
O

U
N

D
A

T
IO

N
2
6
,3

1
1
.0

0
A

N
N

U
A

L
 C

O
N

T
R

IB
U

T
IO

N
 -

 K
E

R
N

 C
O

N
N

E
C

T
E

D
 C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
 

N
E

T
W

O
R

K
 M

G
M

T
 F

E
E

U
T

IL
IZ

A
T

IO
N

 M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

-

O
U

T
R

E
A

C
H

T
5
2
9
8

T
O

T
A

L
M

E
D

, 
IN

C
.

2
5
,5

9
1
.0

0
D

IR
E

C
T

 P
L
A

C
E

M
E

N
T

 F
E

E
S

H
U

M
A

N
 R

E
S

O
U

R
C

E
S

T
4
6
6
3

D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 D

IM
E

N
S

IO
N

S
 I
N

T
E

R
N

A
T

IO
N

A
L
, 

IN
C

.
2
5
,0

0
0
.0

0
L
E

A
D

E
R

S
H

IP
 F

O
U

N
D

A
T

IO
N

 L
IC

E
N

S
E

H
U

M
A

N
 R

E
S

O
U

R
C

E
S

T
5
3
4
5

D
E

V
V

IO
 I
N

C
 

2
3
,2

5
0
.0

0
A

N
N

U
A

L
 S

O
F

T
W

A
R

E
 &

 H
A

R
D

W
A

R
E

 D
E

V
V

T
R

A
C

E
 W

E
A

R
A

B
L
E

S
 

&
 G

A
T

E
W

A
Y

S
 -

 C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

 T
R

A
C

IN
G

M
IS

 I
N

F
R

A
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

/C
A

P
IT

A
L
 

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

T
4
8
7
3

L
5
 H

E
A

L
T

H
C

A
R

E
 S

O
L
U

T
IO

N
S

, 
IN

C
.

2
3
,1

1
5
.0

0
A

N
N

U
A

L
 L

IC
E

N
S

E
 A

N
D

 S
U

P
P

O
R

T
 F

E
E

S
 -

 C
L
A

IM
S

 A
U

D
IT

 T
O

O
L

C
L
A

IM
S

T
4
4
2
4

G
U

R
O

C
K

 S
O

R
T

W
A

R
E

 G
m

b
H

 *
**

*
2
3
,1

0
0
.0

0
T

E
S

T
R

A
IL

 R
E

N
E

W
A

L
M

IS
 I
N

F
R

A
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

T
3
0
9
2

L
IN

K
S

 F
O

R
 L

IF
E

, 
IN

C
2
2
,9

5
0
.0

0
2
0
2
1
 E

V
E

N
T

 S
P

O
N

S
O

R
S

H
IP

M
A

R
K

E
T

IN
G

T
4
5
3
7

B
U

R
K

E
, 

W
IL

L
IA

M
S

 &
 S

O
R

E
N

S
E

N
, 

L
L
P

 *
**

*
2
2
,8

3
2
.0

0
L
E

G
A

L
 F

E
E

S
V

A
R

IO
U

S

T
5
1
5
9

A
T

&
T

 C
O

R
P

2
1
,4

8
1
.7

7
IN

T
E

R
N

E
T

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
M

IS
 I
N

F
R

A
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

T
5
3
3
4

P
A

C
IF

IC
 I
N

T
E

R
P

R
E

T
E

R
S

, 
IN

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
D

2
1
,4

4
3
.5

7
IN

T
E

R
P

R
E

T
A

T
IO

N
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

H
E

A
L
T

H
 E

D
U

C
A

T
IO

N

T
5
3
3
3

C
E

N
T

R
A

L
 C

A
L
IF

O
R

N
IA

 A
S

T
H

M
A

 C
O

L
L
A

B
O

R
A

T
IV

E
  

2
1
, 3

9
0
.0

0
2
0
2
1
 C

E
N

T
R

A
L
 C

A
L
IF

O
R

N
IA

 A
S

T
H

M
A

 C
O

L
L
A

B
. 

G
R

A
N

T
H

E
 W

E
L
L
N

E
S

S

T
5
1
6
1

IN
T

E
G

R
A

T
E

D
 H

E
A

L
T

H
C

A
R

E
 A

S
S

O
C

IA
T

IO
N

2
1
,3

0
4
.7

3
A

D
V

E
R

T
IS

E
M

E
N

T
 -

 F
IL

M
IN

G
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

M
A

R
K

E
T

IN
G

T
4
5
2
3

B
E

R
K

S
H

IR
E

 L
IF

E
 I
N

S
U

R
A

N
C

E
 C

O
M

P
A

N
Y

 O
F

 A
M

E
R

IC
A

2
1
,0

4
4
.5

6
E

M
P

L
O

Y
E

E
 P

R
E

M
IU

M
A

D
M

IN
IS

T
R

A
T

IO
N

T
4
2
2
8

T
H

E
 S

S
I 
G

R
O

U
P

, 
L
L
C

.
2
0
,6

9
5
.2

0
E

D
I 
C

L
A

IM
 P

R
O

C
E

S
S

IN
G

 
C

L
A

IM
S

T
5
3
8
9

A
D

A
K

C
 *

**
*

2
0
,2

9
6
.0

3
2
0
2
1
-2

0
2
2
 C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
 G

R
A

N
T

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 G
R

A
N

T
S

 

9
 o

f 
 1

2

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

229 / 300



  
  
 Y

e
a

r 
to

  
D

a
te

 A
P

 V
e

n
d

o
r 

R
e

p
o

rt
 

  
  
 A

m
o

u
n

ts
 o

v
e

r 
$

1
0

,0
0

0
.0

0

V
e
n

d
o

r 
 

N
o

.
V

e
n

d
o

r 
N

a
m

e
Y

e
a

r-
to

 D
a

te
  

  
  

  
  

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
  

D
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

t

T
3
0
8
4

K
E

R
N

 C
O

U
N

T
Y

-C
O

U
N

T
Y

 C
O

U
N

S
E

L
2
0
,1

6
1
.2

0
L
E

G
A

L
 F

E
E

S
A

D
M

IN
IS

T
R

A
T

IO
N

T
4
6
0
5

K
E

R
N

V
IL

L
E

 U
N

IO
N

 S
C

H
O

O
L
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
1
9
,5

0
0
.0

0
2
0
1
9
/2

0
2
0
 S

C
H

O
O

L
 W

E
L
L
N

E
S

S
 P

R
O

G
R

A
M

 G
R

A
N

T
 -

 F
IN

A
L
 

P
A

Y
M

E
N

T

U
T

IL
IZ

A
T

IO
N

 M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

 -
 H

E
 

W
E

L
L
N

E
S

S

T
1
3
2
6

W
A

L
K

E
R

-L
E

W
IS

 R
E

N
T

S
1
9
,2

7
9
.5

1
C

O
V

ID
-1

9
 T

E
S

T
IN

G
 S

IT
E

 E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T

M
A

R
K

E
T

IN
G

T
1
0
9
7

N
C

Q
A

1
9
,2

3
0
.7

5
H

E
D

IS
, 

V
O

L
 2

 P
L
U

S
 Q

U
A

L
IT

Y
 C

O
M

P
A

S
S

 A
N

D
 P

O
P

U
L
A

T
IO

N
 

H
E

A
L
T

H
 P

R
O

G
R

A
M

 A
C

C
R

E
D

IA
T

IO
N

 
Q

U
A

L
IT

Y
 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T

T
4
9
3
4

A
P

P
L
E

 I
N

C
1
9
,0

6
6
.3

4
2
0
2
1
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
 A

W
A

R
D

S
 &

 C
E

L
L
 P

H
O

N
E

S
V

A
R

IO
U

S

T
4
5
1
4

A
.J

. 
K

L
E

IN
, 

IN
C

. 
T

. 
D

E
N

A
T

A
L
E

, 
B

. 
G

O
L
D

N
E

R
  

1
8
,1

9
3
.5

0
L
E

G
A

L
 F

E
E

S
A

D
M

IN
IS

T
R

A
T

IO
N

T
5
1
2
8

S
T

A
N

D
A

R
D

 S
C

H
O

O
L
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
1
8
,0

0
0
.0

0
2
0
1
9
/2

0
2
0
 S

C
H

O
O

L
 W

E
L
L
N

E
S

S
 P

R
O

G
R

A
M

 G
R

A
N

T
 -

 F
IN

A
L
 

P
A

Y
M

E
N

T

U
T

IL
IZ

A
T

IO
N

 M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

 -
 H

E
 

W
E

L
L
N

E
S

S

T
4
5
8
5

D
E

L
A

N
O

 U
N

IO
N

 S
C

H
O

O
L
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
1
7
,5

0
0
.0

0
2
0
1
9
/2

0
2
1
 S

C
H

O
O

L
 W

E
L
L
N

E
S

S
 P

R
O

G
R

A
M

 G
R

A
N

T
- 

F
IN

A
L
 

P
A

Y
M

E
N

T

U
T

IL
IZ

A
T

IO
N

 M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

 -
 H

E
 

W
E

L
L
N

E
S

S

T
4
8
0
2

K
E

R
N

 C
O

U
N

T
Y

 S
U

P
E

R
IN

T
E

N
D

E
N

T
 O

F
 S

C
H

O
O

L
S

1
7
,5

0
0
.0

0
2
0
1
9
/2

0
2
0
 S

C
H

O
O

L
 W

E
L
L
N

E
S

S
 P

R
O

G
R

A
M

 G
R

A
N

T
 -

 F
IN

A
L
 

P
A

Y
M

E
N

T

U
T

IL
IZ

A
T

IO
N

 M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

 -
 H

E
 

W
E

L
L
N

E
S

S

T
5
3
1
8

C
A

N
O

N
IC

A
L
 G

R
O

U
P

 L
IM

IT
E

D
 *

**
*

1
7
,5

0
0
.0

0
2
0
2
0
 -

 2
0
2
1
 U

A
 I
N

F
R

A
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

 L
IC

E
N

S
E

M
IS

 I
N

F
R

A
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

 

T
5
0
1
3

E
L
IZ

A
 C

O
R

P
O

R
A

T
IO

N
1
7
,1

3
0
.0

0
2
0
2
 D

A
T

A
 M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T
 F

E
E

C
A

S
E

 M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

T
4
9
9
3

L
E

G
A

L
S

H
IE

L
D

1
7
,0

8
3
.8

1
E

M
P

L
O

Y
E

E
 P

A
ID

 V
O

L
U

N
T

A
R

Y
 C

O
V

E
R

A
G

E
P

A
Y

R
O

L
L
 D

E
D

U
C

T
IO

N

T
4
9
6
2

L
IB

E
R

T
Y

 D
A

T
A

, 
IN

C
.

1
7
,0

0
0
.0

0
P

R
O

F
E

S
S

IO
N

A
L
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

 A
N

N
U

A
L
 R

E
N

E
W

A
L

M
IS

 I
N

F
R

A
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

T
4
0
1
6

F
IR

S
T

 D
A

T
A

B
A

N
K

, 
IN

C
  

1
6
,6

2
0
.0

0
S

O
F

T
W

A
R

E
 L

IC
E

N
S

E
M

IS
 I
N

F
R

A
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

T
1
3
4
7

A
D

V
A

N
C

E
D

 D
A

T
A

 S
T

O
R

A
G

E
1
6
,0

6
5
.7

0
S

T
O

R
A

G
E

 A
N

D
 S

H
R

E
D

D
IN

G
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

 
C

O
R

P
O

R
A

T
E

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S

T
2
9
5
5

D
E

L
T

A
 E

L
E

C
T

R
IC

 I
N

C
.

1
5
,9

1
5
.0

0
B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 M

A
IN

T
E

N
A

N
C

E
C

O
R

P
O

R
A

T
E

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S

T
2
7
8
7

S
A

G
E

 S
O

F
T

W
A

R
E

, 
IN

C
1
5
,8

1
9
.9

3
2
0
2
0
-2

1
 S

A
G

E
3
0
0
 E

R
P

 S
IL

V
E

R
 B

U
S

IN
E

S
S

 A
N

N
U

A
L
 L

IC
E

N
S

E
F

IN
A

N
C

E

1
0

 o
f 
 1

2

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

230 / 300



  
  
 Y

e
a

r 
to

  
D

a
te

 A
P

 V
e

n
d

o
r 

R
e

p
o

rt
 

  
  
 A

m
o

u
n

ts
 o

v
e

r 
$

1
0

,0
0

0
.0

0

V
e
n

d
o

r 
 

N
o

.
V

e
n

d
o

r 
N

a
m

e
Y

e
a

r-
to

 D
a

te
  

  
  

  
  

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
  

D
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

t

T
5
3
3
6

T
E

A
M

D
Y

N
A

M
IX

 S
O

L
U

T
IO

N
S

 L
L
C

1
5
,2

0
0
.0

0
S

O
F

T
W

A
R

E
 L

IC
E

N
S

E
M

IS
 I
N

F
R

A
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

T
2
8
5
1

S
IN

C
L
A

IR
 T

E
L
E

V
IS

IO
N

 O
F

 B
A

K
E

R
S

F
IE

L
D

, 
L
L
C

1
5
,0

2
5
.0

0
A

D
V

E
R

T
IS

E
M

E
N

T
 -

 T
E

L
E

V
IS

IO
N

M
A

R
K

E
T

IN
G

T
2
5
7
8

A
M

E
R

IC
A

N
 H

E
A

R
T

 A
S

S
O

C
IA

T
IO

N
 -

 K
E

R
N

 C
O

U
N

T
Y

1
5
,0

0
0
.0

0
C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
 A

C
T

IV
IT

IE
S

-S
P

O
N

S
O

R
S

H
IP

A
D

M
IN

IS
T

R
A

T
IO

N

T
4
1
9
5

S
C

R
IP

P
S

 M
E

D
IA

, 
IN

C
. 

D
B

A
 K

E
R

O
-T

V
1
4
,9

3
5
.0

0
A

D
V

E
R

T
IS

E
M

E
N

T
 -

 T
E

L
E

V
IS

IO
N

M
A

R
K

E
T

IN
G

T
4
3
8
9

E
X

A
C

T
 S

T
A

F
F

, 
IN

C
.

1
3
, 9

9
8
.5

2
T

E
M

P
O

R
A

R
Y

 H
E

L
P

 
V

A
R

IO
U

S

T
4
9
2
0

O
T

IS
 E

L
E

V
A

T
O

R
 C

O
M

P
A

N
Y

1
3
,1

7
4
.6

0
2
0
2
1
 E

L
E

V
A

T
O

R
 M

A
IN

T
E

N
A

N
C

E
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

T
4
6
8
6

C
E

N
T

R
IC

 H
E

A
L
T

H
 

1
3
,0

6
0
.0

8
 2

0
2
1
/2

0
2
2
 P

R
O

V
ID

E
R

 G
R

A
N

T
 P

R
O

G
R

A
M

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 G
R

A
N

T
S

 

T
2
7
9
0

K
E

R
N

 C
O

U
N

T
Y

 D
E

P
T

 O
F

 P
U

B
L
IC

 H
E

A
L
T

H
1
2
,9

1
5
.0

0
IN

F
L
U

E
N

Z
A

 V
A

C
C

IN
A

T
IO

N
 S

P
O

N
S

O
R

S
H

IP
M

A
R

K
E

T
IN

G

T
4
4
6
6

S
M

O
O

T
H

 M
O

V
E

 U
S

A
 

1
2
,8

8
4
.7

3
2
0
2
1
 M

O
V

IN
G

 E
X

P
E

N
S

E
S

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

T
1
6
5
0

U
N

IV
IS

IO
N

 T
E

L
E

V
IS

IO
N

 G
R

O
U

P
1
2
,7

5
0
.0

0
A

D
V

E
R

T
IS

E
M

E
N

T
 -

 T
E

L
E

V
IS

IO
N

M
A

R
K

E
T

IN
G

T
5
3
7
5

H
A

D
A

S
S

A
H

 E
 P

E
R

E
Z

 *
**

*
1
2
,4

5
8
.9

8
E

M
P

L
O

Y
E

E
 R

E
L
O

C
A

T
IO

N
H

U
M

A
N

 R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

T
2
9
3
8

S
A

P
 A

M
E

R
IC

A
, 

IN
C

1
2
,3

0
8
.3

2
S

A
P

 B
U

S
IN

E
S

S
 O

B
J
E

C
T

S
 S

O
F

T
W

A
R

E
 A

N
N

U
A

L
 M

A
IN

T
E

N
A

N
C

E
 

F
E

E
B

U
S

IN
E

S
S

 I
N

T
E

L
L
IG

E
N

C
E

T
4
4
7
6

K
E

R
N

 P
A

R
T

N
E

R
S

H
IP

 F
O

R
 C

H
IL

D
R

E
N

 A
N

D
 F

A
M

IL
IE

S
 *

**
*

1
2
,0

0
0
.0

0
C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
 S

P
O

N
S

O
R

S
H

IP
M

A
R

K
E

T
IN

G

T
4
5
7
7

L
A

 C
A

M
P

E
S

IN
A

, 
K

B
D

S
, 

K
U

F
W

, 
K

M
Y

X
, 

K
S

E
A

, 
K

B
H

H
, 

K
Y

L
I,
 

K
C

E
C

, 
K

N
A

I
1
2
,0

0
0
.0

0
A

D
V

E
R

T
IS

E
M

E
N

T
 -

 R
A

D
IO

M
A

R
K

E
T

IN
G

1
1

 o
f 
 1

2

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

231 / 300



  
  
 Y

e
a

r 
to

  
D

a
te

 A
P

 V
e

n
d

o
r 

R
e

p
o

rt
 

  
  
 A

m
o

u
n

ts
 o

v
e

r 
$

1
0

,0
0

0
.0

0

V
e
n

d
o

r 
 

N
o

.
V

e
n

d
o

r 
N

a
m

e
Y

e
a

r-
to

 D
a

te
  

  
  

  
  

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
  

D
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

t

T
4
9
5
9

B
E

R
K

S
H

IR
E

 H
A

T
H

W
A

Y
 H

O
M

E
S

T
A

T
E

 C
O

M
P

A
N

IE
S

 *
**

*
1
1
,3

8
4
.0

0
2
0
2
0
-2

0
2
1
 W

O
R

K
E

R
'S

 C
O

M
P

E
N

S
A

T
IO

N
 I
N

S
U

R
A

N
C

E
 P

R
E

M
IU

M
A

D
M

IN
IS

T
R

A
T

IO
N

T
5
3
8
6

P
A

R
T

N
E

R
 E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

IN
G

 A
N

D
 S

C
IE

N
C

E
, 

IN
C

1
1
, 1

5
0
.0

0
P

R
O

F
E

S
S

IO
N

A
L
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

T
5
0
9
9

P
R

O
G

R
E

S
S

 S
O

F
T

W
A

R
E

 C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

IO
N

1
0
,9

6
8
.0

2
S

O
F

T
W

A
R

E
 L

IC
E

N
S

E
M

IS
 I
N

F
R

A
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

T
2
8
4
0

A
T

A
L
A

S
O

F
T

, 
IN

C
.

1
0
, 2

5
4
.0

0
A

N
N

U
A

L
 D

O
T

IM
A

G
E

 D
O

C
U

M
E

N
T

 I
M

A
G

IN
G

 M
A

IN
T

E
N

A
N

C
E

M
IS

 I
N

F
R

A
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

T
4
9
3
2

S
P

E
C

T
R

U
M

 R
E

A
C

H
 (

M
E

D
IA

)
1
0
, 2

0
0
.0

0
A

D
V

E
R

T
IS

E
M

E
N

T
 -

 T
E

L
E

V
IS

IO
N

M
A

R
K

E
T

IN
G

T
2
8
6
9

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 A
C

T
IO

N
 P

A
R

T
N

E
R

S
H

IP
 O

F
 K

E
R

N
1
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
 G

R
A

N
T

S
M

A
R

K
E

T
IN

G

3
5
,9

4
6
,9

7
7
.7

5

T
O

T
A

L
 V

E
N

D
O

R
S

 O
V

E
R

 $
1

0
,0

0
0

3
5
,9

4
6
,9

7
7
.7

5

T
O

T
A

L
 V

E
N

D
O

R
S

 U
N

D
E

R
 $

1
0

,0
0

0
  

7
5
0
,6

3
7
.8

1

T
O

T
A

L
 V

E
N

D
O

R
 E

X
P

E
N

S
E

S
 -

 N
O

V
E

M
B

E
R

$
3
6
,6

9
7
,6

1
5
.5

6

N
o

te
:

**
**

N
e

w
 v

e
n

d
o

rs
 o

v
e

r 
$

1
0

,0
0

0
 f
o

r 
th

e
 m

o
n

th
 o

f 
N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r

   

1
2

 o
f 
 1

2

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

232 / 300



V
en

d
o

r 
N

a
m

e

 C
o

n
tr

a
ct

 

A
m

o
u

n
t 

B
u

d
g

et
ed

D
ep

a
rt

m
en

t
D

ep
a

rt
m

en
t 

H
ea

d
S

er
v

ic
es

 t
h

a
t 

th
is

 v
en

d
o

r 
w

il
l 

p
ro

v
id

e 
to

 K
H

S

E
ff

ec
ti

v
e 

D
a

te

T
er

m
in

a
ti

o
n

 

D
a

te

J
a

n
u

a
ry

P
o

p
p

y
ro

ck
 D

es
ig

n
s

$
4

6
,2

0
0

.0
0

Y
es

M
R

K
L

o
u

ie
 I

tt
u

rr
ir

ia
G

ra
p

h
ic

 d
es

ig
n

 o
f 

K
H

S
-K

F
H

C
 m

em
b

er
 &

 p
ro

v
id

er
 M

K
T

 m
at

er
ia

ls
1

/1
/2

0
2

1
1

2
/3

1
/2

0
2

1

S
y
m

p
lr

/C
ac

tu
s

$
3

5
,7

0
0

.0
0

Y
es

IT
R

ic
h

ar
d

 P
ru

it
t

A
n

n
u

al
 S

aa
S

 A
p

p
li

ca
ti

o
n

 m
an

ag
er

 &
 t

h
e 

D
E

A
 S

ta
te

 l
ic

en
se

 m
o

n
it

o
r

1
/6

/2
0

2
1

1
/5

/2
0

2
2

H
D

 D
y
n

am
ic

s
$

5
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
Y

es
P

R
E

m
il

y
 D

u
ra

n
C

o
n

su
lt

in
g
 S

er
v

ic
es

1
/1

/2
0

2
1

1
2

/3
1

/2
0

2
1

L
in

k
ed

In
$

5
2

,0
0

0
.0

0
Y

es
H

R
A

n
it

a 
M

ar
ti

n
O

n
li

n
e 

tr
ai

n
in

g
 f

o
r 

m
an

ag
ed

 l
ea

rn
er

s
1

/1
/2

0
2

1
1

2
/3

1
/2

0
2

1

Ja
cq

u
el

y
n

 J
an

s
$

6
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
Y

es
M

R
K

L
o

u
ie

 I
tt

u
rr

ir
ia

M
ar

k
et

in
g
 a

n
d

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 I
m

ag
e 

C
o

n
su

lt
in

g
1

/1
/2

0
2

1
1

2
/3

1
/2

0
2

1

F
eb

ru
a

ry

C
D

W
-G

$
5

4
,2

8
7

.4
8

Y
es

IT
R

ic
h

ar
d

 P
ru

it
t

D
el

l 
5

4
2

0
 (

2
5

) 
la

p
to

p
s 

an
d

 (
2
5

) 
D

o
ck

b
o

lt
 s

ta
ti

o
n

s
2

/2
4

/2
0

2
1

2
/2

4
/2

0
2

5

S
P

H
 A

n
al

y
ti

cs
$

8
7

,0
1

0
.0

0
Y

es
P

R
E

m
il

y
 D

u
ra

n
C

u
st

o
m

 p
ro

v
id

er
 s

at
is

fa
ct

io
n

 s
u

rv
ey

2
/1

1
/2

0
2

1
1

2
/3

1
/2

0
2

1

L
am

ar
$

4
1

,5
9

5
.0

0
Y

es
M

R
K

L
o

u
ie

 I
tt

u
rr

ir
ia

P
ro

d
u

ct
io

n
 o

f 
5

 B
il

lb
o

ar
d

 a
d

v
er

ti
se

m
en

t
1

/2
5

/2
0

2
1

1
/2

4
/2

0
2

2

L
if

eS
ig

n
s

$
8

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

Y
es

H
E

Is
ab

el
 S

il
v

a
A

S
L

 i
n

te
rp

re
ti

n
g
 s

er
v

ic
es

 f
o

r 
K

H
S

 m
em

b
er

s
2

/2
3

/2
0

2
1

2
/2

2
/2

0
2

3

Q
u

es
t 

S
o

ft
w

ar
e

$
9

9
,9

9
5

.0
0

Y
es

IT
R

ic
h

ar
d

 P
ru

it
t

U
n

li
m

it
ed

 E
n

te
rp

ri
se

 S
p

o
tl

ig
h

t 
o

n
 S

Q
L

 s
er

v
er

 l
ic

en
se

s
2

/1
/2

0
2

1
1

/3
1

/2
0

2
6

P
M

O
 P

ar
tn

er
s

$
9

7
,1

5
2

.0
0

Y
es

P
M

A
n

g
el

a 
A

h
sa

n
P

ro
fe

ss
io

n
al

 c
o

n
su

lt
in

g
 s

er
v

ic
es

2
/1

1
/2

0
2

1
6

/1
8

/2
0

2
1

M
a

rc
h

G
ar

tn
er

$
3

8
,5

0
0

.0
0

Y
es

IT
R

ic
h

ar
d

 P
ru

it
t

O
n

e 
(1

) 
li

ce
n

se
 f

o
r 

in
d

iv
id

u
al

 a
cc

es
s 

ad
v

is
o

r
3

/1
/2

0
2

1
2

/2
8

/2
0

2
2

S
H

I
$

3
3

,4
3

2
.7

9
Y

es
IT

R
ic

h
ar

d
 P

ru
it

t
C

o
-t

er
m

ed
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 f

o
r 

al
l 

F
o

rt
in

et
-F

o
rt

ig
at

e 
se

cu
ri

ty
 a

p
p

li
an

ce
s

3
/1

5
/2

0
2

1
1

2
/3

1
/2

0
2

2

A
p

ri
l

C
it

ri
x

$
3

7
,3

5
0

.0
0

Y
es

IT
R

ic
h

ar
d

 P
ru

it
t

M
ai

n
te

n
an

ce
 a

n
d

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 
C

it
ri

x
 l

ic
en

se
s

4
/2

/2
0

2
1

4
/1

/2
0

2
2

S
H

I
$

5
8

,4
6

9
.6

0
Y

es
IT

R
ic

h
ar

d
 P

ru
it

t
C

is
co

 S
M

A
R

T
n

et
 r

en
ew

al
4

/2
2

/2
0

2
1

4
/2

2
/2

0
2

2

T
W

E
 S

o
lu

ti
o

n
s

$
7

3
,1

6
5

.0
0

Y
es

IT
R

ic
h

ar
d

 P
ru

it
t

C
o

rt
ex

 X
D

R
 P

ro
 l

ic
en

se
s

4
/2

3
/2

0
2

1
4

/2
2

/2
0

2
2

P
re

si
d

io
$

4
7

,2
2

5
.0

0
Y

es
IT

R
ic

h
ar

d
 P

ru
it

t
S

ec
u

ri
ty

 P
ro

g
ra

m
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
se

rv
ic

es
4

/2
3

/2
0

2
1

4
/2

2
/2

0
2

2

M
a

y

E
n

ti
sy

s3
6

0
$

9
9

,9
9

9
.0

0
Y

es
IT

R
ic

h
ar

d
 P

ru
it

t
X

i 
L

ea
p

 C
lo

u
d

 S
er

v
ic

es
 c

o
-t

er
m

ed
5

/2
6

/2
0

2
1

5
/2

6
/2

0
2

2

J
u

n
e

M
il

li
m

an
$

5
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
Y

es
A

C
C

T
V

er
o

n
ic

a 
B

ar
k

er
A

ct
u

ar
ia

l 
se

rv
ic

es
 (

IB
N

P
)

6
/1

/2
0

2
1

5
/3

1
/2

0
2

2

D
el

l
$

6
2

,7
5

6
.6

0
Y

es
IT

R
ic

h
ar

d
 P

ru
it

t
2

5
 D

el
l 

5
4

2
0

 L
ap

to
p

s 
an

d
 2

5
 d

o
ck

in
g
 s

ta
ti

o
n

s
6

/2
4

/2
0

2
1

6
/2

3
/2

0
2

5

E
d

ri
g
n

to
n

 H
ea

lt
h

 C
o

n
su

lt
in

g
$

9
9

,0
0

0
.0

0
Y

es
A

C
C

T
V

er
o

n
ic

a 
B

ar
k

er
A

ct
u

ar
ia

l 
se

rv
ic

es
 (

R
D

T
, 

S
D

R
's

, 
ra

te
 a

n
al

y
si

s,
 d

is
cu

ss
io

n
 g

u
id

e)
6

/1
/2

0
2

1
5

/3
1

/2
0

2
2

P
re

si
d

io
$

8
0

,4
1

8
.8

9
Y

es
IT

R
ic

h
ar

d
 P

ru
it

t
N

o
d

e 
p

u
rc

h
as

e 
to

 e
x

p
an

d
 R

u
b

ri
k

 b
ac

k
u

p
 a

n
d

 r
ec

o
v

er
y
 s

o
lu

ti
o

n
6

/2
4

/2
0

2
1

6
/2

3
/2

0
2

4

E
n

ti
sy

s3
6

0
$

9
9

,4
0

0
.3

6
Y

es
IT

R
ic

h
ar

d
 P

ru
it

t
R

u
b

ri
k

 p
o

la
ri

s 
S

o
n

ar
 s

o
ft

w
ar

e
6

/2
4

/2
0

2
1

6
/2

3
/2

0
2

4KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

233 / 300



V
en

d
o

r 
N

a
m

e

 C
o

n
tr

a
ct

 

A
m

o
u

n
t 

B
u

d
g

et
ed

D
ep

a
rt

m
en

t
D

ep
a

rt
m

en
t 

H
ea

d
S

er
v

ic
es

 t
h

a
t 

th
is

 v
en

d
o

r 
w

il
l 

p
ro

v
id

e 
to

 K
H

S

E
ff

ec
ti

v
e 

D
a

te

T
er

m
in

a
ti

o
n

 

D
a

te

J
u

ly

S
o

lu
ti

o
n

 B
en

ch
$

3
3

,8
1

4
.5

9
Y

es
IT

R
ic

h
ar

d
 P

ru
it

t
S

u
b

sc
ri

p
ti

o
n

-b
as

ed
 l

ic
en

si
n

g
 p

ro
g
ra

m
 f

o
r 

al
l 

M
-F

il
es

 l
ic

en
se

s
7

/2
4

/2
0

2
1

7
/2

3
/2

0
2

2

A
B

M
$

9
1

,8
5

4
.0

0
Y

es
IT

R
ic

h
ar

d
 P

ru
it

t
S

u
p

p
o

rt
 a

n
d

 p
ri

n
ti

n
g
 f

o
r 

al
l 

p
ri

n
ti

n
g
 e

q
u

ip
m

en
t

1
0

/1
/2

0
2

1
9

/3
0

/2
0

2
3

G
o

ld
en

 E
m

p
ir

e 
T

ra
n

si
t 

(G
E

T
)

$
5

3
,7

3
5

.7
5

Y
es

M
R

K
L

o
u

ie
 I

tu
rr

ir
ia

F
o

u
r 

(4
) 

K
in

g
 K

o
n

g
 o

u
td

o
o

r 
ad

v
er

ti
se

m
en

ts
7

/1
5

/2
0

2
1

6
/3

0
/2

0
2

2

S
en

ti
n

el
$

4
0

,3
8

0
.0

0
Y

es
IT

R
ic

h
ar

d
 P

ru
it

t
Ju

n
ip

er
 N

et
w

o
rk

s 
sw

it
ch

es
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 a

n
d

 m
ai

n
te

n
an

ce
7

/1
/2

0
2

1
6

/3
0

/2
0

2
2

A
u

g
u

st

F
lu

id
E

d
g
e

$
7

8
,0

0
0

.0
0

Y
es

C
o

m
p

l
A

la
n

 A
v

er
y

R
es

o
u

rc
e 

(A
m

y
 K

ra
m

er
) 

to
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

h
e 

co
m

p
li

an
ce

 t
ea

m
8

/1
6

/2
0

2
1

1
1

/1
2

/2
0

2
1

C
o

n
te

x
t4

 H
ea

lt
h

ca
re

$
6

8
,6

0
0

.0
0

Y
es

IT
R

ic
h

ar
d

 P
ru

it
t

C
P

T
 c

o
d

e 
se

t 
li

ce
n

se
s 

fo
r 

ac
ce

ss
 t

o
 C

P
T

 a
d

d
it

io
n

al
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 A
M

A
8

/1
2

/2
0

2
1

8
/1

1
/2

0
2

2

D
el

l
$

5
3

,9
6

7
.2

2
Y

es
IT

R
ic

h
ar

d
 P

ru
it

t
F

if
ty

 (
5

0
) 

O
p

ti
P

le
x

 5
0

9
0

 M
ic

ro
 D

es
k

to
p

 w
it

h
 4

 y
ea

rs
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 

8
/4

/2
0

2
1

8
/3

/2
0

2
5

W
it

tK
ie

ff
er

$
6

5
,0

0
0

.0
0

Y
es

H
R

A
n

it
a 

M
ar

ti
n

R
ec

ru
it

m
en

t/
se

ar
ch

 o
f 

a 
n

ew
 C

E
O

 f
o

r 
K

H
S

8
/2

4
/2

0
2

1
8

/2
3

/2
0

2
2

F
lu

id
E

d
g
e

$
8

6
,6

0
0

.0
0

Y
es

P
M

L
av

o
n

n
e 

B
an

k
s

T
em

p
o

ra
ri

ly
 I

n
te

ri
m

 S
en

io
r 

P
ro

je
ct

 M
an

ag
er

 f
o

r 
P

M
O

 d
ep

t
8

/1
6

/2
0

2
1

1
1

/1
9

/2
0

2
1

E
n

ti
sy

s3
6

0
$

8
3

,9
7

6
.6

6
Y

es
IT

R
ic

h
ar

d
 P

ru
it

t
R

u
b

ri
k

 b
ac

k
u

p
 a

n
d

 r
ec

o
v

er
y
 s

o
lu

ti
o

n
 o

n
e 

(1
) 

y
ea

r 
re

n
ew

al
8

/2
3

/2
0

2
1

8
/2

2
/2

0
2

2

T
o

ta
lM

ed
$

4
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
Y

es
H

R
A

n
it

a 
M

ar
ti

n
S

ta
ff

in
g
 s

er
v

ic
es

8
/1

4
/2

0
2

1
8

/1
3

/2
0

2
2

T
ri

Z
et

to
$

8
8

,0
0

0
.0

0
Y

es
C

L
M

R
o

b
in

 D
o

w
-M

o
ra

le
s

E
le

ct
ro

n
ic

 c
la

im
s 

p
ro

ce
ss

in
g

8
/2

8
/2

0
2

1
8

/2
7

/2
0

2
2

Z
eO

m
eg

a
$

9
6

,0
0

0
.0

0
Y

es
IT

R
ic

h
ar

d
 P

ru
it

t
P

ro
fe

ss
io

n
al

 c
o

n
su

lt
in

g
 s

er
v

ic
es

 f
o

r 
C

al
A

IM
8

/1
6

/2
0

2
1

1
2

/3
1

/2
0

2
1

T
P

x
$

4
3

,8
3

9
.3

6
Y

es
IT

R
ic

h
ar

d
 P

ru
it

t
S

IP
 C

lo
u

d
 N

et
w

o
rk

 f
o

r 
D

R
 s

it
e

8
/1

2
/2

0
2

1
8

/1
1

/2
0

2
4

S
ep

te
m

b
er

T
h

e 
P

er
is

co
p

e 
G

ro
u

p
$

9
8

,8
8

0
.0

0
Y

es
U

M
D

eb
o

ra
h

 M
u

rr
In

-h
o

m
e 

as
se

ss
m

en
t 

v
is

it
s 

fo
r 

ev
al

u
at

io
n

 o
f 

D
M

E
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 

9
/2

5
/2

0
2

1
9

/2
4

/2
0

2
2

O
ct

o
b

er

A
B

M
$

9
1

,9
5

4
.0

0
Y

es
IT

R
ic

h
ar

d
 P

ru
it

t
S

u
p

p
o

rt
 &

 p
ri

n
ti

n
g
 f

o
r 

al
l 

p
ri

n
ti

n
g
 e

q
u

ip
m

en
t

1
0

/1
/2

0
2

1
9

/3
0

/2
0

2
3

L
am

ar
$

3
2

,4
5

0
.0

0
Y

es
P

N
M

E
m

il
y
 D

u
ra

n
O

u
td

o
o

r 
ad

v
er

ti
se

m
en

t 
(2

3
 b

il
lb

o
ar

d
s)

 f
o

r 
C

O
V

ID
 V

ac
ci

n
at

io
n

 
1

0
/1

8
/2

0
2

1
2

/2
0

/2
0

2
2

N
o

v
em

b
er

T
Y

K
 L

au
n

ch
$

3
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
Y

es
IT

R
ic

h
ar

d
 P

ru
it

t
A

n
n

u
al

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 
L

au
n

ch
 s

u
b

sc
ri

p
ti

o
n

 f
o

r 
A

P
I 

M
an

ag
er

1
1

/1
2

/2
0

2
1

1
1

/1
2

/2
0

2
2

D
el

l
$

5
8

,8
6

3
.6

8
Y

es
IT

R
ic

h
ar

d
 P

ru
it

t
2

5
 D

el
l 

5
4

2
0

 L
ap

to
p

s 
an

d
 2

5
 D

o
ck

in
g
 s

ta
ti

o
n

s
1

1
/1

2
/2

0
2

1
1

1
/1

1
/2

0
2

5

P
ay

sc
al

e
$

5
1

,3
6

0
.0

0
Y

es
IT

R
ic

h
ar

d
 P

ru
it

t
C

o
m

p
en

sa
ti

o
n

 s
tu

d
y
 a

n
d

 s
al

ar
y
 a

n
al

y
ti

cs
1

1
/2

4
/2

0
2

1
1

1
/2

3
/2

0
2

4

N
Y

M
I

$
3

9
,0

4
0

.0
0

Y
es

IT
R

ic
h

ar
d

 P
ru

it
t

(1
5

0
) 

A
d

d
it

io
n

al
 N

y
m

i 
G

en
er

at
io

n
 3

 B
an

d
s 

co
-t

er
m

ed
1

1
/1

9
/2

0
2

1
9

/2
2

/2
0

2
2

D
el

l
$

5
4

,0
1

7
.0

3
Y

es
IT

R
ic

h
ar

d
 P

ru
it

t
5

0
 O

p
ti

P
le

x
1

1
/1

2
/2

0
2

1
1

1
/1

1
/2

0
2

5

E
n

ti
sy

s3
6

0
$

9
9

,9
9

9
.9

9
Y

es
IT

R
ic

h
ar

d
 P

ru
it

t
S

u
p

p
o

rt
 a

n
d

 m
ai

n
t.

 F
o

r 
N

u
ta

n
ix

 V
D

I 
C

lu
st

er
1

1
/4

/2
0

2
1

1
1

/1
/2

0
2

2

D
ec

em
b

er

S
H

I
$

4
7

,1
0

7
.2

2
Y

es
IT

 
R

ic
h

ar
d

 P
ru

it
t

(5
4

) 
V

m
w

ar
e 

li
ce

n
se

s 
re

n
ew

al
 w

it
h

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 m

ai
n

t.
1

2
/8

/2
0

2
1

1
2

/3
1

/2
0

2
2

D
ia

g
en

ix
$

3
4

,3
5

8
.4

0
Y

es
IT

R
ic

h
ar

d
 P

ru
it

t
D

ia
g
en

ix
 v

o
ic

e 
su

rv
ey

 a
n

d
 N

u
an

ce
 S

p
ee

ch
 R

ec
o

g
n

it
io

n
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 a

n
d

 m
ai

n
t.

1
2

/3
1

/2
0

2
1

1
2

/3
1

/2
0

2
4

F
lu

id
E

d
g
e

$
3

1
,9

2
0

.0
0

Y
es

P
M

O
L

av
o

n
n

e 
B

an
k

s
In

te
ri

m
 S

en
io

r 
P

ro
je

ct
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 
re

so
u

rc
e,

 K
ar

ie
 K

le
p

p
er

1
2

/1
/2

0
2

1
1

2
/3

1
/2

0
2

1KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

234 / 300



IT
EM

P
R

O
JE

C
T

C
A

P
/E

X
P

B
U

D
G

ET
JA

N
FE

B
M

A
R

A
P

R
M

A
Y

JU
N

JU
L

A
U

G
SE

P
T

O
C

T
N

O
V

D
EC

Y
TD

   
   

 T
O

TA
L

R
EM

A
IN

IN
G

 

B
A

LA
N

C
E

#
P

ro
je

ct
 N

am
e

1
P

ro
je

ct
 P

o
rt

fo
lio

 M
a

n
a

g
em

en
t 

Sy
st

em
 

C
A

P
 

$
1

5
4

,5
6

2
$

0
$

0
$

1
8

,4
0

0
$

0
$

1
6

,0
0

0
$

4
3

,0
4

0
$

3
4

,4
4

0
$

1
7

,6
0

0
$

1
2

9
,4

8
0

$
2

5
,0

8
2

2
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
B

a
se

d
 O

rg
a

n
iz

a
ti

o
n

 R
ef

er
ra

l S
ys

te
m

 
C

A
P

 
$

3
5

9
,6

5
3

$
0

$
0

$
0

$
0

$
1

0
,9

2
5

$
5

5
,2

0
9

$
7

8
,5

5
6

$
7

9
,8

1
6

$
0

$
8

,1
5

0
$

3
5

,0
7

5
$

2
6

7
,7

3
1

$
9

1
,9

2
2

3
En

te
rp

ri
se

 L
o

g
g

in
g

 S
ys

te
m

C
A

P
$

3
3

3
,9

9
6

$
1

2
,0

3
6

$
1

5
,2

0
0

$
0

$
1

7
,6

0
0

$
0

$
0

$
0

$
1

4
,9

6
0

$
1

8
,4

8
0

$
1

8
,4

8
0

$
8

9
,9

6
0

$
1

8
6

,7
1

6
$

1
4

7
,2

8
0

4
In

te
ro

p
er

a
b

ili
ty

 
C

A
P

$
1

6
2

,0
4

4
$

4
,9

4
4

$
0

$
0

$
0

$
0

$
0

$
2

7
,7

2
0

$
1

6
,5

0
0

$
2

6
,4

0
0

$
2

7
,3

9
0

$
2

1
,7

8
0

$
1

2
4

,7
3

4
$

3
7

,3
1

0
5

En
te

rp
ri

se
 D

a
ta

 W
a

re
h

o
u

se
 S

ys
te

m
 

C
A

P
$

6
7

3
,5

5
3

$
8

7
,9

5
7

$
9

4
,9

3
2

$
1

0
4

,1
1

7
$

1
1

1
,3

6
4

$
8

6
,6

0
8

$
2

9
,0

4
0

$
0

$
0

$
0

$
7

3
,3

6
4

$
1

5
,5

5
2

$
6

0
2

,9
3

4
$

7
0

,6
1

9
6

M
a

jo
r 

O
rg

a
n

 T
ra

m
sp

la
n

ts
 

C
A

P
$

6
2

,0
0

0
$

0
$

1
7

,2
9

0
$

3
7

,8
0

0
$

0
$

0
$

5
5

,0
9

0
$

6
,9

1
0

7
En

h
a

n
ce

d
 C

a
re

 M
a

n
a

g
em

en
t 

C
A

P
$

3
4

4
,0

0
0

$
0

$
1

7
,6

4
0

$
9

1
,9

3
8

$
5

6
,2

3
5

$
5

7
,1

2
0

$
2

2
2

,9
3

3
$

1
2

1
,0

6
7

8
St

a
ff

 A
u

g
m

en
ta

ti
o

n
 

EX
P

$
1

,9
1

8
,4

8
8

$
1

4
2

,5
4

3
$

1
4

3
,0

9
7

$
1

7
4

,9
9

4
$

1
5

6
,3

6
7

$
1

4
2

,0
9

2
$

1
6

6
,2

6
4

$
1

4
4

,1
9

9
$

1
5

4
,4

8
6

$
1

5
4

,5
3

6
$

1
4

5
,2

3
0

$
1

4
3

,6
0

0
$

1
,6

6
7

,4
0

8
$

2
5

1
,0

8
0

To
ta

ls
:

To
ta

ls
 

$
4

,0
0

8
,2

9
6

$
2

4
7

,4
8

0
$

2
5

3
,2

2
9

$
2

9
7

,5
1

1
$

2
8

5
,3

3
1

$
2

5
5

,6
2

5
$

2
9

3
,5

5
3

$
2

8
4

,9
1

5
$

3
1

8
,2

9
2

$
3

2
9

,1
5

4
$

3
2

8
,8

4
9

$
3

6
3

,0
8

7
$

3
,2

5
7

,0
2

6
$

7
5

1
,2

7
0

U
p

d
at

ed
 1

/1
8

/2
2

2
0

2
1

 T
EC

H
N

O
LO

G
Y

 C
O

N
SU

LT
IN

G
 R

ES
O

U
R

C
ES

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

235 / 300





KERN HEALTH SYSTEMS
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

NEW VENDOR CONTRACTS
February 10, 2022

Legal Name
DBA

Specialty Address Comments
Contract
Effective 

Date
PAC 02/02/2022

ACES 2020 LLC
dba: Aces

ABA Provider 
1405 Commercial Way Ste. 
120
Bakersfield CA  93309

3/1/2022

Central California Asthma 
Collaborative

Asthma Remediation & 
Housing Transition

4991 E. McKinley Ave Ste. 109
Fresno CA  93727

Retro-Eff 
1/1/2022

Coastal Kids, A Professional Medical 
Corporation

Pediatrics

300 Old River Rd Ste. 105
1215  34th Street 
9508 Stockdale Hwy Ste. 150
Bakersfield CA 

Existing Providers - 
Ownership Change
Bakersfield 
Pediatrics
Riverwalk Pediatrics

3/1/2022

Corbow Inc
dba: The Papo Hernandez Respite, 
Rest and Recovery Home

Short-Term Post 
Hospitalization Housing

2813 University Avenue
Bakersfield CA  93306

Retro-Eff 
1/1/2022

Expert MRI, PC Radiology / MRI
9802 Stockdale Hwy Ste.106A
Bakersfield CA  93311

3/1/2022

Good Samaritan Healing Center LLC
dba: Good Samaritan Healing Center

Recuperative Care 
(Medical Respite)

229 S Chester Avenue
Bakersfield CA  93304

Retro-Eff 
1/1/2022

Housing Authority of the County of 
Kern

Housing Tenancy & 
Sustaining Svcs; Housing 
Transition/Navigation 
Svcs & Housing Deposits

601 24th Street
Bakersfield CA  93301

Retro-Eff 
1/1/2022

Super Care Inc
dba: SuperCare Health

DME 
(O2 & Respiratory 
Supplies)

3335 Pegasus Dr. Ste. 308
Bakersfield CA  93308

3/1/2022

Western Health Resources
dba: Adventist Health Home Care 
Services - Home Health

Home Health
2800 K Street
Bakersfield CA  93301

3/1/2022

Western Health Resources
dba: Adventist Health Home Care 
Services - Hospice

Hospice
1601 New Stine Rd Ste. 103
Bakersfield CA  93309

3/1/2022

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

237 / 300





 

 

 

TO:  KHS Board of Directors 

 

FROM: Alan Avery, COO 

 

DATE: February 10, 2022 

 

RE:  4th Quarter 2021 Operations Report 

 

 

 

Operations Overview 

 

Kern Health Systems Operational Departments continue to meet all regulatory performance and 

health plan performance goals during the 4th Quarter of 2021.   This continued trend during the 

COVID-19 pandemic ensures provider claims are processed in a timely and accurate manner, 

member inquiries and questions are adequately addressed, and all plan operational units are 

working efficiently and effectively together while the majority of staff are working remotely in 

their respective homes.  Even though we are meeting all production standards, some operational 

areas are challenged due to the impact of COVID.   

 

Claims 

 

Incoming provider claims receipts for the 4th Quarter of 2021 decreased slightly over the 

previous quarter by 27,000 claims.  Our analysis suggests this decrease was in part caused by one 

of the major provider groups experiencing billing challenges.  We are working closely with this 

provider and anticipate this backlog of professional claims will become current sometime during 

the 1st quarter.  Overall, we experienced an increase of 400,000 claims being submitted in 2021 

over 2020 for an overall growth of claim encounters of 13%.  Even though claim receipts 

continue to increase, we are not overly concerned as 98% of those claims are being submitted 

electronically with only 2% of the claims received on paper.  These paper claims are forwarded 

to a local partner (Stria) who scans the paper claims and converts them into an electronic file 

format allowing them to load electronically into the KHS claims workflow.   Once loaded into 

the claims workflow, the QNXT core system processes them automatically. Auto adjudication of 

claims, meaning claims received and processed without any manual intervention, continued at an 

exceptional level of 87% during the quarter.  Improvements in electronic claim submission 

combined with increased auto adjudication of claims has greatly decreased processing time, 

improved quality, and increased timely payments to providers.  The claims department continues 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

239 / 300



to meet and often exceeds all regulatory payment requirements for the quarter-including claims 

processing timeliness and inventory measures.   

 

 

Member Services 

 

Calls into the Member Services Department call center decreased by 7% during the 4th quarter. 

This is consistent with previous years’ experience due to the holiday season and its impact on 

call volume reduction.  For all of 2021, unlike the 13% increase of provider claims received over 

the prior year, Member Services volume remained almost identical to 2020 with 263,000 calls 

received by KHS.  Another notable indicator in the 4th quarter is the increased outbound call 

activity primarily associated with the COVID-19 vaccination program.  We continue to 

successfully manage phone activity by encouraging members to obtain their own personal 

account into the Member Portal.  Currently 44,000 of our members have online accounts which 

allows them to perform all the top five reasons they would normally call Member Services.    

  

 

Provider Relations 

 

The Primary Care Provider (PCP) network remained relatively flat for the 4th Quarter increasing 

only by two PCPs.  From a regulatory reporting perspective, there are 16 core specialists that we 

must continually monitor and report to the regulatory agencies.  These specialists include: 

Cardiology, Dermatology, Endocrinology, ENT, Gastroenterology, General Surgery, 

Hematology, HIV/AIDS/Infectious Disease, Nephrology, Neurology, Oncology, Ophthalmology, 

Orthopedic Surgery, Physical Medicine, Psychiatry and Pulmonology.  In the core specialty 

category, we experienced a net change of 22 providers (5%).  Our complete contracted provider 

network (PCP + Core Specialists + All others) increased by 35 providers, for a total of 2538 

providers.   

 

Another key accessibility measurement is the provider network adequacy component.  We are 

required to monitor and report to the regulators the adequacy of our PCP and Core Specialty 

provider network.  This measurement is based on a provider to member ratio.  For PCP’s, the 

ratio is one PCP for every 2,000 members.  We currently have one PCP for every 1819 members, 

thus meeting the requirement.  For Core Specialists, the ratio is one Specialists for every 1,2000 

members.  We currently are reporting one for every 671 members, clearly exceeding the 

requirement.  Even though we are currently meeting all regulatory accessibility requirements, we 

are continually accepting all providers who meet our participation requirements.  

The last key provider network indicator that we continually monitor, and report is PCP and 

Specialty care appointment availability.  Non-urgent PCP appointments must be available within 

10 days.  We are currently reporting 2.5 days for the 4th Quarter.  Non-urgent appointments with 

a specialist must be available within 15 days.  We are currently reporting a little over 6 days. 

 

 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

240 / 300



Human Resources 

 

During the 4th Quarter, the Human Resources Department continued to perform ongoing staff 

recruitment and new employee orientation to meet the expanding personnel needs of the health 

plan, primarily to support the new CalAIM initiatives.  The biggest CalAIM impact on staff is 

the introduction of Enhanced Care Management (ECM)  on 1/1/22 which is combining Health 

Homes and Whole Person Care into ECM.   

 

During the 4th Quarter KHS staffing increased to 431 employees compared to a budget of 449.  

Employee turnover is 10.83% for the year.     

 

 

Grievance Report 

 

Formal Grievances during the 4th Quarter increased slightly by 32 grievances or 4% over the 

previous quarter.  The category that saw a significant increase during the quarter was for  

Potential Inappropriate Care grievances, with an additional 92 grievances received.  We attribute 

this to DHCS refining the criteria, further qualifying what constitutes a Potential Inappropriate 

Care grievance.  We will monitor this change closely to determine if this is the reason for the 

increase and determine if this increase is the new norm.   

 

Exempt Grievances on the other hand decreased by 89 grievances during the quarter.  Exempt 

grievances are primarily simple service-related complaints, usually when the member doesn’t 

want to file a Formal complaint.  They can usually be easily resolved the same day without 

significant research or follow up.  These include such things as PCP changes or complaints about 

the physical nature of the office or staff.  I believe the reason for the decrease can be directly 

attributed to the increase in the Potential Inappropriate Care formal grievances as these would 

previously be reported as Exempt Grievance but are now being classified as Formal Potential 

Inappropriate Care grievances.  

 

Part two of the Grievance Report is the disposition of the formal grievances.  This report 

indicates what decisions were made by the KHS Grievance Committee regarding the Formal 

grievances.  As the report indicates, 256 Potential Inappropriate Care Formal Grievances were 

forwarded to the Quality Department, 144 were investigated and QI determined there was no 

inappropriate care issues, 103 cases required further review by the QI department and 9 cases 

were overturned and upheld the position of the member, meaning there were potential quality 

issues.  The other major category was Medical Necessity where 266 cases were reported, 199 

cases where the decision of the Grievance Committee was upheld, and 667 grievance decisions 

were reversed in favor of the member.  The Quality Department has not identified any trends that 

need to be addressed. The primary reason for overturning the original decision of the grievance 

occurs when we receive additional supporting documentation from the member or the provider.   

 

 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

241 / 300



Transportation Update 

 

Transportation activity during the 4th quarter followed similar overall volume trends throughout 

2021, with 78,330 rides being provided during the quarter.  The ride programs (GET OnDemand 

and Uber) saw the most unique volume changes with decreased ridership on GET OnDemand 

vans and increased ridership with UBER.  This is attributed to the lack of drivers by GET thus 

decreased availability.  In addition, the Member Reimbursement transportation mode continued 

to receive support by our members.  All other transportation options had minor 

increases/decreases.  Overall, the use of transportation services continues at 50% of pre-COVID 

activity. 

 

 

Requested Action 

 

Receive and File. 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

242 / 300



2021 4th Quarter 
Operational Report

Alan Avery
Chief Operating Officer

1

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

243 / 300



4th Quarter 2021 Claims Department Indicators

2

Activity Goal 4th

Quarter Status
3rd      

Quarter
2nd

Quarter
1st

Quarter
4th

Quarter

Claims Received 853,656 881,263 840,553 827,140 812,995

Electronic 95% 98% 98% 98% 98% 98%

Paper 5% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2%

Claims Processed Within 30 days 90% 99% 99% 98% 99% 99%

Claims Processed within 45 days 95% 99% 99% 99% 99% 99%

Claims Processed within 90 days 99% 99% 100% 99% 99% 99%

Claims Inventory-Under 30 days 96% 99% 99% 99% 99% 99%

31-45 days <3% <1% 1% 1% 1% 1%

Over 45 days <1% 1% 1% 0 1% 1%

Auto Adjudication 85% 87% 87% 85% 85% 85%

Audited Claims with Errors <3% 2% 1% 1% 2% 2%

Claims Disputes <5% 1% 1% 1% 1% 1%

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

244 / 300



4th Quarter 2021 Member Service Indicators

3

Activity Goal
4th

Quarter Status

3rd

Quarter
2nd

Quarter
1st

Quarter
4th

Quarter

Incoming Calls 63,724 69,132 65,968 64,320 61,469

Abandonment Rate <5% 1.14% 3% 2% 1.4% 1.19%

Avg. Answer Speed <2:00 :13 :40 :26 :16 :11

Average Talk Time <8:00 8:00 8:19 8:13 8:06 7:50

Top Reasons for 
Member Calls

Trend 1. New Member
2. PCP Change
3. Referrals
4. Demographic
5. ID Card

1. New Member
2. Referrals
3. Demographic
4. ID Card
5. PCP Change

Same Same Same

Outbound Calls Trend 79,894 69,826 69,608 66,148 63,979

# of Walk Ins Trend 0 0 0 0 0

Member Portal 
Accounts-Q/Total

4% 2605
44,301

(14.23%)

2842
41,697

(14.18%)

2740
38,858

(13.34%)

3062
36,025
12.65%

2948
33,053
(11.8%)

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

245 / 300



4th Quarter Provider Network Indicators
Activity Goal 4th

Quarter

Status 3rd

Quarter
2nd

Quarter
1st

Quarter
4th

Quarter

Provider Counts

# of PCP 425 423 439 417 408

% Growth 2.84% [3.64%] 5.28% 2.21% 0%

# of Specialist 444 422 426 441 447

% Growth 5.21% [.94%] [3.40%] [1.34%] .45%

FTE PCP Ratio 1:2000 1:1819 1:1837 1:1742 1:1798 1:1773

FTE Physician Ratio 1:1200 1:671 1:680 1:620 1:614 1:1571

PCP < 10 days 2.5 days 4.2 days 3.0 days 2.3 days 5.2 days

Specialty < 15 days 6.3 days 6 days 11.4 days 10.5 days 5.7 days

4

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

246 / 300



4th Quarter Human Resources Indicators 
Activity Budget 4th

Quarter  Status

3rd

Quarter  
2nd

Quarter  
1st

Quarter  
4th

Quarter  

Staffing Count 449 431 425 425 425 422

Employee 
Turnover

12% 10.83% 10.38% 10.38% 7.55% 6.68

Turnover 
Reasons

Voluntary
Involuntary

Retired
Deceased

60.87%
23.91%
8.70%
6.52%

66.67
23.24
3.03
6.06

63.64%
22.73%
4.54%
9.09%

75%
12.5%

0
12.5%

85.8%
7.1%
7.1%

5

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

247 / 300



4th Quarter 2021 Grievance Report

6

Category
4th

Quarter 
2021

Status Issue
Q3 

2021
Q2 

2021
Q1 

2021
Q4

2020

Access to Care 131 Appointment Availability 148 90 77 72

Coverage Dispute 0 Authorizations and Pharmacy 0 0 0 0

Medical Necessity 266 Questioning denial of service 329 308 308 317

Other Issues 36 Miscellaneous 18 20 11 14

Potential Inappropriate Care 256 Questioning services provided. All cases 
forwarded to Quality Dept.

164 183 156 200

Quality of Service 55 Questioning the professionalism, courtesy 
and attitude of the office staff.  All cases 

forwarded to PR Department

53 31 8 7

Total Formal Grievances 744 712 632 560 610

Exempt** 1431 Exempt Grievances- 1520 1570 1179 1050

Total Grievances
(Formal & Exempt)

2175 2232 2202 1739 1660

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

248 / 300



Additional Insights-Formal Grievance Detail

7

Issue 4th

Quarter 
Grievances

Upheld 
Plan 

Decision

Further 
Review 

by 
Quality

Overturned Ruled for 
Member

Still Under 
Review

Access to Care 73 47 0 21 5

Coverage Dispute 0 0 0 0 0

Specialist Access 58 27 0 22 9

Medical Necessity 266 199 0 67 0

Other Issues 36 20 0 8 8

Potential Inappropriate 
Care

256 144 103 9 0

Quality of Service 55 32 0 12 11

Total 744 469 103 139 33

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

249 / 300



4th Quarter 2021 Transportation Update

Operational Statistics Q4

2021

Q3 

2021

Q2

2021

Q1

2021

Q4

2020

ALC Calls 63,425 67,680 69,978 77,033 81,672

One Way Rides Scheduled 78,330 75,066 70,643 73,836 79,456

NMT 39,898 37,936 34,256 41,433 46,071

Bus Passes Distributed 1047 1065 833 670 869

GET Van Share 5248 8253 7619 3303 3725

Ride Share Rides 32,315 28,618 25,804 37,460 41,477

No Shows 4320 5103 3669 3156 3640

NEMT 38,162 37,129 36,387 32,403 33,385

Van Rides Scheduled 37,632 36,546 35,797 31,626 32,636

Gurney Rides Scheduled 530 583 590 777 749

Member Reimbursement 1785 2496 2377 1707 1834

ALC Admin Expense $423,776.90 $415,333.25 $387,345.71 $415,080.00 $444,850.78

8

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

250 / 300



 

 

To: KHS Board of Directors 

From: Martha Tasinga M.D, MPH, MBA, Chief Medical Officer 

Date: February 10, 2022 

Re:    CMO BOARD REPORT 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Medical Cost and Utilization Trend Analyses: (Attachment A) 

 

Physician Services: (PCPs, Specialists, Hospitalist, Other Professional and Urgent Care): 

The utilization of physician services by the SPDs was higher than budget for all of 2021 with 

spikes occurring during COVD -19 surges. For the 4th quarter of 2021, the spike started in October 

and tapered slightly in November and December.  The cost per professional visit for the SPDs has 

remained stable and close to budget from July 2021 to the end of the year. This is seen as a good 

thing because it indicates members are using lower cost professional services to manage their 

chronic conditions and not waiting until their disease becomes more acute requiring an ER visit 

and /or inpatient admission. 

 KHS will implement more population-oriented programs in 2022 that would address the physical, 

social and behavioral needs of the members with chronic conditions. This approach to care 

management would ensure timely care at more appropriate venues designed to address specific 

medical and other conditions.  The goal is to see that patients are treated and followed in the most 

appropriate setting which should show favorable outcomes for members using these services. 

The most frequent diagnosis for physician services for the SPDs in December was Primary 

Hypertension followed by Diabetes as a close second.  Chronic Kidney Disease treatment 

represents the 4th highest reason for professional service’s utilization. Again, this may be attributed 

to patients with Hypertension and Diabetes since both are detrimental to the kidneys when not 

controlled. Like SPD’s, these same two diagnoses rank one and two as the most frequent reasons 

for professional services utilization by our Expansion Population Aid Category.  

The Family / Other AID category indicate general examination without complaint and routine 

child health exams to be the number one reason to visit the doctor with immunizations being the 

second most frequent reason.   

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

251 / 300



 

Pharmacy 

The monthly cost and utilization per enrollee for all aid categories is at or below budget through 

December 2021. The management of this benefit transferred to the STATE on 1/1/2022 and no 

longer will be included in this report going forward. 

 

Inpatient Services 

The overall bed-days incurred and average length of stay in the acute hospital for all aide codes 

was at or below budget despite spikes that corresponded to the surge in COVID-19 cases in the 4th 

quarter. However, the cost per admit was higher than projected and this is due to patients being 

admitted to higher levels of care such as ICU.  

In 2022 we expect to see fewer admissions for patients whose care will be managed in the same 

population-oriented programs as mentioned under Physician Services above.  By focusing on early 

and continued treatment, we expect to reduce the need for hospital admissions and readmissions 

for these patients which should impact positively on hospital utilization and cost.    

The top admitting hospitals from July 2021 through December 2021 was KM and BMH  

respectively. (Attachment B). 

The C/Section rate is 17 % which continues to be below State average for low–risk, first birth 

deliveries. For the month of November 2021, most of our deliveries occurred at BMH with KMC 

second. (Attachment C).  The downward trend reflects the delay between births occurring and 

when claims for the corresponding procedure are received at KHS.  The delay between the two 

occurrences means recent months will show fewer births until such time as all claims have been 

received.  The best way to gauge the trend is to look back starting at 60 days.   

 

Hospital Outpatient 

Hospital outpatient utilization is stable even though, as we saw with the other metrics, the SPD’s 

utilization was over budget. The most frequent diagnosis for hospital outpatient utilization in 

December 2021 was Chronic Kidney Disease. 

 

Emergency Room (ER) 

ER visits for 2021 were mostly at or below budget for all AID codes. The most frequent diagnosis 

for the ER for all aide categories is Upper Respiratory Infection, followed by COVID-19 and the 

third was other disorders like Urinary Tract Infections.   

Most of the ER visits are occurring at BMH with Mercy hospital a close second (Attachment D). 

 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

252 / 300



Kern Health Systems

KHS Medical Management
Performance Dashboard

(Critical Performance Measurements)

Attachment A

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

253 / 300



(Includes: Primary Care Physician Services, Referral Specialty Services, Other Professional Services and Urgent Care)

Physician Services

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

254 / 300



(Includes: Claims paid by PBM)

Pharmacy

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

255 / 300



(Includes: Inpatient Hospital Claims)

Inpatient

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

256 / 300



(Includes: Inpatient Hospital Claims)

Inpatient

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

257 / 300



Outpatient Hospital
(Includes: Outpatient Diagnostic, Outpatient Surgery, Outpatient Observation, and Outpatient Other)

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

258 / 300



Emergency Room

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

259 / 300



Dec-20 Jan-21 Feb-21 Mar-21 Apr-21 May-21 Jun-21 Jul-21 Aug-21 Sep-21 Oct-21 Nov-21 Dec-21

BAKERSFIELD MEMORIAL 628 593 549 656 653 643 525 402 456 398 484 350 423

KERN MEDICAL 408 343 369 455 365 408 381 390 452 475 479 441 449

MERCY HOSPITAL 255 262 232 298 332 293 304 279 277 228 211 246 240

ADVENTIST HEALTH 277 266 260 322 309 315 329 329 354 261 293 300 304

GOOD SAMARITAN HOSPITAL 93 68 77 100 88 89 103 98 99 83 95 88 122

Dec-20 Jan-21 Feb-21 Mar-21 Apr-21 May-21 Jun-21 Jul-21 Aug-21 Sep-21 Oct-21 Nov-21 Dec-21

DELANO REGIONAL HOSPITAL 56 56 26 49 65 73 70 54 65 66 75 63 95

OUT OF AREA 277 273 279 346 334 288 366 315 376 362 358 372 335

BAKERSFIELD HEART HOSP 54 54 57 44 63 46 37 44 35 38 35 49 39

Inpatient Admits by Hospital

Attachment B

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

260 / 300



Dec-20 Jan-21 Feb-21 Mar-21 Apr-21 May-21 Jun-21 Jul-21 Aug-21 Sep-21 Oct-21 Nov-21 Dec-21

BAKERSFIELD MEMORIAL 156 140 110 132 117 114 129 132 173 150 141 135 81

KERN MEDICAL 154 126 95 92 83 121 97 73 71 90 96 112 22

MERCY HOSPITAL 43 38 35 32 32 30 38 36 53 48 41 46 23

OTHER 50 38 49 44 31 58 55 39 57 47 50 39 31

DELANO REGIONAL HOSPITAL 24 20 11 17 13 12 27 17 16 31 26 21 14

Dec-20 Jan-21 Feb-21 Mar-21 Apr-21 May-21 Jun-21 Jul-21 Aug-21 Sep-21 Oct-21 Nov-21 Dec-21

VAGINAL DELIVERY 334 289 245 253 229 262 268 242 313 294 289 283 141

C-SECTION DELIVERY 85 63 46 64 45 70 73 53 57 65 60 68 29

PREVIOUS C-SECTION DELIVERY 8 10 9 0 2 3 5 2 0 7 5 2 1

Obstetrics Metrics

Attachment C

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

261 / 300



Dec-20 Jan-21 Feb-21 Mar-21 Apr-21 May-21 Jun-21 Jul-21 Aug-21 Sep-21 Oct-21 Nov-21 Dec-21

BAKERSFIELD MEMORIAL 2,052 2,167 2,163 2,476 2,769 2,978 2,993 3,163 3,491 3,167 2,884 2,778 2,734

MERCY HOSPITAL 1,486 1,541 1,417 1,755 1,917 2,113 2,090 2,221 2,387 2,131 2,007 1,935 1,795

ADVENTIST HEALTH 1,376 1,334 1,210 1,403 1,504 1,641 1,616 1,767 1,783 1,767 1,546 1,476 1,358

KERN MEDICAL 1,304 1,345 1,234 1,478 1,532 1,668 1,736 1,717 1,861 1,751 1,584 1,488 1,469

BAKERSFIELD HEART HOSP 152 157 146 164 179 189 183 173 226 236 217 198 179

Dec-20 Jan-21 Feb-21 Mar-21 Apr-21 May-21 Jun-21 Jul-21 Aug-21 Sep-21 Oct-21 Nov-21 Dec-21

OUT OF AREA 890 821 847 1,042 1,126 1,351 1,317 1,397 1,685 1,474 1,332 1,280 1,147

KERN VLY HLTHCRE HOSP 106 90 97 68 101 121 108 136 157 135 127 92 94

Emergency Visits by Hospital

Attachment D

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

262 / 300



KERN HEALTH SYSTEMS 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT 

FEBUARY 10TH , 2022 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

 

 

COMPLIANCE AND REGULATORY ACTIVITIES 

     

The February Compliance and Regulatory Affair’s Report showing December and January activities 

is included under Attachment A and B to this report.  Attachment B, KHS COVID – 19 2021 

Regulatory Guidance Tracking Log shows current DHCS requirements that health plans must follow 

concerning vaccine administration, payment of vaccine administered encounters and other related 

activities governing COVID -19 and flu vaccines.    

 

 

COVID-19 UPDATE 

 

As KHS enters its 24th month of adjusting to the COVID-19 pandemic new strains continue to emerge, 

with the latest being Omicron.  While the federal and state government continues to push for higher 

vaccine rates, Kern County’s rate continues to lag most California counties.  Kern County has 463,940 

fully vaccinated people as of February 4th, 2022 according to data from DataBases.com.  52.5% of the 

eligible population living in Kern County are fully vaccinated as of that date.   Vaccination rates for 

KHS members continues to lag below the County average although rates have improved since last 

reported.   

 

➢ Hospital Admissions and  Bed Day Trends -  KHS’s COVID -19 related hospitalizations 

continued to increase starting early January.  This was expected given how contagious 

Omicron was and the rise in family and social activities around the holidays.  Vaccinated vs. 

unvaccinated members hospitalized show a dramatic difference.  93% of 2021 admissions for 

adults were members not vaccinated and no admissions were recorded for children receiving 

vaccines.  For purposes of this count, members are considered children to the age of 18. 

Hospital Admissions (2021) Vaccinated vs. Unvaccinated 

 

 

Vaccine Status Adult Children % 

Unvaccinated  967 21 93% 

Vaccinated  78 0 07% 

Total 1045 21 100% 

 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

263 / 300



Kern Health Systems 

Board of Directors Meeting 

CEO Report February 2022 

Page 2 of 7 

 

 

➢ Vaccine Distribution and Monitoring – On September 1st, 2021 KHS started a COVID-19 

Vaccination Incentive Program focused on identifying unvaccinated beneficiaries, educating 

them as to the vaccine’s importance, increasing access to COVID-19 vaccination sites and 

providing incentives to encourage becoming vaccinated.  The Program will continue through 

the 1st quarter of 2022.  Results of the Program’s effectiveness will be reported at a later date. 

 

➢ Return to Work Plan update -  Starting January 10th, KHS implemented its second phase of 

its Return-to-Work Plan.  The Plan outlines steps and timeframes KHS will follow to return 

all employees to the office except for employees with compromised immune systems.  To 

qualify for this exemption, KHS requires documentation from their personal physician 

substantiating their condition and indicating if their condition is temporary or permanent.    

Currently, approximately 25% of the workforce is now on-site.  Phase 3 of the Return-to-Work 

Plan was delayed with the recent surge in COVID-19 cases. Besides the surge delaying our 

decision, still outstanding at the time, was SCOTUS’s ruling on President Biden’s ordering 

employers with 100 + employees to return to work.  The order mandated that employees must 

either be fully vaccinated or required to weekly test for COVID-19.  When SCOTUS ruled the 

order “non- enforceable”, employers were left to decide for themselves when and under what 

conditions employees will return to work.  

KHS witnessed a greater than normal increase in infection among employees that coincides 

with similar trends occurring in Kern County and Statewide.  For 14 months, KHS has been 

tracking COVID cases with employees and have seen spikes in the virus as we are seeing now; 

one example is what has happened in our Member Services Department since 2021.  With a 

staff of 78, there have been 69 reported incidents of COVID with 51 unique employees 

contracting COVID.  12 employees had COVID more than once.  One employee had COVID 

5 times and another 3 different times.  That is a 64% infection rate.   

With the pandemic still being felt throughout the organization, the HR staff continues to  

monitor employee COVID incidents for both remote and on-site employees. In January, we 

implemented a new contact tracing program using wristbands to identify employees within 6 

feet of an infected employee for 15 minutes. Qualified employees were given a COVID test. 

The benefit of the tracing system limits who needs to be tested to only those who meet the 

exposure protocol.  In addition, it isolates our sanitation and decontamination efforts only to 

areas of the building occupied by the infected employee.   

 

The Omicron virus is expected to plateau soon in Kern County hopefully reducing the chances 

for continued widespread infection. After evaluating its trajectory and in consideration of 

employee onsite safety we’ll proceed with planning for phase 3 of the Return-to-Work Plan.  

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

264 / 300



Kern Health Systems 

Board of Directors Meeting 

CEO Report February 2022 

Page 3 of 7 

 

 

 

 

PROGRAM DEVELOPMENT ACTIVITIES (UPDATES) 

 

Rx Carve-Out  

 

As of 1/1/22 Medi-Cal pharmacy benefits are administered by Medi-Cal Rx. Shortly after launching, 

some important issues were discovered which impacted members and providers statewide. KHS Staff 

and other Plans worked with LHPC/CAHP and DHCS to escalate areas of concern. DHCS has taken 

steps to alleviate some of the impacts to members and providers including temporarily suspending 

some of the Prior Authorization requirements. Our internal team continues to proactively engage with 

our pharmacies and is assisting members as needed. Members have reported long wait times when 

reaching out to the Medi-Cal Rx call center. Generally, these issues have been manageable, but staff 

will continue to monitor and engage.  

 

CalAIM 

 

KHS successfully implemented the CalAIM items scheduled to go live on 1/1/22. This includes the 

transition of the Health Homes Program to Enhanced Care Management (ECM), implementation of 

community supports (formerly ILOS), coverage of Major Organ Transplants, and enrolling new 

populations into Medi-Cal Managed Care. As outlined in the 2022 Corporate Project Portfolio, there 

is much additional work that will take place in 2022 to operationalize future initiatives. This includes 

further expanding ECM and Community Supports to offer additional services to additional members, 

taking on responsibility for Long Term Care services, and aligning our Population Health Management 

program with DHCS’ CalAIM requirements. Concurrently, DHCS and internal staff are participating 

in policy development discussions for future CalAIM transitions in 2023 and beyond. 

 

Youth Behavioral Health Initiative  

 

The State Budget for 2021-2022 included five years of funding for several initiatives aimed at 

improving behavioral health services for students. This includes $400 million statewide over three 

years in incentives funding to build infrastructure, partnerships, and capacity for school behavioral 

health services. DHCS discussions through the end of 2021 led to the release of the final program 

overview documents in January. KHS convened local education and behavioral health stakeholders in 

January to begin the process of identifying specific school districts, student populations, and 

interventions to target. This assessment process will take place through the first half of the year and 

culminate in a Q4 submission to DHCS requesting funding for needed interventions.  

 

Expanded Medi-Cal Benefits and Enrollment Coverage  

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

265 / 300



Kern Health Systems 

Board of Directors Meeting 

CEO Report February 2022 

Page 4 of 7 

 

 

 

The State Budget for 2021-2022 included several population and benefit changes that DHCS is 

working to implement this year. This includes expanding Medi-Cal to undocumented immigrants aged 

50 and older by 5/1/22, expanding eligibility to 12 months for postpartum individuals effective 4/1/22, 

and adding both Doula services and Community Health Workers (CHWs) as a provider type by 7/1/22. 

Related to the older adult expansion, DHCS will be sending transition notices to impacted members 

in March. There are an estimated 4,300 eligible members in Kern County. The addition of Doula 

Services and CHWs is still under policy development at the State level. Staff continue to engage with 

DHCS and internally on these items.   

 

 

LEGISLATIVE SUMMARY UPDATE 

 

State 2022 Legislative Session and Governor’s Proposed Budget 

The Governor’s administration released a proposed 2022-2023 State Budget on Monday January 10th. 

This kicks off the months-long process of negotiations which ultimately leads to a final budget in early 

Summer. Generally, the State is expecting budget surpluses and proposes to make further investments 

in many key areas including health care. Some notable proposals include: 

 

• Expansion of full-scope Medi-Cal coverage to all income-eligibility adults aged 26 through 49 

regardless of immigration status, beginning no sooner than Jan 1, 2024. Currently, Medi-Cal 

coverage is available for those up to age 26 and over 50. 

• Ongoing funding needed to continue to implement CalAIM. 

• Additional funding for COVID response. 

• Equity and Practice Transformation Payments to qualifying Medi-Cal providers, to close 

critical health equity gaps; address gaps in preventive, maternity, and behavioral health care 

measures; and address gaps in care arising out of the COVID-19 Public Health Emergency 

(PHE). 

• Ongoing funding needed to implement the Children and Youth Behavioral Health Initiative. 

Notably missing was any specific detail on the future of telehealth flexibilities. This is something that 

was discussed in last budget cycle and is expected as part of the upcoming budget. The administration 

is expected to release more details on that proposal at a later date. Staff will continue to work with 

relevant stakeholders throughout the budget process.  

 

The State legislature reconvened on January 3rd. This is the 2nd year of the two-year legislative cycle 

which means bills that did not pass last year are given consideration at the beginning of this session. 

As a result, much of the focus thus far has been on re-hearing past legislative proposals. That said, the 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

266 / 300



Kern Health Systems 

Board of Directors Meeting 

CEO Report February 2022 

Page 5 of 7 

 

 

deadline for introducing new bills is February 18th and we expect to see many more bills in the coming 

weeks. 

 

KHS FEBRUARY 2022 ENROLLMENT 

Medi-Cal Enrollment  

As of February 1, 2022, Medi-Cal enrollment is 211,120 which represents an increase of 0.3% from 

January enrollment. 

Seniors and Persons with Disabilities (SPDs) 

As of February 1, 2022, SPD enrollment is 16,007, which represents an increase of 0.06% from 

January enrollment. 

Expanded Eligible Enrollment 

As of February 1, 2022, Expansion enrollment is 83,901, which represents an increase of 1.0% from 

January enrollment. 

Kaiser Permanente (KP) 

As of February 1, 2022, Kaiser enrollment is 12,988 which represents an increase of 1.6% from 

January enrollment. 

Total KHS Medi-Cal Managed Care Enrollment 

As of February 1, 2022, total Medi-Cal enrollment is 324,016 which represents an increase of 0.5% 

from January enrollment. 

 

 

Membership as of 

Month of Eligibility FAMILY SPD EXPANSION KP BABIES Member Total

2017-12 170,006             14,084        57,141           7,933         447               249,611          

2018-12 172,290             14,531        58,837           8,371         478               254,507          

2019-12 175,128             15,539        60,503           9,044         429               260,643          

2020-12 191,547             15,559        69,937           10,917       407               288,367          

2021-03 194,777             15,566        72,367           11,370       386               294,466          

2021-06 198,650             15,562        75,081           11,888       395               301,576          

2021-09 201,599             15,548        77,157           12,246       513               307,063          

2021-12 204,483             15,484        78,535           12,671       426               311,599          

2022-01 209,955             15,998        83,102           12,787       446               322,288          

2022-02 210,728             16,007        83,901           12,988       392               324,016          

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

267 / 300



Kern Health Systems 

Board of Directors Meeting 

CEO Report February 2022 

Page 6 of 7 

 

 

KHS Service Area Expansion 

       Analytics were performed in January 2022 due to the large increase in enrollment.  Over 12,000 members 

were enrolled in the plan on January 1, 2022 that were not enrolled in December 2021.  96% of those 

members were new to KHS having never been enrolled previously with the health plan.   

Historically we see the largest number of new enrollees coming from Bakersfield.  For the first time, this 

was not the case.  The area of the County with the highest number of new members was Eastern Kern 

County, primarily from the Ridgecrest and Rosamond communities.  As of January 1, 2022, we have over 

3,000 new members in Ridgecrest.  Most of the new membership were 0 to 35 years of age with the top 

category of aid categories being Family and Expansion.    

 Eligibility Redetermination Remains on Hold 

  The U.S. Department of Health & Human Services’ public health emergency order remains in place.  As a 

result, the Department of Health Care Services continues to freeze Medi-Cal redeterminations.  Thus, the 

Kern County Department of Human Services’ suspension of their “automated discontinuance process” for 

Medi-Cal Redeterminations continues.  The automated discontinuance process was in place locally prior 

to the public health emergency order when Medi-Cal beneficiaries did not complete the Annual Eligibility 

Redetermination process.  However, Kern DHS continues working new Medi-Cal applications, 

reenrollments, renewals, and family additions which only add to our enrollment numbers.  

 

 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

268 / 300



Kern Health Systems 

Board of Directors Meeting 

CEO Report February 2022 

Page 7 of 7 

 

 

KHS MARKETING AND PUBLIC RELATIONS 

 

KHS Sponsorships 

 

KHS will share sponsorship in the following events in February and March: 

 

• KHS donated $1,250 to Garden Pathways to sponsor “2022 Heart of the Country”. 

 

• KHS donated $3,700 to the Kern County Hispanic Chamber of Commerce to sponsor their 

“2022 Annual Installation & Business Awards Gala”. 

 

• KHS donated $2,500 to the Kern County Black Chamber of Commerce to sponsor their “20 

Year Anniversary Celebration and 2022 Gala”.   

 

Employee Newsletters 

 

KHS Employee Newsletters can be seen by clicking the following links: 

 

• December 2021 – Keeping Up with KHS 32nd Edition - December 2021 (campaign-

archive.com) 

• January 2022 – Keeping Up with KHS 33rd Edition - January 2022 (campaign-archive.com) 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

269 / 300



Compliance and Regulatory Affairs Update
Board of Directors Meeting

Jane MacAdam

Director of Compliance and Regulatory Affairs

February 10, 2022

Attachment A

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

270 / 300



STATE REGULATORY AFFAIRS

All Plan Letters released since the December 16, 2021 Kern Health Systems Board of 
Directors’ meeting:

The Department of Health Care Services (DHCS) released two new All Plan Letters 
(APL) and revised three previously release APL during this time period:

• APL20-022  COVID-19 Vaccination Administration (Revised 01/20/2022) 

This previously released DHCS APL will carve out the COVID-19 vaccines and associated   
administration fees from the Medi-Cal managed care delivery system and will reimburse 
providers. Additionally, the APL addresses approval  of vaccines for every California age 5 and 
older and in accordance with CDC and ACIP guidelines, booster recommendations, and face 
covering guidance in response to  variants and population vaccination rates. This revised 
version provides more guidance on booster-eligible individuals such as persons with 
suppressed immune systems and workers, who are eligible, receiving their booster dose.

• APL21-004  Standards for Determining Threshold Languages, Nondiscrimination 
Requirements, and Language Assistance Services (Revised 01/07/2022)

This APL serves to inform all Plans of the dataset for threshold and concentration languages 
and clarifies the standards specified in state and federal law and managed care plans 
contracts. This APL also provides guidance on federal and state requirements regarding 
nondiscrimination, discrimination grievance procedures, language assistance, and 
communications with individuals with disabilities as set forth in the federal regulations.

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

271 / 300



• APL21-010  Medi-Cal COVID-19 Vaccination Incentive Program (Attachment Revised 

01/27/2022)

The purpose of this APL is to provide guidance to Medi-Cal managed care health plans regarding 

the Medi-Cal COVID-19 Vaccination Incentive Program. The revised attachment  updates 

verbiage and achievement criteria.

• APL21-018 Public and Private Hospital Directed Payment Programs for State Fiscal Years 2017-
2018 and 2018-2019, The Bridge Period, and Calendar Year 2021 (Date Issued 12/23/2021)

To support public and private hospitals serving Medi-Cal beneficiaries, the Department of Health
Care Services is implementing two statewide directed payment programs. These programs direct
Managed Care Plans to pay specified Network Providers in accordance with terms approved by
the Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services.

• APL22-001 2022-2023 Medi-Cal Managed Care Health Plan Meds/834 Cutoff and Processing
Schedule (Date Issued 01/11/2022)

The APL provides the DHCS cutoff and processing schedule and covers the period of December
2021 through January 2023. These cutoff dates and timelines are critical to ensuring timely
processing of eligibility files and data.

Continued…

STATE REGULATORY AFFAIRS (continued)

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

272 / 300



The Department of Managed Health Care (DMHC) released two new All Plan Letters 
during this time period: 

• DMHC APL 21-024 - Risk-Bearing Arrangement Disclosures (11/17/2021)

This All Plan Letter requires contracts between a health care service plan and a risk-bearing 
organization to include provisions concerning the risk-bearing organization’s administrative 
and financial capacity, including a requirement for health plan disclosure to the risk-bearing 
organization information that enables the risk-bearing organization to be informed regarding 
the financial risk assumed under the contract. 

• DMHC APL 21-025 - Newly Enacted Statutes Impacting Health Plans (12/20/2021)

In this All Plan Letter, the Office of Plan Licensing identifies and discusses 15 bills enacted 
this session that may require plans to update Evidences of Coverage, disclosure forms, 
provider contracts and/or other plan documents.  

Continued…

STATE REGULATORY AFFAIRS (continued)

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

273 / 300



Jan Feb March April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec

2019 6 3 2 1 2 8 1 2 3 7 1 6

2020 5 3 20 21 6 12 6 3 7 5 3 0

2021 9 2 12 4 5 6 6 9 3 5 5 5

0

5

10

15

20

25

Number of Regulatory All Plan Letters 
and Guidance Letters Received by the Plan

2019 2020 2021

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

274 / 300



COVID-19 Impact 
2021

Regulatory All Plan 
Letters and Guidance 

Non COVID-19 
Related APLs or 
Guidance 2021

73%

COVID-19 
Related APLs or 
Guidance 2021

27%

Percentage of COVID-19 vs. Non COVID-19 
Related All Plan Letters or Guidance for 2021

36

100

71

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

Comparison of All Plan Letters and Guidance Letters 
Received by the Plan for Years  2019, 2020, & 2021

2019 2020 2021

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

275 / 300



Number of Regulatory Reports & Filings

Submissions to Government Agencies 

December 2021 and January 2022

Regulatory Agency
December 2021 January 2022

Ad Hoc Routine Ad Hoc Routine

DHCS 20 11 22 37

DMHC 1 1 4 4

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

276 / 300



Department of Managed Health Care (DMHC)

2020 Non-Routine Survey:  

• The Plan is waiting for the DMHC to provide the Preliminary Report of the Non-Routine 
Survey.

2021 Follow-Up Survey – August 2021:

• The DMHC conducted a Follow-Up Survey of the outstanding deficiencies identified in the 
July 10, 2020, Final Report of the Routine Survey of Kern Health Systems. 

• KHS received the Follow-Up Report on February 2, 2022.  

o The DMHC found 12 of the 13 outstanding deficiencies corrected.

o The remaining deficiency, related to the language included in our letters when 
denying or modifying a request for a prescription drug, will longer be an issue due 
to the transition of prescription drug coverage to Medi-Cal Rx effective January 1, 
2022.

o The Follow-Up Report will be made public on February 12, 2022.

o For a copy of the full report, please email Jane MacAdam, Director of Compliance 
and Regulatory Affairs, at jane.macadam@khs-net.com.

Regulatory Audits

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

277 / 300



2021 Medical Audit – September 2021

• The DHCS conducted a Medical Audit of Kern Health Systems from September 13, 2021 
through September 24, 2021. The survey period was from August 1, 2019 through July 31, 
2021. 

• The Plan received the Preliminary Audit Report on January 5, 2022 and the DHCS Audit 
Team conducted an Exit Conference on January 10, 2022 with key KHS Stakeholders.

• The Plan returned comments related to the Preliminary Report on January 25, 2022 and is 
waiting for the Final Audit Report from DHCS. 

Department of Health Care Services (DHCS)

Regulatory Audits (continued)

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

278 / 300



Compliance Department
Fraud, Waste, & Abuse Activity 

December 2021 and January 2022

State Medi-Cal Program Integrity Unit, US Department of Justice, and the Kern County 
Deputy Attorney’s Office Requests for Information for the months of December 2021 
and January 2022:

Providers:

The Plan received one request for information from the State Medi-Cal Program
Integrity Unit related to potential provider fraud, waste, or abuse during this time
period.

Members:

During months of December 2021 and January 2022, the Plan did not receive any
requests for information from the State Medi-Cal Program Integrity Unit related to Plan
Members.

The Plan is not provided with an outcome in relation to the information requests by the
two regulatory agencies.

The Compliance Department maintains communications with State and Federal 
agencies and cooperates with their related investigations and requests for information. 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

279 / 300



Fraud, Waste, & Abuse 
Allegations Reported to the Plan 

December 2021 and January 2022

Members: 

During months of December 2021 and January 2022, the 
Compliance Department did not receive any allegations of 
fraud, waste, or abuse involving Plan Members. 

Providers:

During months of December 2021 and January 2022, the 
Compliance Department received two allegations of  
Provider fraud from the public. 

The Plan is investigating the allegations. 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

280 / 300



Compliance Department
HIPAA Breach Activity 

December 2021 and January 2022

Summary of Potential Protected Health Information (“PHI”) Disclosures for 
December 2021 and January 2022:

The Plan is dedicated to ensuring the privacy and security of the PHI and personally
identifiable information (“PII”) that may be created, received, maintained, transmitted,
used or disclosed in relation to the Plan’s members. The Plan strictly complies with the
standards and requirements of Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act
(“HIPAA”) and the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act
(“HITECH”).

In December 2021 and January 2022, the Compliance Department investigated and
reported on three allegations of privacy concerns. Two of the three were closed as
non-breaches and one of the incidents is still under review.

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

281 / 300



KHS COVID-19 Regulatory Guidance
 Tracking Log 2021 2022

Attachment B

State Agency
Date Received 

by Plan
Title

Department 
Impacted

Status Summary Status

DHCS 1/27/2022 APL21-010 COVID-19 
Vaccine Incentive

Member Services
Provider Network 
Management
Health Services
Marketing
Finance
Compliance

1. 12/2/22 APL Sent 
to Stakeholders
2. 2/4/22 
Stakeholder meeting 
scheduled

Effective September 1, 2021, participating Plans may be 
eligible to participate in the Medi-Cal COVID-19 Vaccination 
Incentive Program. MCP Eligibility and Participation. 
Attachment A of the APL includes updated language for the 
High Performance Pool.

DHCS
12/28/2021

&
01/20/2022

APL20-022 -  COVID-18 
Vaccination Administration

Provider Network 
Mgmt.
Health Services
Claims
IT- Configuration
Compliance

1. 1/31/22 Updated 
APL sent to 
Stakeholders
2. 2/10/22 
Stakeholder meeting 
scheduled.

DHCS will carve out the COVID-19 vaccines and associated 
administration fees from the Medi-Cal managed care delivery 
system and will reimburse providers under Medi-Cal fee-for-
service (FFS) for medical, pharmacy, and outpatient claims.

Updates include: Third Primary Series Dose of mRNA COVID-
19 Vaccine for Persons Considered Moderately or Severely 
Immunosuppressed, Booster Recommendations, OVID-19 
Testing Requirements for Health and Congregate Care 
Workers, Face Covering Guidance in Response to COVID-19 
Variants and Population Vaccination Rates, Requirements for 
Visitors in Acute Health Care and Long-Term Care Settings,  
and  Health Care Worker Vaccine Requirement.

DHCS 11/22/2021 APL20-022 -  COVID-18 
Vaccination Administration

Provider Network 
Mgmt.
Health Services
Claims
IT- Configuration
Compliance

1. 11/09/21 APL 
update sent to 
stakeholders
2. 12/10/21 & 
12/13/21 meeting 
scheduled to discuss 
APL with 
Stakeholders. 
3. Complete 

DHCS will carve out the COVID-19 vaccines and associated 
administration fees from the Medi-Cal managed care delivery 
system and will reimburse providers under Medi-Cal fee-for-
service (FFS) for medical, pharmacy, and outpatient claims.

Updates include: New language regarding eligibility, Booster 
shots, and  Confirms the continued carve out of vaccines from 
MMC. 

DHCS 11/9/2021 APL20-022 -  COVID-18 
Vaccination Administration

Provider Network 
Mgmt.
Health Services
Claims
IT- Configuration
Compliance

1. 11/09/21 APL 
update sent to 
stakeholders
2. 12/10/21 & 
12/13/21 meeting 
scheduled to discuss 
APL with 
Stakeholders.
3. Complete

DHCS will carve out the COVID-19 vaccines and associated 
administration fees from the Medi-Cal managed care delivery 
system and will reimburse providers under Medi-Cal fee-for-
service (FFS) for medical, pharmacy, and outpatient claims.

Updates include: COVID-19 Vaccine Administration -  
Approves the use of vaccines for every California age 5 and in 
accordance with CDC and ACIP guidelines, Booster 
Recommendations – Changes requirements based on vaccine 
type and age, and Face Covering Guidance in Response to 
COVID -19 Variants and Population Vaccination Rates.

DMHC 11/1/2021

APL21-023 -  Flu 
Vaccines; Preparation for 
COVID-19 Vaccines for 
ages 5-11

Provider Network 
Mgmt.
Health Services
Claims
Member Services
IT- Configuration
Compliance

1. 11/1/2021 Sent to 
Stakeholders
2. Complete

The DMHC reminds health plans of their existing obligation to 
cover CDC recommended immunizations, including influenza 
vaccinations, without any cost-sharing.1 California Health and 
Safety Code section 1367.002. Additionally, the APL 
encourages Plans prepare for administration of COVID-19 
vaccines to children ages 5-11 

DMHC 10/26/2021
APL 21-022 – Continued 
Applicability of COVID-19 
Requirements 

Provider Network 
Mgmt.
Health Services
Claims
Member Services
Compliance

1. 10/26/21 APL 
sent to 
Stakeholders.
2. Complete 

The DMHC encourages health plans should examine their 
administrative staffing levels, the wait times for hospital staff 
to speak with plan representatives when the hospital  staff 
contact the plan, and the amount of time it takes the plan to 
respond to hospitals’  requests for admissions, transfers, and/or 
discharges and that the Plan should take appropriate  actions if 
they find their administrative requirements are unnecessarily 
impeding  hospitals’ ability to efficiently care for patients

1 of 15

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

282 / 300



KHS COVID-19 Regulatory Guidance
 Tracking Log 2021 2022

Attachment B

State Agency
Date Received 

by Plan
Title

Department 
Impacted

Status Summary Status

DHCS 9/29/2021
APL20-022 (Revised)
COVID-19 Vaccine 
Administration

Provider Network 
Mgmt.
Health Services
Claims
IT- Configuration
Compliance

1. 9/30/21 Sent to 
Stakeholders
2. Stakeholder 
Meeting to be 
scheduled
3. 

DHCS will carve out the COVID-19 vaccines and associated 
administration fees from the Medi-Cal managed care delivery 
system and will reimburse providers under Medi-Cal fee-for-
service (FFS) for medical, pharmacy, and outpatient claims.

Updates include: Third Dose of Vaccine for Persons 
Considered Moderately or Severely Immunosuppressed, 
Booster Recommendations, COVID-19 Testing Requirements 
for Health and Congregate Care Workers, Face Covering 
Guidance in Response to COVID-19 Variants and Population 
Vaccination Rates, Requirements for Visitors in Acute Health 
Care and Long-Term Care Settings, and Health Care Worker 
Vaccine Requirement

DHCS 9/24/2021 APL21-010 COVID-19 
Vaccine Incentive

Member Services
Provider Network 
Management
Health Services
Marketing
Finance
Compliance

1. 09/01/2021 
Updated APL Sent 
to Stakeholders.
2. Weekly 
Stakeholder 
Meetings are 
ongoing.

Effective September 1, 2021, participating Plans may be 
eligible to participate in the Medi-Cal COVID-19 Vaccination 
Incentive Program. MCP Eligibility and Participation. The 
Plan's participation in this incentive program is voluntary, but 
strongly encouraged.by DHCS. MCPs that elect to participate 
must adhere to program and applicable federal and state 
requirements in order to earn incentive payments.

DMHC 8/17/2021

 APL 21-021 - Transfer of 
Hospital Enrollee; Order of 
the State Public Health 
Officer Hospital and Health 
Care System Surge

Member Services
Provider Network 
Management
Health Services
Marketing
Finance
Compliance

1. 8/18/21 Sent to 
Stakeholders
2. 9/13/21 
Stakeholder meeting
3. 9/21/21 UM 
submitted updated 
P&Ps.
4. Complete

This APL reminds health plans of their obligations to comply 
with California Code of Regulations, title 28, section 
1300.67.02. That section directs plans  to remove certain 
barriers to enrollee transfers between hospitals when such 
transfers  are made pursuant to a public health order. Section 
1300.67.02 also specifies how plans must reimburse for the 
transfer and continued hospitalization of enrollees transferred 
pursuant to a public health order.

DHCS 9/9/2021

APL20-004 (Revised) 
Emergency Guidance for 
Medi-Cal Managed Care 
Health Plans in Response 
to COVID-19

Pharmacy
Member Services
Claims
Provider Network 
Management
Health Services
Health Homes 
Program
IT - Configuration
Compliance

1. 09/09/21 
Stakeholders sent 
APL.
2. 9/29/21 
Stakeholders met 
and reviewed the 
requirements of the 
APL.
3. Complete

The purpose of this APL revision is to provide information to 
Medi-Cal managed plans on temporary changes to federal 
requirements as a result of the ongoing global Novel 
Coronavirus Disease (COVID-19) pandemic. The APL covers 
the approved 1135 Waiver and other guidance provided by 
DHCS in response to the public health crisis. Updates to this 
release, include: Continuation of Benefits & Aid Paid Pending, 
Pediatric Well-Care guidance including telehealth, 
Transportation,  Return of EDV in 2021-2022,, Initial Health 
Assessments, Quality Monitoring, Programs & Initiatives, 
QMRT returns, Timely Access Survey, and COVID-19 Testing 
Requirements.

DHCS 7/8/2021
APL20-011 (Revised) 
Governor's Executive 
Order

Quality 
Improvement
Health Services
Member Services
Provider Network 
Mgmt.
Compliance

1. 7/7/2021 APL 
update and template 
sent to Jane D. , 
Deb M, and Dr. 
Tasinga outlining 
reporting 
requirements
2. 7/19/21 Site 
Review Tracker 
submitted to the 
DHCS
2. 7/30/21 
Stakeholder 
Meeting
3. Complete

The purpose of this revised APL is to provide information to 
Plans regarding the termination of temporary flexibilities that 
were issued by the Department of Health Care Services 
(DHCS) pursuant to Executive Order (EO) authority in 
response to the COVID-19 public health emergency 
(PHE).Specific areas addressed, include: MCP Site Reviews 
and Subcontractor Monitoring, Annual Medical Audits, Health 
Risk Assessments. Additionally, the Plan will submit no later 
than August 1, 2021, a written plan detailing how the  will 
address and complete any site reviews not conducted during the 
PHE, including projected timelines.  

2 of 15

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

283 / 300



KHS COVID-19 Regulatory Guidance
 Tracking Log 2021 2022

Attachment B

State Agency
Date Received 

by Plan
Title

Department 
Impacted

Status Summary Status

DMHC 6/7/2021 APL21-016

Provider Network 
Mgmt.
Health Services
Claims
IT- Configuration
Compliance

1.6/8/2021 Set to 
Stakeholders. No 
action required by 
Stakeholders at this 
time.

As health plans must continue to cover certain COVID-19 
testing for their enrollees pursuant to federal law, this APL 
announces that the CDC issued updated guidance on May 27, 
2021, which provides clarity regarding when a test provides an 
individualized assessment versus when it is for surveillance 
purposes. On June 7, 2021, the California Department of Public 
Health (CDPH) issued updated COVID-19 testing guidance. A 
copy of the guidance can be found at the website of the 
California Department of Public Health. The updated guidance 
outlines when diagnostic testing, including diagnostic 
screening testing, may be appropriate

DHCS 5/5/2021
APL20-022 (Revised)
COVID-19 Vaccine 
Administration

Provider Network 
Mgmt.
Health Services
Claims
IT- Configuration
Compliance

1. 5/10/2021 
Stakeholders met 
and discussed the 
updated APL that 
was released on 
5/5/2021.
2. 5/19/2021 
Stakeholders 
discussed the Plan's 
COVID-19 
Communication 
Plan and efforts to 
reach homebound 
Members.

DHCS will carve out the COVID-19 vaccines and associated 
administration fees from the Medi-Cal managed care delivery 
system and will reimburse providers under Medi-Cal fee-for-
service (FFS) for medical, pharmacy, and outpatient claims.

*APL Update - 5/5/2021 MCPs should take steps to identify 
members who may be homebound and contact those members 
to determine if they have already been vaccinated against 
COVID-19 and, if not, whether they want to be vaccinated. For 
those members who have not been vaccinated and want to be, 
the MCP should ascertain whether the member wants an in-
home vaccination. After the MCP identifies those homebound 
members who want an in-home vaccination, the MCPs are to 
refer the member to the MyTurn appointment request system 
and instruct the member to check the box to indicate they need 
an in-home vaccination.

DHCS 4/22/2021
DHCS Communication to 
MCPs Regarding Virtual 
CSR/MT Certification

QI Department
Provider Network 
Mgmt.
Compliance

1. 4/22/21 Sent to 
Stakeholders

Due to the continued PHE, DHCS will allow MCPs to conduct 
CSR certifications virtually with post PHE verification done in 
person for the FSR portion (MRR portion done virtually does 
not require verification). Similarly, due to the continued PHE, 
MMU will now offer to conduct Master Trainer certifications 
virtually on a case by case basis only with post PHE 
verification done in person for the FSR portion. 

DHCS 3/12/2021
APL20-022 (Revised)
COVID-19 Vaccine 
Administration

Provider Network 
Mgmt.
Health Services
Claims
IT- Configuration
Compliance

1. 3/16/2021 APL 
sent to 
Stakeholders.
2. 3/29/2021 
Stakeholders 
reviewed the 
document and 
discussed next 
steps. The 
Stakeholders will 
continue to meet to 
discuss the Plan's 
communication 
Strategy.

DHCS will carve out the COVID-19 vaccines and associated 
administration fees from the Medi-Cal managed care delivery 
system and will reimburse providers under Medi-Cal fee-for-
service (FFS) for medical, pharmacy, and outpatient claims.

*Update - Beginning March 15, 2021, health care providers 
may use their clinical judgement to vaccinate individuals ages 
16-64 who are deemed to be at the very highest risk for 
morbidity and mortality from COVID-19 as a direct result of 
one or more severe health conditions, or if as a result of a 
developmental or other severe high-risk disability or other 
factors. Individuals will self-attest to having one of the 
qualifying conditions.

DMHC 3/12/2021

APL 21-012 - COVID-19 
Vaccine Prioritization for 
Individuals with High-Risk 
Health Conditions and/or 
Disabilities

Provider Network 
Mgmt.
Health Services
Claims
IT- Configuration
Compliance

1. 3/12/2021 APL 
sent to 
Stakeholders.
2.4/2/2021 
Compliance to send 
review of APL 
requirements to 
Stakeholders. APL 
aligns with DHCS 
APL20-022 
(revised)

The California Department of Public Health (“CDPH”) issued a 
Provider Bulletin (“Provider Bulletin”) regarding vaccine 
prioritization for individuals deemed to be at the very highest 
risk to get very sick from COVID-19 either because the 
individual has one or more enumerated severe health 
conditions and/or a developmental or other significant, high-
risk disability.

3 of 15

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

284 / 300



KHS COVID-19 Regulatory Guidance
 Tracking Log 2021 2022

Attachment B

State Agency
Date Received 

by Plan
Title

Department 
Impacted

Status Summary Status

DHCS 3/9/2021

APL20-004 (Revised) 
Emergency Guidance for 
Medi-Cal Managed Care 
Health Plans in Response 
to COVID-19

Pharmacy
Member Services
Claims
Provider Network 
Management
Health Services
Health Homes 
Program
IT - Configuration
Compliance

1. 3/11/21 APL sent 
to Stakeholders.
2. 3/30/21 
Stakeholders met 
and discussed the 
revies APL. 
Member Services 
and Utilization 
Management will 
implement the new 
requirements of the 
APL.

The purpose of this APL revision is to provide information to 
Medi-Cal managed plans on temporary changes to federal 
requirements as a result of the ongoing global Novel 
Coronavirus Disease (COVID-19) pandemic. The APL covers 
the approved 1135 Waiver and other guidance provided by 
DHCS in response to the public health crisis.

*Update - This update includes information regarding the 
provision of: previously authorized services when a Member’s 
appeal involves the termination, suspension, or reduction of 
previously authorized services, MCPs must provide APP when 
the member timely files; the AAP has developed guidance on 
providing pediatric well-care during COVID-19, including 
guidance on the necessary use of telehealth during the COVID-
19 pandemic; Postponement of the annual Encounter Data 
Validation activities, and COVID-19 testing requirements 
outlined in the COVID-19 Virus and Antibody Testing 
guidance document.

DHCS 2/1/2021
COVID-19 Vaccination 
Administration Claims 
Data Exchange

IT
Provider Network 
Mgmt.
Health Services
Claims
Member Services
Compliance

1. 2/1/2021 Sent to 
Stakeholders by 
CEO
2. 2/2/202 Richard 
queued the work 
needed for weekly 
disbursement of the 
report to 
Stakeholders.
3. Complete

DHCS notified Plans that it will begin transferring member 
specific COVID-19 vaccination administration claims data to 
Medi-Cal Managed Care Plans beginning on Thursday, 
February 4, 2021.

DHCS 1/6/2021
COVID-19 Codes, 
Effective Dates, and 
PACES Deployment Dates

Provider Network 
Mgmt.
Health Services
Claims
IT- Configuration
Compliance

1. 1/6/2021 Sent to 
Stakeholders
2. Complete

DHCS sent the spreadsheet to Plans to inform them of updates 
regarding COVID-19 codes. It provides code descriptions, 
effective dates, and tentative PACES deployment dates. Please 
utilize this information appropriately for encounters including 
COVID-19 services.

DHCS 1/5/2021

Medi-Cal Payment for 
Telehealth and 
Virtual/Telephonic 
Communications Relative 
to the 2019-Novel 
Coronavirus 

Provider Network 
Mgmt.
Health Services
Claims
IT- Configuration
Compliance

1. 1/6/2021 Sent to 
Stakeholders
2. Complete

Update to guidance provided on June 23, 2020. This iteration 
of the guidance provides details regarding changes to telehealth 
and home health visits and changes to E/M codes for outpatient 
telehealth services. DHCS will provide additional guidance 
regarding both areas at the end of January. There is also 
updates to the FAQ included in the document.

DHCS 12/28/2020
APL20‐022 COVID‐19 
Vaccine Administration

Provider Network 
Mgmt.
Health Services
Claims
IT- Configuration
Compliance

1. 1/5/21 APL sent 
to Stakeholders. 
2. 1/8/21 
Stakeholder met and 
will develop 
outreach for 
Members.
3. 1/20/21 
Stakeholder meeting 
discussed 
communication 
strategies. 
4. Complete

DHCS will carve out the COVID-19 vaccines and associated 
administration fees from the Medi-Cal managed care delivery 
system and will reimburse providers under Medi-Cal fee-for-
service (FFS) for medical, pharmacy, and outpatient claims. 
This approach will ease program administration, eliminate 
challenges with out-of-network provider reimbursements, and 
keep vaccine administration fee rates consistent for providers 
regardless of delivery system. *The APL notes that, "DHCS is 
also seeking federal approvals to pay Federally Qualified 
Health Centers, Rural Health Centers, and Tribal 638 clinics 
for the vaccine administration fees outside of their current 
Prospective Payment System or All Inclusive Rate."

DHCS 12/28/2020
APL20‐021 Acute Care 
Hospitals at Home

Provider Network 
Mgmt.
Health Services
Claims
Member Services
Compliance

1. 1/5/21 APL sent 
to Stakeholders.
2. 1/13/21 
Stakeholder 
meeting. Action 
items - follow-up 
with Kaiser and 
wait for reporting 
template from 
DHCS.
3. Complete

For MCP network hospitals that are participating in the Acute 
Hospital Care at Home program, MCPs are responsible for 
tracking each participating hospital’s waiver authorities, as 
well as the status of each hospital’s approved waiver for the 
duration of the COVID-19 PHE. MCPs are also responsible for 
authorizing acute care inpatient services at home for members, 
as medically appropriate, in accordance with this APL, 
CDPH’s AFL 20-90 and applicable CMS guidelines. 

4 of 15

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

285 / 300



KHS COVID-19 Regulatory Guidance
 Tracking Log 2021 2022

Attachment B

State Agency
Date Received 

by Plan
Title

Department 
Impacted

Status Summary Status

DMHC 12/16/2020

APL 20‐043 ‐ Health Plan 
Reporting Regarding PPE 
and Related Support to 
Providers

Health Services
Provider Network 
Mgmt.
Compliance

1. 12/16/20 Sent to 
Stakeholders
2. 12/29/20 Due 
date extended to 
12/15/20
3. 01/5/20 Report 
submitted to the 
DMHC.
4. 02/01/21 Report 
submitted to the 
DMHC
5. Complete

Pursuant to the authority granted by the Executive Order issued 
by Governor Gavin Newsom on September 23, 2020, health 
plans (including Medi-Cal managed care plans) must report to 
the DMHC information regarding the support they (or their 
delegated entities on behalf of the plan) have provided to their 
contracted providers to ensure the providers have sufficient 
COVID-19 Supplies to safely deliver services to the plan’s 
enrollees.

DMHC 12/16/2020
APL 20‐042 ‐ Removal of 
Administrative Burdens on 
Hospitals

Health Services
Provider Network 
Mgmt.
Compliance

1. 12/1720 Sent to 
Stakeholders
2. 12/18/20 
Stakeholder 
reviewed 
requirements in a 
Stakeholder 
meeting.
3. 12/29/20 
Documents 
submitted to the 
DMHC .
4. 1/12/21 Reports 
sent to DMHC
5. Complete

The DMHC is directing plans to take immediate steps to reduce 
or remove unnecessary barriers to the efficient admission, 
transfer, and/or discharge of health plan enrollees. Reducing 
and removing such barriers will allow hospitals to quickly 
respond to the unfolding crisis and will enable hospital staff to 
ensure their hospitals are operating as efficiently as possible.

DMHC 12/14/2020
APL 20‐040 ‐ Health Plan 
Reporting Regarding 
Network Stability

Provider Network 
Mgmt.
Compliance

1. 12/14/20 Sent to 
Stakeholders.
2. 01/06/21 
Stakeholder 
Meeting
3. 1/26/20 Follow-
up Stakeholder 
Meeting
4. 2/16/21 Reports 
will be due
5. Complete

The DMHC is concerned health plan networks may be 
significantly affected by provider closures. Such closures could 
adversely impact enrollees’ ability to access health care 
services in a timely manner. Health plans must report to the 
DMHC information regarding contracted primary care 
practices identified as “priority practices” as defined the APL, 
closures or sales of their contracted primary care practices, and 
how those closures and/or sales may impact the plan’s ongoing 
ability to provide services to enrollees.

DMHC 12/14/2020
APL 20‐039 – Health Plan 
Coverage of COVID‐19 
Vaccines

Claims
Health Services
Member Services
Provider Network 
Mgmt.

1. 12/14/20 Sent to 
Stakeholders
2. 12/14/20 Waiting 
for communication 
by LHPC, prior to 
scheduling 
Stakeholder 
meeting.
3. 3/26/2021 
Stakeholders met 
and discussed 
APL21-022 which 
aligns with ALP20-
039 and updates 
eligible populations.
4. Complete

The federal Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security 
(CARES) Act requires full-service health plans (other than 
grandfathered plans) to cover “qualifying” vaccines to prevent 
COVID-19. LHPC has flagged for DMHC that this APL 
should not apply to Medi-Cal plans’ lines of 
business/enrollees, since coverage, reimbursement and 
policies on that will be from DHCS and CMS. The referenced 
federal rule also applies to individual and group products – 
not Medicaid. However, the footnote only exempts specialized 
plans. DMHC is following up with their Office of Legal 
Services.

DHCS 11/25/2020
COVID‐19 Virus and 
Antibody Testing

Claims
Provider Network 
Mgmt.
Compliance

1. 11/30/20 Sent to 
Stakeholders
2. Complete

The document provided updates to the COVID-19 Virus and 
Antibody Testing guidance provided in August. The updates 
includes: Additional detail under COVID testing procedures 
and billing information, ICD-10 coding directions, with a link 
to official guidelines, Reference to SPA 20-0025 and the CMS 
IFR regarding coverage of lab tests and x-ray services during 
COVID and any future PHE if the service is to diagnose or 
detect COVID. Also, the documents providers reference to 
FDA approval of self-testing at-home kits, and a notation that 
it’s too soon for DHCS to provide guidance on this.

5 of 15

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

286 / 300



KHS COVID-19 Regulatory Guidance
 Tracking Log 2021 2022

Attachment B

State Agency
Date Received 

by Plan
Title

Department 
Impacted

Status Summary Status

DHCS 9/8/2020 Increase in LTC per diem 
rates

Claims
Provider Network 
Mgmt.
Compliance

1. 9/14/20 Sent to 
Claims to review
2.9/14/20 Robin 
will have staff 
follow their process 
for updating the 
rates in the system.
3. Complete

Due to the Coronavirus disease (COVID-19) outbreak, a public 
health emergency was declared for the United States on 
January 31, 2020, and a national emergency was declared 
under the Stafford Act on March 13, 2020. In response to the 
COVID-19 outbreak, the Department will temporarily provide 
an additional 10% reimbursement for LTC per diem rates.

DMHC 9/9/2020

APL20-32 Continuation of 
DMHC’s All Plan Letters 
Regarding Telehealth and 
previous APL’s regarding 
telehealth

Provider Network 
Mgmt.
Health Services
Claims
Member Services
Compliance

1. 9/14/2020 Sent to 
Stakeholders to 
review.
2. 9/14/20 Unless 
requested by the 
Stakeholders there 
will not be a large 
Stakeholder 
Meeting. 
3. Complete

The purpose of the APL is to extend the effective dates of 
APL20-009 (No material changes between the initial published 
version and the version included in APL20-023) and APL20-
013 (APL20-013 did not apply to Managed Care Plans). The 
APL does  clearly state that the APLs will remain in affect 
further notice and provides guidance for the Provider 
Directory. The APL also discusses the applicability of the APL 
to Delegated Entities. 

DHCS 9/8/2020 CPT Codes 86408 and 
86409

Claims
Provider Network 
Mgmt.
Compliance

1. 9/8/20 Sent to 
Claims to review
2. 9/8/2020 Kelli 
Brower said the 
codes do not have a 
rate currently 
attached. She said 
Claims will monitor 
the codes.
3. 9/14/20 Robin 
will have staff 
monitor claims that 
use codes
4. Complete

Effective for dates of service on or after August 10, 2020, CPT 
codes 86408 (neutralizing antibody, severe acute respiratory 
syndrome coronavirus 2 [SARS-CoV-2] [Coronavirus disease 
(COVID-19)]; screen) and 86409 (neutralizing antibody, severe 
acute respiratory syndrome coronavirus 2 [SARS-CoV-2] 
[Coronavirus disease (COVID-19)]; titer) for coronavirus 
disease 2019 (COVID-19) are now Medi-Cal benefits.

DHCS 8/18/2020

APL20-004rev Emergency 
Guidance for Medi-Cal 
Managed Care Health 
Plans in  Plans in Response 
to COVID-19

Pharmacy
Member Services
Claims
Health Services
Health Homes 
Program
IT
Compliance

1. 8/19/20 updated 
APL sent to 
stakeholders.
2. 8/20/20 
Stakeholders 
waiting for 
additional guidance 
regarding 
pharmacies and 
pharmacists 
participation.
2. 8/24/20 
Stakeholders 
provided a redline 
version of the 
document. Large 
Stakeholder meeting 
scheduled for 
9/2/20.
3. 9/2/20 
Stakeholders 
reviewed the 
updated APL, 
Stakeholders will 
complete Action 
Items. 
4. Complete

The purpose of this APL revision is to provide information to 
Medi-Cal managed plans on temporary changes to federal 
requirements as a result of the ongoing global Novel 
Coronavirus Disease (COVID-19) pandemic. The APL covers 
the approved 1135 Waiver and other guidance provided by 
DHCS in response to the public health crisis.

This version of the APL includes updates : New guidance 
added reflective of new Testing guidance, New resource links 
for Plans - Pharmacy specifically mentioned, New Suicide 
Prevention Guidance added for Providers, reflects July 10th 
letter to Plans, Member Eligibility section updates, Update to 
Encounter Data Validation Project - HSAG tentative 
resumption of EDV Project activities, and , LTC 
reimbursement language included here with additional 
guidance

6 of 15

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

287 / 300



KHS COVID-19 Regulatory Guidance
 Tracking Log 2021 2022

Attachment B

State Agency
Date Received 

by Plan
Title

Department 
Impacted

Status Summary Status

DHCS 8/7/2020 COVID-19 Virus and 
Antibody Testing

Claims
Provider Network 
Mgmt.
Health Services
Claims
Member Services

1. 8/12/20 Sent to 
Stakeholders for 
review.
2. 8/20/20 
Stakeholders met 
and reviewed the 
requirements of the 
Guidance letter. 
Stakeholders asked 
that questions be 
sent to DHCS.
3. 8/20/20 
Questions sent to 
the DHCS.
4. Complete

Medi-Cal covers all medically necessary FDA approved 
COVID-19 tests.. All enrolled Medi-Cal beneficiaries are 
eligible for a COVID-19 test, when determined medically 
necessary. Additionally for all enrolled Medi-Cal individuals, 
regardless of their scope of coverage, DHCS has deemed 
COVID-19 testing, testing-related and related medically 
necessary treatment services, including services rendered 
outside of hospital emergency department, as an emergency 
service to treat an emergency medical condition.

DHCS 7/12/2020 DHCS Suicide Prevention 
Letter for Providers

Provider Network 
Mgmt.
Health Services
Compliance

1. 7/13/20 Letter 
sent to Stakeholders 
- Provider Network 
Management posted 
the information on 
the website and sent 
out a Provider 
Bulletin .
2. Complete

DHCS requests that all Plans send to Providers a letter 
regarding suicide prevention Provided by the DHCS.

DHCS 6/23/2020

Medi-Cal Payment for 
Telehealth and 
Virtual/Telephonic
Communications Relative 
to the 2019-Novel 
Coronavirus (COVID-19)
(June Revision)

Provider Network 
Mgmt. 
Claims
Configuration
Member Services
Health Services
Compliance

1. 6/29/2020 sent to 
Stakeholders
2. Complete

Comprehensive update of Telehealth/Virtual Telephonic 
communication requirements.  In light of both the federal 
Health and Human Services Secretary’s January 31, 2020, 
public health emergency declaration, as well as the President’s 
March 13, 2020, national emergency declaration relative to 
COVID-19, the Department of Health Care Services (DHCS) is 
issuing additional guidance to enrolled Medi-Cal providers, 
including, but not limited to physicians, nurses, mental health 
practitioners, substances use disorder practitioners, dentists – as 
well as Federally Qualified Health Centers (FQHCs), Rural 
Health Clinics (RHCs), and Tribal 638 Clinics

DHCS 6/12/2020
APL20-011 Governor's 
Executive Order (June 
Rev)

Quality 
Improvement
Health Services
Member Services
Provider Network 
Mgmt.
Compliance

1. 6/18/20 Sent to 
Stakeholders
2. 6/26/20 
Stakeholders met 
reviewed updated 
requirements.
3. Complete

This Executive Order provides for various flexibilities in 
relation to state statutes and regulations, thereby allowing 
DHCS to take appropriate actions to mitigate the effects of the 
COVID-19 pandemic - specifically as it applies to MCP Site 
Reviews and Subcontractor Monitoring, Annual Medical 
Audits, and Health Risk Assessments 

DHCS 6/9/2020

APL20-004rev (June Rev.) 
Emergency Guidance for 
Medi-Cal Managed Care 
Health Plans in Response 
to COVID-19

 Pharmacy
 Member Services

 Claims
 Health Services

Health Homes 
 Program

 IT
Compliance

1. 6/12/20 Revised 
(2x) APL sent to 
Stakeholders
2. 6/18/20 
Stakeholders 
reviewed the 
updated guidance.
3. Complete

The purpose of this APL revision is to provide information to 
Medi-Cal managed plans on temporary changes to federal 
requirements as a result of the ongoing global Novel 
Coronavirus Disease (COVID-19) pandemic. The APL covers 
the approved 1135 Waiver and other guidance provided by 
DHCS in response to the public health crisis.

7 of 15

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

288 / 300



KHS COVID-19 Regulatory Guidance
 Tracking Log 2021 2022

Attachment B

State Agency
Date Received 

by Plan
Title

Department 
Impacted

Status Summary Status

DHCS 6/3/2020

Provision of Care in 
Alternative Settings, 
Hospital Capacity, State 
Plan and Blanket Section 
1135 Waiver Flexibilities 
for Medicare and Medicaid 
Enrolled Providers Relative 
to COVID-19

Health Services
Provider Network 
Mgmt.
Member Services
Claims
Compliance

1. 6/8/20 Redline 
version created and 
sent to 
Stakeholders.
2. 6/11/20 
Stakeholder met 
discussed options, 
requested follow-up 
questions with 
DHCS, and an 
additional meeting 
to discuss follow-up 
Face-to-face 
encounters.
3. 6/17/20 
Stakeholders 
discussed the 
Providers ability to 
bill for a follow-up 
face-to-face visit 
after a telehealth 
Encounter.
4. Complete 

Updates 4/22/20 guidance (Locations, Ambulance Services, 
Laboratories, etc.)- This revised notice is to inform providers of 
the additional waivers flexibilities applicable to Medi-Cal 
providers enrolled in Medicare and Medicaid Programs. These 
waivers are in effect, with a retroactive effective date of March 
1, 2020, through the end of the PHE. Where these flexibilities 
affect Medi-Cal billing or prior approval policies, DHCS has 
included additional billing guidance, where warranted, at the 
end of the flexibility, and added applicable website links to the 
additional CMS fact sheets

DHCS 5/29/2020

MedIL I 20-14 Extension 
of Delaying Annual 
Redeterminations, 
Discontinuances, and 
Negative Actions Due to 
COVID-19 PHE

Member Services
Health Services
Provider Network 
Mgmt.
Compliance

1.6/1/20 Sent to 
Stakeholders
2. Complete

The purpose of this Medi-Cal Eligibility Division Information 
Letter (MEDIL) is to instruct counties to extend the delay of 
processing Medi-Cal annual redeterminations and delay 
discontinuances and negative actions for Medi-Cal, Medi-Cal 
Access Program (MCAP), Medi-Cal Access Infant Program 
(MCAIP), and County Children's Health Initiative Program 
(CCHIP) through the end of the Public Health Emergency 
(PHE).

DHCS 5/20/2020

Associate Clinical Social 
Worker and Associate 
Marriage and Family 
Therapist Services for 
Federally Qualified Health 
Centers and Rural Health 
Clinics

Provider Network 
Mgmt.
Health Services
QI
Claims

1. 5/26/20 Sent to 
Stakeholders
2. 6/18/20 
Stakeholder met and 
discussed the 
requirements of the 
mandate.
3. Complete

Pursuant to the federally approved State Plan Amendment 
(SPA) 20-0024, a FQHC or RHC can be reimbursed at the 
Prospective Payment System (PPS) rate for a visit between a 
FQHC or RHC patient and an ACSW or AMFT. The visit may 
be conducted as a face to face encounter or meet the 
requirements of a face to visit provided via telehealth.

DHCS 5/13/2020
Email: Member 
Notification Flexibilities 
Update

Member Services
Marketing
Compliance

1. 5/13/20 Sent to 
Stakeholders
2. Complete

DHCS is not able to allow MCPs flexibility to provide non-
public member notices electronically, as several California 
state laws, for which DHCS does not have Executive Order 
authority to waive, require MCPs to specifically mail such 
written notices to members. MCPs to specifically mail such 
written notices to members. As a result, MCPs must continue 
to follow all current written noticing requirements for non-
public member notices, such as those used for Grievances and 
Appeals, and ensure that members are properly informed of 
their rights regarding MCP actions. 

DHCS 4/30/2020

APL19-017 Supplement 
Quality and Performance 
Improvement Adjustments 
Due to COVID-19

Health Services
Quality 
Improvement
Provider Network 
Mgmt.
Compliance

1. 4/30/20 Sent to 
Stakeholders
2. 5/19/20 
Stakeholders 
reviewed the APL 
and QI stated that 
they were currently 
meeting the 
requirements. 
3. Complete

On March 13, 2020, NCQA released guidance on reporting 
year (RY) 2020 Healthcare Effectiveness Data Information Set 
(HEDIS) reporting. This included an adjustment for RY 2020 
reporting on measures utilizing the hybrid methodology given 
the limitations on medical record collection imposed by 
COVID-19 due to travel restrictions, quarantines, and risk to 
staff.

8 of 15

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

289 / 300



KHS COVID-19 Regulatory Guidance
 Tracking Log 2021 2022

Attachment B

State Agency
Date Received 

by Plan
Title

Department 
Impacted

Status Summary Status

DHCS 4/27/2020

APL20-004rev Emergency 
Guidance for Medi-Cal 
Managed Care Health 
Plans in Response to 
COVID-19

Pharmacy
Member Services
Claims
Health Services
Health Homes 
Program
IT
Compliance

1. 4/27/20 Sent to 
Stakeholders
2. 5/11/20 
Stakeholders met 
and reviewed 
updated 
requirements.
3. Complete

The purpose of this APL revision is to provide information to 
Medi-Cal managed plans on temporary changes to federal 
requirements as a result of the ongoing global Novel 
Coronavirus Disease (COVID-19) pandemic. The APL covers 
the approved 1135 Waiver and other guidance provided by 
DHCS in response to the public health crisis.

DMHC 4/29/2020

APL20-018 COVID-19 
(OPM) Modification of 
Timely Access Provider 
Appointment Availability 
Surveys (PAAS) 
Timeframes

Provider Network 
 Mgmt.

Claims

1. 4/29/20 Sent to 
 Stakeholders

2. Complete

Health and Safety Code section 1367.03(f)(3) and page 11 of 
the PAAS Methodology require health plans to complete the 
administration of the PAAS between April 1 and December 31. 
For MY 2020, health plans shall begin administration of the 
PAAS no earlier than August 1, 2020.

DHCS 4/27/2020
Information on 
Closures/Changes March 
11 through April 24, 2020

Provider Network 
Mgmt.
Health Services
Member Services
Compliance

1. 4/27/20 Sent to 
Stakeholders
2. 4/28/20 
Stakeholder meeting 
held
3. 4/29/20 
Questions raised 
about the template 
on All Plan Call
4. 5/4/20 Template 
due to DHCS (Plans 
may submit sooner)
5. 5/11/20 Provider 
Network Mgmt. 
submits weekly 
report. 
6. Complete

The Department of DHCS needs to ensure that members 
assigned to your managed care plans are not experiencing 
access to care issues as a result of closures/changes (including 
but not limited to provider offices, clinics, medical offices, etc.) 
related to COVID-19. Therefore, the DHCS is requiring that 
MCPs report to the DHCS via the attached Excel template 

DHCS 4/25/2020

Waiver of Requirement for 
Patient Signature On-File 
for Mailed or Delivered 
Prescriptions

Pharmacy
Provider Network 
Mgmt.
Member Services
Health Services
Compliance

1. 4/25/20 Sent to 
Bruce Wearda for 
clarification
2. 4/29/20 Sent to 
all Stakeholders
3. 5/4/20 Per Bruce, 
this is FFS, not 
Medi-Cal
4. Complete

Effective immediately the Department of Health Care Services 
(DHCS) will allow any form of delivery service tracking or 
electronically documented proof of delivery to suffice as proof 
of receipt of a drug or device by the Medi-Cal and Family 
PACT beneficiary or authorized representative.

DHCS 4/24/2020
APL20-011 Governor's 
Executive Order N-55-20 
in response to COVID-19

Quality 
Improvement
Health Services
Member Services
Provider Network 
Mgmt.
Compliance

1. 4/25/20 Sent to 
Stakeholders
2. 5/8/20 
Stakeholder 
meeting. 
Stakeholder 
reviewed 
documents. Follow-
up meeting for IHA 
completion 
scheduled. 
3. Complete

This Executive Order provides for various flexibilities in 
relation to state statutes and regulations, thereby allowing 
DHCS to take appropriate actions to mitigate the effects of the 
COVID-19 pandemic - specifically as it applies to MCP Site 
Reviews and Subcontractor Monitoring, Annual Medical 
Audits, and Health Risk Assessments.

DHCS 4/24/2020
Well-Child Visits During 
Coronavirus (COVID-19) 
Pandemic

Provider Network 
Mgmt.
Health Services
Member Services
Compliance

1. 4/25/20 Sent to 
Stakeholders
2. 5/4/20 
Stakeholder meeting 
scheduled. 
3. 6/4/20 
Stakeholders met 
and discuss 
telehealth options.
4. Complete

Where community circumstances require pediatricians to limit 
in-person visits, this guidance encourages clinicians to 
prioritize in-person newborn care, and well visits and 
immunizations of infants and young children (through 24 
months of age) whenever possible.

9 of 15

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

290 / 300



KHS COVID-19 Regulatory Guidance
 Tracking Log 2021 2022

Attachment B

State Agency
Date Received 

by Plan
Title

Department 
Impacted

Status Summary Status

DHCS 4/22/2020

Information about Novel 
Coronavirus for Medi-Cal 
Transportation Providers 

Member Services
Provider Network 
Mgmt.
Compliance

1. 4/23/20 Sent to 
Stakeholders
2. Complete

The DHCS continues to closely monitor the emerging 2019 
COVID-19 situation, and is providing information to all 
nonemergency medical transportation NEMT and nonmedical 
transportation (NMT) providers as a reminder of federal 
Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) and 
California Department of Public Health (CDPH)-recommended 
safety procedures and protocols to help prevent spread of 
COVID-19.

DHCS 4/17/2020
Medication Assisted 
Treatment and Telehealth - 
COVID-19 FAQ - for FFS

Member Services
Provider Network 
Mgmt.
Health Services
Compliance

1. 4/18/20 Sent to 
Stakeholders - 
Bruce verified that 
is was related to 
FFS
2. Complete

Telehealth FAQ for FFS updated April 7, 2020

DHCS 4/17/2020

Breast and Cervical Cancer 
Treatment Program 
(BCCTP) Presumptive 
Eligibility Flexibilities due 
to COVID-19

Member Services
Health Services
Provider Network 
Mgmt.
Compliance

1. 4/18/20 Sent to 
Stakeholders
2. 5/1/20 
Stakeholder met and 
discussed impacts. 
3. Complete

DHCS is approving immediate flexibilities for Every Woman 
Counts (EWC) and Family Planning, Access, Care, and 
Treatment (FPACT) program Qualified Providers that are 
enrolling individuals into the Breast and Cervical Cancer 
Treatment Program (BCCTP) to limit potential exposure to 
COVID-19.

DHCS 4/17/2020

APL 20-009 Older/At-Risk 
Individuals – Guidelines to 
Reduce Isolation and 
Promote Health While 
Sheltering at Home 

Member Services
Health Services
Provider Network 
Mgmt.
Compliance

1. 4/18/20 Sent to 
Stakeholders
2. 4/27/20 
Stakeholders met 
and shared resource 
information and 
identified efforts to 
reach at risk 
individuals.
3. Complete

During California’s stay-at-home order, older members and 
other at-risk members – especially those living alone – will 
likely need their MCPs, as well as family, friends, neighbors 
and community, to help them maintain basic needs like 
groceries and prescriptions, and much-needed social interaction 
and connection.

DHCS 4/16/2020 Email: E-Mail File and Use

Member Services
Health Services
Provider Network 
Mgmt.
Compliance

1. 4/16/20 Sent to 
Stakeholders
2. Complete

MCPs are approved to utilize a “file and use” approach for 
COVID-19 related emails with the agreement and 
understanding that the information being shared by the MCPs 
is in alignment with information or guidance already shared 
and approved regarding COVID-19 from DHCS, CDPH or the 
Centers for Disease Control and Prevention.

DMHC 4/16/2020 DMHC APL20-016 
Assistance to Seniors

Member Services
Health Services
Provider Network 
Mgmt.
Compliance

1. 4/16/20 Sent to 
Stakeholders
2. 4/27/20 
Stakeholders met 
and shared resource 
information and 
identified efforts to 
reach at risk 
individuals.
3. Complete

The purpose of this All Plan Letter is to offer reminders and 
resources to help health care service plans serve enrollees who 
are aged 60+ or have high-risk health conditions during the 
COVID-19 emergency response stay home, stay healthy, and 
stay connected.

DHCS 4/15/2020

DHCS APL20-007rev 
Policy Guidance for 
Community-Based Adult 
Services response  to 
COVID-19 Public Health 
Emergency

Member Services
Health Services
Provider Network 
Mgmt.
Compliance

1. 4/16/20 Sent to 
Stakeholders
2. 4/23/20 Meeting 
Scheduled with 
Stakeholders
3. CBAS Centers 
have completed the 
applications and 
submitted them to 
DHCS.
4. Complete

APL 20-007rev provides Plans with policy guidance regarding 
the temporary authorization of Community-Based Adult 
Services (CBAS) provided telephonically, in members’ homes, 
and individually in centers, in lieu of congregate services 
provided at CBAS centers, during the period of this current 
public health emergency. **This revision includes updates 
from the California Department on Aging and requirements 
related to alternative services provided during the COVID-19 
health emergency. 

DMHC 4/13/2020
DMHC APL20-015 
Temporary Extension of 
Plan Deadlines

Member Services
Health Services
Provider Network 
Mgmt.
Compliance

1. 4/14/20 Sent to 
Stakeholders
2. Complete

 COVID-19 Temporary Extension of Plan Deadlines 
In light of the COVID-19 State of Emergency, the Director has 
determined that select deadlines and requirements may be 
temporarily extended to give health plans additional time to 
comply. 

10 of 15

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

291 / 300



KHS COVID-19 Regulatory Guidance
 Tracking Log 2021 2022

Attachment B

State Agency
Date Received 

by Plan
Title

Department 
Impacted

Status Summary Status

DHCS 4/13/2020 Follow-up Guidance to  
MEDIL I 20-07

Member Services
Health Services
Provider Network 
Mgmt.
Compliance

1. 4/13/20 Sent to 
Stakeholders
2. Complete

The purpose of this Medi-Cal Eligibility Division Information 
Letter (MEDIL) is to provide additional information and 
clarification for counties and the Statewide Automated Welfare 
System (SAWS) regarding the instructions found in MEDIL I 
20-07. MEDIL I 20-07 directs counties to delay processing of 
Medi-Cal annual renewals, and defer discontinuances and 
negative actions based on the declared State and National 
Emergency due to the COVID-19 public health crisis.

DHCS 4/3/2020

Every Woman Counts 
(EWC) Primary Care 
Provider (PCP)
Information Notice
Program

Member Services
Health Services
Provider Network 
Mgmt.
Compliance

1. 4/10/20 Sent to 
Stakeholders
2. 4/10/20 
Stakeholders 
reviewed analytics
3. 4/24/20 
Stakeholder 
reviewed the 
Guidance in 
meeting.
4. Complete

It is critical that EWC providers assess their office policies and 
follow recommended safety procedures and protocols from the 
federal Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) and 
California Department of Public Health (CDPH) to help 
prevent the spread of the virus. The Guidance provides 
information on enrollment and re-certification.

DHCS 4/10/2020

Update Provision of Care 
in Alternative Settings, 
Hospital Capacity, and 
Blanket Section 1135 
Waiver Flexibilities for 
Medicare and Medicaid 
Enrolled Providers Relative 
to COVID-19

Member Services
Health Services
Provider Network 
Mgmt.
Compliance

1. 4/10/20 Sent to 
Stakeholders
2. 4/15/20 
Stakeholder 
reviewed the 
updated guidance 
and made changes 
as needed.
3. Complete

This revised notice is to inform providers of the additional 
waivers flexibilities applicable to Medi-Cal providers enrolled 
in Medicare and Medicaid Programs. These waivers are in 
effect, with a retroactive effective date of March 1, 2020, 
through the end of the PHE. Where these flexibilities affect 
Medi-Cal billing or prior approval policies, DHCS has included 
additional billing guidance, where warranted, at the end of the 
flexibility, and added applicable website links to the additional 
CMS fact sheets

DHCS 4/9/2020

“File and Use” Approach 
for Robocall and Phone 
Call Campaigns, Printed 
Mailer Communications

Member Services
Health Services
Provider Network 
Mgmt.
Compliance

1. 4/9/20 Sent to 
Stakeholders
2. Complete

DHCS is approving the “file and use” approach for robocall 
and phone call campaigns and printed mailer communications 
in response to COVID-19. MCPs are approved to utilize a “file 
and use” approach for these COVID-19 related robocalls, 
phone call campaigns and printed mailer  communications in 
response to COVID-19 with the agreement and understanding 
that the information being shared by the MCPs is in alignment 
with the Plans’ already approved Emergency Call Scripts

DHCS 4/8/2020
Coverage of Emergency 
COVID-19 Inpatient or 
Outpatient Services

Member Services
Health Services
Provider Network 
Mgmt.
Compliance

1. 4/10/20 Sent to 
Stakeholders
2. 4/14/20 
Stakeholders met 
and discussed limits 
of some Medi-Cal 
programs and 
implementation of 
Guidance.
3. Complete

The guidance states that all enrolled Medi-Cal beneficiaries, 
regardless of their scope of coverage under Medi-Cal or 
documentation status, are entitled to all inpatient and outpatient 
services necessary for the testing and treatment of COVID-19 
as certified by the attending physician. The guidance also 
provides billing information.

DMHC 4/7/2020
APL 20-014 Mitigating 
Negative Health Outcomes 
due to COVID-19

Member Services
Health Services
Provider Network 
Mgmt.
Compliance

1. 4/10/20 Sent to 
 Stakeholders

2. 4/15/20 
Stakeholders met 
and discussed the 
Plan's approach to 
mitigating negative 
health outcomes.
3. Complete

The purpose of this All Plan Letter is to offer reminders and 
resources to help health care service plans serve enrollees and 
mitigate negative health outcomes to members due to the 
COVID-19 emergency.

DHCS 4/7/2020

APL20-008  Mitigating 
Health Impacts of 
Secondary Stress due to 
COVID-19 Emergency

Member Services
Health Services
Provider Network 
Mgmt.
Compliance

1. 4/10/20 Sent to 
Stakeholders
2. 4/15/20 
Stakeholders met 
and discussed the 
Plan's approach to 
mitigating negative 
health outcomes.
3. Complete

The purpose of this All Plan Letter is to offer recommendations 
to Medi-Cal managed care health plans on mitigating negative 
health outcomes to members due to the COVID-19 emergency.

11 of 15

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

292 / 300



KHS COVID-19 Regulatory Guidance
 Tracking Log 2021 2022

Attachment B

State Agency
Date Received 

by Plan
Title

Department 
Impacted

Status Summary Status

DHCS 4/7/2020 Telehealth Services 
Guidance email

Member Services
Health Services
Provider Network 
Mgmt.
Compliance

1. 4/10/20 Sent to 
Stakeholders
2. 4/13/20 
Stakeholders met 
and discussed the 
Provider Bulletin 
and Provider 
Network Mgmt.'s 
outreach to 
FQHCs/RHCs
3. Complete

Although the DHCS’ Section 1135 Waiver has not yet been 
approved, DHCS has instructed all Medi-Cal providers, 
including for FQHCs, RHCs, and IHS clinics,  to implement 
the guidance relative to telehealth and virtual/telephonic 
communication modalities immediately in light of COVID-19. 

DHCS 4/3/2020 1135 Waiver (4/3/20)

Member Services
Health Services
Provider Network 
Mgmt.
Compliance

1. 4/7/20 Sent to 
Stakeholders
2. Complete

1135 Waiver (4/3/20) request that will provide the State with 
greater flexibility in managing the COVID-19 health crisis. 
Included in the Waiver is language that clarifies the parameters 
for telehealth and telephonic services provided by RHCs and 
FQHCs.

DHCS 4/1/2020 Use of Telehealth During 
COVID-19 Emergency

Member Services
Health Services
Provider Network 
Mgmt.
Compliance

1. 4/1/20 Sent to 
Stakeholders.
2. Complete

An email from DHCS reminding Plans of the changes to 
telehealth services, including; communication methods, 
HIPAA issues, and the use of telehealth by FQHCs and RHCs. 

DHCS 3/30/2020

DHCS Releases Guidance 
Related to “File and Use” 
of Texting Campaign 
Requests Related to 
COVID-19 

Member Services
Health Services
Provider Network 
Mgmt.
Compliance

1. 3/30/20 Sent 
documents to 
Stakeholders
2. 4/1/20 Meeting 
scheduled to discuss 
DHCS comments.
3. 4/6/20 KHS has 
documents that 
require approval by 
DHCS prior to 
moving forward. 
Compliance will ask 
DHCS to approve 
documents that 
were submitted in 
December 2019.
4. Complete

For Plans that have any prior approved texting campaigns on 
file with DHCS (as of June 18, 2019, forward) to submit a new 
request related to COVID-19 for “file and use.”  For those 
MCPs that do not have an approved texting campaign on file 
with the DHCS, DHCS indicates it cannot approve “file and 
use” but will make every effort to expedite review of the 
submission once received.  

DHCS 3/30/2020

APL20-007 Policy 
Guidance for Community-
based Adult Services in 
Response to COVID-19 
Public Health Emergency

Member Services
Health Services
Provider Network 
Mgmt.
Compliance

1. 3/30 /20 APL 
sent to Stakeholders
2. 4/3/20 Meeting 
scheduled to review 
the APL
3. Complete

APL 20-007 provides Plans with policy guidance regarding the 
temporary authorization of Community-Based Adult Services 
(CBAS) provided telephonically, in members’ homes, and 
individually in centers, in lieu of congregate services provided 
at CBAS centers, during the period of this current public health 
emergency. The APL outlines mechanisms by which CBAS 
centers may continue to provide services to CBAS members 
now remaining at home.  The APL also addresses 
reimbursement for these temporary services, as well as 
reporting requirements for CBAS centers

DHCS 3/30/2020

Guidance Relating to Non-
Discrimination in Medical 
Treatment for Novel 
Coronavirus 2019 (COVID-
19)

Member Services
Health Services
Provider Network 
Mgmt.
Compliance

1. 3/30/20 Sent to 
Stakeholders
2. 4/3/20 Heather 
met with Melissa, 
Robin DM, and 
discussed language 
for Provider 
Bulletin.
3. 4/9/20 
Compliance is 
drafting and 
updating potential 
language for 
Provider Network 
Mgmt.'s Provider 
Bulletin .
4. Complete

DHCS reminds providers that no person, on the basis of 
mental, developmental, intellectual, or physical disability or a 
perceived disability, may be unlawfully denied full and equal 
access to the benefits of Medi-Cal services, including the 
receipt of COVID-19 treatment, in the event of limited hospital 
or other health care facility resources and/or capacity.

12 of 15

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

293 / 300



KHS COVID-19 Regulatory Guidance
 Tracking Log 2021 2022

Attachment B

State Agency
Date Received 

by Plan
Title

Department 
Impacted

Status Summary Status

DHCS 3/28/2020

Provision of Care in 
Alternative Settings, 
Hospital Capacity, and 
Blanket 1135 Waiver 
Flexibilities  - Mar 27, 2020

Member Services
Health Services
Provider Network 
Mgmt.
Compliance

1. 3/30/20 Sent to 
all Stakeholders 
2. 4/3/20 
Stakeholders 
reviewed 
requirements and 
found no 
impediments to 
implementation
3. Complete.

The 1135 Waiver relaxes several rules, including: 
reimbursement to unlicensed facilities under certain conditions, 
removes restrictions from Critical Access Hospitals, and 
address the  requirement for qualifying hospital stay prior to 
SNF authorization.

DMHC 3/27/2020
APL20-012 Health Plan 
Actions to Reach 
Vulnerable Populations

Member Services
Health Services
Provider Network 
Mgmt.
Compliance

1. 3/30/20 Carmen 
working with 
Stakeholders to 
complete required 
submission on 
3/31/20
2. Complete

Health Plans should be actively engaging with vulnerable 
populations. By March 31, 2020, each health plan to which this 
All Plan Letter applies shall file with the Department of 
Managed Health Care (DMHC): A description of the steps the 
health plan has taken or is taking to contact (1) enrollees over 
age 65 and approximately how many enrollees the Health Plan 
has contacted in each category provided by the DMHC.

DHCS 3/27/2020

APL 20-004 Emergency 
Guidance for Medi-Cal 
Managed Care Health 
Plans   - Mar 27, 2020

Member Services
Health Services
Provider Network 
Mgmt.
Compliance

1. Sent to all 
Stakeholders on 
3/30/20
2. 4/7/20 
Stakeholders met 
and reviewed the 
APL. There were no 
impediments to 
implementation.
3. Complete

Highlights the flexibilities included in the approved 1135 
Wavier,  including: State Fair Hearings, Provider Enrollment, 
Prior Authorization, Reimbursement of COVID-19 Testing, 
and Provision of Care in Alternate Settings. 

DHCS 3/27/2020
Guidance for Emergency 
Medi-Cal Provider 
Enrollment   

Member Services
Health Services
Provider Network 
Mgmt.
Compliance

1. 3/26/20 Sent to 
Stakeholders 
2. 3/27/20 
Compliance met 
with Stakeholders - 
The Plan is ready to 
follow the guidance 
if needed. Will 
potentially be used 
for telehealth.
3. Complete

DHCS is establishing requirements and procedures to suspend 
certain provider enrollment requirements in order to facilitate 
greater beneficiary access to care. After the crisis the Providers 
will have to go back and enroll through the normal process.

DHCS 3/26/2020

 State Fair Hearing 
Timeframe Change -
 Managed Care - Mar 26, 
2020 - Supplement to All 
Plan Letter 17-006

Member Services
Health Services
Provider Network 
Mgmt.
Compliance

1. 3/26/20 Sent to 
Stakeholders 
2. 3/27/20 
Compliance met 
with Stakeholders
3. 4/1/20 
Compliance met 
with stakeholders.
4. 04/8/2020 DHCS 
approved letter 
language. 
Stakeholders 
implementing 
guidance.
5. Complete

The March 23, 2020, Section 1135 Waiver approval 
temporarily extends the timeframe and allows beneficiaries to 
have more than 90 days, up to an additional 120 days, for an 
eligibility or FFS appeal to request a State Fair Hearing. 
Specifically, individuals for whom the 90-day deadline would 
have occurred between March 1, 2020, through the end of the 
COVID-19 public health emergency, are now allowed up to an 
additional 120 days to request a State Fair Hearing (i.e. initial 
90 day timeframe plus an additional 120 days, for a total of up 
to 210 days). All other existing State Fair Hearing processes 
remain unchanged.

DHCS 3/19/2020 COVID-19 Lab Tests are 
New Medi-Cal Benefits

Member Services
Health Services
Provider Network 
Mgmt.
Compliance

1. 3/27/20 Sent to 
Claims - Robin sent 
an IR when the 
codes were first 
announced. Config 
has updated.
2. Complete

From the Medi-Cal website, provides testing codes for COVID-
19

13 of 15

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

294 / 300



KHS COVID-19 Regulatory Guidance
 Tracking Log 2021 2022

Attachment B

State Agency
Date Received 

by Plan
Title

Department 
Impacted

Status Summary Status

DMHC 3/18/2020

APL20-008 Provision of 
Health Care Services 
During Self Isolation 
Orders

Member Services
Health Services
Provider Network 
Mgmt.
Compliance

1. 4/2/20 Sent to 
Stakeholders
2. 4/6/20 
Stakeholder 
reviewed APL and 
are working to 
implement the 
requirements. 
3. Complete

Plans were provided guidance for the provision of Health Care 
Services During Self Isolation Orders.

DHCS 3/18/2020

Medi-Cal Payment for 
Telehealth and 
Virtual/Telephonic 
Communications Relative 
to the 2019-Novel 
Coronavirus (COVID-19) 
v.3

Member Services
Health Services
Provider Network 
Mgmt.
Compliance

1. Sent 3/19/20 Sent 
to Stakeholders
2. 3/20/20 Met with 
Stakeholders
3. 3/23/20 Met with 
Stakeholders - 
Action Items 
include an updated 
Provider Bulletin, 
implementation of 
new codes and 
rates. 
4. 3/30/20 Robin 
DM put in IR for 
codes.
5. Complete

The Bulletin provides new codes and rates for 
telehealth/telephonic encounters. Additionally, it addresses the 
potential relaxing of the telehealth requirements for FQHCs 
and RHCs.

DMHC 3/18/2020
APL 20-009 (OPL) - 
Reimbursement for 
Telehealth Services 

Member Services
Health Services
Provider Network 
Mgmt.
Compliance

1. 3/18/20 
Compliance 
reviewed the APL 
and conferred with 
Provider Network 
Mgmt. and 
concluded that 
current KHS P&Ps 
support the APLs 
requirements and 
does impede the 
implementation of 
APL.
2. Complete

Effective  immediately, Plans must comply with the following: 
shall reimburse providers at the same rate or services provided 
via telehealth, a health plan may not subject enrollees to cost-
sharing greater than the same cost-sharing if the service were 
provided in person, and Plans shall provide the same amount of 
reimbursement for a service rendered via telephone as they 
would if the service is rendered via video provided the 
modality by which the service is rendered (telephone versus 
video) is medically appropriate for the enrollee.

DHCS 3/18/2020

Medi-Cal Payment for 
Medical Services Related 
to the 2019-Novel 
Coronavirus (COVID-19) - 
Supplemental to APL19-
006

Member Services
Health Services
Provider Network 
Mgmt.
Compliance

1. Sent 3/19/20 Sent 
to Stakeholders
2. 3/20/20 Met with 
Stakeholders
3. 3/23/20 Met with 
Stakeholders - 
Action items 
completed 
including; 
Configuration and 
creation of a 
Provider Bulletin.
4. Complete

Unless otherwise agreed to by the MCP and provider, MCPs 
must reimburse providers at the same rate, whether a service is 
provided in-person or through telehealth, if the service is the 
same regardless of the modality of delivery and Plan MCPs 
must provide the same amount of reimbursement for a service 
rendered via telephone as they would if the service is rendered 
via video.

DHCS 3/17/2020
MEDIL I 20-07 Access to 
Care During Public Health 
Crisis or Disaster

Member Services
Health Services
Provider Network 
Mgmt.
Compliance

1. Sent to 
Stakeholders on 
3/30/20
2. Complete

Directive to County Agencies to continue to provide benefits 
beyond the certification period, as needed, to provide 
additional time to submit renewals or verifications, and Modify 
eligibility requirements at application or renewal to allow for 
self-attest

DHCS 3/16/2020

Medi-Cal Payment for 
Medical Services Related 
to the 2019-Novel 
Coronavirus (COVID-19)

Member Services
Health Services
Provider Network 
Mgmt.
Compliance

1. 3/30/20 Sent to 
Stakeholders
2. Complete

Provides guidance for Medi-Cal providers of existing state and 
federal laws requiring Medi-Cal providers to ensure their 
patients do not experience barriers. Discusses telehealth as it 
relates to providing services timely. 

DHCS 3/14/2020 COVID-19 Guidance for 
NEMT and NMT Providers

Member Services
Health Services
Provider Network 
Mgmt.
Compliance

1. Sent to 
Stakeholders on 
4/1/20
2. Complete

Provides  information to all non-emergency medical 
transportation (NEMT) and non-medical transportation (NMT) 
providers as regarding recommended safety procedures and 
protocols to help prevent spread of COVID-19.

14 of 15

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

295 / 300



KHS COVID-19 Regulatory Guidance
 Tracking Log 2021 2022

Attachment B

State Agency
Date Received 

by Plan
Title

Department 
Impacted

Status Summary Status

DMHC 3/12/2020
APL 20-007 (OPL) “Social 
Distancing” Measures in 
Response to COVID-19

Member Services
Health Services
Provider Network 
Mgmt.
Compliance

1. 3/16/20 APL sent 
to Stakeholders
2. Stakeholders 
reviewed APL and 
implemented 
requirements on 
3/18/20
3. Complete

Describes how health plans can assist with medically 
appropriate social distancing in the delivery of health care 
services for the duration of the state of emergency proclaimed 
by the Governor

DHCS 3/12/2020
MEDIL I 20-06 Public 
Health Crisis or Disaster 
Reminders for Medi-Cal   

Member Services
Health Services
Provider Network 
Mgmt.
Compliance

1. Sent to 
Stakeholders on 
3/30/20
2. Complete

Directive to County Agencies to continue to provide benefits 
beyond the certification period, as needed, to provide 
additional time to submit renewals or verifications, and Modify 
eligibility requirements at application or renewal to allow for 
self-attestation

DMHC 3/6/2020 APL20-006 COVID-19 
Screening and Testing

Member Services
Health Services
Provider Network 
Mgmt.
Compliance

1. Sent to 
Stakeholders on 
3/6/20
2. Stakeholders met 
and reviewed the 
APL's requirements.
3. Complete

The APL reminds Plans to provide timely access to services 
during the emergency. Specifically, Covering all medically 
necessary emergency care without prior authorization, whether 
that care is provided by an in-network or out-of-network 
provider.

15 of 15

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

296 / 300



 

SUMMARY  
 

FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING  
 

KERN HEALTH SYSTEMS 
2900 Buck Owens Boulevard 
Bakersfield, California 93308 

 
Friday, December 10, 2021  

 
8:00 A.M. 

 
 
COMMITTEE RECONVENED 

 
Members: Deats, Martinez, McGlew, Melendez, Rhoades 
ROLL CALL: 4 Present; 1 Absent - Melendez 
 
NOTE: The vote is displayed in bold below each item.  For example, Rhoades-Deats denotes 
Director Rhoades made the motion and Director Deats seconds the motion. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA/OPPORTUNITY FOR PUBLIC COMMENT:  ALL ITEMS LISTED WITH A 
“CA” WERE CONSIDERED TO BE ROUTINE AND APPROVED BY ONE MOTION. 
 
COMMITTEE ACTION SHOWN IN CAPS 

 
 

PUBLIC PRESENTATIONS 
 

1) This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons to address the Committee on any 
matter not on this agenda but under the jurisdiction of the Committee. Committee 
members may respond briefly to statements made or questions posed. They may ask a 
question for clarification, make a referral to staff for factual information or request staff to 
report back to the Committee at a later meeting. Also, the Committee may take action to 
direct the staff to place a matter of business on a future agenda. SPEAKERS ARE 
LIMITED TO TWO MINUTES. PLEASE STATE AND SPELL YOUR NAME BEFORE 
MAKING YOUR PRESENTATION. THANK YOU! 
NO ONE HEARD 

 
 

COMMITTEE MEMBER ANNOUNCEMENTS OR REPORTS 
 

2) On their own initiative, Committee members may make an announcement or a report on 
their own activities. They may ask a question for clarification, make a referral to staff or 
take action to have staff place a matter of business on a future agenda (Government 
Code Section 54954.2(a)(2)) 
NO ONE HEARD 
 
 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

297 / 300



Summary  Page 2 
Finance Committee Meeting 12/10/2021 
Kern Health Systems  

 

 
CA-3) Minutes for KHS Finance Committee meeting on October 8, 2021 - APPROVED 

   Rhoades-Martinez: 4 Ayes; 1 Absent - Melendez 
 

4) Report on Kern Health Systems investment portfolio for the third quarter ending 
September 30, 2021 (Fiscal Impact: None) – IRA COHEN, UBS FINANCIAL SERVICES, 
INC., HEARD; RECEIVED AND FILED; REFERRED TO KHS BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Rhoades-McGlew: 4 Ayes; 1 Absent - Melendez 
 

5) Proposed policy renewal with IOA RE for reinsurance to mitigate costs incurred by Kern 
Health Systems for members with high dollar inpatient admissions from January 1, 2022 
through December 31, 2022 in an amount not to exceed $0.18 per member per month 
(Fiscal Impact: $670,140 estimated; Budgeted) – KATHRYN BOWEN, ARTHUR J. 
GALLAGHER & CO., HEARD; APPROVED; REFERRED TO KHS BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS 

  McGlew-Rhoades: 4 Ayes; 1 Absent - Melendez 
 

6) Proposed Kern Health Systems 2022 Operating and Capital Budgets (Fiscal Impact: 
None) – APPROVED; REFERRED TO KHS BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

  McGlew-Rhoades: 4 Ayes; 1 Absent - Melendez 
 
7) Proposed Budget Request for 2022 Project Consulting Professional Services, from 

January 1, 2022 through December 31, 2022 (Fiscal Impact: $10,369,190; Budgeted) – 
APPROVED; REFERRED TO KHS BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Rhoades-Martinez: 4 Ayes; 1 Absent - Melendez 
 

8) Proposed Agreement with Dell, Inc, for Microsoft Licensing, maintenance and technical 
support, from January 1, 2022 through December 31, 2024, in an amount not to exceed 
$1,358,808 (Fiscal Impact: $452,936 annually; Budgeted) – APPROVED; REFERRED 
TO KHS BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Rhoades-Martinez: 4 Ayes; 1 Absent - Melendez 

 
9) Proposed Agreement with Entysis360, for the purchase of the Nutanix Storage Solution 

with one year support and maintenance, from January 1, 2022 through December 31, 
2022 (Fiscal Impact: $733,444 annually; Budgeted) – APPROVED; REFERRED TO KHS 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Rhoades-Martinez: 4 Ayes; 1 Absent - Melendez 

 
DIRECTOR DEATS LEFT THE DAIS AT 9:15 A.M. AND DID NOT RETURN 

 
10) Proposed Agreement with LinkedIn, Co., for the online training platform for KHS’ 

employees, from January 1, 2022 through December 31, 2024, in an amount not to 
exceed $178,950 (Fiscal Impact: $59,650 annually; Budgeted) – APPROVED; 
REFERRED TO KHS BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Martinez-Rhoades: 3 Ayes; 2 Absent – Deats, Melendez 

 
 
 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

298 / 300



Summary  Page 3 
Finance Committee Meeting 12/10/2021 
Kern Health Systems  

 

 
11) Proposed Agreement with A-C Electric, for the design and installation of a Solar Panel 

system for the KHS’ facility, from January 1, 2022 through October 30, 2022, (Fiscal 
Impact: $2,371,559; Budgeted) – JEFF PETRINI, A-C ELECTRIC, HEARD; APPROVED; 
REFERRED TO KHS BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Rhoades-Martinez: 3 Ayes; 2 Absent – Deats, Melendez 
 

12) Report on Kern Health Systems financial statements for September 2021 and October 
2021 (Fiscal Impact: None) –  RECEIVED AND FILED; REFERRED TO KHS BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS 
Martinez-Rhoades: 3 Ayes; 2 Absent – Deats, Melendez 
 

13) Report on Accounts Payable Vendor Report, Administrative Contracts between $30,000 
and $100,000 for September 2021 and October 2021 and IT Technology Consulting 
Resources for the period ended October 31, 2021 (Fiscal Impact: None) –  RECEIVED 
AND FILED; REFERRED TO KHS BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Rhoades-Martinez: 3 Ayes; 2 Absent – Deats, Melendez 

 
   
 
ADJOURN TO FRIDAY, FEBRUARY 4, 2022 AT 8:00 A.M. 
 
 
 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, February 10, 2022

299 / 300






	KHS Board Packet for Feb. 10, 2022
	Agenda
	Item CA-4 - KHS Board Summary of Dec. 16, 2021
	Item CA-5 - KHS Board Summary of Jan. 19, 2022
	Item 6 - Report on CEO Search Committee
	Item 7 - Report on KHS 2021 Member Services Survey
	Item 8 - KHS 2022 Employee Survey
	Item 9 - KHS 2021 Provider Satisfaction Survey
	Item CA-10 - Report on KHS 2022 Goals, Projects, 2021 Goals and Objectives
	Item 11 - Report on KHS 2022 School Wellness Programs
	Item CA-12 - Report on KHS Investment Portfolio
	Item CA-13 - Report on KHS Investment Policy
	Item CA-14 - Report on 2021 Annual Travel
	Item CA-15 - Report on 2021 Annual Report of Disposed Assets
	Item CA-16 - Proposed Amendment to MCG Agreement
	Item CA-17 - Proposed Agreement with Ceridian HCM
	Item 18 - Report on KHS Financials for Nov. 2021
	Item CA-19 - Report on Accounts Payable for Nov. 2021
	Item CA-20 - Proposed KHS Vendor Contracts
	Item 21 - Operations Performance and Review of KHS Grievance Report
	Item 22 - CMO Report
	Item 23 - CEO Report
	Item CA-24 - Finance Meeting Minutes of Dec. 10, 2021



